UG0691 User Guide Libero SoC Design Flow Libero SoC v12.3 - SmartFusion2, IGLOO2, RTG4

NOTE: PDF files are intended to be viewed on the printed page; links and cross-references in this PDF file may point to external files and generate an error when clicked. View the online help included with software to enable all linked content.







а 🐼 Міскоснір company

Microsemi Headquarters

One Enterprise, Aliso Viejo, CA 92656 USA Within the USA: +1 (800) 713-4113 Outside the USA: +1 (949) 380-6100 Fax: +1 (949) 215-4996 Email: sales.support@microsemi.com www.microsemi.com

©2019 Microsemi, a wholly owned subsidiary of Microchip Technology Inc. All rights reserved. Microsemi and the Microsemi logo are registered trademarks of Microsemi Corporation. All other trademarks and service marks are the property of their respective owners. Microsemi makes no warranty, representation, or guarantee regarding the information contained herein or the suitability of its products and services for any particular purpose, nor does Microsemi assume any liability whatsoever arising out of the application or use of any product or circuit. The products sold hereunder and any other products sold by Microsemi have been subject to limited testing and should not be used in conjunction with mission-critical equipment or applications. Any performance specifications are believed to be reliable but are not verified, and Buyer must conduct and complete all performance and other testing of the products, alone and together with, or installed in, any end-products. Buyer shall not rely on any data and performance specifications or parameters provided by Microsemi. It is the Buyer's responsibility to independently determine suitability of any products and to test and verify the same. The information provided by Microsemi hereunder is provided "as is, where is" and with all faults, and the entire risk associated with such information is entirely with the Buyer. Microsemi does not information itself or anything described by such information. Information provided in this document is proprietary to Microsemi, and Microsemi reserves the right to make any changes to the information in this document or to any products and services at any time without notice.

About Microsemi

Microsemi, a wholly owned subsidiary of Microchip Technology Inc. (Nasdaq: MCHP), offers a comprehensive portfolio of semiconductor and system solutions for aerospace & defense, communications, data center and industrial markets. Products include high-performance and radiation-hardened analog mixed-signal integrated circuits, FPGAs, SoCs and ASICs; power management products; timing and synchronization devices and precise time solutions, setting the world's standard for time; voice processing devices; RF solutions; discrete components; enterprise storage and communication solutions, security technologies and scalable anti-tamper products; Ethernet solutions; Power-over-Ethernet ICs and midspans; as well as custom design capabilities and services. Learn more at www.microsemi.com.

5-02-00691-7/12.19



Table of Contents

Table of Contents	2
Libero SoC Introduction	5
Welcome to Microsemi's Libero [®] SoC v12.3	5
Licensing and Additional Resources	5
Libero SoC Design Flow - SmartFusion2, IGLOO2, RTG4	14
Constraint Flow and Design Sources	16
Supported Families	18
File Types in Libero SoC	19
Software Tools - Libero SoC	20
Software IDE Integration	21
Libero Design Flow SmartFusion2, IGLOO2, and RTG4	22
Starting the Libero GUI	22
Design Report	23
Using the Libero SoC New Project Wizard	24
Create and Verify Design	32
System Builder	32
MSS - SmartFusion2 only	32
Create with SmartDesign	35
SmartDesign	35
Create Core from HDL	41
Designing with HDL	43
Designing with Block Flow	46
Verify Pre-Synthesized Design - RTL Simulation	46
Libero SoC Constraint Management	51
Invocation of Constraint Manager from the Design Flow Window	51
Libero SoC Design Flow	51
Introduction to Constraint Manager	52
Import a Constraint File	56
Constraint Types	61
Constraint Manager – I/O Attributes Tab	62
IO Advisor (SmartFusion2, IGLOO2, and RTG4)	64
Constraint Manager – Timing Tab	70
Derived Constraints	73
Constraint Ivianager – Floor Planner Tab	
Constraint Manager – Netlist Attributes Tab	
Implement Design	77



Synthesize	77
Verify Post-Synthesized Design	82
Configure Flash*Freeze	83
Configure Register Lock Bits	83
Constraint Flow in Implementation	85
Place and Route - SmartFusion2, IGLOO2, RTG4	90
Multiple Pass Layout Configuration (SmartFusion2, IGLOO2, RTG4)	
Resource Usage (SmartFusion2, IGLOO2, RTG4)	
Global Net Report	
Verify Post Layout Implementation	103
Configure Hardware	
Programming Connectivity and Interface	
Select and Configure Actions and Procedures	
Programmer Settings	
Select Programmer	
5	
Program Design	129
Generate FPGA Array Data	129
Configure Actions and Procedures	134
Configure I/O States During JTAG Programming	137
Configure Programming Options (SmartFusion2 and IGLOO2)	138
Configure Programming Options (RTG4 Only)	141
Configure Security	145
Configure Bitstream	
Generate Bitstream	
Run Programming Device Actions - SmartFusion2, IGLOO2, RTG4	156
Debua Desian	
Generate SmartDebug FPGA Array Data	
SmartDebug	
Identify Debug Design	170
Handoff Design for Production	171
Export Bitstream	
Export Bitstream - RTG4	
Export FlashPro Express Job - SmartFusion2, IGLOO2, RTG4	
Export Job Manager Data - SmartFusion2, IGLOO2	
Export BSDL File	
Export uPROM Report - RTG4	184
Handoff Design for Firmware Development	185
Software IDE Integration	
View/Configure Firmware Cores	
Export Firmware – SmartFusion2	
·	-

3



Export SmartDebug Data (Libero SoC)	
References	



Libero SoC Introduction



Microsemi Libero® System-on-Chip (SoC) design suite offers high productivity with its comprehensive, easy to learn, easy to adopt development tools for designing with Microsemi's power efficient flash <u>FPGAs</u>, <u>SoC FPGAs</u>, and <u>Rad-Tolerant FPGAs</u>. The suite integrates industry standard Synopsys <u>Synplify Pro®</u> synthesis and Mentor Graphics <u>ModelSim®</u> simulation with best-in-class constraints management, debug capabilities, and secure production programming support.

More Information

To access datasheets and silicon user guides, visit <u>www.microsemi.com</u>, select the relevant product family and click the **Documentation** tab. Tutorials, Application Notes, <u>Development Kits & Boards</u> are listed in the **Design Resources** tab.

Click the following links for additional information:

- Libero SoC- <u>Learn more about Libero SoC</u> including Release Notes, a complete list of devices/packages, and timing and power versions supported in this release.
- Programming <u>Learn more about Programming Solutions</u>
- Power Calculators <u>Find XLS-based estimators for device families</u>
- Licensing Learn more about Libero licensing

Licensing and Additional Resources

Microsemi License Utility

The Microsemi License Utility enables you to check and update your license settings for the Libero SoC software. It displays your current license settings, the license host-id for the current host, and allows you to add a new license file to your settings.

To start the Microsemi License Utility, run it from Start > All Programs > Microsemi Libero SoC vx.xx> Microsemi License Utility.

To request a license, click **Request License** to go to the Microsemi license website. You can select and copy (right-click, **Copy**) the disk volume value displayed in the window and paste the value into the Microsemi license web form.

The following licenses are available:

- 1-year Platinum Purchased license that supports all devices
- 1-year Gold Purchased licenses that supports a smaller set of devices than Platinum
- 1-year Silver Free license that supports a smaller set of devices than Gold
- 30-day Evaluation Free license that supports all devices but programming is disabled



When you have received your license file, follow the instructions and save the license to your local disk. In the Microsemi License Utility window, click **Add License File** and browse/select the license file from your disk. If you are using a floating license, click **Add License Server** and enter the Port Number and Name of the license server host.

The list of features for which you are licensed will show all versions, but your license must have a version equal to or greater than your design tools release version in order for the libero.exe and designer.exe tools to run.

The list at the lower right shows the order in which the license files are read, with the first file read at the top of the list.

Click Write Report File to view and/or print the Microsemi Tools Licenses Report, or to save it as a TXT file.

lid License Feat. Version	Term	Expiration	Quantity	Host	HostID	Source	Comment
atinum (ACTEL_: 99.99	Permanent	none	200 users	sage	a0d3c11847ab	1702@sage	
1.0			III				
Host name: 5	053a3e4	🛉 Add License Fil	le 🛉 Add Licer	nse Server			
Disk volume.			Line Barrier	•			
Network card(s)*: a	0d3c11847ab	Sequence for sear	ching license source	3			
Network card(s)*: a	0d3c11847ab	Sequence for sear 1702@sage	ching license source				
Network card(s)*: a	0d3c11847ab	Sequence for sear 1702@sage 1717@sage	ching license source				
Network card(s)*: a Request License (web) Multiple network cards may be only one network card identifier	e listed; use	Sequence for sear 1702@sage 1717@sage 1800@sage	ching license source	3			
Network card(s)*: a Construct a construction of the second	od3c11847ab	Sequence for sear 1702@sage 1717@sage 1800@sage	ching license source	3			
Network card(s)*: a Construct a card construction August License (web) * Multiple network cards may be only one network card identifier requesting a license.	Od3c11847ab	jequence for sear 1702@sage 1717@sage 1800@sage	ching license source	3			
Network card(s)*: Request License (web) Multiple network cards may be only one network card identifier requesting a license.	od3c11847ab	iequence for sear 1702@sage 1717@sage 1800@sage	cning license source	3			
 Network card(s)*: a Request License (web) * Multiple network cards may be only one network card identifier requesting a license. 	od3c11847ab	jequence for sear 1702@sage 1717@sage 1800@sage	ching license source	3			

Figure 1 · Microsemi License Utility

The <u>Microsemi Libero SoC License Information Web Page</u> provides additional licensing-related information including links to troubleshooting and FAQ documents.

License Selection

This topic describes the Select License and License Details dialog boxes.

Select License Dialog Box

The Select License dialog box appears when there is more than one license available and a default license has not been selected. Available licenses are displayed in list format, and you can select the feature license you want to use.



2					Select Lie	tense)
	Feature Line	License Name	License Type	Quantity	Available	Expiration	Host		Comments	
1	ACTEL_SUMMIT	Platinum/Stand	Node locked	Uncounted	Uncounted	11-dec-2019	localhost	V Good to use		
2	ACTEL_VISTA	Gold	Floating	2	2	14-feb-2020	HYD-DK-130370	V Good to use		
	Set Selected License	as Default								
-										

Figure 2 · Select License Dialog Box

If a license will expire within 15 days, you will see a warning in the Comments field of the dialog box and also in the Log window, as shown in the examples below.

•						5	elect License	= 0 X
٢	Feature Line	License Name	License Type	Quantity	Available	Expiration	Host	Comments
	ACTEL_SUMMIT	Platinum/Stand	Floating	2	2	11-may-2019	HYD-DK-(30873	🗥 License will expire in [14] days. Please contact distributor or Microchip sales team to renew license.
	ACTEL VISTA	Gold	Floating	2	2	14-feb-2020	HYD-DK-(30370	V Good to use
ŕ	Set Selected License	as Default						
ſ	Help							Select Canoel

Figure 3 · Select License Dialog Box with License Expiration Warning Message

Messages	😮 Errors 🗼 Warnings 🌒 Info
ANarning:	License [ACTEL_VISTA] will expire in[14] days. Please renew License.
Please cont	tact Libero Support team for more details.
Info: Cur	rrent Vault Location = C:\Users\seetharam.maddineni\AppData\Roaming\Actel\vault
Reading obj	jects from C:\Users\seetharam.maddineni\AppData\Roaming\Actel\repository_cache\madd&talog\cach
Reading obj	jects from C:\Users\seetharam.maddineni\AppData\Roaming\Actel\repository_cache\www.fgCore\cach
Danding ahi	inata from Cillantal anotheres meddinanil InnDetal Desting latell remainstrate anotheres CrCarel asot

Figure 4 · Log Window with License Expiration Warning Message

Actions

Click **Select** to use the selected license to invoke Libero. This button is disabled by default, and is enabled once a License is selected.

Click Cancel to close the license selection window and exit Libero.

Click Help to open the online help topic for License Selection.

Check the **Set Selected License as Default** check box to save the selected license as the default license to be used for future sessions.

Selecting this option skips the license selection step for future sessions. This option can be used if you want to use the same license features for future sessions.

License Types

The **License Type** column indicates whether an available license is a Node Locked license or a Floating or Server-based license.

The total number of licenses and number of available licenses are shown in the **Quantity** and **Available** columns, respectively.

Floating or Server-based Licenses can be used by multiple users, depending on the number of seats available.



•					Select Li	cense						×
Г	Feature Line	License Name	License Type	Quantity	Available	Expiration	Host		Comments		_]
1	ACTEL_SUMMIT	Platinum/Stand	Node locked	Uncounted	Uncounted	11-dec-2019	localhost	V Good to use				1
2	ACTEL_VISTA	Gold	Floating	2	2	14-feb-2020	HYD-DK-130370	V Good to use				1
 	Set Selected License	t as Default										
	Help								Select	Car	cel	L

If there are no valid licenses available, the following message appears:

0	libero 🗕 🗖 🗙
	There is no valid Libero license available. Please verify the available licenses.
$\mathbf{\mathbf{O}}$	
	ОК

If a selected license has been acquired by another user, you will be notified with the following message:

•					Select Lic	cense		_ 0 X
Г	Feature Line	License Name	License Type	Quantity	Available	Expiration	Host	Comments
1	ACTEL_SUMMIT	Platinum/Stand	Node locked	0	Uncounted	11-dec-2019	localhost	V Good to use
2	ACTEL_VISTA	Gold	Floating	2	2	14-feb-2020	HYD-DK-130370	V Good to use
		*	License has been	aquired by other OK	user. Please select a	nother License		
	Set Selected License	as Default						

Additional License Information

Set Default License After Libero Invocation

This Libero Help menu option sets/updates the default Libero license and allows it to be used for future sessions. To set the default license after Libero invocation, click **Select Default License**, as shown below.





The Select License dialog box appears, as shown in the example below.

					Select Lic	ense			? X
Г	Feature Line	License Name	License Type	Quantity	Available	Expiration	Host	Comments	
1	ACTEL_SUMMIT	Platinum/Stand	Floating	2	2	11-may-2019	HYD-DK-I30873	V Good to use	
2	ACTEL_VISTA	Gold	Floating	2	2	14-feb-2020	HYD-DK-130370	V Good to use	

Actions

Click **Set Default License** to set the default Libero license. You can also double-click the license row to set the default license. This button is enabled if you select any row in the list of licenses.

Click Cancel to close the default license selection window without performing any action.

Click Help to open the online help document for License Selection.

Set License Options in Libero Preferences Dialog Box

To set license options in the Libero Preferences dialog box, click **Project > Preferences**.



O Preferences	?	\times
Software update Log window Startup Internet Access Text editor Itiense Options IP Cores Design Flow License Options Proxy Itiense options		
Help OK	Ca	ncel

Figure 5 · License Options in Libero Preferences Dialog Box

Reset Default License Selection: This check box is enabled only when there is a default license available. When this check box is checked, the default license will be cleared and the check box will be disabled.

"Warn we when my Libero license is about to expire": This check box enables/disables Notification of License expiry. If the selected license expiry date is within 15 days, a popup message appears.

This option can be used only when the expiry date is more than 5 days and less than 15 days.

See Also

License Details

License Details

The License Details dialog box has two tabs:

- Tools
- IP Cores

Tools

The Tools tab displays tool license details.

IP Cores

The IP Cores tab displays IP Cores license details, as shown in the following example.



				[0	License type: Floating	
	Core Name	License Name	Capacity	Expiration Date	-	Host name: HYD-DK-130370.mchp-main.com	
1	CORESMIP	AIPODIRECTCORECORESMIP	2	14-feb-2020		Lookup path:	
2	COREAPBLSRAM	AIPUDIRECTCORECOREAPBLSRAM	2	14-feb-2020		c:\flexim\License.dat 1800@HYD-DK-I30820.mchp-main.com	
3	COREQOR	AIPUDIRECTCORECOREQDR	2	14-feb-2020		1717@HYD-DK-I30873.mchp-main.com 1702@HYD-DK-I30370.mchp-main.com	
4	CORESDR_AXI	AIPUDIRECTCORECORESDR_AXI	2	14-feb-2020			
5	COREFIFO	AIPUDIRECTCORECOREFIFO	2	14-feb-2020			
6	CORE1588	AIPUDIRECTCORECORE1588	2	14-feb-2020			
7	CORTEXMITOP	AIPUDIRECTCORECORTEXM1TOP	2	14-feb-2020			
8	COREAHB	AIPUDIRECTCORECOREAHB	2	14-feb-2020	+1	4	

Figure 6 · IP Cores License Details

Actions

Click **Close** to close the current dialog box.

Click **Help** to open the online help topic for License Selection.

Click **Filter** to search for the pattern specified in the text edit box. Filtered rows will be shown in the Cores table. **Lookup Path**: Shows the list of License hosts included in the LM_LICENSE_FILE.

See Also

License Selection

FPGA and SoC Product Documentation Available on the Microsemi Web Site

General Information about Microsemi's FPGA & SoC products is available here.

Information About Supported Families:

Device Family Family Derivatives		Description		
SmartFusion2	N/A	Address fundamental requirements for advanced security, high reliability and low power in critical industrial, military, aviation, communications and medical applications.		
<u>IGLOO2</u>	N/A	Low-power mixed-signal programmable solution		
RTG4	N/A	Microsemi's new RTG4 family of radiation-tolerant FPGAs		

|--|

Information About Libero SoC Software

More information about Libero SoC Software is available here.

Application Notes and Tutorials

Application Notes and Tutorials are generally found on the **Documentation** tab of the supported technology page. For example, <u>SmartFusion2 Application Notes and Tutorials can be found here.</u>



Online Help - Libero SoC

This online help system is designed to open in the HTML Help Viewer – Microsoft's Help window for viewing compiled HTML Help. If you do not have the HTML Help Viewer components installed on your system, you can view it with Microsoft's Internet Explorer browser (use version 4.x or later for complete functionality).

Viewing HTML Files on Linux

You may need to set your LINUX_HTMLREADER variable such that it enables a HTML viewer. For example: setenv LINUX HTMLREADER /usr/bin/firefox

If you do not set this variable then some HTML files, such as the help, will not be available from within software.

See Also

Navigation tabs User's Guides

Using Navigation tabs

Libero SoC online Help, which is generated using Microsoft HTML Help, includes the following navigation tabs:

Contents

The Contents tab displays books and pages that represent the categories of information in the online Help system. When you click a closed book, it opens to display its content (sub-books and pages). When you click an open book, it closes. When you click pages, you select topics to view in the right-hand pane of the HTML Help viewer.

Search

The Search tab enables you to search for words in the Help system and locate topics containing those words. Full-text searching looks through every word in the online Help to find matches. When the search is completed, a list of topics is displayed so you can select a specific topic to view.

Reading User Guides

Libero SoC includes online manuals. The online manuals are in PDF format and available from Libero SoC Start Menu. Note that PDF files are for printing and viewing offline; use the online help to view user support on your workstation.

From the Start menu, choose **All Programs > Microsemi > Libero SoC > Libero SoC Reference Manuals** You must have Adobe Acrobat Reader or similar PDF viewer to open and view the PDF user guides.

Viewing PDF Files on Linux

You may need to set your LINUX_PDFREADER variable such that it enables a PDF viewer. For example:

setenv LINUX_PDFREADER /usr/bin/kpdf

If you do not set this variable then some PDF files, such as the SmartTime User's Guide, will not be available from within software.

Microsemi SoC Products Group Headquarters

Microsemi Corporation is a supplier of innovative programmable logic solutions, including field-programmable gate arrays (FPGAs) based on antifuse and flash technologies, high-performance intellectual property (IP) cores, software development tools, and design services targeted for the high-speed communications, application-specific integrated circuit (ASIC) replacement, and radiation-tolerant markets.



Address:	Microsemi SoC Products Group 3870 North First Street San Jose, CA 95134
Phone:	408-643-6000

Contact Information

For the most up-to-date contact information, check the Microsemi Home Page.

Contact information for FPGAs & SoCs can be found at the FPGAs and SoCs Support Page

If you do not have internet access, the following information was accurate at the time of publication:

- Technical Support
 - Web: <u>https://soc.microsemi.com/mycases</u>
 - Phone (NA): 800.262.1060
 - Phone (Int'I): +1 650.313.4460
 - Email: soc_tech@microsemi.com
- Customer (non-technical) Support
 - Phone: +1 650.318.2470
 - Email: customer.service@microsemi.com
- Sales Support
 - For pricing, order status and lead time information for all Microsemi SoC products, contact your <u>Microsemi Sales Representative</u>
- Technical Support for RH and RT FPGAs that are regulated by International Traffic in Arms Regulations (ITAR)
 - Phone (NA): 888.988.ITAR
 - Phone (Int'I): +1 650.318.4900
 - Email: soc_tech_itar@microsemi.com



Libero SoC Design Flow - SmartFusion2, IGLOO2, RTG4



Figure 7 · Libero SoC Design Flow for SmartFusion2, IGLOO2, RTG4 Devices

Create Design

Create your design with any or all of the following design capture tools:

- System Builder
- Create SmartDesign
- Create HDL
- Create SmartDesign Testbench (optional, for simulation only)
- Create HDL Testbench (optional, for simulation only)

Once the design is created, you can invoke simulation for pre-synthesis verification.



It is also possible to click the button, to execute the Libero SoC software through Place and Route with default settings. However this bypasses constraint management.

Constraints

Manage Constraints

In the FPGA design world, constraint files are as important as design source files. Constraint files are used throughout the FPGA design process to guide FPGA tools to achieve the timing and power requirements of the design. For the synthesis step, SDC timing constraints set the performance goals whereas non-timing FDC constraints guide the synthesis tool for optimization. For the Place-and-Route step, SDC timing constraints guide the tool to achieve the timing requirements whereas Physical Design Constraints (PDC) guide the tool for optimized placement and routing (Floorplanning). For Static Timing Analysis, SDC timing constraints set the timing requirements and design-specific timing exceptions for static timing analysis.

Libero SoC provides the Constraint Manager as the cockpit to manage your design constraint needs. This is a single centralized graphical interface for you to create, import, link, check, delete, edit design constraints and associate the constraint files to design tools in the Libero SoC environment. The Constraint Manager allows you to manage constraints for SynplifyPro synthesis, Libero SoC Placeand- Route and the SmartTime Timing Analysis throughout the design process.

Invocation of Constraint Manager From the Design Flow Window

After project creation, double-click **Manage Constraints** in the Design Flow window to open the Constraint Manager.



Figure 8 · Constraint Manager

- See Also
 - Constraint Manager
 - New Project Wizard to import/link design constraints when creating new projects

Implement

- Netlist Viewer (User Guide)
- <u>Synthesize</u> Double-click Synthesize to run synthesis on your design with the default settings. The constraints associated with Synthesis in the Constraint Manager are passed to Synplify.
- Verify Post-Synthesis Implementation (Simulate)
- Configure Flash*Freeze
- <u>Configure Register Lock Bits</u>



Place and Route - Place and Route takes the design constraints from the Constraint Manager and

runs with default settings. This is the last step in the push-button 😡 design flow execution.

- Verify Post Layout Implementation
 - Generate Back Annotated Files
 - Simulate
 - Verify Timing Right click and select <u>Configure Options</u> to specify a timing report with your desired conditions.
 - Open SmartTime
 - Verify Power
 - SSN Analyzer

Program and Debug Design

- Generate FPGA Array Data
- Update eNVM Memory Content
- Configure Hardware
 - Programming Connectivity and Interface- Organizes your programmer(s) and devices.
 - <u>Configure Programmer</u> Opens your programmer settings; use if you wish to program using settings other than default.
 - <u>Device I/O States During Programming JTAG Mode Only</u> Sets your device I/O states during programming; use if your design requires that you change the default I/O states.
- <u>Configure Programming Options</u>
- <u>Configure Security Policy Manager</u>
- Program Design
 - Generate Bitstream
 - Run PROGRAM Action
 - Debug Design
 - Identify Debug Design
 - SmartDebug (User Guide)
- Configure Permanent Locks for Production (Configure OTP Security)

Handoff Design for Production

- Export Bitstream
- Export FlashPro Express Job
- Export Job Manager Data
- Export Pin Report
- Export BSDL
- Export IBIS Model

Handoff Design for Firmware Development

Handoff Design for Debugging (Export SmartDebug Data)

Constraint Flow and Design Sources

The Constraint Flow supports HDL and Netlist design sources. The Libero SoC Design Flow window and the Constraint Manager are context-sensitive to the type of design sources: HDL or Netlist.

Constraint Flow for HDL designs

When the design source is HDL, the Design Flow window displays Synthesis as a design step. The Constraint Manager also makes available Synthesis as a target to receive timing constraints and netlist attribute constraints. The options to promote or demote global resources of the chip are set in the Synthesis options.

Constraint Flow for EDIF designs

When the design source is a Netlist, the Design Flow window displays Compile Netlist as a design step. Timing constraints can be passed to Place and Route and Timing Verification only.

The options to promote or demote global resources of the chip are set in the Compile Netlist options.

The HDL flow versus the Netlist Flow is compared and contrasted below.

HDL Flow	Netlist Flow
Design Flow Top Module(root): top	Design Flow Top Module(root): shift32
Active Synthesis Implementation: synthesis	Active Synthesis Implementation: synthesis
Teel	Tool
Design Flow Window	Design Flow Window
Reports ⊕ × top.v ⊕ × Constraint Manager* ⊕ × StartPage ⊕ × I/O Attributes Immor* Floor Planner Netlist Attributes New Import Link Edit ▼ Derive Constraint Netlist New Import Link Edit ▼ Derive Constraint Netlist Constraint\user.sdc ♥ ♥ ♥ constraint\user.sdc ♥ ♥	L/O Attributes Timing Floor Planner Netlist Attributes New Import Link Edit ♥ Check ♥ Derive Constraint Place and Route Timing Verification constraint\user.sdc ♥ ♥ constraint\my2.sdc ♥ ■
Constraint Manager	Constraint Manager
I/O Attributes Timing Floor Planner Netlist Attribu	I/O Attributes Timing Floor Planner Netlist Attribu
Constraint Manager - Check *.fdc and *.ndc	



HDL Flow	Netlist Flow	
	Constraint Manager - Check *.ndc only	
Synthesize Options	Compile Netlist Options	
Synthesize Options Global Nets Minimum number of clock pins: Minimum number of asynchronous pins: Minimum fanout of non-clock nets to be kept on globals: Number of global resources: Maximum number of global nets that could be demoted to row-globals Minimum fanout of global nets that could be demoted to row-globals Optimizations Enable retiming RAM optimized for: Additional options for SynplifyPro synthesis Script file: Help Help	Compile Netlist Options Global Promotion Number of global resources: Maximum number of global nets that could be demoted to row-globals: Minimum fanout of global nets that could be demoted to row-globals: Minimum fanout of non-clock nets to be kept on globals: Help CK Global Promotion/Demotion Options set in Compile Netlist Options Dialog Box	
Global Promotion/Demotion Options set in Synthesis Options Dialog Box		



Supported Families

Microsemi's Libero SoC software supports the following families of devices:

- SmartFusion2
- IGLOO2
- RTG4

When we specify a family name, we refer to the device family and all its derivatives, unless otherwise specified. See the table below for a list of supported device families and their derivatives:

Table 2 · Product Families and Derivatives



Device Family Family Derivatives		Description		
SmartFusion2	N/A	Address fundamental requirements for advanced security, high reliability and low power in critical industrial, military, aviation, communications and medical applications.		
<u>IGLOO2</u>	N/A	Low-power mixed-signal programmable solution		
RTG4	N/A	Microsemi's new family of radiation-tolerant FPGAs		

File Types in Libero SoC

When you create a new project in Libero SoC it automatically creates new directories and project files. Your project directory contains all of your local project files. When you <u>import</u> files from outside your current project, the files are <u>copied into your local project folder</u>.

The Project Manager enables you to manage your files as you import them. If you want to store and maintain your design source files and design constraint files in a central location outside the Project location, Libero gives you the option to link them to your Libero project folders when you first create your project. These linked files are not copied but rather linked to your project folder.

Depending on your project preferences and the version of Libero SoC you installed, the software creates directories for your project.

The top level directory (<project_name>) contains your *.prjx file; only one *.prjx file is enabled for each Libero SoC project. If you associate Libero SoC as the default program with the *.prjx file (Project > Preferences > Startup > Check the default file association (.prjx) at startup), you can double-click the *.prjx file to open the project with Libero SoC.

component directory - Stores your SmartDesign components (SDB and CXF files) and the *_manifest.txt file for each design components in your Libero SoC project. Refer to the *_manifest.txt file if you want to run synthesis, simulation, and firmware development with your own point tools outside the Libero SoC environment. For each design component, Libero SoC generates a <component_name>_manifest.txt file which stores the file name and location of:

- HDL source files to be used for synthesis and simulations
- Stimulus files and configuration files for simulation
- Firmware files for software IDE tools
- Configuration files for programming
- Configuration files for power analysis.

Refer to the SmartFusion2/IGLOO2 Custom Flow User Guide for details about how to run synthesis, simulation, firmware development, programming, and power analysis outside the Libero SoC environment.

constraint directory - All your constraint files (SDC timing constraint files, floorplanning PDC files, I/O PDC files, Netlist Attributes NDC files)

designer directory - *_ba.sdf, *_ba.v(hd), STP, PRB (for Silicon Explorer), TCL (used to run designer), impl.prj des (local project file relative to revision), designer.log (logfile)

hdl directory - all hdl sources. *.vhd if VHDL, *.v and *.h if Verilog

simulation directory - meminit.dat, modelsim.ini files, *.bfm files and *.vec file, run.do file for simulation.

smartgen directory - GEN files and LOG files from generated cores

stimulus directory - BTIM, Verilog, and VHDL stimulus files

synthesis directory - *.edn, *_syn.prj (Synplify log file), *.psp (Precision project file), *.srr (Synplify logfile), precision.log (Precision logfile), *.tcl (used to run synthesis) and many other files generated by the tools (not managed by Libero SoC)

viewdraw directory - viewdraw.ini files



Internal Files

Libero SoC generates the following internal files. They may or may not be encrypted. They are for Libero SoC housekeeping and are not for users.

File	File Extension	Remarks
Routing Segmentation File	*.seg	
Combiner Info	*.cob	
Hierarchical Netlist	*.adl	
Flattened Netlist	*.afl	
Location file	*.loc	
map file	*.map	Fabric Programming File
tieoffs.txt	*.txt	RTG4 devices only

Software Tools - Libero SoC

The Libero SoC integrates design tools, streamlines your design flow, manages design and log files, and passes design data between tools.

For more information on Libero SoC tools, visit:

https://www.microsemi.com/products/fpga-soc/design-resources/design-software/libero-soc#overview

Function	ΤοοΙ	Company
Project Manager, HDL Editor, Core Generation	Libero SoC	Microsemi SoC
Synthesis	Synplify [®] Pro ME	Synopsys
Simulation	ModelSim [®] ME	Mentor Graphics
Timing/Constraints, Power Analysis, Netlist Viewer, Floorplanning, Package Editing, Place-and-Route, Debugging	Libero SoC	Microsemi SoC

Project Manager, HDL Editor targets the creation of HDL code. HDL Editor supports VHDL and Verilog with color, highlighting keywords for both HDL languages.

Synplify Pro ME from Synopsys is integrated as part of the design package, enabling designers to target HDL code to specific devices.

Microsemi SoC software package includes:

- ChipPlanner displays I/O and logic macros in your design for floorplanning
- Netlist Viewer design schematic viewer
- SmartPower power analysis tool
- SmartTime static timing analysis and constraints editor

ModelSim ME from Mentor Graphics enables source level verification so designers can verify HDL code line by line. Designers can perform simulation at all levels: behavioral (or pre-synthesis), structural (or post-synthesis), dynamic simulation. (ModelSim is supported in Libero Gold and Platinum only.)



Software IDE Integration

Libero SoC simplifies the task of transitioning between designing your FPGA to developing your embedded firmware.

Libero SoC manages the firmware for your FPGA hardware design, including:

- Firmware hardware abstraction layers required for your processor
- Firmware drivers for the processor peripherals that you use in your FPGA design.
- Sample application projects are available for drivers that illustrate the proper usage of the APIs

You can see which firmware drivers Libero SoC has found to be compatible with your design by opening the <u>Firmware View</u>. From this view, you can change the configuration of your firmware, change to a different version, read driver documentation, and generate any sample projects for each driver.

Libero SoC manages the integration of your firmware with your preferred Software Development Environment, including SoftConsole, Keil, and IAR Embedded Workbench. The projects and workspaces for your selected development environment are automatically generated with the proper settings and flags so that you can immediately begin writing your application.

See Also

Exporting Firmware and the Software IDE Workspace Running Libero SoC from your Software Tool Chain View/Configure Firmware Cores



Libero Design Flow SmartFusion2, IGLOO2, and RTG4

When creating a new project, follow the directions in the New Project Wizard to create a project.

Starting the Libero GUI

When starting Libero SoC GUI, the user will be presented with the option of either creating a new project, or opening an old one.

0	Libero _ 🗆 🗙
Project File Edit View Design Tools He	2lp
Stattrage	•
Projects New Open Recent Projects	Welcome to Microsemi's Libero® Soc v11.9 Microsemi Libero® System-on-Chip (SoC) design suite offers high productivity with its comprehensive, easy to learn, easy to adopt development tools for designing with Microsemi's power efficient flash FPGAs, Soc FPGAs, and Rad-Tolerant FPGAs. The suite integrates industry standard Synopsys Synplify Pro® synthesis and Mentor Graphics ModelSim® simulation with best-in-class constraints management, debug capabilities, and secure production programming support.
	More Information
Links Welcome to Libero SoC Libero SoC Quickstart Libero SoC Interface Description Libero SoC Release Notes on the Web Libero Tutorials Product Tutorials Training Webcasts	 To access datasheets and silicon user guides, visit <u>www.microsemi.com</u>, select the relevant product family and click the Documentation tab. Tutorials, Application Notes, <u>Development Kits & Boards</u> are listed in the Design Resources tab. Click the following links for additional information: Libero – <u>Learn more about Libero SoC</u> including v11.9 Release Notes, a complete list of devices/packages, and timing and power versions supported in this release. Programming – <u>Learn more about Programming Solutions</u> Power Calculators – <u>Find XLS-based estimators for device families</u> Licensing – <u>Learn more about Libero licensing</u>
Log	energian de la constante
Errors A Warnings	♀ Info
Log Message	Fam: Part: [

Figure 10 · Libero SoC Start-up GUI

- Clicking on Open ... opens a pre-existing Libero SoC project.
- Clicking on *New...* starts the <u>New Project Wizard</u>. Upon completion of the wizard, a new Libero SoC project is created and opened.

Having opened a project, the Libero SoC GUI presents a Design Flow window on the left hand side, a log and message window at the bottom, and project information windows on the right. Below we see the GUI of a newly created project with only the top level Design Flow Window steps visible.



Libero - U:\v19 newcons\F\F.prix		x						
Project File Edit View Design Tools Help	the second s							
Design Flow 🗗 🗙	Reports 🗗 × StartPage 🗗 ×	Ŧ						
Please select a root 🔄 🖸 🖉	Project Summary							
Tool > Create Design > Constrain Design > Implement Design > Program Design > Debug Design > Handoff Design for Production > Develop Firmware	Project Name: F Location: U:\newcons\F Description: Preferred HDL Type: Verilog # Part Number : AFS090-1FG256 Family : Fusion Die : AFS090 Package : 256 FBGA Speed : -1 Core Voltage : 1.5 Range : COM							
During 5 Design Marzar Standar Marzar Catalan Sila	T	Þ						
Design r Design mierar Sumulus nierar Catalog Piles								
Log		θ×						
Messages Strors A Warnings Info Mixarning: The programming profile 'FlashPro' has been activated; the attributes for this Profile have changed since you last opened this project. The F project was opened.								
Log Message	Fam: Fusion Part: AFS090-1FG256 Ver	ilog						

Figure 11 · Design Flow Window

The Design Flow Window

The Design Flow Window for each technology family may be slightly different. The Constraint Flow choice made during new project creation may also affect the exact elements of design flow. However, all flows include some version of the following design steps:

- Create
- Constrain
- Implement
- Program Design
- Debug Design
- Handoff

Design Report

The Design Report Tab lists all the reports available for your design, and displays the selected report.

Reports are added automatically as you move through design development. For example, Timing reports are added when you run timing analysis on your design. The reports are updated each time you run timing analysis.

If the Report Tab is not visible, you can expose it at any time by clicking on the main menu item **Design** > **Reports**

If a report is not yet listed, you may have to create it manually. For example, you must invoke **Verify Power** manually before its report will be available.

Reports for the following steps are available for viewing here:

• Project Summary



- Synthesize
- Place and Route
- Verify Timing
- Verify Power
- Programming
 - Generate FPGA Array Data
 - Generate Bitstream
- Export
 - Export Bitstream
 - Export Pin Report
 - Export BSDL File
 - Export IBIS Model

Using the Libero SoC New Project Wizard

Start a new Libero SoC project by pulling down the Main Libero Menu item **Project** and selecting **New Project** This will bring up the Libero SoC New Project Wizard which will walk you through the steps to create a new Libero Project:

- Project Details such as Name and file location
- <u>Device Selection</u> Once the device selection has been made, and in any dialog box hereafter, you may click on the "Finish" button.
- Device Settings
- <u>Design Template</u> this dialog box may be not be available if there are no design templates for the chosen technology.
- Add HDL Sources
- Add Constraints

New Project Creation Wizard – Project Details

You can create a Libero SoC project using the New Project Creation Wizard. You can use the pages in the wizard to:

- Specify the project name and location
- Select the device family and parts
- Set the I/O standards
- Use System Builder or MSS in your design project (SmartFusion2 and IGLOO2 only)
- Import HDL source files and/or design constraint files into your project



🕑 New project	2042-45					35 <u></u>		\times
Project details Specify project details								
Project Details	Project name:							
Device Selection	Project location:	/temp					Browse	
Device Settings	Description:							
Design Template	Preferred HDL type:	eriog 🔻						
Add HDL Sources								
Add Constraints								
Help			ļ	< Back	Next >	Finish	Cance	el

Figure 12 · Libero SoC New Project Creation Wizard

Project

Project Name - Identifies your project name; do not use spaces or reserved Verilog or VHDL keywords. **Project Location** – Identifies your project location on disk.

Description – General information about your design and project. The information entered appears in your Datasheet Report View.

Preferred HDL type - Sets your HDL type: Verilog or VHDL. Libero-generated files (SmartDesigns, SmartGen cores, etc.) are created in your specified HDL type. Libero SoC supports mixed-HDL designs.

Enable Block Creation - Enables you to build blocks for your design. These blocks can be assembled in other designs, and may have already completed Layout and been optimized for timing and power performance for a specific Microsemi device. Once optimized, the same block or blocks can be used in multiple designs. When you are finished, click **Next** to proceed to the Device Selection page.

See Also

New Project Creation Wizard - Device Selection New Project Creation Wizard – Device Settings New Project Creation Wizard – Design Template (SmartFusion2 and IGLOO2 only) New Project Creation Wizard – Add HDL Source Files New Project Creation Wizard - Add Constraints

New Project Creation Wizard – Device Selection

The Device Selection page is where you specify the Microsemi device for your project. Use the filters and dropdown lists to refine your search for the right part to use for your design.

This page contains a table of all parts with associated FPGA resource details generated as a result of a value entered in a filter.

When a value is selected for a filter:

- The parts table is updated to reflect the result of the new filtered value.
- All other filters are updated, and only relevant items are available in the filter drop-down lists.



For example, when SmartFusion2 is selected in the Family filter:

- The parts table includes only SmartFusion2 parts.
- The Die filter includes only SmartFusion2 dies in the drop-down list for Die.

	Part filter								
Project Details	Family: SmartFusio	n2 🗘	Die:	All	\$	Package:	All	\$	
	Speed: All	4	Core voltage:	All		Range:	All		
Device Selection	- p + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +		j j		•				
							Reset	filters	
Device Settings									
	Search part:								
Design Template	Part Number 😽	4LUT	DFF	User I/Os	uSRA	M 1K	LSRAM 18K	Math (18x18)	P
	M2S005-1FG484	6060	6060	209	11		10	11	2
	M2S005-1FG484I	6060	6060	209	11		10	11	2
Add HDL Sources	M2S005-1TQ144	6060	6060	84	11		10	11	2
add fibe sources	M2S005-1TQ144I	6060	6060	84	11		10	11	2
	M2S005-1VF256	6060	6060	161	11		10	11	2
2500	M2S005-1VF256I	6060	6060	161	11		10	11	2
Add Constraints	M2S005-1VF400	6060	6060	171	11		10	11	2
	M2S005-1VF400I	6060	6060	171	11		10	11	2
	M2S005-FG484	6060	6060	209	11		10	11	2
1000	M2S005-FG484I	6060	6060	209	11		10	11	2
	M2S005S-1FG484	6060	6060	209	11		10	11	2
	M2S005S-1FG484I	6060	6060	209	11		10	11	2
	M2C005C 1EC404T2	6060	6060	209	11		10	11	2

Figure 13 · New Project Creation Wizard - Device Selection Page

Family – Specify the Microsemi device family. Only devices belonging to the family are listed in the parts table. **Die / Package / Speed** - Set your device die, package, and speed grade, respectively. Only parts matching the filtering option are listed in the parts table.

Core Voltage - Set the core voltage for your device. Two numbers separated by a "~" are shown if a wide range voltage is supported. For example, 1.2~1.5 means that the device core voltage can vary between 1.2 and 1.5 volts.

Range - From the provided pick list, select the temperature range a device may encounter in your application. Junction temperature is a function of ambient temperature, air flow, and power consumption. Tools such as SmartTime, SmartPower, timing-driven layout, power-driven layout, the timing report, and back-annotated simulation are affected by operating conditions.

Supported ranges include:

- ALL All ranges
- EXT (Extended)
- COM (Commercial) Not available for RTG4 devices
- IND (Industrial)
- TGrade1 (Automotive) Not available for RTG4 devices
- TGrade2 (Automotive) Not available for RTG4 devices
- MIL (Military)

Note: Supported operating condition ranges vary according to your device and package. Refer to the device datasheet to find your recommended temperature range. The temperature range corresponding to the value selected from the pick list can also be found by checking <u>Project Settings</u> > Analysis operating conditions.

Reset Filters – Reset all filters to the default ALL option except Family.

Search Part – Enter a character-by-character search for parts. Search results appear in the parts table. When **Device Selection** is completed, click on:

- Next to proceed to the <u>Device Settings</u> page OR
- Finish to complete New Project Creation.



Note: Once the project has been created, many device settings can be modified in the <u>Project Settings</u> dialog box tabs for "Device selection", "Device Settings", and "Analysis operating conditions".

New Project Creation Wizard – Device Settings

For SmartFusion2 and IGLOO2 devices, the Device Settings page is where you set the Device I/O Technology, PLL Supply Voltage, Reserve pins for Probes and activate the System Controller Suspended Mode.

O New project	
Device settings Choose device settings	for your project Selected part: M2S150TS-1FC1152M
Project Details	I/O settings Default I/O technology: LVCMOS 2.5V • • Please use the I/O Editor to change individual I/O attributes.
Device Selection	✓ Reserve pins for probes
Device Settings	Power supplies PLL supply voltage (V): 2.5
Design Template	Power on Reset delay :
Add HDL Sources	System controller suspended mode
Add Constraints	
Help	< Back Next > Finish Cancel

Figure 14 · New Project Creation Wizard – Device Settings Page (SmartFusion2 and IGLOO2)

For RTG4 devices, the Device Settings page is where you set the Device I/O Technology, Reserve pins for Probes, and activate Enable Single Event Transient mitigation.

🙆 New project		- 🗆 X
Device settings Choose device settings for y	our project	Selected part: RT4G150L-CG1657M
Project Details		
Device Selection	Reserve pins for probes	
Device Settings	Enable Single Event Transient mitigation	
Add HDL Sources		
Add Constraints		
Help	< Back Next	> Finish Cancel

Figure 15 · New Project Creation Wizard – Device Settings Page (RTG4)



🕑 New project	
Device settings Choose device settings	for your project Selected part: M2S150TS-1FC1152M
Project Details	I/O settings Default I/O technology: LVCMOS 2.5V V 🕄 Please use the I/O Editor to change individual I/O attributes.
Device Selection	Reserve pins for probes
Device Settings	Power supplies PLL supply voltage (V): 2.5
Design Template	Power on Reset delay :
Add HDL Sources	System controller suspended mode
Add Constraints	
Help	< Back Next > Finish Cancel

Figure 16 · New Project Creation Wizard – Device Settings Page (SmartFusion2)

Default I/O Technology - Set all your I/Os to a default value. You can change the values for individual I/Os in the I/O Attribute Editor. The I/O Technology available is family-dependent.

Reserve Pins for Probes - Reserve your pins for probing if you intend to debug using SmartDebug.

Enable Single Event Transient mitigation (RTG4 only) - Controls the mitigation of Single Event Transient (SET) in the FPGA fabric. When this box is checked, SET filters are turned on globally to help mitigate radiation-induced transients. By default, this box is unchecked.

PLL Supply Voltage (V) (SmartFusion2, IGLOO2 only) - Set the voltage for the power supply that you plan to connect to all the PLLs in your design, such as MDDR, FDDR, SERDES, and FCCC.

Maximum Core Voltage Rail Ramp Up Time (SmartFusion2, IGLOO2 only) - Power-up management circuitry is designed into every SmartFusion2 and IGLOO2 SoC FPGA. These circuits ensure easy transition from the powered-off state to the powered-up state of the device. The SmartFusion2, IGLOO2, and RTG4 system controller is responsible for systematic power-on reset whenever the device is powered on or reset. All I/Os are held in a high-impedance state by the system controller until all power supplies are at their required levels and the system controller has completed the reset sequence.

The power-on reset circuitry in SmartFusion2 and IGLOO2 devices requires the VDD and VPP supplies to ramp monotonically from 0 V to the minimum recommended operating voltage within a predefined time. There is no sequencing requirement on VDD and VPP. Four ramp rate options are available during design generation: 50 µs, 1 ms, 10 ms, and 100 ms. Each selection represents the maximum ramp rate to apply to VDD and VPP.

Device information (such as Die, Package and Speed) can be modified later in the Project Settings dialog box.

System Controller Suspended Mode (SmartFusion2, IGLOO2 only) - Enables designers to suspend operation of the System Controller. Enabling this bit instructs the System Controller to place itself in a reset state when the device is powered up. This effectively suspends all system services from being performed. For a list of system services for SmartFusion2 and IGLOO2, refer to the System Controller User's Guide for your device on the Microsemi website.

When Device Settings is completed, click on:

- Next
 OR
- Finish to complete New Project Creation.



Note: Once the project has been created, many device settings can be modified in the <u>Project Settings</u> dialog box tabs for "Device selection", "Device Settings", and "Analysis operating conditions".

New Project Creation Wizard – Design Template (SmartFusion2 and IGLOO2 only)

The Design Template page is where you can use Libero SoC's built-in template to automate your design process. The template uses the System Builder tool for system-level design or the Microcontroller Subsystem (MSS) in your design. Both will speed up your design process.

Browse and run installed a	pplications		Libero SoC Online Help NoIndex - Mo
0	New project	:t	_ = ×
Design Template Choose a design templ	late		Selected part: M2S005-1FG484
Project Details	Design templates and creators		
Device Selection	 Create a system builder based design Create a microcontroller(MSS) based design 		
Device Settings	Core SmartFusion2 Microcontroller Subsystem (MSS) SmartFusion2 Microcontroller Subsystem (MSS)	1.1.500 1.1.400	Version
Design Template			Show only latest version
Add HDL Sources	Design methodology	DES peripherals	
Add Constraints	Instantiate SystemBuilder/MSS component in a S	martDesign on creation	
Help		< <u>B</u> a	ck Next > Finish Cancel

Figure 17 · New Project Creation Wizard – Design Template Page

None - Select if you do not want to use a design template.

Create a System Builder based design – Use System Builder to generate your top-level design.

Create a Microcontroller (MSS) based design – Instantiate a Microcontroller (MSS) in your design. The version of the MSS cores available in your vault is displayed. Select the version you desire.

Use Standalone Initialization for MDDR/FDDR/SERDES Peripherals – Check this box if you want to create your own peripheral initialization logic in SmartDesign for each of your design peripherals

(MDDR/FDDR/SERDES). When checked, System Builder does not build the peripherals initialization logic for you. Standalone initialization is useful if you want to make the initialization logic of each peripheral separate from and independent of each other.

Instantiate System Builder/MSS component in a SmartDesign on creation - Uncheck this box if you are using this project to create System Builder or MSS components and do not plan on using them in a SmartDesign based design. This is especially useful for design flows where the System Builder or MSS components are stitched in a design using HDL.

When Design Template is completed, click on:

- Next to proceed to the <u>Add HDL Sources</u> page OR
- Finish to complete New Project Creation.

New Project Creation Wizard – Add HDL Source Files

The Add HDL Source Files page is where you add HDL design source files to your Libero SoC project. The HDL source files can be imported or linked to the Libero SoC Project.



O New project	effer" software is specificate for theorem moting. Cost optimized Progetime (Project	g additional top (1953b), the 185 general adverting toward prosen at the range to	
Add HDL source files Specify HDL files to impor	t/link to your project.		Selected part: MPF200TS_ES-1FULLPKGE
Project Details	Import file Link file		Delete
Device Selection	File type	File name	File location
Device Settings			
Add HDL Sources			
Add Constraints			
Help		< Back	Next > Finish Cancel

Figure 18 · New Project Creation Wizard - Add HDL Source Files Page

Import File – Navigate to the disk location of the HDL source. Select the HDL file and click **Open**. The HDL file is copied to the Libero Project in the <pri_folder>/hdl folder.

Link File – Navigate to the disk location of the HDL source. Select the HDL file and click **Open**. The HDL file is linked to the Libero Project. Use this option if the HDL source file is located and maintained outside of the Libero project.

Delete - Delete the selected HDL source file from your project. If the HDL source file is linked to the Libero project, the link will be removed.

When Add HDL Sources is completed, click on:

- Next to proceed to the <u>Add Constraints</u> page OR
- Finish to complete New Project Creation.

New Project Creation Wizard - Add Constraints

The Add Constraints page is where you add Timing constraints and Physical Constraints files to your Libero SoC project. The constraints file can be imported or linked to the Libero SoC Project.



=

0	Ne	w project	>
Add constraints Specify constraint files	for timing or physical constraints.		Selected part: M2S005-1FG484
Project Details	Import file Link file		Delete
Device Selection	File type	File name	File location
Device Settings			
Design Template			
Add HDL Sources			
Add Constraints			
Help		< <u>B</u> a	ack <u>N</u> ext > <u>F</u> inish Cancel

Figure 19 · New Project Creation Wizard – Add Constraints Page

Import File – Navigate to the disk location of the constraints file. Select the constraints file and click **Open**. The constraints file is copied to the Libero Project in the constraint folder/constraint folder.

Link File – Navigate to the disk location of the constraints file. Select the constraints file and click **Open**. The constraints file is linked to the Libero Project. Use this option if the constraint file is located and maintained outside of the Libero project.

Delete - Remove the selected constraints file from your project. If the constraints file is linked to the Libero project, the link will be removed.

When Add Constraints is completed, click on:

• Finish to complete New Project Creation.

The Reports tab displays the result of the New Project creation.

Reports	₽×	StartPage	8	×
			-	

Project Summary	🔳 All 😵 0 Errors 🗼 0 Warnings 🌒 0 Info	
testproject_1112.log	Project Name: testproject_1112 Location: C:\temp\testproject_1112 Description: Preferred HDL Type: Verilog Part Number : M2S150T-1FC1152M Family : SmartFusion2 Die : M2S150T Package : 1152 FC Speed : -1 Core Voltage : 1.2 Range : MIL	

Figure 20 · Reports Tab (SmartFusion2)



Create and Verify Design

Create your design with any or all of the following design capture tools:

- System Builder
- Create SmartDesign
- <u>Create HDL</u>
- Create SmartDesign Testbench (optional, for simulation only)
- Create HDL Testbench (optional, for simulation only)

System Builder

System Builder is a graphical design wizard that enables you to enter high-level design specifications for SmartFusion2 or IGLOO2.

System Builder takes you through the following steps:

- Asks basic questions about your system architecture and peripherals
- Builds a correct-by-design complete system

To start System Builder, do the following:

- 1. in the Design Flow window, click **System Builder > Run**.
- 2. Enter a name in the Enter a name for your system dialog box.
- 3. Click OK. The System Builder Device Features page opens.

System Builder automatically configures the silicon features you select. To complete the design, add your custom logic or IP and connect them to your System Builder-generated design.

See the <u>SmartFusion2 System Builder documentation</u> or the <u>IGLOO2 System Builder documentation</u> for a complete family-specific explanation of the tool.

MSS - SmartFusion2 only

Instantiate a SmartFusion2 MSS in your Design

You can configure peripherals within the SmartFusion2 MSS, such as the ARM® Cortex[™]-M3, embedded nonvolatile memory (eNVM), Ethernet MAC, timer, UART, and SPI to suit your needs. The MSS operates standalone without any dependencies on other logic within the device; however, designs that require functionality beyond a standalone MSS are handled by using SmartDesign to add user logic in the SmartFusion2 FPGA fabric.

You can instantiate a Microcontroller Subsystem into your design from the New Project Creation Wizard when you start a new SmartFusion2 project, or from the Design Flow window after you have created a new project.

To instantiate a SmartFusion2 MSS from the New Project Creation Wizard you must enable **Use Design Tool** (under **Design Templates and Creators**) and click to select **SmartFusion2 Microcontroller Subsystem (MSS**) from the list.

If you opted not to use a Design Tool when you created your project, in the Design Flow window expand **Create Design** and double-click **Configure MSS**. This opens the **Add Microcontroller Subsystem** dialog box. Enter your **Design Name** and click **OK** to continue. A SmartDesign Canvas appears with the MSS added to your project; double-click the MSS to view and <u>configure MSS</u> components.

Configure the SmartFusion2 MSS

Documents for specific SmartFusion2 MSS peripherals are available on the Peripheral Documents web page.



The SmartFusion2 Microcontroller Subsystem (MSS) Configurator (as shown in the figure below) contains the elements listed below. Double-click any element in the MSS to configure it; click the checkbox (if available) to enable or disable it in your design.

MSS ARM® Cortex[™]-M3

Peripherals

- MSS CAN
- MSS Peripheral DMA (PDMA)
- MSS GPIO
- MSS I2C
- MSS Ethernet MAC
- MSS DDR Controller (MDDR)
- MSS MMUART
- MSS Real Time Counter (RTC)
- MSS Embedded Nonvolatile Memory (eNVM)
- MSS SPI
- MSS USB
- MSS Watchdog Timer

Fabric Interfaces

• MSS Fabric Interface Controllers (FICs)

Additional Information

- MSS Cache Controller
- MSS DDR Bridge Controller
- MSS AHB Bus Matrix
- MSS Clocks Configurator (MSS CCC)
- MSS Interrupts Controller
- MSS Reset Controller
- MSS SECDED Configurator
- MSS Security Configurator

The MSS generates a component that is instantiated into your top-level design.





Figure 21 · Microcontroller Subsystem Configurator

Generate SmartFusion2 MSS Files

See the MSS Configurator help for more information on generating SmartFusion2 MSS files.

Click the **Generate Component** button to create your SmartFusion2 MSS files.

The MSS Configurator generates the following files:

- HDL files for the MSS components, including timing shells for synthesis HDL files are automatically managed by the Libero SoC and passed to the Synthesis and Simulation tools.
- EFC File: Contains your eNVM client data The EFC content is included in your final programming file.
- Firmware drivers and memory maps are exported into the <project>\firmware\ directory Libero SoC
 automatically generates a Software IDE project that includes your Firmware drivers. If you are not using a
 software project automatically created by Libero, you can import this directory into your Software IDE
 project.
- Testbench HDL and BFM script for the MSS design: These files are managed by Libero SoC and automatically passed to the Simulation tool.
- PDC files for the MSS and the top-level design: These files are managed by Libero SoC and automatically integrated during Compile and Layout.



Create with SmartDesign

SmartDesign

About SmartDesign

SmartDesign is a visual block-based design creation/entry tool for the instantiation, configuration and connection of Microsemi IPs, user-generated IPs, custom/glue-logic HDL modules. This tool provides a canvas for instantiating and stitching together design objects. The final result from SmartDesign is a design-rule-checked and automatically abstracted synthesis-ready HDL file. A generated SmartDesign can be the entire FPGA design or a component subsystem to be re-used in a larger design.

The following design objects can be instantiated in the SmartDesign Canvas:

- Microsemi IP Cores
- User-generated or third-party IP Cores
- HDL design files
- HDL + design files
- Basic macros
- Other SmartDesign components (*.cxf files) generated from SmartDesign in the current Libero SoC project or may be imported from other Libero SoC projects.
- Re-usable design blocks (*.cxz files) published from Libero SoC

For more information see the <u>SmartDesign User Guide</u>.

Create New SmartDesign

This SmartDesign component may be the top level of the design or it may be used as a lower level SmartDesign component (after successful generation) in another design.

1. From the File menu, choose **New > SmartDesign** or in the Design Flow window or double-click **Create SmartDesign**. The Create New SmartDesign dialog box opens.

🔲 Create New Sma	rtDesign 🛛 🛛 🛛 🔀
Name:	
1	
Help	OK Cancel

Figure 22 · Create New SmartDesign Dialog Box

2. Enter a name and click OK. The component appears in the Design Hierarchy tab of the Design Explorer. **NOTE:** The component name you choose much be unique in your project

For more information see the <u>SmartDesign User Guide</u>.

Export Component Description(Tcl)

Components such as SmartDesign components, configured cores and HDL+ cores can be separately exported as Tcl with the Export Component Description option. To export a SmartDesign component, configured core or HDL+ core as Tcl, right click the component and choose "Export Component Description(Tcl)" option

Note: The Export Component Description(Tcl) option is not supported for the SmartFusion2/IGLOO2 MSS component and the System Builder component.


Libero - X:\10_docs_review\12.0_Release\pcie_demo_tcl_example\DG0756_PF_PCle_EP\new\p



Figure 23 · Export As TCL option for SmartDesign Component



K.td	
K Ca	ncel
	K.td K Ca

Figure 24 · Export Script Dialog Box

Click the Browse button to specify the location where you wish to export the Tcl file and then click OK.

Examples

```
Example exported Tcl script for a SmartDesign Component(PCle TL CLK)
      # Creating SmartDesign PCIe TL CLK
      set sd name {PCIe_TL_CLK}
      create smartdesign -sd name ${sd name}
      # Disable auto promotion of pins of type 'pad'
      auto promote pad pins -promote all 0
      # Create top level Ports
      sd_create_scalar_port -sd_name ${sd_name} -port_name {CLK_125MHz} -port_direction {IN}
      sd create scalar port -sd name ${sd name} -port name {TL CLK} -port direction {OUT}
      sd create scalar port -sd name ${sd name} -port name {DEVICE INIT DONE} -port direction
      {OUT}
      # Add CLK DIV2 0 instance
      sd instantiate component -sd name ${sd name} -component name {CLK DIV2} -instance name
      {CLK DIV2 0}
      # Add NGMUX 0 instance
      sd instantiate component -sd name ${sd name} -component name {NGMUX} -instance name
      {NGMUX 0}
      # Add OSC 160MHz 0 instance
      sd instantiate component -sd name ${sd name} -component name {OSC 160MHz} -instance name
      {OSC 160MHz 0}
      # Add PCIe_INIT_MONITOR_0 instance
      sd instantiate component -sd name ${sd name} -component name {PCIe INIT MONITOR} -
      instance_name {PCIe_INIT_MONITOR 0}
      sd_mark_pins_unused -sd_name ${sd_name} -pin_names {PCIe_INIT_MONITOR 0:FABRIC POR N}
      sd mark pins unused -sd name ${sd name} -pin names {PCIe INIT MONITOR 0:USRAM INIT DONE}
      sd mark pins unused -sd name ${sd name} -pin names {PCIe INIT MONITOR 0:SRAM INIT DONE}
      sd mark pins unused -sd name ${sd name} -pin names {PCIe INIT MONITOR 0:XCVR INIT DONE}
      sd mark pins unused -sd name ${sd name} -pin names
      {PCIe INIT MONITOR 0:USRAM INIT FROM SNVM DONE}
      sd mark pins unused -sd name ${sd name} -pin names
      {PCIe INIT MONITOR 0:USRAM INIT FROM UPROM DONE}
      sd mark pins unused -sd name ${sd name} -pin names
      {PCIe INIT MONITOR 0:USRAM INIT FROM SPI DONE}
      sd mark pins unused -sd name ${sd name} -pin names
      {PCIe INIT MONITOR 0:SRAM INIT FROM SNVM DONE}
      sd mark pins unused -sd name ${sd name} -pin names
      {PCIe INIT MONITOR 0:SRAM INIT FROM UPROM DONE}
      sd mark pins unused -sd name ${sd name} -pin names
      {PCIe INIT MONITOR 0:SRAM INIT FROM SPI DONE}
      sd mark pins unused -sd name ${sd name} -pin names {PCIe INIT MONITOR 0:AUTOCALIB DONE}
      # Add scalar net connections
```



```
sd_connect_pins -sd_name ${sd name} -pin names {"NGMUX 0:CLK1" "CLK 125MHz" }
      sd connect pins -sd name ${sd name} -pin names {"CLK DIV2 0:CLK OUT" "NGMUX 0:CLK0" }
      sd connect pins -sd name ${sd name} -pin names {"PCIe INIT MONITOR 0:DEVICE INIT DONE"
      "DEVICE INIT DONE" }
      sd connect pins -sd name ${sd name} -pin names {"CLK DIV2 0:CLK IN"
      "OSC 160MHz 0:RCOSC 160MHZ CLK DIV" }
      sd connect pins -sd name ${sd name} -pin names {"NGMUX 0:SEL"
      "PCIe INIT MONITOR 0:PCIE INIT DONE" }
      sd connect pins -sd name ${sd name} -pin names {"NGMUX 0:CLK OUT" "TL CLK" }
      # Re-enable auto promotion of pins of type 'pad'
      auto_promote_pad_pins -promote_all 1
      # Save the smartDesign
      save smartdesign -sd name ${sd name}
      # Generate SmartDesign PCIe TL CLK
      generate component -component name ${sd name}
Example exported Tcl script for a System Builder Core(PF DDR3 SS).
      # Exporting core PF DDR3 SS to TCL
      # Create design TCL command for core PF DDR3 SS
      create and configure core -core vlnv {Actel:SystemBuilder:PF DDR3:2.3.120} -
      component_name {PF_DDR3_SS} -params {\
      "ADDRESS MIRROR:false" \
      "ADDRESS ORDERING:CHIP ROW BANK COL" \
      "AUTO_SELF_REFRESH:1" \
      "AXI ID WIDTH:6" \
      "AXI WIDTH:64" \
      "BANKSTATMODULES:4" \
      "BANK ADDR WIDTH:3" \backslash
      "BURST LENGTH:0" \
      "CAS ADDITIVE LATENCY:0" \
      "CAS LATENCY:9" \
      "CAS WRITE LATENCY:7" \backslash
      "CCC PLL CLOCK MULTIPLIER:6" \
      "CLOCK DDR:666.666" \
      "CLOCK_PLL_REFERENCE:111.111" \
      "CLOCK RATE:4" \
      "CLOCK USER:166.6665" \
      "COL ADDR WIDTH:11" \
      "DLL ENABLE:1" \
      "DM MODE:DM" \
      "DQ DQS GROUP SIZE:8" \
      "ENABLE ECC:0" \
      "ENABLE INIT INTERFACE:false" \
      "ENABLE LOOKAHEAD PRECHARGE ACTIVATE:false" \
      "ENABLE PAR ALERT:false" \
      "ENABLE REINIT:false" \
      "ENABLE TAG IF:false" \
      "ENABLE USER ZQCALIB:false" \
      "EXPOSE TRAINING DEBUG IF:false" \
      "FABRIC INTERFACE:AXI4" \
      "FAMILY:26" \
      "MEMCTRLR INST NO:1" \
      "MEMORY FORMAT:COMPONENT" \
```



```
"MINIMUM READ IDLE:1" \
"ODT ENABLE RD RNK0 ODT0:false" \
"ODT ENABLE RD RNK0 ODT1:false" \
"ODT ENABLE RD RNK1 ODT0:false" \
"ODT ENABLE RD RNK1 ODT1:false" \
"ODT ENABLE WR RNK0 ODT0:true" \
"ODT ENABLE WR RNK0 ODT1:false" \
"ODT ENABLE WR RNK1 ODT0:false" \
"ODT ENABLE WR RNK1 ODT1:true" \
"ODT RD OFF SHIFT:0" \
"ODT RD ON SHIFT:0" \setminus
"ODT WR OFF SHIFT:0" \
"ODT WR ON SHIFT:0" \setminus
"OUTPUT DRIVE STRENGTH:RZQ6" \
"PARAM IS FALSE:false" \setminus
"PARTIAL ARRAY SELF REFRESH:FULL" \
"PHYONLY:false" \
"PIPELINE:false" \
"QOFF:0" \
"QUEUE DEPTH:3" \
"RDIMM LAT:0" \
"READ BURST TYPE:SEQUENTIAL" \
"ROW ADDR WIDTH:16" \
"RTT NOM:DISABLED" \
"RTT WR:OFF" \
"SDRAM NB RANKS:1" \
"SDRAM NUM CLK OUTS:1" \
"SDRAM TYPE:DDR3" \
"SELF REFRESH TEMPERATURE:NORMAL" \
"SHIELD ENABLED:true" \
"SIMULATION MODE:FAST" \
"TDQS ENABLE:DISABLE" \
"TGIGEN ADD PRESET WIDGET:true" \
"TIMING_DH:150" \
"TIMING DQSCK:400" \
"TIMING DQSQ:200" \
"TIMING DQSS:0.25" \
"TIMING DS:75" \
"TIMING DSH:0.2" \
"TIMING DSS:0.2" \
"TIMING FAW:30" \
"TIMING IH:275" \setminus
"TIMING INIT:200" \
"TIMING IS:200" \setminus
"TIMING MODE:0" \
"TIMING MRD:4" \
"TIMING QH:0.38" \
"TIMING QSH:0.38" \
"TIMING RAS:36" \
"TIMING RC:49.5" \
"TIMING RCD:13.5" \
"TIMING_REFI:7.8" \
```



```
"TIMING RFC:350" \
"TIMING RP:13.5" \
"TIMING RRD:7.5" \
"TIMING RTP:7.5" \
"TIMING WR:15" \
"TIMING WTR:5" \
"TURNAROUND_RTR_DIFFRANK:1" \
"TURNAROUND RTW DIFFRANK:1" \
"TURNAROUND WTR DIFFRANK:1" \
"TURNAROUND WTW DIFFRANK:0" \
"USER POWER DOWN:false" \
"USER SELF REFRESH:false" \setminus
"WIDTH:16" \
"WRITE LEVELING:ENABLE" \
"WRITE RECOVERY:5" \
"ZQ CALIB PERIOD:200" \
"ZQ CALIB TYPE:0" \
"ZQ CALIB TYPE TEMP:0" \setminus
"ZQ_CAL_INIT_TIME:512" \
"ZQ CAL L TIME:256" \setminus
"ZQ CAL S TIME:64" } -inhibit configurator 0
# Exporting core PF DDR3 SS to TCL done
```

Example exported Tcl script for a HDL+ core

```
# Exporting core pattern_gen_checker to TCL
# Exporting Create HDL core command for module pattern_gen_checker
create_hdl_core -file
{X:/10_docs_review/12.0_Release/pcie_demo_tcl_example/DG0756_PF_PCIe_EP/new/project/hdl/
PATTERN_GEN_CHECKER.v} -module {pattern_gen_checker} -library {work} -package {}
# Exporting BIF information of HDL core command for module pattern gen checker
```

Example exported Tcl script for a SgCore(PF TX PLL)

```
# Exporting core PCIe TX PLL to TCL
# Exporting Create design command for core PCIe TX PLL
create and configure core vlnv {Actel:SgCore:PF_TX_PLL:1.0.115} -component_name
{PCIe_TX_PLL} -params {\
"CORE:PF TX PLL" \
"FAMILY:26" \
"INIT:0x0" \
"PARAM IS FALSE:false" \
"SD EXPORT HIDDEN PORTS:false" \
"TxPLL AUX LOW SEL:true" \
"TxPLL AUX OUT:125" \
"TxPLL CLK 125 EN:true" \
"TxPLL DYNAMIC RECONFIG INTERFACE EN:false" \
"TxPLL EXT WAVE SEL:0" \
"TxPLL FAB LOCK EN:false" \
"TxPLL FAB REF:200" \
"TxPLL JITTER MODE SEL:10G SyncE 32Bit" \
"TxPLL MODE:NORMAL" \
"TxPLL OUT:2500.000" \
"TxPLL REF:100" \
"TxPLL SOURCE:DEDICATED" \
"TxPLL SSM DEPTH:0" \
```



```
"TxPLL_SSM_DIVVAL:1" \
 "TxPLL_SSM_DOWN_SPREAD:false" \
 "TxPLL_SSM_FREQ:64" \
 "TxPLL_SSM_RAND_PATTERN:0" \
 "VCOFREQUENCY:1600" } -inhibit_configurator 1
# Exporting core PCIe TX PLL to TCL done
```

Generating a SmartDesign Component

Before your SmartDesign component can be used by downstream processes, such as synthesis and simulation, you must generate it.

Click the Generate button to generate a SmartDesign component

6

This will generate a HDL file in the directory <libero_project>/components/<library>/<yourdesign>.

Note: The generated HDL file will be deleted when your SmartDesign design is modified and saved to ensure synchronization between your SmartDesign component and its generated HDL file.

Generating a SmartDesign component may fail if there are any <u>DRC errors</u>. DRC errors must be corrected before you generate your SmartDesign design.

If the ports of a sub-design have changed, then the parent SmartDesign component will be annotated with the icon 8 in the Design Hierarchy tab of the Design Explorer.

Create Core from HDL

You can instantiate any HDL module and connect it to other blocks inside SmartDesign. However, there are situations where you may want to extend your HDL module with more information before using it inside SmartDesign.

- If you have an HDL module that contains configurable parameters or generics.
- If your HDL module is intended to connect to a processor subsystem and has implemented the appropriate bus protocol, then you can add a bus interface to your HDL module so that it can easily connect to the bus inside of SmartDesign.

To create a core from your HDL:

- 1. Import or create a new HDL source file; the HDL file appears in the Design Hierarchy.
- Select the HDL file in the Design Hierarchy and click the HDL+ icon or right-click the HDL file and choose Create Core from HDL. The Edit Core Definition – Ports and Parameters dialog appears. It shows you which ports and parameters were extracted from your HDL module.
- 3. Remove parameters that are not intended to be configurable by selecting them from the list and clicking the X icon. Remove parameters that are used for internal variables, such as state machine enumerations. If you removed a parameter by accident, click **Re-extract ports and parameters from HDL file** to reset the list so it matches your HDL module.



Edit Core Definition - Ports and Parameters		? X
Edit Core Definition - Ports and Parameters HDL: C:\Documents and Settings\farleyc\Desktop\farleyc_A Module: MyAPB_Adder Extracted Ports PCLK PRESETN PADDR[4:0] PSEL PWRATE PWRATE PWRATE PWRATE PWRATE PWRATA[7:0] PSEVER IN_A[15:0] IN_PGLEP01	ctelprj\soc_10sp1_cc_hdl\hdl\MyAPB_Adder.v Extracted Parameters WIDTH SIZE APB_SIZE FJFO_ENABLE COUNTER_ENABLE	? ×
Help	Re-extract ports and parameters from Add/Edit bus interfaces OK Cance	HDL

Figure 25 · Edit Core Definition - Ports and Parameters Dialog Box

4. (Optional) Click Add/Edit Bus Interfaces to add bus interfaces to your core.

After you have specified the information, your HDL turns into an HDL+ icon in the Design Hierarchy. Click and drag your HDL+ module from the Design Hierarchy to the **Canvas**.

If you added bus interfaces to your HDL+ core, then it will show up in your SmartDesign with a bus interface pin that can be used to easily connect to the appropriate bus IP core.

If your HDL+ has configurable parameters then double-clicking the object on the Canvas (or right-click and select **Configure**) invokes a configuration dialog that enables you to set these values. On generation, the specific configuration values per instance are written out to the SmartDesign netlist.

	🕵 Configuring MyAPB_Adder_0 (MyAPB 💶 🗙
T	Configuration
MyAPB_Adder_0	WIDTH: 16
PCLK RESULT[15:0]	SIZE: 200
IN_B[15:0] ■ IN_B[15:0]	APB_SIZE: 1
S	FIFO_ENABLE: 0
	COUNTER_ENABLE: 0
CoreAPB_0 ្រ្តាម្នាល់ក្រុមអ្នកស្រុកស្រុកស្រុកស្រុកស្រុកស្រុកស្រុកស្រុ	Help OK Cancel

Figure 26 · HDL+ Instance and Configuration Dialog Box

You can right-click the instance and choose Modify HDL to open the HDL file inside the text editor.

Edit Core Definition

You can edit your core definition after you created it by selecting your HDL+ module in the design hierarchy and clicking the HDL+ icon.

Remove Core Definition

You may decide that you do not want or need the extended information on your HDL module. You can convert it back to a regular HDL module. To do so, right-click the HDL+ in the Design Hierarchy and choose **Remove Core Definition**. After removing your definition, your instances in your SmartDesign that were referencing this core must be updated. Right-click the instance and choose **Replace Component for Instance**.



Designing with HDL

Create HDL

Create HDL opens the HDL editor with a new VHDL or Verilog file. Your new HDL file is saved to your /hdl directory; all modules created in the file appear in the Design Hierarchy.

You can use VHDL and Verilog to implement your design.

To create an HDL file:

- 1. In the Design Flow window, double-click Create HDL. The Create new HDL file dialog box opens.
- 2. Select your **HDL Type**. Choose whether or not to **Initialize file with standard template** to populate your file with default headers and footers. The HDL Editor workspace opens.
- 3. Enter a **Name**. Do not enter a file extension; Libero SoC adds one for you. The filename must follow Verilog or VHDL file naming conventions.
- 4. Click OK.

After creating your HDL file, click the Save button to save your file to the project.

Using the HDL Editor

The HDL Editor is a text editor designed for editing HDL source files. In addition to regular editing features, the editor provides keyword highlighting, line numbering and a syntax checker.

You can have multiple files open at one time in the HDL Editor workspace. Click the tabs to move between files.

Editing

Right-click inside the HDL Editor to open the Edit menu items. Available editing functions include cut, copy, paste, Go to line, Comment/Uncomment Selection and Check HDL File. These features are also available in the toolbar.

Saving

You must save your file to add it to your Libero SoC project. Select **Save** in the File menu, or click the **Save** icon in the toolbar.

Printing

Print is available from the File menu and the toolbar.

Note: To avoid conflicts between changes made in your HDL files, Microsemi recommends that you use one editor for all of your HDL edits.

HDL Syntax Checker

To run the syntax checker:

In the **Files** list, double-click the HDL file to open it. Right-click in the body of the HDL editor and choose **Check HDL File**.

The syntax checker parses the selected HDL file and looks for typographical mistakes and syntactical errors. Warning and error messages for the HDL file appear in the Libero SoC Log Window.

Commenting Text

You can comment text as you type in the HDL Editor, or you can comment out blocks of text by selecting a group of text and applying the Comment command.

To comment or uncomment out text:

- 1. Type your text.
- 2. Select the text.
- 3. Right-click inside the editor and choose Comment Selection or Uncomment Selection.



Find

In the File menu, choose **Find** and the Find dialog box appears below the Log/Message window. You can search for a whole word or part of a word, with or without matching the case.

- You can search for:
- Match Case
- Match whole word
- Regular Expression

The Find to Replace function is also supported.

Column Editing

Column Editing is supported. Press ALT+click to select a column of text to edit.

Importing HDL Source Files

To import an HDL source file:

- 1. In the Design Flow window, right-click **Create HDL** and choose **Import Files**. The Import Files window appears.
- 2. Navigate to the drive/folder that contains the HDL file.
- 3. Select the file to import and click **Open**.

Note: SystemVerilog (*.sv), Verilog (*.v) and VHDL (*.vhd/*.vhdl) files can be imported.

Mixed-HDL Support in Libero SoC

You must have ModelSim PE or SE to use mixed HDL in the Libero SoC. You must also have Synplify Pro to synthesize a mixed-HDL design.

When you <u>create a project</u>, you must select a preferred language. The HDL files generated in the flow (such as the post-layout netlist for simulation) are created in the preferred language.

The language used for simulation is the same language as the last compiled testbench. (For example, if tb_top is in Verilog, <fam>.v is compiled.)

If your preferred language is Verilog, the post-synthesis and post-layout netlists are in Verilog 2001.

HDL Testbench

You can create a HDL Testbench by right-clicking a SmartDesign in the Design Hierarchy and choosing **Create Testbench > HDL**.

HDL Testbench automatically instantiates the selected SmartDesign into the Component.

You can also double-click **Create HDL Testbench** to open the Create New HDL Testbench dialog box. The dialog box enables you to create a new testbench file and gives you the option to include standard testbench content and your design data.

HDL Type

Set your HDL Type: Verilog or VHDL for the testbench.

Name

Specify a testbench file name. A *.v or a *.vhd file is created and opened in the HDL Editor.

Clock Period (ns)

Enter a clock period in nanoseconds (ns) for the clock to drive the simulation. The default value is 100 ns (10 MHz). Libero creates in the testbench a SYSCLK signal with the specified frequency to drive the simulation.

Set as Active Stimulus sets the HDL Testbench as the stimulus file to use for simulations. The active stimulus file/testbench is included in the run.do file that Libero generates to drive the simulation. Setting one testbench as the Active Stimulus is necessary when there are multiple testbenches in the stimulus hierarchy.

Initialize with Standard Template adds boilerplate for a minimal standard test module. This test module does not include an instantiation of the root module under test.

Instantiate Root Design Creates a test module that includes an instance of the root module under test, and clocking logic in the test module which drives the base clock of the root module under test.

Create Ne	w HDL Testbench File	×
HDL Type		
Verilog		
Name:		
Clock Period (ns) :	100	
✓ Initialize file with	n standard template	
✓ Instantiate Root	Design	
Set as Active Sti	mulus	
Help	Sancel Cancel	к

Figure 27 · Create New HDL Testbench File Dialog Box



```
1
2
  -- Company: <Name>
3 ---
4 -- File: hdl_testbench_1.vhd
5 -- File history:
6 ---
         <Revision number>: <Date>: <Comments>
7 ---
         <Revision number>: <Date>: <Comments>
8 ---
         <Revision number>: <Date>: <Comments>
9 ---
10 -- Description:
11 ---
12 -- <Description here>
13 ---
14 -- Targeted device: <Family::SmartFusion> <Die::A2F200M3F> <Package::484 FBGA>
15 -- Author: <Name>
16 ---
17
  _____
18
19
20 library ieee;
21 use ieee.std_logic_ll64.all;
22
23 entity hdl_testbench_l is
24 end hdl_testbench_1;
25
26 architecture behavioral of hdl_testbench_1 is
27
28
      constant SYSCLK_PERIOD : time := 100 ns;
29
30
      signal SYSCLK : std_logic := '0';
31
      signal NSYSRESET : std_logic := '0';
32
33
      component test_mss
34
          -- ports
35
          port (
36
              -- Inputs
37
              UART 1 RXD : in std logic;
38
              UART 0 RXD : in std logic;
39
              SPI_1_DI : in std_logic;
40
              SPI 0 DI : in std logic;
41
              MAC_CRSDV : in std_logic;
42
43
44
45
              MAC_RXER : in std_logic;
              MSS_RESET_N : in std_logic;
              CLKA_PAD : in std_logic;
              CLKC_PAD : in std_logic;
46
              MAC_RXD : in std_logic_vector(1 downto 0);
47
```

Figure 28 · HDL Testbench Example - VHDL, Standard Template and Root Design Enabled

Designing with Block Flow

For information about designing with Block Flow, see <u>Designing with Blocks for Libero SoC Enhanced Constraint</u> <u>Flow</u>.

Verify Pre-Synthesized Design - RTL Simulation

To perform pre-synthesis simulation, double-click **Simulate** under Verify Pre-Synthesized Design in the Design Flow window. Alternatively, in the Stimulus Hierarchy right-click the testbench and choose **Simulate Pre-Synth Design > Run**.



If you want to perform pre-layout simulation with the post-synthesized netlist, in the Design Flow window, under Verify Post-Synthesized Implementation, double-click **Generate Simulation File** and then double-click **Simulate**.

The default tool for RTL simulation in Libero SoC is ModelSim[™] ME Pro or ModelSim ME. ModelSim ME works with all levels of Libero SoC license (Eval, Silver, Gold and Platinum) whereas ModelSim Pro ME works with all levels of Libero SoC license except Silver.

ModelSim ME and ModelSim ME Pro are custom editions of ModelSim PE that are integrated into Libero SoC's design environment. ModelSim for Microsemi is an OEM edition of Mentor Graphics ModelSim tools. ModelSim ME Pro supports mixed VHDL, Verilog, and SystemVerilog simulation but ModelSim ME does not. Both ModelSim editions only work with Microsemi simulation libraries and they are supported by Microsemi.

Other editions of ModelSim are supported by Libero SoC. To use other editions of ModelSim, do not install ModelSim ME from the Libero SoC media.

Note: ModelSim for Microsemi includes online help and documentation. After starting ModelSim, click the *Help* menu.

See the following topics for more information on simulation in Libero SoC:

- Simulation Options
- Selecting a Stimulus File for Simulation
- <u>Selecting additional modules for simulation</u>
- Performing Functional Simulation

Project Settings: Simulation - Options and Libraries

Using this dialog box, you can set change how Libero SoC handles Do files in simulation, import your own Do files, set simulation run time, and change the DUT name used in your simulation. You can also change your library mapping.

To access this dialog box, from the **Project** menu choose **Project Settings** and click to expand **Simulation options** or **Simulation libraries**.

For **Simulation options** click the option you wish to edit: **DO file**, **Waveforms**, **Vsim commands**, **Timescale**. For **Simulation libraries** click on the library you wish to change the path for.

Device selection	Use automatic DO file		- Court
Device settings Design flow	Simulation runtime:	100m	- Save
Analysis operating conditions	Testbench module name:	testiench	Restore Defaults
Simulation options DO file	Top level instance name:	<to>> 0</to>	
Waveforms	Generate VCD file		
Vsim commands Timescale	VCD file name:	power.vcd	
Simulation libraries	11-11-11-11-1		_
SmartPusion2	User defined DO file:		(m)
	DO command parameters:		

Figure 29 · Project Settings: DO File

DO file

- Use automatic DO file Select if you want the Project Manager to automatically create a DO file that will enable you to simulate your design.
- **Simulation Run Time** Specify how long the simulation should run. If the value is 0, or if the field is empty, there will not be a run command included in the run.do file.



- **Testbench module name** Specify the name of your testbench entity name. Default is "testbench," the value used by WaveFormer Pro.
- **Top Level instance name** Default is <top_0>, the value used by WaveFormer Pro. The Project Manager replaces <top> with the actual top level macro when you run simulation (presynth/postsynth/postlayout).
- Generate VCD file Click the checkbox to generate a VCD file.
- VCD file name Specifies the name of your generated VCD file. The default is power.vcd; click power.vcd and type to change the name.
- User defined DO file Enter the DO file name or click the browse button to navigate to it.
- DO command parameters Text in this field is added to the DO command.

Waveforms

- Include DO file Including a DO file enables you to customize the set of signal waveforms that will be displayed in ModelSim.
- **Display waveforms for** You can display signal waveforms for either the top-level testbench or for the design under test. If you select **top-level testbench** then Project Manager outputs the line 'add wave /testbench/*' in the DO file run.do. If you select **DUT** then Project Manager outputs the line 'add wave /testbench/DUT/*' in the run.do file.
- Log all signals in the design Saves and logs all signals during simulation.

Vsim Commands

- Post-layout simulation only:
 - o **SDF timing delays -** Select Minimum (Min), Typical (Typ), or Maximum (Max) timing delays in the back-annotated SDF file.
 - Disable Pulse Filtering during SDF-based Simulations When the check box is enabled the +pulse_int_e/1 +pulse_int_r/1 +transport_int_delays switch is included with the vsim command for post-layout simulations; the checkbox is disabled by default.
- **Resolution** The default is family specific (review the dialog box for your default setting), but you can customize it to fit your needs.Some custom simulation resolutions may not work with your simulation library. Consult your simulation help for more information on how to work with your simulation library and detect infinite zero-delay loops caused by high resolution values.

Family	Default Resolution
SmartFusion2	1 fs
IGLOO2	1 ps
RTG4	1 ps

- Additional options Text entered in this field is added to the vsim command.
 - SRAM ECC Simulation (RTG4) -Two options can be added to specify the simulated error and correction probabilities of all ECC
 - SRAMs in the design.
 - -gERROR_PROBABILITY=<value>, where 0 <= value <= 1
 - -gCORRECTION_PROBABILITY=<value>, where 0 <= value <= 1
 - During Simulation, the SB_CORRECT and DB_DETECT flags on each SRAM block will be raised based on generated random numbers being below the specified <value>s.



Timescale

- **TimeUnit** Enter a value and select s, ms, us, ns, ps, or fs from the pull-down list, which is the time base for each unit. The default setting is ns.
- Precision Enter a value and select s, ms, us, ns, ps, or fs from the pull-down list. The default setting is ps.

Simulation Libraries

- **Restore Defaults-** Sets the library path to default from your Libero SoC installation.
- Library path Enables you to change the mapping for your simulation library (both Verilog and VHDL). Type the pathname or click the Browse button to navigate to your library directory.

Selecting a Stimulus File for Simulation

Before running simulation, you must associate a testbench. If you attempt to run simulation without an associated testbench, the Libero SoC Project Manager asks you to associate a testbench or open Model*Sim* without a testbench.

To associate a stimulus:

- 1. Run simulation or in the Design Flow window under Verify Pre-Synthesized Design right-click **Simulate** and choose **Organize Input Files > Organize Stimulus Files**. The Organize Stimulus Files dialog box appears.
- Associate your testbench(es): In the Organize Stimulus Files dialog box, all the stimulus files in the current project appear in the Source Files in the Project list box. Files already associated with the block appear in the Associated Source Files list box.

In most cases you will only have one testbench associated with your block. However, if you want simultaneous association of multiple testbench files for one simulation session, as in the case of PCI cores, add multiple files to the Associated Source Files list.

- **To add a testbench**: Select the testbench you want to associate with the block in the Source Files in the Project list box and click **Add** to add it to the Associated Source Files list.
- To remove a testbench: To remove or change the file(s) in the Associated Source Files list box, select the file(s) and click **Remove**.
- **To order testbenches**: Use the up and down arrows to define the order you want the testbenches compiled. The top level-entity should be at the bottom of the list.
- 3. When you are satisfied with the Associated Source Files list, click OK.

Selecting Additional Modules for Simulation

Libero SoC passes all the source files related to the top-level module to simulation.

If you need additional modules in simulation, in the Design Flow window right-click **Simulate** and choose **Organize Input Files > Organize Source Files**. The Organize Files for Simulation dialog box appears.

Select the HDL modules you wish to add from the Simulation Files in the Project list and click Add to add them to the Associated Stimulus Files list

Performing Functional Simulation

To perform functional simulation:

- 1. Create your testbench.
- Right-click Simulate (in the Design Flow window, Implement Design > Verify Post-Synthesis Implementation > Simulate) and choose Organize Input Files > Organize Simulation Files from the right-click menu. In the Organize Files for Source dialog box, all the stimulus files in the current project appear in the Source Files in the Project list box. Files already associated with the block appear in the Associated Source Files list box.

In most cases you will only have one testbench associated with your block. However, if you want simultaneous association of multiple testbench files for one simulation session, as in the case of PCI cores, add multiple files to the Associated Source Files list.



- **To add a testbench**: Select the testbench you want to associate with the block in the Source Files in the Project list box and click **Add** to add it to the Associated Source Files list.
- To remove a testbench: To remove or change the file(s) in the Associated Source Files list box, select the file(s) and click **Remove**.
- 3. When you are satisfied with the Associated Simulation Files list, click OK.
- 4. To start ModelSim ME, right-click **Simulate** in the Design Hierarchy window and choose **Open Interactively**.

ModelSim starts and compiles the appropriate source files. When the compilation completes, the simulator runs for 1 ^os and the Wave window opens to display the simulation results.

- 5. Scroll in the Wave window to verify that the logic of your design functions as intended. Use the zoom buttons to zoom in and out as necessary.
- 6. From the File menu, select Quit.

Performing DirectCore Functional Simulation

Libero SoC overwrites all the existing files of the Core when you import a DirectCore project (including testbenches). Save copies of your project stimulus files with new names if you wish to keep them.

You must import a DirectCore BFM file into the Libero SoC in order to complete functional simulation (the BFM is a stimulus file that you can edit to extend the testbench). VEC files are generated automatically from the BFM when you run ModelSim.

The SoC Project Manager overwrites your BFM file if you re-import your project. Edit and save your BFM outside the Libero SoC project to prevent losing your changes. After you re-import your DirectCore project, you can import your modified BFM again.

To perform functional simulation of a DirectCore project:

- 1. Right-click a stitched module of the DirectCore project and select Set as root.
- 2. To start ModelSim ME, right-click **Simulate** in the Design Hierarchy window and choose **Open Interactively**.

ModelSim starts and compiles the appropriate source files. When the compilation completes, the simulator runs for 1 [□]s and the Wave window opens to display the simulation results.

- 3. Scroll in the Wave window to verify that the logic of your design functions as intended. Use the zoom buttons to zoom in and out as necessary.
- 4. From the File menu, select Quit.



Libero SoC Constraint Management

In the FPGA design world, constraint files are as important as design source files. Constraint files are used throughout the FPGA design process to guide FPGA tools to achieve the timing and power requirements of the design. For the synthesis step, SDC timing constraints set the performance goals whereas non-timing FDC constraints guide the synthesis tool for optimization. For the Place-and-Route step, SDC timing constraints guide the tool to achieve the timing requirements whereas Physical Design Constraints (PDC) guide the tool for optimized placement and routing (Floorplanning). For Static Timing Analysis, SDC timing constraints set the timing requirements and design-specific timing exceptions for static timing analysis.

Libero SoC provides the Constraint Manager as the cockpit to manage your design constraint needs. This is a single centralized graphical interface for you to create, import, link, check, delete, edit design constraints and associate the constraint files to design tools in the Libero SoC environment. The Constraint Manager allows you to manage constraints for SynplifyPro synthesis, Libero SoC Place-and- Route and the SmartTime Timing Analysis throughout the design process.

Invocation of Constraint Manager from the Design Flow Window

After project creation, double-click **Manage Constraints** in the Design Flow window to open the Constraint Manager.

Reports 🗗 × my_user.sdc 🗗 ×	Constraint Manager 🗗	x mddr_top_sb_	CCC_0_FCCC.sdc 🗗 ×		₹
I/O Attributes / Timing / Floor Planner /	Netlist Attributes	e Cor	istraints Tab		
New Import Link	Edit with Constraint Editor	Check 🔻 De	ive Constraints Constrai	nt Coverage 🔻	Help (+ +
C	Synthesis	Place and Route	Timing Verification		
constraint\mddr_top_derived_constraints.s	idc 🔽				····
constraint\my.sdc					
constraint (iny_uselsue					
	∧				Constraints
					File Order
					The Order
	File and Tool	Association	ו		

Figure 30 · Constraint Manager

Libero SoC Design Flow

The Constraint Manager is Libero SoC's single centralized Graphical User Interface for managing constraints files in the design flow.





Figure 31 · Constraint Manager in Libero SoC Design Flow

Introduction to Constraint Manager

Synthesis Constraints

The Constraint Manager manages these synthesis constraints and passes them to SynplifyPro:

- Synplify Netlist Constraint File (*.fdc)
- Compile Netlist Constraint File (*.ndc)
- SDC Timing Constraints (*.sdc)
- Derived Timing Constraints (*.sdc)



Synplify Netlist Constraints (*.fdc)

These are non-timing constraints that help SynplifyPro optimize the netlist. From the Constraint Manager Netlist Attribute tab import (Netlist Attributes > Import) an existing FDC file or create a new FDC file in the Text Editor (Netlist Attributes > New > Create New Synplify Netlist Constraint). After the FDC file is created or imported, click the checkbox under synthesis to associate the FDC file with Synthesis.

Compile Netlist Constraints (*.ndc)

These are non-timing constraints that help Libero SoC optimize the netlist by combining I/Os with registers. I/Os are combined with a register to achieve better clock-to-out or input-to-clock timing. From the Constraint Manager Netlist Attribute tab import (**Netlist Attributes > Import**) an existing NDC file or create a new NDC file in the Text Editor (**Netlist Attributes > New > Create New Compile Netlist Constraint**). After the NDC file is created or imported, click the checkbox under synthesis to associate the NDC file with Synthesis.

SDC Timing Constraints (*.sdc)

These are timing constraints to guide SynplifyPro to optimize the netlist to meet the timing requirements of the design. From the Constraint Manager Timing tab, import (**Timing > Import**) or create in the Text Editor (**Timing > New**) a new SDC file. After the SDC file is created or imported, click the checkbox under synthesis to associate the SDC file with Synthesis.

After the synthesis step, you may click **Edit with Constraint Editor > Edit Synthesis Constraints** to edit existing constraints or add new SDC constraints.

Derived Timing Constraints (*.sdc)

These are timing constraints LiberoSoC generates for IP cores used in your design. These IP cores, available in the Catalog, are family/device-dependent. Once they are configured, generated and instantiated in the design, the Constraint Manager can generate SDC timing constraints based on the configuration of the IP core and the component SDC. From the Constraint Manager Timing tab, click Derive Constraints to generate the Derived Timing Constraints (*.sdc). Click the *derived_constraints.sdc file to associate it with synthesis.

Place and Route Constraints

The Constraint Manager manages these constraints for the Place-and-Route step:

- I/O PDC Constraints (*io.pdc)
- Floorplanning PDC Constraints (*fp.pdc)
- Timing SDC constraint file (*.sdc)

I/O PDC Constraints

These are I/O Physical Design Constraints in an *io.pdc file. From the Constraint Manager I/O Attribute tab, you may import (**I/O Attributes > Import**) or create in the Text Editor (**I/O Attributes > New**) an *io.pdc file. Click the checkbox under Place and Route to associate the file with Place and Route.

Floorplanning PDC Constraints

These are floorplanning Physical Design Constraints in a *fp.pdc file. From the Constraint Manager Floor Planner tab, you may import (**Floor Planner > Import**) or create in the Text Editor (**Floor Planner > New**) a *fp.pdc file. Click the checkbox under Place and Route to associate the file with Place and Route.



Timing SDC Constraint file (*.sdc)

These are timing constraint SDC files for Timing-driven Place and Route. From the Constraint Manager Timing tab, you may import (**Timing > Import**) or create in the Text Editor (**Timing > New**) a timing SDC file. Click the checkbox under Place and Route to associate the SDC file with Place and Route. This file is passed to Timing-driven Place and Route (**Place and Route > Configure Options > Timing Driven**).

Timing Verifications Constraints

The Constraint Manager manages the SDC timing constraints for Libero SoC's SmartTime, which is a Timing Verifications/Static Timing analysis tool. SDC timing constraints provide the timing requirements (e.g. create_clock and create_generated_clock) and design-specific timing exceptions (e.g. set_false_path and set_multicycle_path) for Timing Analysis.

From the Constraint Manager Timing tab, you may import (**Timing > Import**) or create in the Text Editor (**Timing > New**) a SDC timing file. Click the checkbox under Timing Verifications to associate the SDC timing constraints file with Timing Verifications.

Note: You may have the same set of SDC Timing Constraints for Synthesis, Place and Route and Timing Verifications to start with in the first iteration of the design process. However, very often and particularly when the design is not meeting timing requirements you may find it useful in subsequent iterations to have different sets of Timing SDC files associated with different tools. Take for example; you may want to change/modify the set of SDC timing constraints for Synthesis or Place and Route to guide the tool to focus on a few critical paths. The set of SDC timing constraints associated with Timing Verifications can remain unchanged.

The Constraint Manager lets you associate/dis-associate the constraint files with the different tools with a mouse click.

Constraint Manager Components

The Constraint Manager has four tabs, each corresponding to a constraint type that Libero SoC supports:

- I/O Attributes
- Timing
- Floor Planner
- Netlist Attribute

Clicking the tabs displays the constraint file of that type managed in the Libero SoC project.

Constraint File and Tool Association

Each constraint file can be associated/dis-associated with a design tool by checking and unchecking the checkbox corresponding to the tool and the constraint file. When associated with a tool, the constraint file is passed to the tool for processing.

/O Attributes / Timing	Floor Planne	r / Netlist Attributes)			
New Import	Link	Edit with Constraint	Editor	Check 🔽 Derive Constraints Constraint Coverage 👻 Help	*
		Synthesis	Place a	1d Route Timing Verification	
constraint/user.sdc		~	~	~	
constraint/mytiming2.s	dc		×	✓	
constraint/myuser1.sdc		~	*		

Figure 32 \cdot Constraint File and Tool Association

Note: Libero SoC's Design Flow window displays the state the tool is in. A green check mark 🖤 indicates

successful completion. A warning icon indicates invalidation of the state because the input files for the tool have changed since the last successful run. Association of a new constraint file with a tool or dis-association of an existing constraint file with a tool invalidates the state of the tool with which the constraint file is associated.

All Constraint files except Netlist Attributes can be opened, read and edited by Interactive Tools invoked from the Constraint Manager directly. The Interactive Tools are:

- I/O Editor
- Chip Planner



Constraint Editor

Constraint Type	Constraint File Extension	Location inside Project	Associated with Design Tool	Interactive Tool (For Editing)
I/O Attributes	PDC (*.pdc)	<proj>\constraints\io*.pdc</proj>	Place and Route	I/O Editor
Floorplanning	PDC (*.pdc)	<proj>\constraints\fp*.pdc</proj>	Place and Route	Chip Planner
Timing	SDC (*.sdc)	<proj>\constraints*.sdc</proj>	Synthesis, Place and Route, Timing Verification	Constraint Editor
Netlist Attributes	FDC (*.fdc)	<proj>\constraints*.fdc</proj>	Synthesis	n/a
	NDC (*.ndc)	<proj>\constraints*.ndc</proj>	Synthesis	n/a

Derive Constraints in Timing Tab

The Constraint Manager can generate timing constraints for IP cores used in your design. These IP cores, available in the Catalog, are family/device-dependent. Once they are configured, generated and instantiated in your design, the Constraint Manager can generate SDC timing constraints based on the configuration of the IP core and the component SDC. A typical example of an IP core for which the Constraint Manager can generate SDC timing constraints is the IP core for Clock Conditioning Circuitry (CCC).

Create New Constraints

From the Constraint Manager, create new constraints in one of two ways:

- Use the Text Editor
- Use Libero SoC's Interactive Tools

To create new constraints from the Constraint Manager using the Text Editor:

- 1. Select the Tab that corresponds to the type of constraint you want to create.
- 2. Click New.
- 3. When prompted, enter a file name to store the new constraint.
- 4. Enter the constraint in the Text Editor.
- 5. Click OK.

The Constraint file is saved and visible in the Constraint Manager in the tab you select:

- I/O Attributes constraint file (<proj>\io*.pdc) in the I/O Attributes tab
- Floorplanning constraints (<proj>\fp*.pdc) in the Floor Planner tab
- Timing constraints (<proj>\constraints*.sdc) in the Timing tab
- 6. (Optional) Double-click the constraint file in the Constraint Manager to open and add more constraints to the file.

To create new constraints from the Constraint Manager using Interactive Tools:

Note: Netlist Attribute constraints cannot be created by an Interactive Tool. Netlist Attribute files can only be created with a Text Editor.

Note: Except for timing constraints for Synthesis, the design needs to be in the post-synthesis state to enable editing/creation of new constraints by the Interactive Tool.

Note: The *.pdc or *.sdc file the Constraint Manager creates is marked [Target]. This denotes that it is the target file. A target file receives and stores new constraints from the Interactive Tool. When you have multiple constraint files of the same type, you may select any one of them as target. When there are multiple constraint files but none of them is set as target, or there are zero constraint files, Libero SoC creates a new file and set it as target to receive and store the new constraints created by the Interactive Tools.



- 1. Select the Tab that corresponds to the type of constraint you want to create.
- 2. Click Edit to open the Interactive Tools. The Interactive Tool that Libero SoC opens varies with the constraint type:
 - I/O Editor to edit/create I/O Attribute Constraints. See I/O Editor User Guide for details.
 - Chip Planner to edit/create Floorplanning constraints. See Chip Planner User Guide for details.
 - Constraint Editor to edit/create Timing Constraints. See <u>Timing Constraints Editor User Guide</u> for details.
- 3. Create the Constraints in the Interactive Tool. Click Commit and Save.
- 4. Check that Libero SoC creates these files to store the new constraints:
 - Constraints\io\user.pdc file when I/O constraints are added and saved in I/O Editor.
 - Constraints\fp\user.pdc file when floorplanning constraints are added and saved in Chip Planner.
 - Constraints\user.sdc file when Timing Constraints are added and saved in Constraint Editor

Constraint File Order

When there are multiple constraint files of the same type associated with the same tool, use the Up and Down arrow to arrange the order the constraint files are passed to the associated tool. Constraint file order is important when there is a dependency between constraints files. When a floorplanning PDC file assigns a macro to a region, the region must first be created and defined. If the PDC command for region creation and macro assignment are in different PDC files, the order of the two PDC files is critical.

- 1. To move a constraint file up, select the file and click the Up arrow.
- 2. To move a constraint file down, select the file and click the Down arrow.

/O Attributes // Timing // Floor Planner //	Netlist Attributes)			
New Import Link E	dit with Constraint	Editor 🗸 Check	Derive Constraints Constraint Coverage 🔽 Help	
	Synthesis	Place and Route	Timing Verification	Move
constraint/top derived constraints.sdc	~	¥	✓	
constraint/user.sdc	~		✓	
constraint/mytiming.sdc		4	✓	
constraint/mytiming2.sdc	~	*	v	
constraint/sdfsadf.sdc				

Figure 33 · Move constraint file Up or Down

Note: Changing the order of the constraint files associated with the same tool invalidates the state of that tool.

Import a Constraint File

Use the Constraint Manager to import a constraint file into the Libero SoC project. When a constraint file is imported, a local copy of the constraint file is created in the Libero Project.

To import a constraint file:

- 1. Click the Tab corresponding to the type of constraint file you want to import.
- 2. Click Import.
- 3. Navigate to the location of the constraint file.
- 4. Select the constraint file and click **Open**. A copy of the file is created and appears in Constraint Manager in the tab you have selected.

Link a Constraint File

Use the Constraint Manager to link a constraint file into the Libero SoC project. When a constraint file is linked, a file link rather than a copy is created from the Libero project to a constraint file physically located and maintained outside the Libero SoC project.

To link a constraint file:

- 1. Click the Tab corresponding to the type of constraint file you want to link.
- 2. Click Link.
- 3. Navigate to the location of the constraint file you want to link to.



4. Select the constraint file and click **Open**. A link of the file is created and appears in Constraint Manager under the tab you have selected. The full path location of the file (outside the Libero SoC project) is displayed.

Check a Constraint File

Use the Constraint Manager to check a constraint file.

To check a constraint file:

- 1. Select the tab for the constraint type to check.
- 2. Click Check.

Note: I/O constraints, Floorplanning constraints, Timing constraints, and Netlist Attributes can be checked only when the design is in the proper state. A pop-up message appears when the check is made and the design state is not proper for checking.



All constraint files associated with the tool are checked. Files not associated with a tool are not checked. For Timing Constraints, select from the Check drop-down menu one of the following:

- Check Synthesis Constraints
- Check Place and Route Constraints
- Check Timing Verification Constraints

New Import Link Edit w	ith Constraint Editor 🔻	Check	Derive Constraints	Help	Ĵ 🛉
	Synthesis	Chec	ck Synthesis Constraints		
constraint\M3_MDDR_top_derived_constraints.sdc	V	Chec	ck Place And Route Con	traints	
constraint\user.sdc	1	Chec	ck Timing Verification Co	onstraints	
constraint\mytiming.sdc	1	IW)	(<u>M</u>)		
constraint\mytiming2.sdc [Target]					
constraint\sdfsadf.sdc		100	100		

Figure 34 · Check Constraints

Check Synthesis Constraints checks only the constraint files associated with the Synthesis.

Check Place and Route Constraints checks only the constraint files associated with Place and Route **Check Timing Verification Constraints** checks only the Constraint Files associated with Timing Verification. For the constraint files and tool association shown in the *SDC file and Tool Association* Figure below:

- Check Synthesis Constraints checks the following files:
 - M3_MDDR_top_derived_constraints.sdc
 - user.sdc
 - mytiming2.sdc
- Check Place and Route Constraints checks the following files:
 - M3_MDDR_top_derived_constraints.sdc
 - mytiming.sdc
 - mytiming2.sdc
- Check Timing Verification Constraints checks the following files:
 - M3_MDDR_top_derived_constraints.sdc



- user.sdc
- mytiming.sdc
- mytiming2.sdc

Note: sdfsadf.sdc Constraint File is not checked because it is not associated with any tool.

rtPage 🗗 🗙 Constraint Manager 🗗 🗙				
/O Attributes V Timing V Floor Planner V Netlist Attr	ibutes			
New Import Link Edit wit	th Constraint Editor 💌	Check 💌 Derive Constraints	Help	¢
	Synthesis P	flace and Route Timing Verification	n	
constraint\M3_MDDR_top_derived_constraints.sdc		Z Z		
constraint\user.sdc				
constraint\mytiming.sdc				
constraint\mytiming2.sdc [Target]		7		
and the Marker Hada	(F) (F)	m (m)		-

Figure 35 · Timing Constraints SDC file and Tool Association

When a constraint file is checked, the Constraint Manager:

- Checks the SDC or PDC syntax.
- Compares the design objects (pins, cells, nets, ports) in the constraint file versus the design objects in the netlist (RTL or post-layout ADL netlist). Any discrepancy (e.g. constraints on a design object which does not exist in the netlist) are flagged as errors and reported in the *.log file or message window.

Check Result

If the check is successful, this message pops up.



Figure 36 · Check Successful Message

If the check fails, this error message pops up.



Figure 37 · Check Fails Message

Constraint Type	Check for Tools	Required Design State Before Checks	Netlist Used for Checks	Check Result Details
I/O Constraints	Place and Route	Post-Synthesis	ADL Netlist	Libero Message Window
Floorplanning Constraints	Place and Route	Post-Synthesis	ADL Netlist	Libero Message Window



Constraint Type	Check for Tools	Required Design State Before Checks	Netlist Used for Checks	Check Result Details
Timing Constraints	Synthesis	Pre-Synthesis	RTL Netlist	synthesis_sdc_check .log
	Place and Route	Post-Synthesis	ADL Netlist	placer_sdc_check.lo g
	Timing Verifications	Post-Synthesis	ADL Netlist	timing_sdc_check.lo g
Netlist Attributes (*.fdc)	Synthesis	Pre-Synthesis	RTL Netlist	*cck.srr file
Netlist Attributes (*.ndc)	Synthesis	Pre-Synthesis	RTL Netlist	Libero Log Window

Edit a Constraint File

The Edit button in the Constraint Manager allows you to:

- Create new constraint files. See <u>To create new constraints from the Constraint Manager using the Text</u> <u>Editor</u> for details.
- Edit existing constraint files.

To edit a constraint file

Note: Netlist Attributes cannot be edited by an Interactive Tool. Use the Text Editor to edit the Netlist Attribute constraint (*.fdc and *.ndc) files.

- 1. Select the tab for the constraint type to edit. An Interactive Tool is opened to make the edits.
- 2. Click Edit.
 - All constraint files associated with the tool are edited. Files not associated with the tool are not edited.
 - When a constraint file is edited, the constraints in the file are read into the Interactive Tool.
 - Different Interactive Tools are used to edit different constraints/different files:
 - I/O Editor to edit I/O Attributes (<proj>\io*.pdc). For details, refer to the <u>I/O Editor User</u> <u>Guide</u>.
 - Chip Planner to edit Floorplanning Constraints (<proj>\fp*.pdc). For details, refer to the <u>Chip Planner User Guide</u> (Chip Planner > Help > Reference Manuals)
 - Constraint Editor to edit Timing Constraints (constraints*.sdc). For details, refer to the <u>Timing Constraints Editor User Guide</u> (Help > Constraints Editor User's Guide)

Note: I/O constraints, Floorplanning constraints, Timing constraints can be edited only when the design is in the proper state. A message pops up if the file is edited when the design state is not proper for edits. If, for example, you open the Constraints Editor (Constraint Manager > Edit) to edit timing constraints when the design state is not post-synthesis, a pop-up message appears.

Information	23
Please run 'Synthesize' before executing Edit Op	eration



- 3. For Timing Constraints, click one of the following to edit from the Edit with Constraint Editor drop-down menu.
 - Edit Synthesis Constraints
 - Edit Place and Route Constraints
 - Edit Timing Verification Constraints

/ I/O Attributes / Timing / Floor Planner / Netlist Attributes

New Import Link	Edit with Constru	aint Editor 🔽 Check	Derive Constraints Constraint Coverage Help	†
	Edit Synthesi	s Constraints	Timing Verification	
constraint/top derived constraints.sdc	Edit Place An	d Route Constraints	✓	
constraint/user.sdc	Edit Timing V	erincation Constraints	✓	
constraint/mytiming.sdc		Y	✓	
constraint/mytiming2.sdc	✓	*	✓	
constraint/sdfsadf.sdc				

Figure 38 · Edit Drop-down Menu

For the constraint files and tool association shown in the Timing Constraint File and Tool Association below:

- Edit Synthesis Constraints reads the following files into the Constraint Editor:
 - user.sdc
 - myuser1.sdc
- Edit Place and Route Constraints reads the following files into the Constraint Editor:
 - user.sdc
 - mytiming2.sdc
 - myuser1.sdc
- Edit Timing Verification Constraints reads the following files into the Constraint Editor:
 - user.sdc
 - mytiming2.sdc

New	Import	Link	Edit with Constrain	t Editor 🔻	Check Check Constraints Constraint Coverage Help	†
			Synthesis	Place a	nd Route Timing Verification	
constraint/u	iser.sdc		✓	1	✓	
constraint/n	nytiming2.sdc			*	✓	
constraint/n	nyuser1.sdc		¥	*		

Figure 39 · Timing Constraint File and Tool Association

- 4. Edit the constraint in the Interactive Tool, save and exit.
- 5. The edited constraint is written back to the original constraint file when the tool exits.

Refer to the <u>Timing Constraints Editor User Guide</u> (Help > Constraints Editor User's Guide) for details on how to enter/modify timing constraints.

Note: When a constraint file is edited inside an Interactive Tool, the Constraint Manager is disabled until the Interactive Tool is closed.

Note: Making changes to a constraint file invalidates the state of the tool with which the constraint file is associated. For instance, if Place and Route has successfully completed with user.sdc as the associated constraint file, then making changes to user.sdc invalidates Place and Route. The green checkmark (denoting successful completion) next to Place and Route turns into a warning icon when the tool is invalidated.





Constraint Types

Libero SoC manages four types of constraints:

- I/O Attributes Constraints Used to constrain placed I/Os in the design. Examples include setting I/O standards, I/O banks, and assignment to Package Pins, output drive, and so on. These constraints are used by Place and Route.
- **Timing Constraints** Specific to the design set to meet the timing requirements of the design, such as clock constraints, timing exception constraints, and disabling certain timing arcs. These constraints are passed to Synthesis, Place and Route, and Timing Verification.
- Floor Planner Constraints Non-timing floorplanning constraints created by the user or Chip Planner and passed to Place and Route to improve Quality of Routing.
- **Netlist Attributes** Microsemi-specific attributes that direct the Synthesis tool to synthesize/optimize the, leveraging the architectural features of the Microsemi devices. Examples include setting the fanout limits, specifying the implementation of a RAM, and so on. These constraints are passed to the Synthesis tool only.

The following table summarizes the features and specifics of each constraint type.

Constraint Type	File Location	File Ext.	User Actions	Constraints Edited By	Constraints Used By	Changes Invalidate Design State?
I/O Attributes	<proj>/constraints/io folder</proj>	*.pdc	Create New, Import, Link, Edit, Check	I/O Editor Or user editing the *.pdc file in Text Editor	Place and Route	YES
Timing Constraints	<proj>/constraints folder</proj>	*.sdc	Create New, Import, Link, Edit, Check	Constraint Editor Or user editing the *.sdc file in Text Editor	Synplify Place and Route Verify Timing (SmartTime)	YES
Floor Planner Constraints	<proj>/constraints/fp folder</proj>	*.pdc	Create New, Import, Link, Edit, Check	Chip Planner Or user Editing the *.pdc file in Text Editor	Place and Route	YES
Netlist Attributes	<proj>/constraints folder</proj>	*.fdc	Create New, Import, Link, Check	User to Open in Text Editor to Edit	Synplify	YES
Netlist Attributes	<proj>/constraints folder</proj>	*.ndc	Import, Link, Check	User to Open in Text Editor to Edit	Synplify	YES



Constraint Manager - I/O Attributes Tab

The I/O Attributes tab allows you to manage I/O attributes/constraints for your design's Inputs, Outputs, and Inouts. All I/O constraint files (PDC) have the *.pdc file extension and are placed in the <Project location>/constraint/io folder.

Available actions are:

- New Creates a new I/O PDC file and saves it into the <Project_location>\constraint\io folder. There are two options:
 - Create New I/O Constraint
 - Create New I/O Constraint From Root Module -- This will pre-populate the PDC file with information from the Root Module
 - Having selected the create method:
 - When prompted, enter the name of the constraint file.
 - The file is initially opened in the text editor for user entry.
- Import Imports an existing I/O PDC file into the Libero SoC project. The I/O PDC file is copied into the <Project_location>\constraint\io folder.
- Link Creates a link in the project's constraint folder to an existing I/O PDC file (located and maintained outside of the Libero SoC project).
- Edit The following options are available in the drop-down:
 - Edit Opens the I/O Editor tool to modify the I/O PDC file(s) associated with the Place and Route tool.
 - Edit with I/O Advisor Opens the I/O Advisor tool to modify the I/O attributes in the I/O PDC file(s). This tool helps in reducing power consumption while meeting timing constraints.
- View Opens the I/O Editor tool to view the I/O PDC file(s) associated with the Place and Route tool. You cannot save/commit any changes made to the constraints file. However, you can export the PDC file(s) using the I/O Editor.
- **Check** Checks the legality of the PDC file(s) associated with the Place and Route tool against the gate level netlist.

When the I/O Editor tool is invoked or the constraint check is performed, all files associated with the Place and Route tool are being passed for processing.

When you save your edits in the I/O Editor tool, the I/O PDC files affected by the change will be updated to reflect the change you have made in the I/O Editor tool. New I/O constraints you add in the I/O Editor tool are written to the *Target* file (if a target file has been set) or written to a new PDC file (if no file is set as target) and stored in the <project>\constraint\io folder.



I/O Attributes | Timing | Floor Planner | Netlist Attributes

New 🔽 Import	Link	Edit	View	Check	Help		<u>+</u>
		Place and	Route				
constraint\io\test2.pd	C						
			_				
□ I/O Settings							
Reserve Pins	or Device Migration —						
Select the device project.	s you are targetting fo	r migration. Pins	not bonded or	these devices	will be reserved	d in the device s	selected for this
Selected Device:	M2S005 - 484 FBGA						
	M2S090T		•				
Target Devices:	M2S090TS						
	D M2S090		-				
General							
Reserve Pins	for Probes						

Figure 41 · Constraint Manager – I/O Attributes Tab

Right-click the I/O PDC files to access the available actions:

- Set/UnSet as Target Sets or clears the selected file as the target to store new constraints created in the I/O Editor tool. Newly created constraints only go into the target constraint file. Only one file can be set as target. This option is not available for linked files.
- Open in Text Editor Opens the selected constraint file in the Libero Text Editor.
- **Clone** Copies the file to a file with a different name. The original file name and its content remain intact. This option is not available for linked files.
- Rename Renames the file to a different name. This option is not available for linked files.
- Copy File Path Copies the file path to the clipboard.
- Delete Deletes the file from the project and from the disk. This option is not available for linked files.
- **Unlink** Removes the linked file from the project. The original file is untouched. This option is only available for linked files.
- Unlink: Copy file locally Removes the link and copies the file into the <Project_location>\constraint\io folder. This option is only available for linked files.

File and Tool Association

Each I/O constraint file can be associated or disassociated with the Place and Route tool.

Click the checkbox under Place and Route to associate/disassociate the file from the tool.

I/O Settings

Reserve Pins for Device Migration – This option allows you to reserve pins in the currently selected device that are not bonded in a device or list of devices you may later decide to migrate your design to. Select the target device(s) you may migrate to later to ensure that there will be no device/package incompatibility if you migrate your design to that device.

Reserve Pins for Probes – Check this box if you plan to use live probes when debugging your design with SmartDebug.



IO Advisor (SmartFusion2, IGLOO2, and RTG4)

The IO Advisor enables you to balance the timing and power consumption of the IOs in your design. For output IOs, it offers suggestions on Output Drive and Slew values that meet (or get as close as possible to) the timing requirements and generates the lowest power consumption. For Input IOs, it offers suggestions on On-Die Termination (ODT) Impedance values (when the ODT Static is ON) that meet (or get as close as possible to) the timing requirements and generates the lowest power consumption.

Timing data information is obtained from the Primary analysis scenario in SmartTime. Power data is obtained from the Active Mode in SmartPower.

To open the IO Advisor from the Design Flow window, right-click Manage Constraints, select Open Manage Constraints View, select the I/O Attributes tab, select Edit with I/O Advisor (**Design Flow window > Manage Constraints > Open Manage Constraints View > I/O Attributes > Edit > Edit with I/O Advisor**).



Figure 42 · I/O Advisor

Introduction

The Introduction screen provides general information about the IO Advisor.

The introduction screen provides the navigational panel for you to navigate to the following panels:

- Output Load panel Displays the IO load Power and Delay values for Outputs and Inouts.
- Output Drive and Slew panel Displays the Output Drive and Slew for Outputs and Inouts.
- ODT & Schmitt Trigger Displays the ODT Static (On/Off), the ODT Impedance value (Ohms) for Inputs and Inouts and the Schmitt Trigger (On/Off)

All steps in the IO Advisor are optional.





Figure 43 · IO Advisor - Introduction

Output Load

The Output Load panel displays the load of all output/inout ports in your design.

The display is sorted by Initial or Current value and is selectable in the Sort By drop-down menu.

Tooltips are available for each cell of the Table. For output and inout ports, the tooltip displays the Port Name, Macro Name, Instance Name and Package Pin. Inout ports are identified by a blue bubble icon.

rister .	Set Out	put Loa	d									
Attributes	PortName	P008*				Search						Sert By Initial
Output Load Output Drive & Siew		Status .	Port	Direction	Bank .	10 Standard	State 💌	Output Load(pl)	Power (sW0	Power Change(N)	Delay (m)	Slack (m)
our a scrinict ingget	17		FOOR BAILD	Output	Bank0 - 00490	5571.181	Initial	5	1656.64		3.005	
			Turner B				Current	3	1656.64	+0.00	1.005	
	10 1		FOOR BALLS	st: FOOR_BA(0)			Intel	2	1050.44	6.64	3.008	
	16		M	Acro : ADUB: OUTBUF			Lurrent	-	1010.04	+0.30	1008	
			FOOR, BA(2)	stance KILHPUURL,	and hope and ho	(JONO)	Current		1656.64	-0.00	1.005	
	20 4				-	Territoria de la competitione de	Initial	5	1656.44		1006	
	- V		FOOR_CAS_N	Output	Bank0 - DDRDO	1571.181	Current	5	1656.44	+0.00	3,008	
	21		Inche Cox			arm int	Initial	5	1656.64	Constant of the local distance of the local	3.005	
	-		100M CKE	Output	Banko - DORDO	357118	Current	5	1656.44	+0.00	3.005	
	22		anne cur	Cont	Burnet	1170.141	Initial	5	646.55		2.951	
			rungua	Output	Banko - DORDO	2011/18	Current	5	646.55	+0.00	2.951	
	23		IDDE CS N	Cutout	Basid - DORD	SCT1 HILL	Initial	5	1656.44	253.72	3.008	
	1000			Carbon		AD- LONG	Current	,	1656.44	+0.50	3.008	
	24 6		FOOR DM RDO	L. O Incut	Bankd - DORSO	SSTUDIE	Initial	5	75444.69		1.005	**
		_	CONTRACTOR OF			a maintena de la compañía de la comp	Current	3	75444.49	+0.00	3.005	1.04
	100		FOOR DM RDG	- Inout	Bankd - DORDO	SSTUR	police		75466.89		1005	
ing Plode:		_					Cornere		12444.09	+0.10	3,005	
ACTIVE	- 0		FDDR_DQS[0]	Inout	Bank5 - DDRID	SSTLIN	Connect	-	1 100 10 10	-0.00	2 041	
	77 00						Initial	1	1 080.78.70		2.951	
ing Conditions:	0		FDOR_DQS(1)	 Inout 	Bank0 - D0450	SSTUB	Current	5	1 1093.10 10	+0.30	2.951	
WORST	28			0.000		100.100	Initial	5	1656.44		3.008	14
THERE			PECKEDQS_TM	L. Output	Banko - DORDO	201/198	Current	5	1656.44	+0.00	3.008	
THEAL	30			0.000	B	40770 4 401	Initial	5	75464.69		3.005	
			una bolio	• most	Banki - DOKOO	2011/101	Current	5	75444.69	+0.00	3.005	
PARE C	P.A		IDDE DODAL	O Init	Reality COMPO	SCTU 181	Initial	5	75464.69		3.005	
1759689.39vW			and adding			ATT A	Current	5	75444.69	+0.00	3.005	
	11		1000 00010	0.1	D	A1770 1.00	Initial	5	75444.69		3.008	1.00

Figure 44 · IO Advisor - Output Load Panel

Search and Regular Expressions

To search for a specific Port, enter the Port Name in the Port Name Search field and click Search. Regular expressions are accepted for the search. All Port Names matching the regular expression are displayed. The



regular expression "FDDR*", for example, results in all the output ports beginning with FDDR in the Port Name appearing in the display.

rtName FDI	DR*				Search						Sort B	Intel
Sta	atus 🔄	Port 💌	Direction 💌	Bank 💽	10 Standard	State 💌	Output Load(pl)	Power (uW)	Power Change(%)	Delay (ns)	C Slack	•
16		FDDR_ADDR(9)	Output	Bank0 - DORIO	SSTL18I	Initial Current	5	1656.44	+0.00	3.008		100
17		FDDR_BA(0)	Output	Bank0 - DORSO	SSTLAR	Initial	5	1656.44	+0.00	3.005	-	
18		FDDR_BA(1)	Output	Bank0 - DORIO	SSTLEBI	Initial	5	1656.44	-0.00	3.008		
19		FDDR_BA[2]	Output	Bank0 - DORIO	SSTLERI	Initial	5	1656.44	-0.00	3,005		
20		FODR_CAS_N	Output	Bank0 - DORIO	SSTLER	Initial	Ś	1656.44	.0.00	3.008	2	
21		FDDR, CKE	Output	Bank0 - DORIO	SSTLIBI	Initial	5	1656.44	+0.00	3.005		
22		FDDR_CLK	Output	Bank0 - DORIO	SSTLER	Initial	- 5	646.55		2.951	-	
23		FDDR CS N	Output	Bank0 - DORIO	SSTLIBI	Initial	5	1656.44	+0.00	3.008		
24 6		FOOR DM RDO	9 Inout	Bank0 - DORIO	SSTLIN	Current Initial	3	1656.44 75444.69	+0.00	3.008		
80	_		0 heret	Real 0.00810	OCTI 181	Current Initial	5	75444.69 75444.69	+0.00	3.005		
XA		roos poem	a head	Ruela DORIO	CETLINE	Current Initial	5	75444.69 138928.39	+0.00	3.005		
20		F000(00(0(0)	· most	Banko - DONDO	201140	Current Initial	5	138928.39 138928.39	00.0+	2.951 2.951	-	23 23
28	_	FDDW_DQS(1)	• Inout	Bank0 - DDR00	5511281	Current	5	138928.39	+0.00	2.951 3.008		
2	_	FDDR_DQS_TM	Output	Bank0 - DORSO	5571.181	Current	5	1656.44	+0.00	3.008		
		FDDR_DQ(0)	 Inout 	Bank0 - DORSO	SSTLER	Current	5	75444.69	+0.00	3.005	-	

Figure 45 · Search Field and Regular Expressions

Status Column

The icon in the Status Column displays the status of the Output Port.

lcon	Status and Explanation
<	OK - The IO attributes match the suggestion in Output Drive and Slew Table.
8	Error – The Timing constraints for this IO are not met in Output Drive and Slew Table.
0	Information – you can improve the power and/or timing of the IO by applying the suggestion in Output Drive and Slew Table.

Column Display and Sorting

To hide or unhide a column, click on the drop-down menu of a column header and select Hide Column or Unhide All Columns.

To sort the contents of a column, select the column header, and from the right-click menu, select Sort /A to Z/Z to A/Sort Min to Max/Sort Max to Min as appropriate.

Set Output Load

To set the output load of a port, click the Port and click **Set Output Load** or edit the value in the Current Output Load cell. Initial value remains unchanged.

Restore Initial Value

To restore a Port's output load to the initial value, select the output port and click **Restore Initial Value**. The current value changes to become the same value as the initial value.



Output Drive and Slew

The Output Drive and Slew page displays the Output Drive and Slew of all output/inout ports of your design. The display can be sorted according to the initial, current or suggested values. To change the sorting, click the Sort By drop-down menu to make your selection.

Three values are displayed for Output Drive and Slew of each IO output/inout port:

- Initial This is the initial value when the IO Advisor is launched.
- Current –This is the current value which reflects any changes you have made, including suggestions you have accepted from the IO Advisor.
- Suggested This is the suggested value from the IO Advisor for optimum power and timing performance.

Introduction + IO Attributes	PartName	rive and se	ew		Search .	Gert By Deltail .						
Output Load Output Drive & Slew	Status .	Part	• Direction •	East	10 Standard	State •	Output DrivetmA0	Siew 💌	Pewer -	Power Ounge(%)	Delay -	Slack
work a purmit ingger			A CONTRACTOR		a second second	Suggested			3656.44	+0.00	3.005	
Caracteria y	and a					Initial			3556.44		3.008	
	30	FOOR CAS N	Output	Banko - DDRID	3571.388	Current		10	2656.44	+0.00	3.008	
		8		-	-	Suggested			2556.44	+0.00	3.000	**
	- · ·	anna cua	H FOOR CAS N			2vital			2606.44		1.000	
	-	nunced 10	ACIO : ADUBIOUTBU			Contre			2030.44	0.00	2.000	
	and a second sec	2	Mance: KTG4FDDRC	,010,7008,CAS	GANCE, U.M.	Suggested			2000.00	+0.00	2.003	
	W.C	anne cur	10 days	Banks BORRS	THE OWNER WATCHING THE OWNER WATCHING	Const.			444.55	.0.00	3.043	
		and the	contra		and an	furneted			dat St.	+0.00	2 040	
					-	and the second s			1000.00	19.00	1.000	
	100 1	EDDR CS N	Ordered	Basid - DORO	SSTI 10	Connet			14144.44	+0.00	1000	
			1000			funnetled			2424.44	+0.50	1.008	
	30	TE O FOOR OM ROQ. @ Innut	and services and s	and the second	a light states	Initial			75444.60		3.005	
			a best	Banad - DDRID	S ISTLAN	Current		100	75444.00	+0.00	3,005	
	TTT I TT		States and States			Supported	10	10	33511.84	-35.58	3.005	
ACTIVE	-					Initial			75444.09		3.005	
	30	FOOR DM RDQ.	· Prout	Bankd - DORIO	SSTLAR	Current		10	75444.00	+0.00	3.005	
ang Conditions:					201 GH	Supperted		**	31511.84	-55.58	3.005	
a woest	221 10180					Initial	10.		138829.39		2.951	
Terrora	× 0	FDOR, DQS(R)	Inout	Bank0 - DDRID	SSTLIM	Current			138528.39	+0.00	2,951	
						Suggested			55062.50	-60.37	2.950	
						Initial			138828.39		2,951	
Tuner:	27	FDOR_DQS(1)	Inout	Bankd - DDRIO	SSTLAM	Current	**		138828.39	+0.00	2.951	
1759889.39vm						Suggested			55062.50	-40.32	2,950	

Figure 46 · IO Advisor – Output Drive and Slew

How the Suggested Values Are Computed

The IO Advisor provides suggestions for output drive and slew values according to the following criteria:

- When the user has set no output delay constraint for the port, the IO Advisor suggests IO attribute values that generate the lowest power consumption.
- When the user has set an output delay constraint on the port, the IO Advisor suggests IO attribute values that generates the lowest power consumption and positive timing slacks. If the slacks of all attribute combinations are negative, the IO Advisor suggests an attribute combination (Drive strength and slew) that generates the least negative slack.

In this screen, you can change the drive strength and slew of the design output I/Os. Select the out drive and/or the slew current value cell. Click the cell to open the combo box. Choose the value you want from the set of valid values. You can restore the initial values by clicking **Restore Initial Value**.

To make changes to multiple I/Os, select multiple I/Os (Control+click), click **Set Slew** or **Set Outdrive**, select the value, and click **OK**.

Apply Suggestion

To apply the suggested value to a single output port, select the output port and click **Apply Suggestion**. To apply the suggested values to mulitple ports, select the multiple ports (Control+click) and click **Apply Suggestion**.

Adjust ODT and Schmitt Trigger

This page allows you to set the Schmitt Trigger setting (On/Off), On-Die Termination (ODT) Static setting (On/Off), and the ODT Impedance (in Ohms) to valid values for all Input/Inout IOs of your design. The IO Advisor page instantly gives you the Power (in uW) and Delay (in ns) values when you make changes. If the suggested values meet your design's power and/or timing requirements, you can accept the suggestions and continue with your design process.



T and Schmitt Tri tes Port FDDR,DM,RDQ. FDDR,DAM,RDQ. FDDR,DAM,RDM,RDM,RDM,RDM,RDM,RDM,RDM,RDM,RDM,RD	Direction (Bank Bank	Search BD Standard	State •	Schmitt .	ODT Static ·	ODT	Power		SortBy	2vitel
FDR.DM.RDQ.	Direction (Bank Bank	Boarch 10 Standard	State •	Schmitt .	ODT Static *	001	Power		SertBy	2158
FDDR_DM_RDQ_	Direction (Bank Bank	• 50 •	State •	Schmitt -	ODT Static *	100	Power	a second s		
FDOR, DM, FDQ.	• heat	Rankd - DORIO				per ODT Studie • OT	Impedancelohum	Power	Power ·	Delay (m) 3.005	· Slack
FDDR_DM_RDQ_	• heat	Banad - DORIO	10000	Initial							
FDDR DCSRI		Banko - DORDO	15TL38	Current	10	08	50	75444.00	+0.00	3.005	-
FDDR DOSEI				Suggested	-	Off	150	33511.84	-55.58	3.005	
FDDR DOVD1				Initial	-	Off	50	138929.39	- Contraction -	2.951	-
and a state of the	Inout	Bank0 - DDRSO	SSTLAR	Current		Cit.	50	138928.39	+0.00	2,951	-
P	AND ADDRESS			Suggested		Off	150	55063.50	-40.37	2.950	-
Port 1	ADVIDUATION CON	and see the second	100	Initial		CIT .	50	138828.39		2.953	-
FDOR DC	- REGAINDER AN		trauna -	Current		OW	50	138928.39	+0.00	2.951	
Day Al	111	10,000,040,000		Suggested		Off	150	55062.50	40.37	2,950	-
		In the second	and a second	Initial		OW	50	34134.35		1.739	
FDOR_DQS_TM_	anne	Bank0 - DDRDD	SSTLAN	Current		Off	50	74234.55	+0.00	1.799	-
	10.0	Children Child	2 22 24 29 C	Suggested .		Cut.	150	12235.15	-96.96	1.340	
		Barriel (1999) (170 18		Intel		Off	50	75444.00		1.005	-
PDDR_DQ(0)	a best	Banad - DDRDD	3511388	Current		- CH	20	25666.09	+0.00	1.005	-
		-		Suggested		CH	159	31511.84	-55.56	1.005	
	1000			Intel		CH	50	75444.09		1.005	
NDOM DO[10]	· Inout	Bank0 - DORDO	321738	Current		CH	50	75444.00	+0.00	1.005	
				Suggested		Off	150	31011.04	-55.58	3.005	
			-	aveal	10	OW	10	75444.00		1.008	
ADDMCD/CDC011	· inout	Bank9 - 00400	2571.18	Current		CH	50	75444.00	+0.00	3,008	
				suggested		CH	130	1011.84	10.38	1.008	-
1000 00010	a had	Burld 00800	arman.	Const.		04	-	TRALL AD		1.008	-
100(00010	a most	Banko - 00400	sortan	formere		08	164	10511.04	45.58	1.008	-
			- C	and the second s		0.0	1.4	And a state of a	1000		
		Between Instruction Between Instruction FEOR_DOG_TML Beyed FEOR_DOG_TML Beyed FEOR_DOGTML Beyed	Interret Fibilition (Coll DOIL) Non (Coll DOIL)	Materic : 1504006(_010)_000(_000(_000(_000(_0000)_000(_000)_000(_000(_000)_000(_0000)_000(_0000)_000(_000000_00000_0000_00000_0000000_000000	Potence: Restore: Restore:	Hotec:::RIGUEDEC.G.ND:JONLOG,RUJDHOD Seggeted:	Potence: Response	Potencer: Potencer: <t< td=""><td>Pattern: Figure 14 State Supprint - OP 193 3984.93 FDDR,DQS,TML Bauld - OP 193 3984.93 - OP 193 3984.93 FDDR,DQS,TML Bauld - OP 193 3984.93 - OP 193 3984.93 FDDR,DQS,TML Bauld - OP 193 3984.93 - OP 193 3984.93 FDDR,DQS,TML Bauld - DP 100 100 300 3984.93 - DP 400 DP STL18 Commet - OP 300 3984.93 - DP 300 3984.93 - DP 300 3984.94 - DP 300 3984.94 -</td><td>Patterner Franzer Franzer</td><td>Patterner Flagenetic </td></t<>	Pattern: Figure 14 State Supprint - OP 193 3984.93 FDDR,DQS,TML Bauld - OP 193 3984.93 - OP 193 3984.93 FDDR,DQS,TML Bauld - OP 193 3984.93 - OP 193 3984.93 FDDR,DQS,TML Bauld - OP 193 3984.93 - OP 193 3984.93 FDDR,DQS,TML Bauld - DP 100 100 300 3984.93 - DP 400 DP STL18 Commet - OP 300 3984.93 - DP 300 3984.93 - DP 300 3984.94 - DP 300 3984.94 -	Patterner Franzer Franzer	Patterner Flagenetic

Figure 47 · IO Advisor – Adjust ODT and Schmitt Trigger

Note: ODT is not allowed for 2.5V or higher single-ended signals. It is allowed for differential signals.

Search and Regular Expressions

To search for a specific Port, enter the Port Name in the Port Name Search field and click Search. Regular expressions are accepted for the search. All Port Names matching the regular expression are displayed. The regular expression "RESET*", for example, results in the input/inout ports with the port name beginning with "RESET" appearing in the display.

🖌 KOAdvisor													
File Edit View Help													
N 12 10 40													1
IDAdvisor Introduction + 10 Attributes	Adjust ODT an	d Schmitt Tr	igger									terter (8	aa •
Output Drive & Slew	Status .	Purt .	Direction •	Back (- 30 -	State .	Schmitt -	ODE Static	ODT .	Power	· Power ·	Delay -	Slack
Summary	3.	NTABITA	leged	8amid - 00400	D/CM0528	Initial Correct Suspended	08			342.13 342.13 342.13	-1.00	2.045	
Correnting Finder. Power: ACTIVE Oversiting Conditioner Temper, an and at Power: THEFOAL Teld Power: Balank 1798883.35wF Corrent: 1798883.35wF Corrent: 1798883.35wF	x [] Set Schwitt TragerSet	Port : Not Macrosoft Indance: Print AL34	Allandin Bandur NT, FERT, A., and T. Syndense (Au	to Sugaritien) (a	factor (star lake)							Sect (A bas
Ready		_	_			_	_	_		_	Pan RTG4 Delf	74(150 (Phg 365)	/CG Speed -1

Figure 48 · Search Field and Regular Expressions

Status Column

The icon in the Status Column displays the status of the input/inout ports.

lcon	Status and Explanation
>	OK - The IO attributes match the suggestion in the Adjust ODT and Schmitt Trigger Table.
8	Error – The Timing constraints for this IO are not met in the Adjust ODT and Schmitt Trigger Table.



lcon	Status and Explanation
0	Information – you can improve the power and/or timing of the IO by applying the suggestion in the Adjust ODT and Schmitt Trigger Table.

Column Display and Sorting

To hide or unhide a column, click on the drop-down menu of a column header and select Hide Column or Unhide All Columns.

To sort the contents of a column, select the column header, and from the right-click menu, select Sort /A to Z/Z to A/Sort Min to Max/Sort Max to Min as appropriate.

Set Schmitt Trigger

For IO Standards that support the Schmitt Trigger, you can turn the Schmitt Trigger On or Off. Select the IO and click **Set Schmitt Trigger** to toggle on or off. Your setting is displayed in the Schmitt Trigger column for the IO.

Set ODT Static

For IO standards that support ODT static settings, you can turn the ODT Static On or Off according to your board layout or design needs:

- On The Termination resistor for impedance matching is located inside the chip.
- Off The Terminator resistor for impedance matching is located on the printed circuit board.

To turn the ODT Static on or off, click to select the input/inout port and from the pull-down menu, toggle on or off. You can also turn ODT Static on or off by clicking **Set ODT Static** and toggling on or off.

Set ODT Impedance (Ohm)

For each input/inout in your design, valid ODT Impedance values (in Ohms) are displayed for you to choose from. Click to select the input/inout port and select one of the valid ODT impedance values from the pull-down list in the ODT Impedance column. You can also click **Set ODT Impedance** to choose one of the valid ODT impedance values. The Power and Delay values may vary when you change the ODT Impedance (Ohm).

Note: When ODT_static is set to OFF, changing the ODT_Impedance value has no effect on the Power and Delay values. The Power and Delay values change with ODT_Impedance value changes only when ODT_static is set to ON.

Apply Suggestion

To apply the suggested value to a single input/inout port, select the port and click **Apply Suggestion**. To apply the suggested values to mulitple ports, select the multiple ports (Control-click) and click **Apply Suggestion**.

Restore Initial Value

To restore an input/inout port's attribute values to the initial values, select the port and click **Restore Initial Value**. The current value changes to the same value as the initial value.

Summary of Changes

This screen provides a summary of the timing and power changes you have made in the IO Advisor.



/ ICAdvisor									دن∎ن=ا
le Edit View Help									
1 1 1 1 A									
0Advisor Introduction	Summary of the Changes								
+ 10 Attributes	Name	Outdrive Slew	Output Load Schmitt Tripper	OOT Impedance	OUT Static	10 Delay	IO Sleck	10 Power	
Output Load	4 Summary								
Outruit Drive & Sleer	4 Frant Changes								
CONT & Schwitt Bione	Initial: 1750506.120-uW								
OUT & Service ingge	Current: 1675663.949 utv								
Something	Change: -304044.171 uW1-5.89%								
	# Taxing Changes								
	Initial number of IOs with Negative Slack: 0								
	Current number of 80s with Negative Slack: 0								
	Initial Word Slack: -								
	Current Worst Stack:								
	# IO Attribute Changes (per IO)								
	PDDR_ADDR(D)								
	Initial		5.00			3.000 ms	N/A	1347-055 wW	
	Current		10 p*			2152-01-2166-06	N/A	T241/522 AM 810046	
	- received a		Lef			1.000 m		1107.003	
	Current		10 of			3122 04 (+3 900)	N.B.	1347 PSS LINE IN PROV	
	+ FOOR DOSE					And on Lease of		the set of barries	
	Initial				Off	2.952 44	N/A	136367.217 www	
	Current				On	2,950 ms (-0.02%)	N/A	138387.217 wW (0.00%)	
	 FODR, DQS, TMRCH, P. IN 								
	Initial				Off	1.739 m	NA	74134.351 v/W	
	Current				On ·	1.740 ms (+0.00%)	NA.	74154.551 unit (0.00%)	
	# MOOR_DQD0								
	Initial			50 one	Off	3.005 mi	N/R	75302.306 u/W	
· Internet ·	Current			150 ohm	On	3.005 HL (+0.01%)	NA	33262.710 MW (-55.77%)	
	 FDDR, DQ311 								
Operating Mode:	Initial			50 ohm		3.008 m	NA	75202.306 www	
Power: ACTIVE				130 onle		31000 ms (-0.00%)	No.	35/82.759 (W (-55.77%)	
	initial			\$1.chm		3.000 m		75363 536 409	
Operating Conditions:	Current			15 ohm		3,000 mt (-0,00%)	NO	\$4235,994 ultr 1,27 8890	
Real of the local division of the local divi	+ INT DONE					and a large of		and the second second	
tenergi edett	Initial	SLOW				3.673 mi	NA	461.257 v/W	
Power: TYPECAL	Current	MEDBUM				3.322 44 142 2994	No.	461.872 v/W (+0.13%)	
	 INT, RESET, N 								
Total Power:	Initial		Off			2.676-mi	N/A	342.134 uW	
	Current		On			2.675 ms (-0.00%)	NUM	342.255 uW (+0.04%)	
CONTRACTOR OF A DAMA									
Current: 1675663.55vm									
Seving 5,89%									face furners
									Contra Marina
								Ren 8754 Dec 8745155 PA	a pisto fored -
					_			Annual Sector (198	a service of the serv

Figure 49 IO Advisor – Summary

You can save the summary by clicking Save Summary, selecting the save format (text or CSV), and clicking OK. To commit IO Attribute changes you have made to the database (the *io pdc file), choose Save from the File Menu (File > Save). Click OK in the dialog that appears.

Note: After saving the changes into the pdc file and database, the summary refreshes automatically and shows the latest data as per the latest database.

Constraint Manager – Timing Tab

The Timing tab allows you to manage timing constraints throughout the design process. Timing constraints files (SDC) have the *.sdc file extension and are placed in the <Project location>\constraint folder.

Available actions are:

- **New** Creates a new timing SDC file and saves it into the <Project location>\constraint folder. ٠
 - When prompted, enter the name of the constraint file.
 - The file is initially opened in the text editor for user entry.

Create New SDC		?	×
Name:			_
Help	ОК	Can	cel

Figure 50 · Create New SDC Dialog Box

- Import Imports an existing timing SDC file into the Libero SoC project. The timing SDC file is copied into the <Project location>\constraint folder.
- Link Creates a link in the project's constraint folder to an existing timing SDC file (located and maintained outside of the Libero SoC project).
- Edit Opens the Timing Constraints Editor (see Timing Constraints Editor User Guide for details) to modify • the SDC file(s) associated with one of the three tools:
 - Synthesis When selected, the timing SDC file(s) associated with the Synthesis tool is loaded in о the constraints editor for editing.



- o **Place and Route** When selected, the timing SDC file(s) associated with the Place and Route tool is loaded in the constraints editor for editing.
- o **Timing Verification** When selected, the timing SDC file(s) associated with the Timing Verification tool is loaded in the constraints editor for editing.

Edit Synthesis Constraints oute Timing Verification constraint\user.sdc [Target] Edit Place And Route Constraints Image: Constraints Image: Constraints		 Edit Check Derive Co	Constraints Constraint Coverage Help
	constraint\user.sdc [Target]	Edit Synthesis Constraints Edit Place And Route Constraints Edit Timing Verification Constraints	oute Timing Verification

Figure 51 · Timing Constraints Edit Options in Constraint Manager

- Check Check the legality of the SDC file(s) associated with one of the three tools described below:
 - o Synthesis The check is performed against the pre-synthesis HDL design.
 - o Place and Route The check is performed against the post-synthesis gate level netlist.
 - o Timing Verification The check is performed against the post-synthesis gate level netlist.

			Check Svr	thesis Constraints	10.0	
straint\us	sersdc [Target]	 Syr	Check Pla	ce And Route Constra	aints	
	Activate [lunger]	 	Check Tin	ning Verification Con	straints	

Figure 52 · Timing Constraints Check Options in Constraint Manager

• Derive Constraints – When clicked, Libero generates a timing SDC file based on user configuration of IP core, components and component SDC. For Smartfusion2, Design components for which Libero SoC generates timing constraints include MSS, OSC, SERDES and CCC. It generates the create_clock and create_generated_clock SDC timing constraints. This file is named <top_level_> derived_constraints.sdc. The component SDC and the generated <root>_derived_constraint.sdc files are dependent on the IP cores and vary with the device family.

Note: Clicking this button also generates a PDC file for certain Microsemi IPs, such as the the CoreConfigP. This PDC file constrains the placement of the IPs in a fixed region automatically created by Libero SoC to ensure that these IPs do not cause timing violations. The PDC file is named <top_level_>derived_constraints.pdc and is displayed in the Floor Planner tab. Associate this PDC file to Place-and-Route.

- **Constraint Coverage** When clicked, a pull-down list displays. Select the Constraint Coverage Reports you want:
 - o Generate Place and Route Constraint Coverage Report
 - o Generate Timing Verification Constraint Coverage Report

I/O Attributes	Timing	Floor Planne	r Netlis	t Attributes										
New	Imp	port	Link	Edit	-	Check	-	Derive Constraints	Co	nstraint Coverag	je 🔻	Help		+ +
					Synt	thesis		Place and Route	1	Generate Place	and Ro	oute Const	traint Coverage	
constraint\	iser.sdc	[Target]						2	6	Generate Timi	ng Verifi	ication Co	nstraint Coverag	e

Figure 53 · Constraint Coverage Options for Timing Constraints in Constraint Manager

Note: Constraint Coverage Reports can be generated only after synthesis. A warning message appears if the design is not in the post-synthesis state when this button is clicked.

The generated report will be visible in the respective nodes of the report view (**Design > Reports**).

When the SmartTime Constraint Editor tool is invoked or the constraint check is performed all the files associated with the targeted tool – Synthesis, Place and Route, Timing Verification – are being passed for processing.


When you save your edits in the SmartTime Constraint Editor tool, the timing SDC files affected by the change are updated to reflect the changes you have made in the SmartTime Constraints Editor tool. New timing constraints you add in the SmartTime Constraint Editor tool are written to the *Target* file (if a target file has been set) or written to a new SDC file (if no file is set as target) and stored in the constraint folder.

New	Import	Link	Edit	-	Check	-	Derive Constraints	C	onstraint Coverage	Help	<u>+</u>
				Synth	hesis		Place and Route	Tim	ning Verification		
constraint\T\	S_Demo_derived	_constraints.sd	c								
constraint\pr	ep1_derived_cons	straints.sdc									
constraint\n	ewtiming.sdc []	[arget]					✓				
constraint\pr	ep1_sdc.sdc										

Figure 54 · Constraint Manager – Timing Tab

Right-click the timing SDC files to access the available actions for each constraint file:

- Set/Unset as Target Sets or clears the selected file as the target to store new constraints created in the SmartTime Constraint Editor tool. Newly created constraints only go into the target constraint file. Only one file can be set as target, and it must be a PDC or SDC file. This option is not available for the derived constraint SDC file. This option is not available for linked files.
- Open in Text Editor Opens the selected constraint file in the Libero Text Editor.
- **Clone** Copies the file to a file with a different name. The original file name and its content remain intact. This option is not available for linked files.
- Rename Renames the file to a different name. This option is not available for linked files.
- Copy File Path Copies the file path to the clipboard.
- **Delete** Deletes the selected file from the project and from the disk. This option is not available for linked files.
- **Unlink** Removes the linked file from the project. The original file is untouched. This option is only available for linked files.
- Unlink: Copy file locally Removes the link and copies the file into the <Project_location>\constraint folder. This option is only available for linked files.

File and Tool Association

Each timing constraint file can be associated or disassociated with any one, two, or all three of the following tools:

- Synthesis
- Place and route
- Timing Verification

Click the checkbox under **Synthesis**, **Place and Route**, or **Timing Verification** to associate/disassociate the file from the tool.

When a file is associated, Libero passes the file to the tool for processing.

Example 1

			Synthesis	Place and Route	Timing Verification
constraint\TV	S_Demo_derived	_constraints.sdc			
constraint\pre	ep1_derived_con	straints.sdc	✓		
constraint\ne	ewtiming.sdc [Target]	✓		
constraint\pre	ep1_sdc.sdc				

In the context of the graphic above, when Edit Synthesis Constraint is selected, the prep1_derived_constraint.sdc file and the newtiming.sdc file will be read (because these two files are associated to Synthesis). The TVS_Demo_derived_constraints.sdc file and prep1_sdc.sdc file are not read (because they are not associated to



Synthesis). When the SmartTime Constraints Editor opens for edit, the prep1_derived_constraint.sdc file and the newtiming.sdc file are read and loaded into the Constraints Editor. Any changes you made (to the constraints in these two files) and saved in the Constraints Editor will be written back to the two files.

In the context of the graphic above, when Edit Synthesis Constraint is selected, user.sdc,

top_derived_constraints.sdc, and mytiming2.sdc are read (because these three files are associated with Synthesis); mytiming.sdc and sdfsadf.sdc are not read (because they are not associated with Synthesis). When the SmartTime Constraint Editor opens for edit, the constraints from all the files except for sdfsadf.sdc are read and loaded into the Constraint Editor. Any changes you made and saved in the Constraint Editor are written back to the files.

Example 2

New	Import	Link	Edit	-	Check	-	Derive Constraints	Constraint Coverage	e 🔻 _	Help	<u>+</u>
				Synthe	sis		Place and Route	Timing Verification			
constraint\T\	S_Demo_derived	constraints.s	dc								
constraint\pr	ep1_derived_con	straints.sdc		2				✓			
constraint\n	ewtiming.sdc [Target]		~				✓			
constraint\pr	ep1_sdc.sdc							✓			

In the context of the graphic above, when Check Synthesis Constraint is selected, the prep1_derived_constraints.sdc file and newtiming.sdc will be checked (because these two files are associated to Synthesis) and TVS_Demo_derived_constraints.sdc and prep1_sdc.sdc are not checked (because they are not associated to Synthesis).

When Check for Timing Verification is selected, prep1_derived_constraints.sdc file, newtiming.sdc, and prep1_sdc.sdc files are checked because they are associated to Timing Verification. The file TVS Demo derived constraints.sdc is not checked because it is not associated to Timing Verification.

Derived Constraints

Libero SoC is capable of generating SDC timing constraints for design components when the root of the design has been defined. Click **Derive Constraints** in the Constraint Manager's Timing tab to generate SDC timing constraints for your design's components.

The generated constraint file is named <root>_derived.sdc and is created by instantiating component SDC files created by IP configurators (e.g., CCC) and oscillators used in the design.

The <root>_derived.sdc file is associated by default to the Synthesis, Place and Route and Timing Verification tool. You can change the file association in the Constraint Manager by checking or unchecking the checkbox under the tool.

To generate SDC timing constraints for IP cores:

- 1. Configure and generate the IP Core.
- 2. From the Constraint Manager's Timing tab, click Derive Constraints (**Constraint Manager > Timing > Derive Constraints**).

The Constraint Manager generates the <root>_derived_constraints.sdc file and places it in the Timing Tab along with other user SDC constraint file.

 When prompted for a Yes or No on whether or not you want the Constraint Manager to automatically associate the derived SDC file to Synthesis, Place and Route, and Timing Verification, click Yes to accept automatic association or No and then check or uncheck the appropriate checkbox for tool association.

Note: Microsemi recommends the <root>_derived_constraints.sdc be always associated with all three tools: Synthesis, Place and Route, and Verify Timing. Before running SynplifyPro Synthesis, associate the <root>_derived_constraints.sdc file with Synthesis and Place and Route. This will ensure that the design objects (such as nets and cells) in the <root>_derived_constraints.sdc file are preserved during the synthesis step and the subsequent Place and Route step will not error out because of design object mismatches between the post-synthesis netlist and the <root>_derived_constraints.sdc file.



Note: Full hierarchical path names are used to identify design objects in the generated SDC file.

Note: The Derive Constraints button is available for HDL-based, SmartDesign-based, and System Builder-based design flows. It is not available for Netlist Designs (Project > Project Settings > Design Flow > Enable Synthesis [not checked]).

Constraint Manager – Floor Planner Tab

The Floor Planner tab allows you to manage floorplanning constraints. Floorplanning constraints files (PDC) have the *.pdc file extension and are placed in the <Project_location>\constraint\fp folder.

Available actions are:

- New Creates a new floorplanning PDC file and saves it into the <Project_location>\constraint\fp folder.
- **Import** Imports an existing floorplanning PDC file into the Libero SoC project. The floorplanning PDC file is copied into the <Project_location>\constraint\fp folder.
- Link Creates a link in the project's constraint folder to an existing floorplanning PDC file (located and maintained outside of the Libero SoC project).
- Edit Opens the <u>Chip Planner</u> tool to modify the floorplanning PDC file(s) associated with the Place and Route tool.
- View Opens the Chip Planner tool to view the floorplanning PDC file(s) associated with the Place and Route tool. You cannot save/commit any changes made to the constraints file. However, you can export the PDC file(s) using Chip Planner.
- **Check** Checks the legality of the PDC file(s) associated with the Place and Route tool against the gate level netlist.

When the Chip Planner tool is invoked or the constraint check is performed, all files associated with the Place and Route tool are passed for processing.

When you save your edits in the Chip Planner tool, the floorplanning PDC files affected by the change are updated to reflect the change you made in the Chip Planner tool. New floorplanning constraints that you add in the Chip Planner tool are written to the *Target* file (if a target file has been set) or written to a new PDC file (if no file is set as target) and stored in the <project>\constraint\fp folder.

New Import	Link	Edit View Check Help	<u>+</u>
	PI	lace and Route	
constraint\fp\test.pdc	P	0	

Figure 55 · Constraint Manager – Floor Planner Tab

Right-click the floorplanning PDC files to access the available actions:

- Set/Unset as Target Sets or clears the selected file as the target to store new constraints created in the Chip Planner tool. Newly created constraints only go into the target constraint file. Only one file can be set as target. This option is not available for linked files.
- Open in Text Editor Opens the selected constraint file in the Libero Text Editor.
- **Clone** Copies the file to a file with a different name. The original file name and its content remain intact. This option is not available for linked files.
- Rename Renames the file to a different name. This option is not available for linked files.
- Copy File Path Copies the file path to the clipboard.
- **Delete** Deletes the selected file from the project and from the disk. This option is not available for linked files.
- **Unlink** Removes the linked file from the project. The original file is untouched. This option is only available for linked files.
- Unlink: Copy file locally Removes the link and copies the file into the <Project_location>\constraint\fp folder. This option is only available for linked files.



File and Tool Association

Each floorplanning constraint file can be associated or disassociated to the Place and Route tool. Click the checkbox under **Place and Route** to associate/disassociate the file from the tool. When a file is associated, Libero passes the file to the tool for processing.

See Also

Chip Planner User Guide

Constraint Manager – Netlist Attributes Tab

The Netlist Attributes tab allows you to manage netlist attribute constraints to optimize your design during the synthesis and/or compile process. Timing constraints should be entered using SDC files managed in the Timing tab. Netlist Attribute constraints files are placed in the <Project_location>\constraint folder. Libero SoC manages two types of netlist attributes:

- FDC constraints are used to optimize the HDL design using Synopsys SynplifyPro synthesis engine and have the *.fdc extension.
- NDC constraints are used to optimize the post-synthesis netlist with the Libero SoC compile engine and have the *.ndc file extension

Available operations are:

- New Creates a new FDC or NDC netlist attribute constraints file in the <Project_location>\constraint folder.
- Import Imports an existing FDC or NDC netlist attribute constraints file into the Libero SoC project. The
 FDC or NDC netlist attribute constraints file is copied into the <Project_location>\constraint folder.
- Link Creates a link in the project's constraint folder to an existing existing FDC or NDC netlist attribute constraints file (located and maintained outside of the Libero SoC project).
- Check Checks the legality of the FDC and NDC file(s) associated with the Synthesis or Compile tools.

When the constraint check is performed, all files associated with the Synthesis or Compile tools are passed for processing.

new • Inport	Link Check Help	Ĵ 🛃
	Synthesis	
onstraint\test.fdc		
onstraint\my.ndc	V	

Figure 56 · Constraint Manager – Netlist Attributes Tab

Right-click the FDC or NDC files to access the available actions:

- Open in Text Editor Opens the selected constraint file in the Libero SoC Text Editor.
- **Clone** Copies the file to a file with a different name. The original file name and its content remain intact. This option is not available for linked files.
- Rename Renames the file to a different name. This option is not available for linked files.
- Copy File Path Copies the file path to the clipboard.
- Delete Deletes the file from the project and from the disk. This option is not available for linked files.
- **Unlink** Removes the linked file from the project. The original file is untouched. This option is only available for linked files.
- Unlink: Copy file locally Removes the link and copies the file into the <Project_location>\constraint folder. This option is only available for linked files.

File and Tool Association

Each netlist attributes constraint file can be associated with or disassociated from the Synthesis tool.



Click the checkbox under Synthesis (Compile) to associate/disassociate the file from Synthesis (Compile).

When a file is associated, Libero passes the file to Synthesis (Compile) for processing when Synthesis is run.

When Synthesis is ON (Project > Project Settings > Design Flow > Enable synthesis [checked]) for a project, the Design Flow Synthesis action runs both the synthesis engine and the post-synthesis compile engine.

When Synthesis is OFF (Project > Project Settings > Design Flow > Enable synthesis [not checked]) for a project, the Design Flow Synthesis action is replaced by the Compile action and runs the compile engine on the gate-level netlist (EDIF or Verilog) available in the project.



Implement Design

Synthesize

Double-click **Synthesize** to run synthesis on your design with the default settings specified in the synthesis tool. If you want to run the synthesis tool interactively, right-click **Synthesize** and choose **Open Interactively**. If you

open your tool interactively, you must complete synthesis from within the synthesis tool.

The default synthesis tool included with Libero SoC is Synplify Pro ME. If you want to use a different synthesis tool, you can change the settings in your Tool Profiles.

You can organize input synthesis source files via the Organize Source Files dialog box.

Synthesize Options

Some families enable you to set or change synthesis configuration options for your synthesis tool. To do so, in the Design Flow window, expand **Implement Design**, right-click **Synthesize** and choose **Configure Options**. This opens the Synthesize Options dialog box.



Synthesize Options			? ×		
Global Nets					
Minimum number of clock pins:		2			
Minimum number of asynchronous	Minimum number of asynchronous pins:				
Minimum fanout of non-clock nets	to be kept on globals:	5000			
Number of global resources:	8				
Maximum number of global nets th	16				
Minimum fanout of global nets tha	t could be demoted to row-globals:	300			
Optimizations					
Enable retiming					
RAM optimized for:	e High speed	C Low power			
Additional options for SynplifyPro	synthesis				
Script file:	D:/synthesize.td				
Additional options:	set_option -run_prop_extract 1: set_option -maxfan 10000;				
Help		ОК	Cancel		

Figure 57 · Synthesize Options Dialog Box

HDL Synthesis Language Settings

HDL Synthesis language options are no longer specified in this dialog box. Please refer to <u>Project Settings:</u> <u>Design Flow Options.</u>



Global Nets (Promotions and Demotions)

Use the following options to specify to the Synthesis tool the threshold value beyond which the Synthesis tool promotes the pins to globals:

- **Minimum number of clock pins** Specifies the threshold value for Clock pin promotion. The default value is 2.
- **Minimum number of asynchronous pins** Specifies the threshold value for Asynchronous pin promotion. The default is 12 for all dies of SmartFusion2 and IGLOO2 families and RT4G150 die of the RTG4 family. This option is not available for RT4G150_ES die.
- Minimum fanout of non-clock nets to be kept on globals Specifies the threshold value for data pin
 promotion to global resources. It is the minimum fanout of non-clock (data) nets to be kept on globals (no
 demotion). The default is 5000 (must be between 1000 and 200000).
- Number of global resources This can be used to control number of Global resources you want to use in your design. By default this displays the number of available global resources for the die you have selected for the project and varies with different die sizes.
- Maximum number of global nets that could be demoted to row-globals Specifies the maximum
 number of global nets that could be demoted to row-globals. The default is 16 (must be between 0 to 50).
- Minimum fanout of global nets that could be demoted to row-globals Specifies the minimum fanout of global nets that could be demoted to row-global. It is undesirable to have high fanout nets demoted using row globals because it may result in high skew. The default is 300. (Must be between 25 to 5000). If you run out of global routing resources for your design, reduce this number (to allow more globals to be demoted to Row Globals) or select a bigger die for your design.

Note: Hardwired connections to global resources, such as CCC hardwired connections to GB, IO Hardwired connections to GB, and so on, cannot be controlled by these options.

Optimizations

Enable retiming – Check this box to enable Retiming during synthesis. Retiming is the process of automatically moving registers (register balancing) across combinational gates to improve timing, while ensuring identical logic behavior. The default is no retiming during synthesis.

RAM optimized for:

Use this option to guide the Synthesis tool to optimize RAMs to achieve your design goal.

- **High speed** RAM Optimization is geared towards Speed. The resulting synthesized design achieves better performance (higher speed) at the expense of more FPGA resources.
- Low power RAM Optimization is geared towards Low Power. RAMs are inferred and configured to ensure the lowest power consumption.

Additional options for Synplify Pro synthesis

Script File

Click the Browse we button to navigate to a Synplify Tcl file that contains the Synplify Pro-specific options. Libero passes the options in the Tcl file to Synplify Pro for processing.

Additional Options

Use this field to enter additional Synplify options. Put each additional option on a separate line.

Note: Libero passes these additional options "as-is" to Synplify Pro for processing; no syntax checks are performed. All of these options are set on the Active Implementation only.

The list of recommended Synthesis Tcl options below can be added or modified in the Tcl Script File or Additional Options Editor.

Note: The options from the Additional Options Editor will always have priority over the Tcl Script file options if they are same.

```
set_option -use_fsm_explorer 0/1
set option -frequency 200.000000
```



```
set option -write verilog 0/1
set option -write vhdl 0/1
set_option -resolve_multiple_driver 1/0
set_option -rw_check_on_ram 0/1
set option -auto constrain io 0/1
set option -run prop extract 1/0
set option -default enum encoding default/onehot/sequential/gray
set_option -maxfan 30000
set option -report path 5000
set option -update models cp 0/1
set option -preserve registers 1/0
set option -continue on error 1/0
set option -symbolic fsm compiler 1/0
set option -compiler compatible 0/1
set option -resource sharing 1/0
set_option -write_apr_constraint 1/0
set option -dup 1/0
set option -enable64bit 1/0
set_option -fanout_limit 50
set option -frequency auto
set option -hdl define SLE INIT=2
set option -hdl param -set "width=8"
set_option -looplimit 3000
set option -fanout guide 50
set option -maxfan hard 1/0
set option -num critical paths 10
set option -safe case 0/1
```

Any additional options can be entered through the Script File or Additional Options Editor. All of these options can be added and modified outside of Libero through interactive SynplifyPro.

Refer to the Synplify Pro Reference Manual for detailed information about the options and supported families.

The following options are already set by Libero. Do not include them in the additional options field or Script File:

```
add file <*>
impl <*>
project folder <*>
add_folder <*>
constraint file <*>
project <*>
project file <*>
open file <*>
set option -part
set option -package
set option -speed grade
set option -top module
set option -technology
set option -opcond
set_option -vlog_std
set option -vhdl2008
set option -disable io insertion
set option -async globalthreshold
set_option -clock_globalthreshold
set option -globalthreshold
```



```
set_option -low_power_ram_decomp
set_option -retiming
```

Synplify Pro ME

Synplify Pro ME is the default synthesis tool for Libero SoC.

To run synthesis using Synplify Pro ME and default settings, right-click Synthesize and choose Run.

If you wish to use custom settings you must run synthesis interactively.

To run synthesis using Synplify Pro ME with custom settings:

- 1. If you have set Synplify as your default synthesis tool, right-click **Synthesize** in the Libero SoC Design Flow window and choose **Open Interactively**. Synplify starts and loads the appropriate design files, with a few pre-set default values.
- 2. From Synplify's Project menu, choose Implementation Options.
- 3. Set your specifications and click OK.
- 4. Deactivate synthesis of the defparam statement. The defparam statement is only for simulation tools and is not intended for synthesis. Embed the defparam statement in between translate_on and translate_off synthesis directives as follows :

```
/* synthesis translate_off */
defparam MO.MEMORYFILE = "meminit.dat"
```

```
/*synthesis translate_on */
// rest of the code for synthesis
```

5. Click the **RUN** button. Synplify compiles and synthesizes the design into an HDL netlist. The resulting *.vm files are visible in the Files list, under Synthesis Files.

Should any errors appear after you click the **Run** button, you can edit the file using the Synplify editor. Double-click the file name in the Synplify window showing the loaded design files. Any changes you make are saved to your original design file in your project.

- 6. From the **File** menu, choose **Exit** to close Synplify. A dialog box asks you if you would like to save any settings that you have made while in Synplify. Click **Yes**.
 - Note: See the Microsemi Attribute and Directive Summary in the Synplify online help for a list of attributes related to Microsemi devices.
 - Note: To add a clock constraint in Synplify you must add "n:<net_name>" in your SDC file. If you put the net_name only, it does not work.

Identify Debug Design

Libero SoC integrates the Identify RTL debugger tool. It enables you to probe and debug your FPGA design directly in the source RTL. Use Identify software when the design behavior after programming is not in accordance with the simulation results.

To open the Identify RTL debugger, in the Design Flow window under Debug Design double-click **Instrument Design**.

Identify features:

- Instrument and debug your FPGA directly from RTL source code.
- Internal design visibility at full speed.
- Incremental iteration Design changes are made to the device from the Identify environment using incremental compile. You iterate in a fraction of the time it takes route the entire device.
- Debug and display results You gather only the data you need using unique and complex triggering mechanisms.

You must have both the Identify RTL Debugger and the Identify Instrumentor to run the debugging flow outlined below.

To use the Identify Instrumentor and Debugger:

- 1. Create your source file (as usual) and run pre-synthesis simulation.
- 2. (Optional) Run through an entire flow (Synthesis Compile Place and Route Generate a Programming File) without starting Identify.



- 3. Right-click Synthesize and choose Open Interactively in Libero SoC to launch Synplify.
- 4. In Synplify, click Options > Configure Identify Launch to setup Identify.
- 5. In Synplify, create an Identify implementation; to do so, click **Project > New Identify Implementation**.
- In the Implementations Options dialog, make sure the Implementation Results > Results Directory points to a location under <libero project>\synthesis\, otherwise Libero SoC is unable to detect your resulting EDN Netlist file.
- 7. From the Instumentor UI specify the sample clock, the breakpoints, and other signals to probe. Synplify creates a new synthesis implementation. Synthesize the design.
- 8. In Libero SoC, run Synthesis, Place and Route and Generate a Programming File. **Note:** Libero SoC works from the edif netlist of the current active implementation, which is the implementation you created in Synplify for Identify debug.
- 9. Double-click Identify Debug Design in the Design Flow window to launch the Identify Debugger.

The Identify RTL Debugger, Synplify, and FlashPro must be synchronized in order to work properly. See the <u>Release Notes</u> for more information on which versions of the tools work together.

Verify Post-Synthesized Design

Generate Simulation File

This step generates the post-synthesis *.v Verilog or *.vhd VHDL netlist for post-synthesis simulation. Postsynthesis simulation verifies the post-synthesis implementation of the design.

The netlist file is located in the synthesis folder of the project. Libero SoC passes this file to the simulator for the post-synthesis simulation run. This step must be preceded by a successful synthesis. If synthesis is not yet run, generating Simulation Files automatically initiates a synthesis run as a requirement to this step

Verify Post-Synthesis Implementation - Simulate

The steps for performing <u>functional</u> (post-synthesis) and timing (post-layout) simulation are nearly identical. Functional simulation is performed before place-and-route and simulates only the functionality of the logic in the design. Timing simulation is performed after the design has gone through place-and-route and uses timing information based on the delays in the placed and routed designs.

To perform functional simulation:

- 1. If you have not done so, back-annotate your design and create your testbench.
- Right-click Simulate (in the Design Flow window, Implement Design > Verify Post-Synthesis Implementation > Simulate) and choose Organize Input Files > Organize Simulation Files from the right-click menu.

In the Organize Files for Source dialog box, all stimulus files in the current project appear in the Source Files in the Project list box. Files already associated with the block appear in the Associated Source Files list box.

In most cases you will only have one testbench associated with your block. However, if you want simultaneous association of multiple testbench files for one simulation session, as in the case of PCI cores, add multiple files to the Associated Source Files list.

To add a testbench: Select the testbench you want to associate with the block in the Source Files in the Project list box and click **Add** to add it to the Associated Source Files list.

To remove a testbench: To remove or change the file(s) in the Associated Source Files list box, select the file(s) and click **Remove**.

To order testbenches: Use the up and down arrows to define the order you want the testbenches compiled. The top level-entity should be at the bottom of the list.

- 3. When you are satisfied with the Associated Simulation Files list, click OK.
- 4. To start ModelSim ME, right-click Simulate in the Design Hierarchy window and choose Open Interactively. ModelSim starts and compiles the appropriate source files. When the compilation completes, the simulator runs for 1 ^os and the Wave window opens to display the simulation results.
- 5. Scroll in the Wave window to verify the logic works as intended. Use the cursor and zoom buttons to zoom in and out and measure timing delays.



6. When you are done, from the File menu, choose Quit.

Configure Flash*Freeze

Opens the Flash*Freeze Hardware Settings dialog box. For more information on the Flash*Freeze mode see the <u>SmartFusion2 and IGLOO2 Low Power Design User's Guide</u>.

The fabric SRAMs can be put into a Suspend Mode or a Sleep Mode. This applies to both the Large SRAM (LSRAM) instances of RAM1xK18 and the Micro SRAM (uSRAM) instances of RAM64x18. These SRAMs are grouped in rows in Libero® System-on-Chip (SoC) devices

uRAM/LSRAM State

Sleep - Sets to Sleep; LSRAM and uSRAM contents are not retained.

Suspend - Sets to Suspend; LSRAM and uSRAM contents are retained.

MSS Clock Source

The lower the frequency the lower the power will be. But for some peripherals that can remain active (such as SPI or MMUART), you may need a higher MSS clock frequency (such as to meet the baud rate for MMUART). Options are:

- On-Chip 1 MHz RC Oscillator
- On-Chip 50 MHz RC Oscillator

Configure Register Lock Bits

For SmartFusion2 and IGLOO2 devices, use the Register Lock Bits Configuration tool to lock MSS, SERDES, and FDDR configuration registers and prevent them from being overwritten by Masters that have access to these registers. The register lock bits are set in a text file (*.txt) and imported into a SmartFusion2/IGLOO2 project. From the Design Flow window, click **Configure Register Lock Bits** (**Design Flow window > Configure Register Lock Bits**) to open the Register Lock Bits Setting dialog box. Click the **Browse** button to navigate to a text file (*.txt) that contains the Register Lock Bit settings.

Register Lock Bits Settings		? X
Register Lock Bits File:		Browse
Help	ОК	Cancel

Figure 58 · Register Lock Bits Settings Dialog Box

Register Lock Bit Text File Template

An initial Configuration Lock Bit file can be generated from the Design Flow window (**Design Flow window >** Generate FPGA Array Data).

The file is named <proj_location>/designer/<root>/croot>_init_config_lock_bits.txt. This is the initial and the default Lock Bit Configuration File. Use this file as a template to make changes. Modify it to ensure that the lock bits are set to "0" for all register bits you want to lock. Save the file as a *.txt file with a different name and import the file into the project using the Register Lock Bit Settings dialog box (**Design Flow window > Configure Register Lock Bits**).

Register Lock Bit File Syntax

A valid entry in the Lock Bit Configuration file is defined as <lock_parameters> < lock bit value> pair.



- If the lock bit is for a register the parameter name is defined as: .
 - <Physical block name> <register name> LOCK
- If the lock bit is for a field the parameter name is defined as:
 - <Physical block name>_<register name>_<field name>_LOCK
- The physical block name (which may vary with device family and die) is defined as:
 - MSS
 - FDDR •
 - SERDES IF x (where x is 0,1,2,3 to indicate the physical SERDES location) for SmartFusion2, . and IGLOO2 (010/025/050/150) devices
 - SERDES IF2 (060/090) devices (only one SERDES block per device for SmartFusion2 and IGLOO2 devices)

Set the lock bit value to '1' to indicate that the register can be written, "0" to indicate that the register cannot be written (locked).

Lines starting with "#" or ";" are comments and empty lines are allowed in the Lock Bit Configuration file.

- # Register Lock Bits Configuration File for MSS, SERDES(\$) and Fabric DDR
 # Microsemi Corporation Microsemi Libero Software Release v11.7 SP1 (Version 11.7.1.2)
 # Date: Tue Mar 29 13:24:54 2016
- # sb_sb_0/sb_sb_MSS_0/MSS_ADLIB_INST/INST_MSS_050_IP SD_SD_U/SD_SD_WSS_U/MSS WSS_ESRAM_CONFIG_LOCK MSS_ESRAM_MAX_LAT_LOCK MSS_ENVM_CONFIG_LOCK MSS_ENVM_CONFIG_LOCK MSS_ENVM_REMAP_BASE_LOCK MSS_ENVM_FAB_REMAP_LOCK 10 OCK 1 MSS_EENVM_FAB_REMAP_LOCK MSS_CC_CONFIG_LOCK MSS_CC_CACHEREGION_LOCK MSS_CC_ELOCKASEADDR_LOCK MSS_CCRB_BUF_TIMER_LOCK MSS_DDRB_NB_ADR_LOCK MSS_DDRB_NB_ADR_LOCK 110 1 1 0 MSS_DDRB_NB_SIZE_LOCK MSS_DDRB_CONFIG_LOCK MSS_EDAC_ENABLE_LOCK HSS_DORB_CONFIG_LOCK HSS_DORB_CONFIG_LOCK HSS_BDATER_WEIGHT_CONFIG_LOCK HSS_SOFTER_WEIGHT_CONFIG_LOCK HSS_SOFTRESET_ENVM0_SOFTRESET_LOCK HSS_SOFTRESET_ENVM0_SOFTRESET_LOCK HSS_SOFTRESET_ESRAM0_SOFTRESET_LOCK HSS_SOFTRESET_ESRAM0_SOFTRESET_LOCK HSS_SOFTRESET_ESRAM0_SOFTRESET_LOCK HSS_SOFTRESET_SAM0_SOFTRESET_LOCK HSS_SOFTRESET_DMA_SOFTRESET_LOCK HSS_SOFTRESET_MUMART0_SOFTRESET_LOCK HSS_SOFTRESET_MUMART0_SOFTRESET_LOCK HSS_SOFTRESET_SOFTRESET_LOCK HSS_SOFTRESET_SOFTRESET_LOCK HSS_SOFTRESET_SOFTRESET_LOCK HSS_SOFTRESET_GASPII_SOFTRESET_LOCK HSS_SOFTRESET_GASPII_SOFTRESET_LOCK HSS_SOFTRESET_GASPII_SOFTRESET_LOCK HSS_SOFTRESET_SOFTRESET_LOCK HSS_SOFTRESET_CAL_SOFTRESET_LOCK HSS_SOFTRESET_SOFTRESET_LOCK HSS_SOFTRESET_SOFTRESET_LOCK HSS_SOFTRESET_SOFTRESET_LOCK HSS_SOFTRESET_FPGA_SOFTRESET_LOCK HSS_SOFTRESET_HPDMA_SOFTRESET_LOCK HSS_SOFTRESET_HPDMA_SOFTRESET_LOCK HSS_SOFTRESET_HPDMA_SOFTRESET_LOCK HSS_SOFTRESET_SOFTRESET_LOCK HSS_SOFTRESET_HSS_GPOUT_15_8_SOFTRESET_LOCK HSS_SOFTRESET_HSS_GPOUT_15_8_SOFTRESET_LOCK HSS_SOFTRESET_HSS_GPOUT_15_8_SOFT_RESET_LOCK HSS_SOFTRESET_HSS_GPOUT_16_8 1

Figure 59 · Lock Bit Configuration File

Validation of Register Lock Bits Configuration File

During Map File generation (Design Flow window > Generate FPGA Array Data), Libero SoC validates the Register Lock Bit Configuration file and displays error message when invalid parameter or parameter values are found:

- "Error: Invalid parameter name '<param>' while reading register lock bits configuration file <file name>
- "Error: Invalid value '<value>' for parameter '<param>' while reading register lock bits configuration file <file • name>



• "Error: Parameter '<param>' cannot be set to '1', while reading register lock bits configuration file <file name>. This error is displayed when the value of SERDES register fields *K_BRIDGE_SPEED is set by the SERDES Configurator to "0" and cannot be changed. It is illegal to change the value to "1".

Constraint Flow in Implementation

Design State Invalidation

The Libero SoC Design Flow window displays status icons to indicate the status of the design state. For any status other than a successful run, the status icon is identified with a tooltip to give you additional information.

Status Icon	Tooltip	Description	Possible Causes/Remedy
N/A	Tool has not run yet.	NEW state	Tool has not run or it has been cleaned.
2	Tool runs successfully.	Tool runs with no errors. PASS state.	N/A
*	Varies with the tool.	Tool runs but with Warnings.	Varies with the tool (e.g., for the Compile Netlist step, not all I/Os have been assigned and locked).
8	Tool Fails.	Tool fails to run.	Invalid command options or switches, invalid design objects, invalid design constraints.
-	Design State is Out of Date.	Tool state changes from PASS to OUT OF DATE.	Since the last successful run, design source design files, constraint files or constraint file/tool association, constraint files order, tool options, and/or project settings have changed.
×	Timing Constraints have not been met.	Timing Verification runs successfully but the design fails to meet timing requirements.	Design fails Timing Analysis. Design has either set-up or hold time violations or both.

Constraints and Design Invalidation

A tool in the Design Flow changes from a PASS state (green check mark) to an OUT OF DATE state when a source file or setting affecting the outcome of that tool has changed.

The out-of-date design state is identified by the 🐣 icon in the Design Flow window.

Sources and/or settings are defined as:

- HDL sources (for Synthesis), gate level netlist (for Compile), and Smart Design and System Builder components
- Design Blocks (*.cxz files) low-level design units which may have completed Place and Route and re-used as components in a higher-level design
- Constraint files associated with a tool
- Upstream tools in the Design Flow:
 - If the tool state of a Design Flow tool changes from PASS to OUT OF DATE, the tool states of all the tools below it in the Design Flow, if already run and are in PASS state, also change to OUT OF DATE with appropriate tooltips. For example, if the Synthesis tool state changes from PASS to



OUT OF DATE, the tool states of Place and Route tool as well as all the tools below it in the Design Flow change to OUT OF DATE.

- o If a Design Flow tool is CLEANED, the tool states of all the tools below it in the Design Flow, if already run, change from PASS to OUT OF DATE.
- o If a Design Flow tool is rerun, the tool states of all the tools below it in the Design Flow, if already run, are CLEANED.
- Tool Options
 - If the configuration options of a Design Flow tool (right-click the tool and choose Configure Options) are modified, the tool states of that tool and all the other tools below it in the Design Flow, if already run, are changed to OUT OF DATE with appropriate tooltips.
- Project Settings:
 - o Device selection
 - o Device settings
 - o Design Flow
 - o Analysis operating conditions

Setting Changed	Applicable Families	Note	Design Flow Tools Affected	New State of the Affected Design Flow Tools
Family	SmartFusion2, IGLOO2, RTG4	Part# is changed	N/A since family cannot be changed once a root is created	N/A
Die	SmartFusion2, IGLOO2, RTG4	Part# is changed	All	CLEANED/NEW
Package	SmartFusion2, IGLOO2, RTG4	Part# is changed	All	CLEANED/NEW
Speed	SmartFusion2, IGLOO2, RTG4	Part# is changed	All	CLEANED/NEW
Core Voltage	SmartFusion2, IGLOO2, RTG4	Part# is changed	All	CLEANED/NEW
Range	SmartFusion2, IGLOO2, RTG4	Part# is changed	All	CLEANED/NEW
Default I/O Technology	SmartFusion2, IGLOO2, RTG4		Synthesize, and all tools below it	OUT OF DATE
Reserve Pins for Probes	SmartFusion2, IGLOO2, RTG4		Place and Route, and all tools below it	OUT OF DATE
Reserve Pins for Device Migration*	SmartFusion2, IGLOO2, RTG4		Place and Route and all tools below it	OUT OF DATE
PLL Supply Voltage (V)	SmartFusion2, IGLOO2		Verify Power, Generate FPGA Array Data and all other "Program	OUT OF DATE



Setting Changed	Applicable Families	Note	Design Flow Tools Affected	New State of the Affected Design Flow Tools
			and Debug Design" tools below it	
Power On Reset Delay	SmartFusion2 IGLOO2		Generate FPGA Array Data and all other "Program and Debug Design" tools below it	OUT OF DATE
System controller suspended mode	SmartFusion2, IGLOO2		Generate FPGA Array Data and all other "Program and Debug Design" tools below it	OUT OF DATE
Preferred Language	SmartFusion2, IGLOO2, RTG4		None	N/A
Enable synthesis	SmartFusion2, IGLOO2, RTG4		All	OUT OF DATE
Synthesis gate level netlist format	SmartFusion2, IGLOO2, RTG4		Synthesize	CLEANED/NEW
Design methodology(stan dalone initialization)	SmartFusion2 and IGLOO2		None	N/A
Reports(Maximum number of high fanout nets to be displayed)	SmartFusion2, IGLOO2, RTG4		None	N/A
Abort flow if errors are found in PDC	SmartFusion2, IGLOO2, RTG4		None	N/A
Abort flow if errors are found in SDC	SmartFusion2, IGLOO2, RTG4		None	N/A
Temperature range(C)	SmartFusion2, IGLOO2, RTG4		Verify Timing, Post Layout Simulate, and Verify Power	OUT OF DATE
Core voltage range(V)	SmartFusion2, IGLOO2, RTG4		Verify Timing, Post Layout Simulate, and Verify Power	OUT OF DATE
Default I/O voltage range	SmartFusion2, IGLOO2, RTG4		Verify Timing, Post Layout Simulate, and Verify Power	OUT OF DATE



Setting Changed	Applicable Families	Note	Design Flow Tools Affected	New State of the Affected Design Flow Tools
Radiation (krad)	RTG4		Verify Timing, Post Layout Simulate, and Verify Power	OUT OF DATE
Enable Single Event Transient mitigation	RTG4		Synthesize and all tools below it	OUT OF DATE

*These settings are set in the I/O Attributes tab of the Constraint Manager, not in the Project Settings.

• Note: Cleaning a tool means the output files from that tool are deleted including log and report files, and the tool's state is changed to NEW.

Check Constraints

When a constraint file is checked, the Constraint Checker does the following:

- Checks the syntax
- Compares the design objects (pins, cells, nets, ports) in the constraint file versus the design objects in the netlist (RTL or post-layout ADL netlist). Any discrepancy (e.g., constraints on a design object which does not exist in the netlist) are flagged as errors and reported in the *_sdc.log file

Design State and Constraints Check

Constraint Type	Check for Tools	Required Design State Before Checking	Netlist Used for Design Objects Checks	Check Result
I/O Constraints	Place and Route	Post-Synthesis	ADL Netlist	Reported in Libero Log Window
Floorplanning Constraints	Place and Route	Post-Synthesis	ADL Netlist	par_sdc.log
Timing Constraints	Synthesis	Pre-Synthesis	RTL Netlist	synthesis_sdc.l og
	Place and Route	Post-Synthesis	ADL Netlist	par_sdc.log
	Timing Verification	Post-Synthesis	ADL Netlist	vt_sdc.log
Netlist Attributes	FDC Check	Pre-Synthesis	RTL Netlist	Libero Message Window
Netlist Attributes	NDC Check	Pre-Synthesis	RTL Netlist	Reported in Libero Log Window

Constraints can be checked only when the design is in the right state.



A pop-up message appears when the check is made and the design flow has not reached the right state.



Figure 60 · Pop-Up message: Design State insufficient for Constraints Check operation

Edit Constraints

Click the **Edit with I/O Editor/Chip Planner/Constraint Editor** button to edit existing and add new constraints. Except for the Netlist Attribute constraints (*.fdc and *.ndc) file, which cannot be edited by an interactive tool, all other constraint types can be edited with an Interactive Tool. The *.fdc and *.ndc files can be edited using the Libero SoC Text Editor.

The I/O Editor is the interactive tool to edit I/O Attributes, Chip Planner is the interactive tool to edit Floorplanning Constraints, and the Constraint Editor is the interactive tool to edit Timing Constraints.

For Timing Constraints that can be associated to Synthesis, Place and Route, and Timing Verification, you need to specify which group of constraint files you want the Constraint Editor to read and edit:

- Edit Synthesis Constraints reads associated Synthesis constraints to edit.
- Edit Place and Route Constraints reads only the Place and Route associated constraints.
- Edit Timing Verification Constraints reads only the Timing Verification associated constraints.

For the three SDC constraints files (a.sdc, b.sdc, and c.sdc, each with Tool Association as shown in the table below) when the Constraint Editor opens, it reads the SDC file based on your selection and the constraint file/tool association.

	Synthesis	Place and Route	Timing Verification
a.sdc		x	х
b.sdc	x	x	
c.sdc [target]	x	x	х

- Edit Synthesis Constraints reads only the b.sdc and c.sdc when Constraint Editor opens.
- Edit Place and Route Constraints reads a.sdc, b.sdc and c.sdc when Constraint Editor opens.
- Edit Timing Verification Constraints reads a.sdc and c.sdc when Constraint Editor opens.

Constraints in the SDC constraint file that are read by the Constraint Editor and subsequently modified by you will be written back to the SDC file when you save the edits and close the Constraint Editor.

When you add a new SDC constraint in the Constraint Editor, the new constraint is added to the c.sdc file, because it is set as target. If no file is set as target, Libero SoC creates a new SDC file to store the new constraint.

Constraint Type and Interactive Tool

Constraint Type	Interactive Tool For Editing	Design Tool the Constraints File is Associated	Required Design State Before Interactive Tool Opens for Edit
I/O Constraints	I/O Editor	Place and Route Tool	Post-Synthesis
Floorplanning Constraints	Chip Planner	Place and Route Tool	Post-Synthesis
Timing Constraints	SmartTime Constraints Editor	Synthesis Tool Place and Route Timing Verification	Pre-Synthesis Post-Synthesis Post-Synthesis
Netlist Attributes Synplify Netlist Constraint (*.fdc)	Interactive Tool Not Available Open the Text Editor to edit.	Synthesis	Pre-Synthesis
Netlist Attributes Compile Netlist Constraint (*.ndc)	Interactive Tool Not Available Open the Text Editor to edit.	Synthesis	Pre-Synthesis

Note: If the design is not in the proper state when **Edit with <Interactive tool>** is invoked, a pop-up message appears.



Note: When an interactive tool is opened for editing, the Constraint Manager is disabled. Close the Interactive Tool to return to the Constraint Manager.

Place and Route - SmartFusion2, IGLOO2, RTG4

Double-click Place and Route to run Place and Route on your design with the default settings.

Place and Route Options

To change your Place and Route settings from the Design Flow window, expand **Implement Design**, right-click **Place and Route** and choose **Configure Options**. This opens the Layout Options dialog box.



Layout Options		?	\times
Timing-driven			
Power-driven			
□ I/O Register Comb	ining		
🔽 High Effort Layout			
Repair Minimum De	lay Violations		
Use Multiple Passes			
Help	ОК	Can	cel

Figure 61 · Layout Options Dialog Box



Layout Options		?	\times
Timing-driven			
Power-driven			
I/O Register Combining			
High Effort Layout			
Repair Minimum Delay Violations			
Use Multiple Passes Configure Block Creation]
Number of row-global resources 8			
Help	ĸ	Can	cel

Figure 62 · Layout Options Dialog Box - with Block Flow enabled

Timing-Driven

Timing-Driven Place and Route is selected by default. The primary goal of timing-driven Place and Route is to meet timing constraints, specified by you or generated automatically. Timing-driven Place and Route typically delivers better performance than Standard Place and Route.

If you do not select Timing-driven Place and Route, timing constraints are not considered by the software, although a delay report based on delay constraints entered in SmartTime can still be generated for the design.

Power-Driven

Enable this option to run Power-Driven layout. The primary goal of power-driven layout is to reduce dynamic power while still maintaining timing constraints.

I/O Register Combining

Enable this option to combine any register directly connected to an I/O when it has a timing Constraint. Refer to the Rules for SmartFusion2 and IGLOO2 Devices in the topic I/O Register Combining.



Driver Replication

Enable this option to enable an algorithm to replicate critical net drivers to reduce timing violations. The algorithm prints the list of registers along with the duplicate names. Each set of names should be used in place of the original register in any specified timing constraint.

High Effort Layout

Enable this option to improve the likelihood of achieving layout success. The layout runtime will increase if you select this option. Timing performance may suffer as well. Users are urged to consider <u>other methods for</u> <u>achieving layout success</u> before utilizing this option.

Repair Minimum Delay Violations

This option is enabled by default for SmartFusion2, IGLOO2, RTG4 devices.

Enable this option to instruct the Router engine to repair Minimum Delay violations for Timing-Driven Place and Route mode (Timing-Driven Place and Route option enabled). The Repair Minimum Delay Violations option, when enabled, performs an additional route that attempts to repair paths that have minimum delay and hold time violations. This is done by increasing the length of routing paths and inserting routing buffers to add delay to the top 100 violating paths.

When this option is enabled, Libero adjusts the programmable delays through I/Os to meet hold time requirements from input to registers. For register-to-register paths, Libero adds buffers.

Libero iteratively analyzes paths with negative minimum delay slacks (hold time violations) and chooses suitable connections and locations to insert buffers. Not all paths can be repaired using this technique, but many common cases will benefit.

Even when this option is enabled, Libero will not repair a connection or path which:

- Is a hardwired, preserved, or global net
- Has a sink pin which is a clock pin
- Is violating a maximum delay constraint (that is, the maximum delay slack for the pin is negative)
- May cause the maximum delay requirement for the sink pin to be violated (setup violations)
- Terminates at a register that is clocked by a Global Buffer driven by an MSIO or MSIOD (RTG4 only). RTG4 I/O delay taps cannot be used to fix hold violations for Global Buffers driven by an MSIO or MSIOD.

Typically, this option is enabled in conjunction with the Incremental Layout option when a design's maximum delay requirements have been satisfied.

Every effort is made to avoid creating max-delay timing violations on worst case paths.

Min Delay Repair produces a report in the implementation directory which lists all of the paths that were considered.

If your design continues to have internal hold time violations, you may wish to rerun repair Minimum Delay Violations (in conjunction with Incremental Layout). This will analyze additional paths if you originally had more than 100 violating paths.

Incremental Layout

Choose Incremental Layout to use previous placement data as the initial placement for the next run. If a high number of nets fail, relax constraints, remove tight placement constraints, deactivate timing-driven mode, or select a bigger device and rerun Place and Route.

You can preserve portions of your design by employing Compile Points, which are RTL partitions of the design that you define before synthesis. The synthesis tool treats each Compile Point as a block which enables you to preserve its structure and timing characteristics. By executing Layout in Incremental Mode, locations of previously-placed cells and the routing of previously-routed nets is preserved. Compile Points make it easy for you to mark portions of a design as black boxes, and let you divide the design effort between designers or teams. See the <u>Synopsys FPGA Synthesis Pro ME User Guide</u> for more information.



Use Multiple Pass

Check Multiple Pass to run multiple pass of Place and Route to get the best Layout result. Click **Configure** to specify the criteria you want to use to determine the best layout result. For details see <u>Multiple Pass Layout</u> <u>Configuration</u> (*SmartFusion2, IGLOO2, RTG4*).

Block Creation – Number of row-global resources

This option is available only when the Block Creation option is turned on (**Project > Project Settings > Design Flow > Enable Block Creation**). The value entered here restricts the number of row-global resources available in every half-row of the device. During Place and Route of the block, the tool will not exceed this capacity on any half-row. The default value is the maximum number of row-globals. If you enter a value lower than the maximum capacity (the default), the layout of the block will be able to integrate with the rest of the design if they consume the remaining row-global capacity.

See Also

<u>Multiple Pass Layout Configuration</u> (*SmartFusion2, IGLOO2, RTG4*). <u>extended run lib</u>

Multiple Pass Layout Configuration (SmartFusion2, IGLOO2, RTG4)

Multiple Pass Layout attempts to improve layout quality by selecting from a greater number of Layout results. This is done by running individual place and route multiple times with varying placement seeds and measuring the best results with specified criteria.

- Before running Multiple Pass Layout, save your design.
- Multiple Pass Layout is supported by all families.
- Multiple Pass Layout saves your design file with the pass that has the best layout results. If you want to preserve your existing design state, you should save your design file with a different name before proceeding. To do this, from the File menu, choose **Save As**.
- Four types of reports (timing, maximum delay timing violations, minimum delay timing violations, and power) for each pass are written to the working directory to assist you in later analysis:
 - <root_module_name>_timing_r<runNum>_s<seedIndex>.rpt
 - <root_module_name>_timing_violations_r<runNum>_s<seedIndex>.rpt
 - <root module name> timing violations min r<runNum> s<seedIndex>.rpt
 - <root_module_name>_power_r<runNum>_s<seedIndex>.rpt
 - <root_module_name>_iteration_summary.rpt provides additional details about the saved files.

To configure your multiple pass options:

- 1. When running Layout, select Use Multiple Passes in the Layout Options dialog box.
- 2. Click Configure. The Multi-Pass Configuration dialog box appears.



Multi-Pass Configuration	9	x
Number of passes: 5		
	9.9	0.000
1		25
Start at seed index (1 - 101): 11 🚔		
Measurement:		
Slowest clock		
Specific dock CLK_ibuf/U0/U_IOINFF:Y		•
Timing violations		
🔘 Maximum delay 🔘 Minimum delay		
Select by: Total Negative Slack		-
✓ Stop on first pass without violations		
Total power		
Help ОК	Can	icel

Figure 63 · Multi-Pass Configuration Dialog Box

3. Set the options and click **OK**.

Number of passes: Set the number of passes (iterations) using the slider. 1 is the minimum and 25 is the maximum. The default is 5.

Start at seed index: Set the specific index into the array of random seeds which is to be the starting point for the passes. If not specified, the default behavior is to continue from the last seed index that was used.

Measurement: Select the measurement criteria you want to compare layout results against.

- **Slowest clock**: Select to use the slowest clock frequency in the design in a given pass as the performance reference for the layout pass.
- Specific clock: Select to use a specific clock frequency as the performance reference for all layout passes.

Timing violations: This is the default. Select Timing Violations to use the pass that best meets the slack or timing-violations constraints.

Note: You must enter your own timing constraints through SmartTime or SDC.

- **Maximum delay**: Select to examine timing violations (slacks) obtained from maximum delay analysis. This is the default.
- Minimum delay: Select to examine timing violations (slacks) obtained from minimum delay analysis.
- Select by: Worst Slack or Total Negative Slack to specify the slack criteria.
 - When Worst Slack (default) is selected, the largest amount of negative slack (or least amount of
 positive slack if all constraints are met) for each pass is identified, and the largest value of all
 passes determines the best pass.



- When Total Negative Slack is selected, the sum of negative slacks from the first 100 paths in the Timing Violations report for each pass is identified, and the largest value of all the passes determines the best pass. If no negative slacks exist for a pass, the worst slack is used to evaluate that pass.
- Stop on first pass without violations: Select to stop performing remaining passes if all timing
 constraints have been met (when there are no negative slacks reported in the timing violations
 report).
- Total power: Select to determine the best pass to be the one that has the lowest total power (static + dynamic) of all layout passes.

Iteration Summary Report

The file <root_module>_iteration_summary.rpt records a summary of how the multiple pass run was invoked either through the GUI or extended_run_lib Tcl script, with arguments for repeating each run. Each new run appears with its own header in the Iteration Summary Report with fields RUN_NUMBER and INVOKED AS, followed by a table containing Seed Index, corresponding Seed value, Comparison data, Report Analyzed, and Saved Design information.

# RUN NUMBER	1 DATE: W:/pc/11	15:21:35 06-Mar- 5_7_4_oj/Designez	2015 :/bin/libero.exe e	xtended_run_lib.tol -skip_open_project -root (C	:\Actelprj\sfusion2\designer\shift_reg32) -n 5 -st
Seed Index	Seed	Maximum Delay	Worst Slack	Report Analyzed	Saved Design
0	0	3/2	Compare failed	shift reg32 timing violations max rl sl.rpt	shift reg32 r1 s1
1	86662958	3/2	Layout failed	shift reg32 timing violations max r1 s2.rpt	shift reg32 r1 s2
2	8988747	X/A	Layout failed	shift reg32 timing violations max rl s3.rpt	shift reg32 r1 s3
3	51071856	3/A	Layout failed	shift reg32 timing violations max rl s4.rpt	shift reg32 r1 s4
4	78381505	S/A	Layout failed	shift reg32 timing violations max r1 s5.rpt	shift reg32 r1 s5
A STATE OF THE STA			Norst Slack	Report Analyzed	Saved Design
Seed Index	Seed	Maximum Delay	WULDE CARVA		
Seed Index	Seed	Maximum Delay	-3 100		
Seed Index	Seed	S/A	-3.389	shift_reg32_timing_violations_max_r2_s6.rpt	shift_reg32_r2_s6
Seed Index	Seed 82287664 23702026	N/A N/A N/A	-3.389 -3.174	shift_reg32_timing_violations_max_r2_s6_rpt shift_reg32_timing_violations_max_r2_s6_rpt	shift_reg32_r2_s6 shift_reg32_r2_s7
Seed Index 5 6 7	Seed 82287664 23702026 51370950 93189207	3/A 3/A 3/A 3/A	-3.389 -3.174 -3.413 -3.468	shift_reg32_timing_violations_max_r2_s6.rpt shift_reg32_timing_violations_max_r2_s7.rpt shift_reg32_timing_violations_max_r2_s5.rpt	#hift_reg32_r2_s6 shift_reg32_r2_s7 shift_reg32_r2_s7 shift_reg32_r2_s8
Seed Index 5 6 7 8	Seed 62287664 23702026 51370950 93189207	3/A 3/A 3/A 3/A 3/A 3/A	-3.389 -3.174 -5.413 -3.168 -4.954	<pre>biifregl2_timing_violations_max_r2_s6.rpt biifregl2_timing_violations_max_r2_s6.rpt biifregl2_timing_violations_max_r2_s8.rpt biifregl2_timing_violations_max_r2_s8.rpt biifregl2_timing_violations_max_r2_s8.rpt biffregl2_timing_violations_max_r2_s8.rpt biffregl2_timing_violations_max_r2_s8.rpt biffregl2_timing_violations_max_r2_s8.rpt biffregl2_timing_violations_max_r2_s8.rpt biffregl2_timing_violations_max_r2_s8.rpt biffregl2_timing_violations_max_r2_s8.rpt biffregl2_timing_violations_max_r2_s8.rpt biffregl2_timing_violations_max_r2_s8.rpt biffregl2_timing_violations_max_r2_s8.rpt biffregl3_timing_violations_max_r2_s8.rpt biffregl3_timing_violations_max_r2_s8.rpt biffregl3_timing_violations_max_r2_s8.rpt biffregl3_timing_violations_max_r2_s8.rpt biffregl3_timing_violations_max_r2_s8.rpt biffregl3_timing_violations_max_r2_s8.rpt biffregl3_timing_violations_max_r3_s8.rpt biffregl3_timin</pre>	hif_reg3_r2_s6 hif_reg3_r2_s7 hif_reg32_r2_s8 hif_reg32_r2_s8 hif_reg32_r2_s9
Seed Index 5 6 7 8 9	Seed 82287664 23702026 51370950 93189207 17538078	N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A	-3.389 -3.174 -3.413 -3.168 -3.354	<pre>shift_reg32_timing_violations_max_r2_s6.rpt shift_reg32_timing_violations_max_r2_s7.rpt shift_reg32_timing_violations_max_r2_s8.rpt shift_reg32_timing_violations_max_r2_s8.rpt shift_reg32_timing_violations_max_r2_s10.rpt</pre>	#hift_reg32_r2_s6 shift_reg32_r2_s7 shift_reg32_r2_s6 shift_reg32_r2_s8 shift_reg32_r2_s9

Figure 64 · Iteration Summary Report

See Also

Place and Route - SmartFusion2, IGLOO2, RTG4 extended run lib

Resource Usage (SmartFusion2, IGLOO2, RTG4)

After layout, you can check the resource usage of your design.

From the Design menu, choose **Reports** (**Design > Reports**). Click <design_name>_layout_log.log to open the log file.

The log file contains a Resource Usage report, which lists the type and percentage of resource used for each resource type relative to the total resources available for the chip.

Туре	Used	Total	Percentage
4LUT	400	86184	0.46
DFF	300	86184	0.34
I/O Register	0	795	0.00
Logic Element	473	86184	0.55



4LUTs are 4-input Look-up Tables that can implement any combinational logic functions with up to four inputs. The Logic Element is a logic unit in the fabric. It may contain a 4LUT, a DFF, or both. The number of Logic Elements in the report includes all Logic Elements, regardless of whether they contain 4LUT only, DFF only, or both.

Overlapping of Resource Reporting

The number of 4LUTs in the report are the total number used for your design, regardless of whether or not they are combined with the DFFs. Similarly, the number of DFFs in the report are the total number used for your design, regardless of whether or not they are combined with 4LUT's.

In the report above, there is a total of 473 Logic Elements (LEs) used for the design.

300 of the 473 LEs have DFFs inside, which means 173 (473-300) of them have no DFFs in them. These 173 LEs are using only the 4LUTs portion of the LE.

400 of the 473 LEs have 4LUTs inside, which means 73 (473-400) of them have no 4LUTS in them. These 73 LEs are using only the DFF portion of the LE.

LEs using DFF Only = 473-400 =	73
LEs using 4LUTS only = 473-300=	173
=	246 (Total of LEs using 4LUTS ONLY or DFF ONLY)
Report's Overlapped resource =	227 (LEs using both 4LUTS and DFF)
Total number of LEs used =	473



The area where the two circles overlap represents the overlapped resources in the Resource Usage report.

Global Net Report

The Global Net Report displays all the nets that use the global routing resources of the device. This report is generated after the Place and Route step and available in XML format in the Reports tab (Libero SoC > Design > Reports > <design_name>_glb_net_report.xml).

The global routing resources in Microsemi FPGA devices offer a low-skew network for effective distribution of high fanout nets including clock signals. Global routing resources include the following:



- Fabric CCC
- Global Buffers (GB)
- Row Global Buffers (RGB)
- Global Asynchronous Reset Buffer (GRESET) RTG4 only
- Row Global Asynchronous Reset Buffers (RGRESET) RTG4 only

Reports 🗗 🗙	StartPage 🗗 🗙	prep1.vhd é	9 ×									Ŧ
 Project Summary rpt2.log prep1.pinrpt.name.rpt prep1_		Microsemi Ci Date: Fri Apr Global N	orporation - Mic 14 15:00:23 20 lets Infor i	rosemi Libero Software R 117 mation	Glo elease v11.8 (Vere	bal Net F	Report					н
prep1_c	ompile.xml	From	GB Location	Net Name	Fanout							
prepl_c prepl_c	ompile_hier_resour ombinational loop	1 GRESET	(708, 155)	rst_ibuf	16							
1 pret	p1_compile_log.log	2 GBL[19]	(727, 154)	clk_ibuf_RNIVTI2/U0_Y	16							
 Place and Route prep1_glb_net_report.xml prep1_layout_log.log 		I/O to G	B Connec	ctions			From	From	То	Net	Net Type	7
		t elle F	27 MSIO	BERRICHTONCO SEA		A 1 DY DATA D	ALL BURNING LIDDAD V HM	(1134 1)	CEI (10)	elle ibed	HADOWNDER	
						m						1

Figure 65 · Global Net Report

The Global Net Report has following sections:

Global Nets Information

The GB Location refers to the location of the Global routing resource/instance name of the macro on the chip. The location is indicated by X-Y co-ordinates of the global resource macro.

Global Nets Information

	From	GB Location	Net Name	Fanout
1	GB[4]	(726, 156)	reset_ctrl_i/R_core_reset_out_RNIFUQ6/U0_YWn	35701
2	GB[8]	(734, 156)	pll_i/GL0_INST/U0_YWn	35488
3	GB[15]	(741, 156)	pll_i/GL3_INST/U0_YWn	2006
4	GB[13]	(739, 156)	reset_ctrl_i/R_global_reset_RNI0T36/U0_YWn	1848
5	GB[14]	(740, 156)	pll_i/GL2_INST/U0_YWn_GEast	1104
6	GB[2]	(724, 156)	serdes_i/SERDES_IF_0/EPCS_1_RX_CLK_keep_RNIEDL3/U0_YWn	5 <mark>1</mark> 4
7	GB[0]	(722, 156)	serdes_i/SERDES_IF_0/EPCS_0_RX_CLK_keep_RNID1J5/U0_YWn	513
8	GB[3]	(725, 156)	serdes_i/SERDES_IF_0/EPCS_2_RX_CLK_keep_RNIFPN1/U0_YWn	511
9	GB[7]	(729, 156)	serdes_i/pcs_gl_0_pcs_0/rx_rst_n_i_0_RNI9T3C/U0_YWn	312
10	GB[11]	(737, 156)	serdes_i/pcs_gl_1_pcs_0/rx_rst_n_i_0_RNIAGFA/U0_YWn	310
11	GB[1]	(723, 156)	serdes_i/SERDES_IF_0/EPCS_0_TX_CLK_keep_RNIFLD8/U0_YWn	178
12	GB[5]	(727, 156)	serdes_i/SERDES_IF_0/EPCS_2_TX_CLK_keep_RNIHDI4/U0_YWn	178
13	GB[6]	(728, 156)	serdes_i/SERDES_IF_0/EPCS_1_TX_CLK_keep_RNIG1G6/U0_YWn	178
14	GB[10]	(736, 156)	SPI_SCLK_ibuf_RNIT4T6/U0_YWn_GEast	149
15	GB[9]	(735, 156)	SRAM_CQ_ibuf_RNIB7IC/U0_YWn_GEast	111
16	GB[12]	(738, 156)	SRAM_CQn_ibuf_RNIPMM6/U0_YWn_GEast	18

Figure 66 · Global Net Information



I/O to GB Connections

This section lists all the I/Os connected to the Global Resource/instance name of the macro.

I/O to GB Connections

	Port Name	Pin Number	I/O Function	From	From Location	То	Net Name	Net Type	Fanout
1	SPI_SOLK	D33	MSIO176NB18	SPI_SCLK_ibuf/U0/U_IOIN:Y	(6, 307)	GB[10]	SPI_SCLK_ibuf	ROUTED	1
2	SRAM_CQ	G16	DDRI0120NB2/MDDR_DQ_ECC0/CCC_NE1_CLKI3	SRAM_CQ_ibut/U0/U_IOIN:Y	North IO #7 (1005, 313)	GB[9]	SRAM_CQ_ibuf	ROUTED	1
3	SRAM_CQn	F16	DDRI0120PB2/MDDR_DQ_ECC1/GB12/CCC_NE1_CLKi2	SRAM_CQn_ibuf/U0/U_IOPAD:Y	North IO #6 (1002, 313)	GB[12]	SRAM_CQn_ibuf	HARDWIRED	1

Figure 67 · I/O to GB Connections

Net type is either routed or hardwired. Hardwired net types are dedicated wiring resources and have lower insertion delays. Routed net types are implemented using fabric routing resources and the insertion delay (generally higher than hardwired nets), varies from iteration to iteration.

The I/O function name column describes all the connection details about the I/O such as the bank name, hardwired GB or hardwired CCC connections, if any, and/or dedicated SERDES/DDR connections, if any. For hardwired connections, the function name (DDRIO120PB2/MDDR_DQ_ECC1/GB12/CCC_NE1_CLKI2) contains the GB index (GB12 in this case) that matches the GB index in the **To** column (GBL[12] in this case) whereas for routed connections the Function name does not contain the proper GB index.

For details about RTG4 devices I/O Function names, see Col B of <u>CG1657 Package Pin Assignment Table</u>, <u>CQ352 Package Pin Assignment Table</u>.

Fabric to GB Connections

This section lists all the nets originating from the fabric to the Global Resources/Instance name of the macro. The **From** Location refers to the X-Y co-ordinates of the driver pin of the net. Generally speaking, the nets are routed nets (not hardwired).

Fabric to GB Connections

	From	From Location	То	Net Name	Net Type	Fanout
1	reset_ctrl_i/R_core_reset_out:Q	(720, 160)	GB[4]	reset_ctrl_i/core_reset_out	ROUTED	1
2	reset_ctrl_i/R_global_reset.Q	(722, 160)	GB[13]	reset_ctrl_i/global_reset_0	ROUTED	3
3	serdes_i/SERDES_IF_0/SERDESIF_INST/INST_SERDESIF_IP:EPCS_RXCLK_1	(72, 2)	GB[2]	serdes_i/SERDES_IF_0/EPCS_1_RX_CLK	ROUTED	1
4	serdes_I/SERDES_IF_0/SERDESIF_INST/INST_SERDESIF_IP:EPCS_RXCLK_0	(72, 2)	GB[0]	serdes_i/SERDES_IF_0/EPCS_0_RX_CLK	ROUTED	1
5	serdes_i/SERDES_IF_0/SERDESIF_INST/INST_SERDESIF_IP:EPCS_RXCLK[0]	(72, 2)	GB[3]	serdes_i/SERDES_IF_0/EPCS_2_RX_CLK	ROUTED	1
6	serdes_i/pcs_gl_0_pcs_0/rx_rst_n_i_0:Y	(269, 54)	GB[7]	serdes_i/pcs_gl.0.pcs_0/rx_rst_n_i_0_1	ROUTED	1
7	serdes_i/pcs_gl_1_pcs_0/rx_rst_n_i_0:Y	(266, 96)	GB[11]	serdes_i/pcs_gl.1.pcs_0/rx_rst_n_i_0	ROUTED	1
8	serdes_i/SERDES_IF_0/SERDESIF_INST/INST_SERDESIF_IP:EPCS_TXCLK_0	(72, 2)	GB[1]	serdes_i/SERDES_IF_0/EPCS_0_TX_CLK	ROUTED	1
9	serdes_i/SERDES_IF_0/SERDESIF_INST/INST_SERDESIF_IP:EPCS_TXCLK[0]	(72, 2)	GB[5]	serdes_i/SERDES_IF_0/EPCS_2_TX_CLK	ROUTED	1
10	serdes_i/SERDES_IF_0/SERDESIF_INST/INST_SERDESIF_IP:EPCS_TXCLK_1	(72, 2)	GB[6]	serdes_i/SERDES_IF_0/EPCS_1_TX_CLK	ROUTED	1

Figure 68 · Fabric to GB connections

CCC to GB Connections

This section lists the nets originating from the Clock Conditioning Circuitry (CCC) outputs (GLx) to the Global Resources/instance name of the macro. CCC clock outputs are usually hardwired (dedicated connection) to Global resources (GB) to minimize clock skew.

CCC to GB Connections

	From	From Location	То	Net Name	Net Type	Fanout
1	pll_i/CCC_INST/INST_CCC_IP:GL0	CCC-NE0 (1428, 302)	GB[8]	pll_i/GL0_net	HARDWIRED	1
2	pll_i/CCC_INST/INST_CCC_IP:GL3	CCC-NE0 (1428, 302)	GB[15]	pll_i/GL3_net	HARDWIRED	1
3	pll_i/CCC_INST/INST_CCC_IP:GL2	CCC-NE0 (1428, 302)	GB[14]	pll_i/GL2_net	HARDWIRED	1

Figure 69 · CCC to GB Connections



CCC Input Connections

This section lists the nets from the I/O Pins to the CCC inputs.

CCC Input Connections

 Port Name
 Pin Number
 I/O Function
 From
 From Location
 To (Pin Swapped for Back Annotation Only)
 CCC Location
 Net Name
 Net Type
 Fanout

 1
 FPGA_CLK_P
 V12
 MSI035PB5/CCC_NEQ_CLK0
 pli_u/CLK0_PAD_INST/U_OPAD_INUT_P
 East 10 #0 (H455, 112)
 pli_u/CCC_UPCLK0_PAD
 CCC-Net (1428, 302)
 fixed__ckk
 HARDWIRED
 1

Figure 70 · CCC Input Connections

Net type can be routed or hardwired. Hardwired net types are dedicated wiring resources and have lower insertion delays. Routed net types are implemented using fabric routing resources and the insertion delay (generally higher than that of hardwired nets), varies from iteration to iteration.

The **I/O function** column describes all the connection details about the I/O such as the bank name, hardwired GB or hardwired CCC connections, if any, and/or dedicated SERDES/DDR connections, if any. For hardwired connections, the **I/O function** name contains the CCC location (CCC_NE0 in this case) and the **To (Pin Swapped for Back Annotation Only)** column contains the actual input pin of the CCC in the backannotated netlist.

For details about RTG4 devices I/O Function names, see Col B of <u>CG1657 Package Pin Assignment Table</u>, <u>CQ352 Package Pin Assignment Table</u>.

Local Clock Nets to RGB Connections

This section lists the clock nets from the local clock nets to RGB (Row globals). RGBs are situated on the vertical stripes of the global network architecture inside the FPGA fabric. The global signals from the GBs are routed to the RGBs. Each RGB is independent and can be driven by fabric routing in addition to being driven by GBs. This facilitates the use of RGBs to drive regional clocks spanning a small fabric area, such as the the clock network for SERDES.

	From	From Location	Net Name	Fanout		RGB Location	Local Fanout
1	serdes_i/pcs_gl_2_pcs_0/rx_rst_n_i_0:Y	(216, 111)	serdes_i/pcs_gl.2.pcs_0/rx_rst_n_i_0_0	310	1	(364, 72)	15
					2	(364, 75)	44
					3	(364, 78)	37
					4	(364, 81)	19
					5	(364, 84)	28
					6	(364, 87)	20
					7	(364, 90)	25
					8	(364, 93)	25
					9	(364, 96)	36
					10	(364, 99)	19
					11	(364, 102)	14
					12	(364, 111)	17
					13	(364, 114)	11

Local Clock Nets to RGB Connections

Figure 71 · Local Clock Nets to RGB Connections

The location refers to the X-Y co-ordinates on the chip. The fanout column gives the total fanout of the net and the local fanout column gives the fanout at the local RGB only. The driver in the **From** column is routed to different RGBs each with different local fanout.

The **From** column refers to the X-Y co-ordinates of the driver of the net. The driver in the **From** column is routed to different RGBs each with different local fanout. The **Fanout** column gives the total fanout of the net and the **Local Fanout** column gives the fanout at the local RGB only.

Local Reset Nets to RGRESET Connections (RTG4 only)

This section is available on RTG4 devices only. It lists the nets from local reset signals of components such as FIFO to RGRESET (Row Global Reset).



The location refers to the X-Y co-ordinates of the driver of the net. The **Fanout** column gives the total fanout of the net and the **Local Fanout** column gives the fanout local to RGRESET. The driver in the **From** column is routed to different RGRESETs each with different local fanout.

Local Reset Nets to RGRESET Connections

	From	From Location	Net Name	Fanout	RGRESET Location	Local Fanout
1	I_ARRAY_CORE_ABC/I_DATABUS/I_DB_CONTROL/un1_resetfifol:Y	(1313, 201)	I_ARRAY_CORE_ABC/un1_resetfifol_i	10	1 (1166, 187)	5
					2 (1166, 190)	5
2	I_ARRAY_CORE_DEF/I_DATABUS/I_DB_CONTROL/un1_reset/ifol:Y	(1394, 228)	I_ARRAY_CORE_DEF/un1_resetfifd_i	10	1 (1166, 220)	5
					2 (1166, 223)	5
3	I_ARRAY_CORE_ABC/I_TGSLICE_CMP/I_C1_RESIDUE_FIFO/comb_reset:Y	(1176, 300)	I_ARRAY_CORE_ABC/I_TGSLICE_CMP/I_C1_RESIDUE_FIFO/comb_reset_Z	1	(1166, 124)	1
4	I_ARRAY_CORE_ABC/I_TGSLICED2/I_D2_RESIDUE_FIFO/comb_reset:Y	(1179, 291)	I_ARRAY_CORE_ABC/I_TGSUCED2/I_D2_RESIDUE_FIFO/comb_reset_Z	1	(1166, 181)	1
5	I_ARRAY_CORE_ABC/I_TGSLICED2/I_MATCH_FIFO/un1_resetoutl:Y	(1312, 201)	I_ARRAY_CORE_ABC/I_TGSLICED2/I_MATCH_FIF0/un1_resetoutl_i	1	(1166, 193)	1
6	I_ARRAY_CORE_ABC/I_TGSLICE/I_MATCH_FIFO/un1_resetoutl:Y	(1314, 201)	I_ARRAY_CORE_ABC/I_TGSLICE/I_MATCH_FIFO/un1_resetoutl_i	1	(1166, 196)	1
7	I_ARRAY_CORE_ABC/I_TGSLICE_CMP/I_MATCH_FIF0_CMP/un1_resetoutI:Y	(1309, 201)	I_ARRAY_CORE_ABC/I_TGSLICE_CMP/I_MATCH_FIFO_CMP/un1_resetoutl_i	1	(1166, 199)	1
8	LARRAY_CORE_ABC/LOUTPUT_FIFO_WR_CTL/un1_resetsyncl:Y	(1191, 240)	I_ARRAY_CORE_ABC/I_OUTPUT_FIFO_WR_CTL/un1_resetsyncl_i	1	(1166, 202)	1
9	I_ARRAY_CORE_DEF/I_TGSLICE_CMP/I_C1_RESIDUE_FIFO/comb_reset:Y	(1191, 288)	I_ARRAY_CORE_DEF/I_TGSLICE_CMIP/I_C1_RESIDUE_FIFO/comb_reset_Z	1	(1166, 211)	1
10	LARRAY_CORE_DEF/I_TGSUCE/I_MATCH_FIF0/un1_resetoutl:Y	(1178, 252)	I_ARRAY_CORE_DEF/I_TGSUCE/I_MATCH_FIFO/un1_resetoutl_i	1	(1166, 235)	1
11	I_ARRAY_CORE_DEF/I_TGSLICE_CMP/I_MATCH_FIF0_CMP/un1_resetoutl:Y	(1179, 252)	I_ARRAY_CORE_DEF/I_TGSUCE_OMP/I_MATCH_FIF0_CMP/un1_resetoutl_i	1	(1166, 247)	1
12	LARRAY_CORE_DEF/I_TGSUCED2/I_MATCH_FIFO/un1_resetoutt:Y	(1181, 252)	I_ARRAY_CORE_DEF/I_TGSLICED2/I_MATCH_FIFO/un1_resetoutl_i	1	(1166, 250)	1
13	LARRAY_CORE_DEF/I_OUTPUT_FIFO_WR_CTL/un1_resetsyncl:Y	(1081, 252)	I_ARRAY_CORE_DEF/I_OUTPUT_FIFO_WR_CTL/un1_resetsyncl_i	1	(1166, 253)	1
14	I_ARRAY_CORE_DEF/I_TGSUCED2/I_D2_RESIDUE_FIFO/comb_reset:Y	(1179, 255)	I_ARRAY_CORE_DEF/I_TGSUCED2/I_D2_RESIDUE_FIFO/comb_reset_Z	1	(1166, 265)	1

Figure 72 · Local Reset Nets to RGRESET Connections

Global Reset Nets to RGRESET Connections (RTG4 only)

This section is available on RTG4 devices only. It lists the nets from Global Resets to RGRESET (Row Global Resets).

	From	From Location	Net Name	Fanout		RGRESET Location	Local Fanout
1	GRESET	(708, 155)	I_ARRAY_CORE_ABC/I_TGSLICED2/I_D2_RESIDUE_FIFO/comb_reset_i_0_0	14	1	(1166, 178)	7
					2	(1166, 184)	7
2	GBR[3]	(735, 153)	I_ARRAY_CORE_DEF/I_TGSLICE_CMP/I_C1_RESIDUE_FIFO/comb_reset_i_0_i	14		(1166, 214)	14
3	GBR[7]	(739, 153)	I_ARRAY_CORE_DEF/I_TGSLICED2/I_D2_RESIDUE_FIFO/comb_reset_i_0_i	14	1	(1166, 268)	7
					2	(1166, 271)	7
4	GBR[11]	(743, 153)	I_ARRAY_CORE_ABC/I_TGSLICE_CMP/I_C1_RESIDUE_FIFO/comb_reset_i_0_i	14	1	(1166, 118)	7
					2	(1166, 127)	7

The **From** Location refers to the X-Y co-ordinates of the driver of the net. The **RGRESET Location** refers to the X-Y co-ordinates of the RGRESET instance. The **Fanout** column gives the total fanout of the net and the **Local Fanout** column gives the fanout local to RGRESET. The driver in the **From** column is hardwired to different RGRESETs each with different local fanout.

Global Clock Nets to RGB Connections

This section lists all nets from Globals (GBs) to Row Globals (RGBs).

The **From** location refers to the X-Y co-ordinates on the chip. The **Fanout** column gives the total fanout of the net and the **Local Fanout** column gives the fanout local to RGB. The driver in the **From** column is hardwired to different RGBs each with different local fanout.



Global Clock Nets to RGB Connect	ions
---	------

	From	From Location	Net Name	Fanout		RGB Location	Local Fanout
1	GBR[16]	(736, 154)	clk16_ibuf_RNI69L/U0_Y	5003	1	(1166, 114)	7
					2	(1166, 120)	53
					3	(1166, 123)	40
					4	(1166, 129)	39
					5	(1166, 132)	48
					6	(1166, 135)	50
					7	(1166, 138)	77
					8	(1166, 141)	100
					9	(1166, 144)	64
					10	(1166, 147)	53
					11	(1166, 150)	63
					12	(1166, 156)	39
					13	(1166, 159)	128
					14	(1166, 162)	146
					15	(1166, 165)	146
					16	(1166, 168)	130
					17	(1166, 171)	139
			9 7		18	(1166, 174)	146
					19	(1166, 177)	164
					20	(1166, 180)	20
					21	(1166, 183)	145
					22	(1166, 186)	127
					23	(1166, 189)	121
					24	(1166, 192)	127
					25	(1166, 195)	110
					26	(1166, 198)	94
					27	(1166, 201)	30

Warnings (RTG4 only)

This section is available in RTG4 devices only. It gives warnings about clock or reset nets which are not radiation protected and recommends ways to protect the nets from radiation. Some warning examples are:

- Clocks or resets nets that are routed are not radiation protected.
- Hardwired connections from DDRIO bank are not radiation protected.
- For radiation protection, Microsemi recommends the use of dedicated global clocks that comes with built-in radiation protection.

The following clocks or resets are driven by fabric-generated or local nets and are not radiation protected:

From	From Location	I/O Bank	То	Net Name	Fanou
1 clk16_ibuf/U0/U_IOIN:Y	(3, 151)	MSIOD	GBR[16]	clk16_ibuf_Z	1
2 clktbout_ibuf/U0/U_IOIN:Y	(6, 151)	MSIOD	GBR[14]	clktbout_ibuf_Z	1
3 clkdary_a_c_ibuf/U0/U_IOIN:Y	(1524, 145)	MSIOD	GBR[15]	clkdary_a_c_ibuf_Z	2

Figure 75 · Warning Example 1



- Local resets that are not driven by three separate logic cones are not radiation protected.
- For radiation protection, Microsemi recommends that each of the three inputs of every RGRESET be driven by three separate logic cones replicating the paths from the source registers. Please see the descriptions of RGRESET macro in the <u>RTG4 Macro Library Guide</u>.

The following local resets are not driven by three separate logic cones and are not radiation protected:

	From	From Location	То	Net Name	Fanout
1	LARRAY_CORE_ABC/I_DATABUS/I_DB_CONTROL/un1_resetfifol:Y	(1313, 201)	RGRESET	I_ARRAY_CORE_ABC/un1_resetfifol_i	10
2	I_ARRAY_CORE_DEF/I_DATABUS/I_DB_CONTROL/un1_resetfifol:Y	(1394, 228)	RGRESET	I_ARRAY_CORE_DEF/un1_resetffol_i	10
3	I_ARRAY_CORE_ABC/I_TGSLICE_CMP/I_C1_RESIDUE_FIFO/comb_reset:Y	(1176, 300)	RGRESET	I_ARRAY_CORE_ABC/I_TGSLICE_CMP/I_C1_RESIDUE_FIFO/comb_reset_Z	1
4	I_ARRAY_CORE_ABC/I_TGSLICED2/I_D2_RESIDUE_FIFO/comb_reset:Y	(1179, 291)	RGRESET	I_ARRAY_CORE_ABC/I_TGSLICED2/I_D2_RESIDUE_FIFO/comb_reset_Z	1
5	LARRAY_CORE_ABC/I_TGSLICED2/I_MATCH_FIFO/un1_resetoutl:Y	(1312, 201)	RGRESET	I_ARRAY_CORE_ABC/I_TGSLICED2/I_MATCH_FIFO/un1_resetoutl_i	1
6	LARRAY_CORE_ABC/I_TGSLICE/I_MATCH_FIFO/un1_resetoutl:Y	(1314, 201)	RGRESET	I_ARRAY_CORE_ABC/I_TGSLICE/I_MATCH_FIFO/un1_resetoutl_i	1
7	I_ARRAY_CORE_ABC/I_TGSLICE_CMP/I_MATCH_FIFO_CMP/un1_resetoutI:Y	(1309, 201)	RGRESET	I_ARRAY_CORE_ABC/I_TGSLICE_CMP/I_MATCH_FIFO_CMP/un1_resetoutI_i	1
8	I_ARRAY_CORE_ABC/I_OUTPUT_FIFO_WR_CTL/un1_resetsyncl:Y	(1191, 240)	RGRESET	I_ARRAY_CORE_ABC/I_OUTPUT_FIFO_WR_CTL/un1_resetsyncl_i	1
9	I_ARRAY_CORE_DEF/I_TGSLICE_CMP/I_C1_RESIDUE_FIFO/comb_reset:Y	(1191, 288)	RGRESET	I_ARRAY_CORE_DEF/I_TGSLICE_CMP/I_C1_RESIDUE_FIFO/comb_reset_Z	1
10	LARRAY_CORE_DEF/LTGSLICE/LMATCH_FIFO/un1_resetoutl:Y	(1178, 252)	RGRESET	I_ARRAY_CORE_DEF/I_TGSLICE/I_MATCH_FIFO/un1_resetoutl_i	1
11	LARRAY_CORE_DEF/LTGSLICE_CMP/LMATCH_FIFO_CMP/un1_resetoutl:Y	(1179, 252)	RGRESET	I_ARRAY_CORE_DEF/I_TGSLICE_CMP/I_MATCH_FIFO_CMP/un1_resetoutI_i	1
12	I_ARRAY_CORE_DEF/I_TGSLICED2/I_MATCH_FIFO/un1_resetoutl:Y	(1181, 252)	RGRESET	I_ARRAY_CORE_DEF/I_TGSLICED2/I_MATCH_FIFO/un1_resetoutl_i	1
13	I_ARRAY_CORE_DEF/I_OUTPUT_FIFO_WR_CTL/un1_resetsyncl:Y	(1081, 252)	RGRESET	I_ARRAY_CORE_DEF/I_OUTPUT_FIFO_WR_CTL/un1_resetsyncl_i	1
14	I_ARRAY_CORE_DEF/I_TGSLICED2/I_D2_RESIDUE_FIFO/comb_reset:Y	(1179, 255)	RGRESET	I_ARRAY_CORE_DEF/I_TGSLICED2/I_D2_RESIDUE_FIFO/comb_reset_Z	1

For radiation protection, Microsemi recommends that each of the three inputs of every RGRESET be driven by three separate logic cones replicating the paths from the source registers.

Figure 76 · Warning Example 2

See Also

SmartFusion2 and IGLOO2 Clocking Resources User Guide RTG4 FPGA Clocking Resources User Guide CG1657 Package Pin Assignment Table CQ352 Package Pin Assignment Table

Verify Post Layout Implementation

Generate Back Annotated Files - SmartFusion2, IGLOO2, and RTG4

Generates Back Annotated files for your design.

Back Annotated files include:

- *ba.sdf Standard Delay Format for back-annotation to the simulator.
- *ba.v/.vhd Post-layout flattened netlist used exclusively for back-annotated timing simulation. May contain low level macros not immediately recognizable to you; these were added by the software to improve your design performance.

To generate these files, in the Design Flow window click **Implement Design** and double-click **Generate Back Annotated Files**.

Right-click **Generate Back Annotated Files** and choose **Configure Options** to open the Generate Back Annotated Files Options dialog box.

Simulator Language Type - Set your simulator language type according to your design.

Timing: Export enhanced min delays for best case - Exports your enhanced min delays to include your bestcase timing results in your Back Annotated file.



Configuration					
Simulator lan	juage type	Verilog	O VHDL		
Timing	port enhanced min	delays for be	st case 🔲		

Figure 77 · Configuring Generate Back Annotated Files Dialog Box

Simulate - Opens ModelSim ME

The back-annotation functions are used to extract timing delays from your post layout data. These extracted delays are put into a file to be used by your CAE package's timing simulator. The default simulator for Libero SoC is ModelSim ME. You can change your default simulator in your <u>Tool Profile</u>.

If you wish to perform <u>pre-layout simulation</u>: In the Design Flow Window, under Verify Pre-Synthesized design, double-click Simulate.

To perform timing simulation:

- 1. If you have not done so, back-annotate your design and create your testbench.
- 2. Right-click **Simulate** (in Design Flow window, Implement Design > Verify Post-Synthesis Implementation > Simulate) and choose **Organize Input Files > Organize Simulation Files** from the right-click menu.

In the Organize Files for Source dialog box, all the stimulus files in the current project appear in the Source Files in the Project list box. Files already associated with the block appear in the Associated Source Files list box.

In most cases you will only have one testbench associated with your block. However, if you want simultaneous association of multiple testbench files for one simulation session, as in the case of PCI cores, add multiple files to the Associated Source Files list.

To add a testbench: Select the testbench you want to associate with the block in the Source Files in the Project list box and click **Add** to add it to the Associated Source Files list.

To remove a testbench: To remove or change the file(s) in the Associated Source Files list box, select the file(s) and click **Remove**.

To order testbenches: Use the up and down arrows to define the order you want the testbenches compiled. The top level-entity should be at the bottom of the list.

- 3. When you are satisfied with the Associated Simulation Files list, click OK.
- 4. To start ModelSim ME, right-click **Simulate** in the Design Hierarchy window and choose **Open Interactively**. ModelSim starts and compiles the appropriate source files. When the compilation completes, the simulator runs for 1 ^as and the Wave window opens to display the simulation results.
- 5. Scroll in the Wave window to verify the logic works as intended. Use the cursor and zoom buttons to zoom in and out and measure timing delays. If you did not create a testbench with WaveFormer Pro, you may get error messages with the vsim command if the instance names of your testbench do not follow the same conventions as WaveFormer Pro. Ignore the error message and type the correct vsim command.
- 6. When you are done, from the File menu, choose Quit.



Verify Timing

Verify Timing Configuration

Use this dialog box to configure the 'Verify Timing' tool to generate a timing constraint coverage report and detailed static timing analysis and violation reports based on different combinations of process speed, operating voltage, and temperature.

For the timing and timing violation reports you can select:

- Max Delay Static Timing Analysis report based on Slow process, Low Voltage, and High Temperature operating conditions.
- Min Delay Static Timing Analysis report based on Fast process, High Voltage, and Low Temperature operating conditions.
- Max Delay Static Timing Analysis report based on Fast process, High Voltage, and Low Temperature operating conditions.
- Min Delay Static Timing Analysis report based on Slow process, Low Voltage, and High Temperature operating conditions.

Constraints Coverage Report

• Generate constraints coverage report

The actual values for High/Low Voltage and High/Low Temperature shown in this configuration dialog box are based on the operating conditions: COM, IND, MIL, TGrade1/2, and/or custom settings as set in the Project's settings (Project > Project Settings > Analysis Operating Conditions). Refer to Project Settings > Analysis Operating Conditions for the actual High/Low Voltage and High/Low Temperature values.

The following figure shows an example of the Verify Timing Configuration dialog box.

g verify fiming configuration	f	
Timing Reports		
$\overline{oldsymbol{arsigma}}$ Max delay analysis using Slow process at 1.14V and	100C	
Min delay analysis using Fast process at 1.26V and -	40C	
Max delay analysis using Fast process at 1.26V and -	40C	
Min delay analysis using Slow process at 1.14V and	100C	
Max delay analysis Multi Corner Report		
Min delay analysis Multi Corner Report		
Timing Violations Reports		
▼ Max delay analysis using Slow process at 1.14V and	100C	
Min delay analysis using Fast process at 1.26V and -	40C	
Max delay analysis using Fast process at 1.26V and -	40C	
Min delay analysis using Slow process at 1.14V and	100C	
Max delay analysis Multi Corner Report		
Min delay analysis Multi Corner Report		
Constraints Coverage Reports		
Generate constraints coverage report		
		a 19.

Figure 78 · Verify Timing Configuration Dialog Box



Types of Timing Reports

From the **Design Flow window > Verify Timing**, you can generate the following types of reports:

Timing reports – These reports display timing information organized by clock domain. Four types of timing reports are available. You can configure which reports to generate using the 'Verify Timing' configuration dialog box (**Design Flow > Verify Timing > Configure Options**). The following reports can be generated:

 Max Delay Static Timing Analysis report based on Slow process, Low Voltage and High Temperature operating conditions.

<root>_max_timing_slow_<lv>_<ht>.xml (generated by default)

 Min Delay Static Timing Analysis report based on Fast process, High Voltage and Low Temperature operating conditions.

<root>_max_timing_fast_<hv>_<lt>.xml

Max Delay Static Timing Analysis report based on Fast process, High Voltage and Low Temperature operating conditions.

<root>_min_timing_fast_<hv>_<lt>.xml (generated by default)

Min Delay Static Timing Analysis report based on Slow process, Low Voltage and High Temperature operating conditions.

<root>_min_timing_slow_<lv>_<ht>.xml

Timing violations reports – These reports display timing information organized by clock domain. Four types of timing violations reports are available. You can configure which reports to generate using the 'Verify Timing' configuration dialog (**Design Flow > Verify Timing > Configure Options**). The following reports can be generated:

 Max Delay Static Timing Analysis report based on Slow process, Low Voltage and High Temperature operating conditions.

<root>_max_timing_slow_violations_<lv>_<ht>.xml (generated by default)

Min Delay Static Timing Analysis report based on Fast process, High Voltage and Low Temperature operating conditions.

<root>_max_timing_violations_fast_<hv>_<lt>.xml

 Max Delay Static Timing Analysis report based on Fast process, High Voltage and Low Temperature operating conditions.

<root>_min_timing_fast_ violations_<hv>_<lt>.xml (generated by default)

 Min Delay Static Timing Analysis report based on Slow process, Low Voltage and High Temperature operating conditions.

<root>_min_timing_slow_violations_<lv>_<ht>.xml

Constraints coverage report – This report displays the overall coverage of the timing constraints set on the current design.

<root>_timing_constraints_coverage.xml (generated by default)

Combinational loop report – This report displays combinational loops found during initialization.

<root>_timing_combinational_loops.xml (always generated)

Note: The actual values for High/Low Voltage and High/Low Temperature shown in this configuration dialog boxare based on the operating conditions: COM, IND, MIL, TGrade1/2, and/or custom settings as set in the Project's settings (**Project > Project Settings > Analysis Operating Conditions**). Refer to **Project Settings > Analysis Operating Conditions**). Refer to **Project Settings > Analysis Operating Conditions** for the actual High/Low Voltage and High/Low Temperature values.



- 🔺 🛕 Verify Timing
 - M3_MDDR_top_max_timing_slow_1.14V_100C.xml
 - X M3_MDDR_top_min_timing_fast_1.26V_-40C.xml
 - M3_MDDR_top_max_timing_fast_1.26V_-40C.xml
 - ? M3_MDDR_top_min_timing_slow_1.14V_100C.xml
 - M3_MDDR_top_max_timing_violations_slow_1.14V_100C.xml
 - X M3_MDDR_top_min_timing_violations_fast_1.26V_-40C.xml
 - M3_MDDR_top_max_timing_violations_fast_1.26V_-40C.xml
 - M3_MDDR_top_min_timing_violations_slow_1.14V_100C.xml

M3_MDDR_top_timing_constraints_coverage.xml

M3_MDDR_top_timing_combinational_loops.xml

Report Listing Icon Legend	
lcon	Definition
-	Timing requirement met for this report
×	Timing requirement not met (violations) for this report
?	Timing report available for generation but has not been selected/configured for generation

Figure 79 · Reports Example

SmartTime

SmartTime is the Libero SoC gate-level static timing analysis tool. With SmartTime, you can perform complete timing analysis of your design to ensure that you meet all timing constraints and that your design operates at the desired speed with the right amount of margin across all operating conditions.

Note: See the Timing Constraints Editor User Guide for help with creating and editing timing constraints.

Static Timing Analysis (STA)

Static timing analysis (STA) offers an efficient technique for identifying timing violations in your design and ensuring that it meets all your timing requirements. You can communicate timing requirements and timing exceptions to the system by setting timing constraints. A static timing analysis tool will then check and report setup and hold violations as well as violations on specific path requirements.

STA is particularly well suited for traditional synchronous designs. The main advantage of STA is that unlike dynamic simulation, it does not require input vectors. It covers all possible paths in the design and does all the above with relatively low run-time requirements.

The major disadvantage of STA is that the STA tools do not automatically detect false paths in their algorithms as it reports all possible paths, including false paths, in the design. False paths are timing paths in the design that do not propagate a signal. To get a true and useful timing analysis, you need to identify those false paths, if any, as false path constraints to the STA tool and exclude them from timing considerations.

Timing Constraints

SmartTime supports a range of timing constraints to provide useful analysis and efficient timing-driven layout.

Timing Analysis

SmartTime provides a selection of analysis types that enable you to:

- Find the minimum clock period/highest frequency that does not result in a timing violations
- Identify paths with timing violations
- Analyze delays of paths that have no timing constraints
- Perform inter-clock domain timing verification
- · Perform maximum and minimum delay analysis for setup and hold checks


To improve the accuracy of the results, SmartTime evaluates clock skew during timing analysis by individually computing clock insertion delays for each register.

SmartTime checks the timing requirements for violations while evaluating timing exceptions (such as multicycle or false paths).

SmartTime and Place and Route

Timing constraints impact analysis and place and route the same way. As a result, adding and editing your timing constraints in SmartTime is the best way to achieve optimum performance.

SmartTime and Timing Reports

From SmartTime > Tools > Reports, the following report files can be generated:

- Timing Report (for both Max and Min Delay Analysis)
- Timing Violations Report (for both Max and Min Delay Analysis)
- Bottleneck Report
- Constraints Coverage Report
- Combinational Loop Report

SmartTime and Cross-Probing into Chip Planner

From SmartTime, you can select a design object and cross-probe the same design object in Chip Planner. Design objects that can be cross-probed from SmartTime to Chip Planner include:

- Ports
- Macros
- Timing Paths

SmartTime and Cross-Probing into Constraint Editor

From SmartTime, you can cross-probe into the Constraint Editor. Select a Timing Path in SmartTime's Analysis View and add a Timing Exception Constraint (False Path, Multicycle Path, Max Delay, Min Delay). The Constraint Editor reflects the newly added timing exception constraint.

Refer to the SmartTime Static Timing Analyzer User Guide for details.

Verify Power

Right-click on the Verify Power command in the Design Flow window to see the following menu of options.



Design Flow			₽×
Top Module(root): top	÷	0	Ý
Active Synthesis Implementation: synthesis			
Tool			
Create Design			
E Constraints			
🖌 🖻 🕨 Implement Design			
🖓 Open Netlist Viewer			
V Synthesize			
Verify Post-Synthesized Design			
V Place and Route			
Verify Post Layout Implementation			
V Generate Back Annotated Files			
Simulate			
Verify Timing			
Open SmartTime			
···· 🙀 Verify Power			
IO Analyzer			
Program and Debug Design			
Generate FPGA Array Data			
Update uPROM Memory Content			
E Configure Hardware			
Configure Programming Options			
Program Design			
E Debug Design			
Handoff Design for Production			
Handoff Design for Debugging			

Figure 80 · Verify Power right-click menu

Verify Power sub-commands

Run - Runs the default power analysis and produces a power report. This is also the behavior of a double-click to **Verify Power**.

Clean and Run All - Identical to the sequence of commands "Clean" (see below) and "Run"

Open interactively - Brings up the SmartPower for Libero SoC tool (see below)

Clean - Clears the history of any previous default power analysis, including deletion of any reports. The flow task completion icon will also be cleared.

Configure Options - Selects 2.5V or 3.3V as the nominal voltage of VPP on the board, for generation of the power report.

Configure Options ... - This sub-command is only available if there are options to configure, in which case a dialog box will pop-up presenting the user with technology-specific choices.

View Report - This sub-command is only available and visible if a report is available. When View Report is invoked, the Report tab will be added to the Libero SoC GUI window, and the Power Report will be selected and made visible.



SmartPower

SmartPower is the Microsemi SoC state-of-the-art power analysis tool. SmartPower enables you to globally and in-depth visualize power consumption and potential power consumption problems within your design, so you can make adjustments – when possible – to reduce power.

SmartPower provides a detailed and accurate way to analyze designs for Microsemi SoC FPGAs: from top-level summaries to deep down specific functions within the design, such as gates, nets, IOs, memories, clock domains, blocks, and power supply rails.

You can analyze the hierarchy of block instances and specific instances within a hierarchy, and each can be broken down in different ways to show the respective power consumption of the component pieces.

SmartPower also analyses power by functional modes, such as Active, Flash*Freeze, Shutdown, Sleep, or Static, depending on the specific FPGA family used. You can also create custom modes that may have been created in the design. Custom modes can also be used for testing "what if" potential operating modes.

SmartPower has a very unique feature that enables you to create test scenario profiles. A profile enables you to create sets of operational modes, so you can understand the average power consumed by this combination of functional modes. An example may be a combination of Active, Sleep, and Flash*Freeze modes – as would be used over time in an actual application.

SmartPower generates detailed hierarchical reports of the power consumption of a design for easy evaluation. This enables you to locate the power consumption source and take appropriate action to reduce the power if possible.

SmartPower supports use of files in the Value-Change Dump (VCD) format, as specified in the IEEE 1364 standard, generated by the simulation runs. Support for this format lets you generate switching activity information from Model*Sim* or other simulators, and then utilize the switching activity-over-time results to evaluate average and peak power consumption for your design.

See SmartPower User Guide

IO Advisor (SmartFusion2, IGLOO2, and RTG4)

The IO Advisor enables you to balance the timing and power consumption of the IOs in your design. For output IOs, it offers suggestions on Output Drive and Slew values that meet (or get as close as possible to) the timing requirements and generates the lowest power consumption. For Input IOs, it offers suggestions on On-Die Termination (ODT) Impedance values (when the ODT Static is ON) that meet (or get as close as possible to) the timing requirements and generates the lowest power consumption.

Timing data information is obtained from the Primary analysis scenario in SmartTime. Power data is obtained from the Active Mode in SmartPower.

To open the IO Advisor from the Design Flow window, right-click Manage Constraints, select Open Manage Constraints View, select the I/O Attributes tab, select Edit with I/O Advisor (**Design Flow window > Manage Constraints > Open Manage Constraints View > I/O Attributes > Edit > Edit with I/O Advisor**).



n Flow	Ð	× Rep	orts 🗗 🗙 🤇 St	artPage 🗗 🗙 🖸 C	onstraint Manager 🗗 🗙	
8	🖸 🜔 📄 🗭	F [/0	Attributes / Timing	Floor Planner	Netlist Attributes	1). (A. 1966). (A. 1967).
Tool		· [New 🔻 Imp	oort Link	Edit Check	Help 🕈
A Constraints					Edit with I/O Editor	
Manage Constraints					Edit with I/O Advisor	1
4) Implement Design					13	
Retlist Viewer						
Synthesize						
Verify Post-Synthesis Im	plementation		I/O Settings			
Simulate	1					
• Configure Flash*Freeze			Reserve Pin	s for Device Migration		
 Configure Register Lock E 	Bits		Select the day	ices you are targetting f	or migration. Pipe not bonded on the	ese devices will be
Place and Route	_		reserved in the	e device selected for this	s project.	ese devices will be
Verify Post Layout Imple	ementation		Selected Devic	e: M2S090 - 676 FBGA		
• Generate Back Annota	ated Files		Selected Serie		2.00	
Simulate				M2S0901	<u>^</u>	
🖏 Verify Timing			Target Devices	M2S0901S	E	
🖏 Open SmartTime				M25060TS		
Verify Power				IVI2300013	-	
IO Analyzer						
💓 SSN Analyzer			General			
Program and Debug Design			Reserve Pi	ns for Probes		
		223				

Figure 81 · I/O Advisor

Introduction

The Introduction screen provides general information about the IO Advisor.

The introduction screen provides the navigational panel for you to navigate to the following panels:

- Output Load panel Displays the IO load Power and Delay values for Outputs and Inouts.
- Output Drive and Slew panel Displays the Output Drive and Slew for Outputs and Inouts.
- ODT & Schmitt Trigger Displays the ODT Static (On/Off), the ODT Impedance value (Ohms) for Inputs and Inouts and the Schmitt Trigger (On/Off)

All steps in the IO Advisor are optional.





Figure 82 · IO Advisor - Introduction

Output Load

The Output Load panel displays the load of all output/inout ports in your design.

The display is sorted by Initial or Current value and is selectable in the Sort By drop-down menu.

Tooltips are available for each cell of the Table. For output and inout ports, the tooltip displays the Port Name, Macro Name, Instance Name and Package Pin. Inout ports are identified by a blue bubble icon.

Pert TODY, BARD TODY, BARD TODY, BARD TODY, BARD TODY, BARD TODY, CAS, M TODY, CAS, M TODY, CAS, M	Direction Output Output Output Output Output Output	Bank Bank Bank Bank Bank C040 Bank C040 Bank C040 Bank C040 Bank C040	56wrth 50 51andard 557118 UJOPAQ 557118 557118 557118	State bottal Current	Output Load(pf) 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5	Powers (1000) 1556.44 1556.44 1556.44 1556.44 1556.44 1556.44 1556.44 1556.44 1556.44	Power Change(%) • +0.00 +0.00 +0.00 +0.00	Delay (m) 3.005 3.008 3.008 3.008 3.008 3.008 3.008 3.008 3.008		Sorthy Intel Stack Intel 	
Pert TODR, BAD TODR, BAD TODR, BAD TODR, BAD TODR, SAQ TODR, CAS, N TODR, CAS, N TODR, CLK TODR, CLK TODR, CLK	Direction Output FOOR_EA(0) cre: ACUEOUTBUE Ince: RECUEOUTBUE Ince: RECUEOUTBUE Output Output Output	Banki - D0400 Banki - D0400 Banki - D0400 Banki - D0400 Banki - D0400	Search Standard SSTLIRI U, JOPAD SSTLIRI SSTLIRI SSTLIRI SSTLIRI SSTLIRI SSTLIRI	State bottal Current bottal	Cutput [cost[p]] 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5	Power 6/00 1556.44 1556.44 1556.44 1556.44 1556.44 1556.44 1556.44 1556.44 1556.44	Power Ounspe(%) • +0.00 +0.00 +0.00 +0.00	Delay (m) 3.005 3.008 3.008 3.005 3.005 3.008 3.008 3.008 3.008	•	Sertily Inter Stack Intel 	
Pert TOOR,BAD TOOR,BAD TOOR,BAD TOOR,BAD TOOR,BAD TOOR,CAS,N TOOR,CAS,N TOOR,CAS,N TOOR,CAS,N	Direction Output Output FOOR(BA0) tence (RTG4P008C) ACM Output Output Output	Rank Banid - D0800	Search 50 Standard SSTUAR SSTUAR SSTUAR SSTUAR	State Initial Current Initial	Cutput Lead(pf) 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5	Power (1990) 1510-44 1530-44 1530-44 1530-44 1530-44 1530-44 1530-44 1530-44	Power Champe(%) +0.00 +0.00 +0.00 +0.00	Delay 6m0 3.005 3.005 3.008 3.008 3.005 3.005 3.008 3.008 3.008 3.005	•	Sort By Inter Slock Deal 	
Port Port POR,BARD POR,BARD POR,BARD POR,BARD POR,CAS,N POR,CAS,N POR,CAS,N	Direction Output Output FOOF_EAX0 Control ADEOUTPUE ADEOUTPUE Output Output Output	Rank Banki - DORD Banki - DORD Banki - DORD Banki - DORD Banki - DORD	B Standard SSTLIRI SSTLIRI SSTLIRI SSTLIRI SSTLIRI SSTLIRI	State botial Current Curr	Curput toatipf) 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5	Power (1990)	Power Change(%) +0.00 +0.00 +0.00 +0.00	Delay (ma) 3.005 3.008 3.008 3.008 3.008 3.008 3.008 3.008 3.008		Stack (m) 	
FOR, BARD FOR, BARD FOR, BARD FOR, CAS, N FOR, CAS, N FOR, CAS, N FOR, CS, N	Output r: FOOT_EAX0; top:: ADUBCOUTPUT secon: RTG4FD0RC; aXx0 Output Output Output	Banki - DORD 0.00_FCOR_BA_0/ Banki - DORD Banki - DORD Banki - DORD	557L181	Joital Current Joital Current Joital Current Joital Current Joital Current Joital	5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5	1656.44 1655.44 1656.44 1656.44 1655.44 1655.44 1655.44 1655.44 1655.44	+0.00 +0.00 +0.00 +0.00	3.005 3.008 3.008 3.005 3.005 3.005 3.008 3.008 3.005		11 24 24 24 24 24 24 24 24 24 24 24 24 24	
FOR, BADI PA FOR, BADI PA FOR, CAS, N FOR, CAS, N FOR, CK FOR, CK FOR, CK	Cooput 4: FOOF_EA(0) KDE: ADUBIOUTEUS Example: RTG#D0RC_ 4: AX80 Output Output Output	0.100_FCOR_BA_0/ Bankd - DORDO Bankd - DORDO Bankd - DORDO	UJOPAD SSTLIN SSTLIN SSTLIN	Current Initial Current Initial Current Initial Current Initial Current Initial	5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5	1656.44 1859.44 1859.44 1859.44 1859.44 1859.44 1859.44 1859.44	+0.00 +0.00 +0.00 +0.00	3.005 3.008 3.005 3.005 3.005 3.008 3.008 3.005			
FDDR_BAQ1 For Ma FDDR_BAQ1 For FDDR_CAS_N FDDR_CKE FDDR_CLK FDDR_CLK	e: FOOR_BA(0) kros - ADLE: OUTBUI tance : RTG4PD0RC, - AX40 Output Output	Banki - CORD Banki - CORD Banki - CORD	SSTLIN SSTLIN SSTLIN SSTLIN	Initial Current Sotial Current Sotial Current Sotial Current Sotial	3 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5	1856.44 1656.44 1656.44 1656.44 1656.44 1656.44 1656.44	+6.00 +6.00 +6.00	3.008 3.005 3.005 3.005 3.008 3.008 3.009			
FDDR_BAQ2 FDDR_CAS_N FDDR_CKE FDDR_CLK FDDR_CLK	Output Output Output	Banki - DORDO Banki - DORDO Banki - DORDO	SSTLIN SSTLIN SSTLIN SSTLIN	Current Sotial Current Sotial Current Sotial Current Sotial	5 5 5 5 5 5	16%.44 16%.44 16%.44 16%.44 16%.44	-0.00	3.005 3.005 3.008 3.008 3.008		-	
FOOR_CAS_N FOOR_CAS_N FOOR_CLK FOOR_CLK	AX40 Output Output Output	Bank0 - 00800 Bank0 - 00800 Bank0 - 00800	SSTLIBI SSTLIBI SSTLIBI	Current Solial Current Initial Current Solial	5 5 5 5	1656.44 1656.44 1656.44 1656.44	-0.00	3.005 3.008 3.005			_
FOOR_CAS_N FOOR_CKE FOOR_CLK FOOR_CS_N	Output Output Output	Bank0 - DDRD Bank0 - DDRD Bank0 - DDRD	SSTLIBI SSTLIBI	Initial Current Initial Current Initial	5	1656.44 1656.44 1656.44	-0.00	3.008 3.005			
FOOR_CKE FOOR_CLK FOOR_CLN	Output Output	Bank0 - DDHDO Bank0 - DDHDO	557L181	Current Initial Current Initial	5	1656.44 1656.44 1656.44	+0.00	3.008			the second se
FDDR_CKE FDDR_CLK FDDR_CS_N	Output Output	Bank9 - DDRDO Bank9 - DDRDO	SSTIL181	Current Solution	5	1656.44		3.005			
FDDR_CLK	Output	Bank0 - D0490	SCT: 181	Initial	3	1020.44		1000	_		-
FDDR_CLK FDDR_CS_N	Output	Bank8 - DORDO	SCT1181			646.55	+0.00	2002	_		
FOOR CS.N				Current	5	646.55	+0.00	2.951	_		
PDDR CS N	0.000	B	10770 Lat	Initial	5	1656.44		3.008	-		
	Control	enviso - DOx00	2011798	Current	3	1656.44	+0.50	3.008	-		
FOOR DM RDQ.	o bout	Bankd - DORSO	SSTUER	Initial	5	75464.69		2.005	_	**	
				Current		75444.49	+0.00	3.005			
FOOR_DM_RDQ.	 Inout 	Bank0 - 00400	SSTUB	Current		75464.60	+0.00	1005			
and a second	The second s		a house	Initial	5	138938.39		2,951		10.00	
ADDM(DC2(0)	· Inout	Banko - DORDO	SSILLIN	Current	5	138928.39	+0.00	2.951			
FDOR DOS(1)	• Inout	Bank0 - DORIO	SSTELIE	Initial	5	138928.39	0.100419.	2.951	-		
	-			Current		138928.39	+0.30	2.951	_		
FDDR_DQ5_TM.	Output	Bank0 - DDRID	SSTLER	Current	-	1030.04	-0.00	1000	_		
	10000		ann an	Initial	5	75444.69		1.005			
HDDR(DQ(0)	a how	Banko - DORDO	221/194	Current	5	75444.69	+0.00	3.005			
FOOR DODAL	O hint	Bankt - DOED	SCT1181	Initial	5	75464.69		3.005			
and a start			and a second second	Current	5	75444.69	+0.00	3.005	-		
PROF FORM	A 2004	B	Contra sint	Pros.	2	75444.89		2,008	_		
	FDDR_DQS(0) FDDR_DQS(1) FDDR_DQS_TML FDDR_DQS(1) FDDR_DQ(0) FDDR_DQ(0) FDDR_DQ(0) FDDR_DQ(0) FDDR_DQ(0)	FDDR, DQ(0) FDDR,	CRIO CRIO (0020, 0020	FOOR_PC(20) Image Desker Bandl DEBKS STL181 FOOR_PC(20) Image Image DEBKS STL181 FOOR_PC(20) Image Bandl DEBKS STL181	FOOR_PODIE_COURD Image Descent Descent Descent Descent Descent Counter FOOR_PODIE_COURD STLUE Ownert Bandl Counter Counter FOOR_PODIE_COURD STLUE Descent Bandl Counter Counter FOOR_PODIE_COURD STLUE Descent Bandl DEscent Counter FOOR_PODIE_COURD STLUE Descent Struet Descent Counter FOOR_PODIE_COURD STLUE Descent Struet Descent Descent	FDDR_DQ(p) IP Insuit Bankl Description Struit Description Struit </td <td>FOOR_PO2(0) IP Insut Bandl D00100 STL281 Data 3 1980.59 FOOR_PO2(0) IP Insut Bandl D0010 STL281 Content 5 1980.59 FOOR_PO2(0) IP Insut Bandl D0010 STL281 Content 5 1980.59 FOOR_PO2(0) IP Insut Bandl D0010 STL281 Content 5 1980.59 FOOR_PO2(5) IP Insut Bandl D0010 STL281 Content 5 1980.54 FOOR_PO2(5) IP Insut Bandl D0010 STL281 Content 5 1980.54 FOOR_PO2(5) IP Insut Bandl D0010 STL281 Content 5 75444.69 FOOR_PO2(6) IP Insut Bandl D0010 STL281 Content 5 75444.69 FOOR_PO2(6) IP Insut Bandl S 75444.69 S 75444.69 Fearer IP Insut Bandl S 75444.69 S</td> <td>FOOR_PCQ001 ID <thid< th=""> ID ID</thid<></td> <td>FOOR_PO2(8) ● Inout Bands - DORD STLILE Intel # S 1000.8.9.9 -6.30 2010.1 FOOR_PO2(8) ● Inout Bands - DORD STLILE Intel # S 1000.8.9.9 -6.30 2010.1 FOOR_PO2(8) ● Inout Bands - DORD STLILE Intel # S 1000.8.9.9 -6.30 2010.1 FOOR_PO2(7)LL Output Bands - DORD STLILE Intel # S 1000.8.9.9 -6.30 2010.1 FOOR_PO2(7)LL Output Bands - DORD STLILE Intel # S 1556.44 -8.30 3.001 FOOR_PO2(9) ● Inout Bands - DORD STLILE Intel # S 7544.49 -8.30 3.001 FOOR_PO2(9) ● Inout Bands - DORD STLILE Locater S 7544.49 -8.30 3.001 FOOR_PO2(9) ● Inout Bands - DORD STLILE Locater S 7544.69 3.001 renne chromin @ Inout Bands - DORD STLIL</td> <td>FOOL (COD) Image Design Status <thstatus< th=""> Status <thstatus< td=""><td>FDDR_DCQDI IP boot Readil - CORD ST1188 Content S 1888.58 - Cont FDDR_DCQDI IP boot Bando - CORD ST1188 Content S 1888.58 </td></thstatus<></thstatus<></td>	FOOR_PO2(0) IP Insut Bandl D00100 STL281 Data 3 1980.59 FOOR_PO2(0) IP Insut Bandl D0010 STL281 Content 5 1980.59 FOOR_PO2(0) IP Insut Bandl D0010 STL281 Content 5 1980.59 FOOR_PO2(0) IP Insut Bandl D0010 STL281 Content 5 1980.59 FOOR_PO2(5) IP Insut Bandl D0010 STL281 Content 5 1980.54 FOOR_PO2(5) IP Insut Bandl D0010 STL281 Content 5 1980.54 FOOR_PO2(5) IP Insut Bandl D0010 STL281 Content 5 75444.69 FOOR_PO2(6) IP Insut Bandl D0010 STL281 Content 5 75444.69 FOOR_PO2(6) IP Insut Bandl S 75444.69 S 75444.69 Fearer IP Insut Bandl S 75444.69 S	FOOR_PCQ001 ID ID <thid< th=""> ID ID</thid<>	FOOR_PO2(8) ● Inout Bands - DORD STLILE Intel # S 1000.8.9.9 -6.30 2010.1 FOOR_PO2(8) ● Inout Bands - DORD STLILE Intel # S 1000.8.9.9 -6.30 2010.1 FOOR_PO2(8) ● Inout Bands - DORD STLILE Intel # S 1000.8.9.9 -6.30 2010.1 FOOR_PO2(7)LL Output Bands - DORD STLILE Intel # S 1000.8.9.9 -6.30 2010.1 FOOR_PO2(7)LL Output Bands - DORD STLILE Intel # S 1556.44 -8.30 3.001 FOOR_PO2(9) ● Inout Bands - DORD STLILE Intel # S 7544.49 -8.30 3.001 FOOR_PO2(9) ● Inout Bands - DORD STLILE Locater S 7544.49 -8.30 3.001 FOOR_PO2(9) ● Inout Bands - DORD STLILE Locater S 7544.69 3.001 renne chromin @ Inout Bands - DORD STLIL	FOOL (COD) Image Design Status Status <thstatus< th=""> Status <thstatus< td=""><td>FDDR_DCQDI IP boot Readil - CORD ST1188 Content S 1888.58 - Cont FDDR_DCQDI IP boot Bando - CORD ST1188 Content S 1888.58 </td></thstatus<></thstatus<>	FDDR_DCQDI IP boot Readil - CORD ST1188 Content S 1888.58 - Cont FDDR_DCQDI IP boot Bando - CORD ST1188 Content S 1888.58

Figure 83 · IO Advisor - Output Load Panel



Search and Regular Expressions

To search for a specific Port, enter the Port Name in the Port Name Search field and click Search. Regular expressions are accepted for the search. All Port Names matching the regular expression are displayed. The regular expression "FDDR*", for example, results in all the output ports beginning with FDDR in the Port Name appearing in the display.

Name PD	OR*				Search								Sort By	Initial
St	atus 💽	Port 💌	Direction 💌	Bank 💌	10 Standard	State 💌	Output Load(pl)	Power (sW)	•	Power Change(%)	Delay (ns)		Slack (ns)	
16		FDDR ADDRI91	Output	Bank0 - DDRIO	SSTL18I	Initial	5	1656.44	-		3.008			100
		100000000000000000000000000000000000000	1000	1.	1.1.1.1	Current	,	1030.44	_	+0.00	3,008			
· ·		FDDR_BA(0)	Output	Bank0 - DORIO	SSTLER	Pricel	2	1000.44	_		3,000			
10	_		1.0.0			Current		1656 44	_	+0.00	2008	_		
••• 🗸		FDDR_BA[1]	Output	Bank0 - DDRIO	SSTL18	Current	-	1656.44		-0.00	3,000			
0			Contraction of the second s			Initial		1656.44	_	*****	2,005	-		
- -		FDDR_BA[2]	Output	Bank0 - DDRIO	SSTLIBI	Current		1656.44	_	+0.00	1.005	_		
0			1000	-	1	Initial	5	1656.44			3.008			
-		FODR_CAS_N	Output	Bank0 - DDRID	SSTLIBI	Current	5	1656.44	_	+0.00	3.008			1.1
1		CODD CHT	0.000		CCT1 1.01	Initial	5	1656.44			3.005			
		FUDICICKE	output	Banag - DOKOO	2211798	Current	5	1656.44		+0.00	3.005			17.
		CODE CIV	C. en a	R	COT 1 SAL	Initial	5	646.55			2.951			
.		PODICCON	Output	Banko - DOHOO	3011288	Current	5	646.55		+0.00	2.951		**	
3		EDDP CS N	Codena	Real 0.0000	CCT1 Fat	Initial	5	1656.44			3.008			12
		Toologia	Compan	Da ab - Dorad	2011200	Current	5	1656.44	_	+0.00	3.008	_		2.4
6		FODE DM EDO	O locat	Banki - DORIO	SCT1 181	Initial	5	75444.69			3.005		**	
•			· seven.	Denis - Doreo		Current	5	75444.69	_	+0.00	3.005		**	1.1
8		FOOR DM RDO.	O Inout	Bank0 - DORIO	SSTLER	Initial	5	75444.69	_	12.30	3.005		4.4	
-						Current	5	75444.69	-	+0.00	3.005			
6		FDDR DOSI01	Inout	Bankő - DORIO	SSTLER	Initial		138928.39			2.951	-	**	1
-						Current	3	1,0928.39	6.	+0.00	2.951	11	**	122
20		FDDR DOS(1)	Inout	Bank0 - DORIO	SSTL181	Initial	5	138928.39			2.951	_		
-						Current	5	138928.39		+0.00	2.951	_		
° 🗸		FDDR.DQS.TM.	Output	Bank0 - DORSO	SSTLER	Intel		1050.44	-		3,008	-		
	_					Current		1030.44		+0.00	1.000			
1		FDDR_DQ(0)	Inout	Bank0 - DORSO	SSTL181	Contract	-	75444.09		-0.00	2.005			
						Correct.	5	75444.09	-	+0.00	2,005			

Figure 84 · Search Field and Regular Expressions

Status Column

The icon in the Status Column displays the status of the Output Port.

lcon	Status and Explanation
√	OK - The IO attributes match the suggestion in Output Drive and Slew Table.
8	Error – The Timing constraints for this IO are not met in Output Drive and Slew Table.
0	Information – you can improve the power and/or timing of the IO by applying the suggestion in Output Drive and Slew Table.

Column Display and Sorting

To hide or unhide a column, click on the drop-down menu of a column header and select Hide Column or Unhide All Columns.

To sort the contents of a column, select the column header, and from the right-click menu, select Sort /A to Z/Z to A/Sort Min to Max/Sort Max to Min as appropriate.

Set Output Load

To set the output load of a port, click the Port and click **Set Output Load** or edit the value in the Current Output Load cell. Initial value remains unchanged.



Restore Initial Value

To restore a Port's output load to the initial value, select the output port and click **Restore Initial Value**. The current value changes to become the same value as the initial value.

Output Drive and Slew

The Output Drive and Slew page displays the Output Drive and Slew of all output/inout ports of your design. The display can be sorted according to the initial, current or suggested values. To change the sorting, click the Sort By drop-down menu to make your selection.

Three values are displayed for Output Drive and Slew of each IO output/inout port:

- Initial This is the initial value when the IO Advisor is launched.
- Current –This is the current value which reflects any changes you have made, including suggestions you have accepted from the IO Advisor.
- Suggested This is the suggested value from the IO Advisor for optimum power and timing performance.

Introduction ID Attributes	Adjust Output I	Drive and Slo	rw.		Search							Surt By Dottal	Sort By Dotted		
Output Load Output Drive & Slew ODT & Schmitt Trooper	Status .	Part	Direction •	East	• 10 Standard	State •	Output Drive(mA)	Siew •	Pewer -	Power Change(%)	Delay -	Slack (m)			
iummary		1	1		a second barren	Suggested			1656.44	+0.00	3.005				
	100 4	man aver		a to the second	and and	avea			2000.44		3.008				
	20 🗸	HOOKCASIN	Output	Bank0 - 00900	0 351L38 Current 3056.44		+0.00	3.008							
		14			_	Suggested			2000.44	+0.00	3.000	**			
		anna cas	H: FDOR_CAS_N		_	aveal			2030.04	.0.00	1.000				
		montene 10	ACIO : ADUBICUTBUR		and a state of	Luner			1000.44	-9.00	2000				
	100		ANDER RECEIPTIONS	paul your, cas,	jeujowo	Supprova			444.55	+0.00	2003				
	38.1	anne cur	10 days	Barriel	INTERNA CONTRACTOR	Connet			4.04.55	-0.00	3.043				
		montere	Control		ATTEN .	furnered			646.55	+0.00	2.050				
				Bankit - DORD 55		Doctor 1			3456.44	10.00	1.001		-		
	11 1	FOOR CS N	Output		SSTLAR	Gurrent			3456.44	+0.50	1000				
						Langested			2636.44 +0.00	10.00	1008				
	Page 1 Survey	TRACK BARRIES	a state of	No. of Concession, Name	No. Monte State	Inite			75444.69		3,005				
ting Hoder	30	FOOR DM RDO.	· Innet	Ranad - DORD	1571.380	Current Suggested			- 75444.69	+0.00	3,005				
		1.					Suggested	10			1005				
ACTIVE										75444.00	-20-30	3.005			
	30	FOOR DM RDQ.	 Inout 	Bankd - DDRID	\$5TL38	Current		10	75444.00	+0.00	3.005				
iting Conditions:						Suggested	**	**	31511.84	-55.58	3.005				
a woest	2010/15/2					Initial	10.	10.	138829.39		2.951				
Terror to	×0	FDDR, DQS(R)	Inout	Bank0 - DDRSD	SSTLIM	Current			138928.39	+0.00	2,950				
R THINKA						Suggested			55062.50	-60.37	2.950				
		1				Initial		10	138829.39		2,950				
Poweri	27 🕒	FDOR_DQS[1]	Inout	Bankd - DDRID	SSTLAN	Current			138829.39	+0.00	2.951				
1759889.35vm						Suggested			55062.50	-60.32	2,950				

Figure 85 · IO Advisor - Output Drive and Slew

How the Suggested Values Are Computed

The IO Advisor provides suggestions for output drive and slew values according to the following criteria:

- When the user has set no output delay constraint for the port, the IO Advisor suggests IO attribute values that generate the lowest power consumption.
- When the user has set an output delay constraint on the port, the IO Advisor suggests IO attribute values that generates the lowest power consumption and positive timing slacks. If the slacks of all attribute combinations are negative, the IO Advisor suggests an attribute combination (Drive strength and slew) that generates the least negative slack.

In this screen, you can change the drive strength and slew of the design output I/Os. Select the out drive and/or the slew current value cell. Click the cell to open the combo box. Choose the value you want from the set of valid values. You can restore the initial values by clicking **Restore Initial Value**.

To make changes to multiple I/Os, select multiple I/Os (Control+click), click **Set Slew** or **Set Outdrive**, select the value, and click **OK**.

Apply Suggestion

To apply the suggested value to a single output port, select the output port and click **Apply Suggestion**.



To apply the suggested values to mulitple ports, select the multiple ports (Control+click) and click **Apply Suggestion**.

Adjust ODT and Schmitt Trigger

This page allows you to set the Schmitt Trigger setting (On/Off), On-Die Termination (ODT) Static setting (On/Off), and the ODT Impedance (in Ohms) to valid values for all Input/Inout IOs of your design. The IO Advisor page instantly gives you the Power (in uW) and Delay (in ns) values when you make changes. If the suggested values meet your design's power and/or timing requirements, you can accept the suggestions and continue with your design process.

IDAdvisor .														
le Edit View Help														
1 1 1 1 1 A														
IDAdvisor Introduction + ID Attributes	Adjust ODT an	d Schmitt Tri	gger		Search							Sort By Deltal		
Output Load Output Drive & Slew	Status	· Port ·	Direction	Bank	· in ·	State .	Schmitt .	ODT Static ·	001	Power -	Power -	Delay .	Slack -	
ODT & Schmitt Trigger		Constant of the local division of the				Initial		Off	50	75444.00		3,005		
Summary	20	FOOR DM RDQ.	O boot	Bankd - DDRID	1571.181	Current	10	08	50	75444.00	+0.00	3.005		
	100					Supported		Off	150	30511.84	-55.58	3.005	-	
	the second	10000		191000000	1.000	Initial		Off	50	138928.39		2.951	-	
	10	FDDR_DQSRI	Inout	Bank0 - DDRID	SSTL38	Current		CHI .	50	138828.39	+0.00	2.951		
	100 C 10		and the second	10000	STREET, STREET	Suggested		Off	150	35061.50	-60.37	2.950	-	
	and the second	Port : FI	DOM_DOS(0)		1.0	Inital		CHI .	50	138929.39		2.951		
	40	FDOR DC Macros	ADUM-SHOUF_CHI			Current		Off	50	138928.39	+0.00	2.951		
	and a second sec	Instanc	ELETGARDORC_01	O JODIK DQS_0/L	JONIOP	Suggested		Off	150	55062.50	-60.37	2.950	-	
	100 C (201	PARTA			and the second s	Initial	10	OW	50	34154.55	1.000	1,739	10.	
	30	FDOR DQS TM.	Input	Bank0 - DDRSD	SSTLIN	Current		Off	50	74134.55	+0.00	1.739	-	
	100 A. 10	1002002000		n10350240		Supposted	100	OFF	150	32215.15	-56.56	1,340	-	
						Initial		OW	50	75444.69		3.005	-	
	6 0 FDOR_DO(N) .	Dest 1	Bank0 - DDRID	SSTLAN	Current -		011	50	75444.09	+0.00	3.005			
Operating Mode:					a la sur	Suggested		Off	150	30511.84	-55.58	3,005	10	
	and a second					Initial		Off	50	75444.09	1.111	1.005		
Active	70	FDOR_DQ(30)	Inout	Bank0 - DORSO	3571,388	Current		04	50	75444.00	+0.00	3.005	-	
and the first first states				13110261562		Suggested		Off	150	30511.84	-55.58	3.005		
designed comprome	and the second					Initial		017	50	75444.00		3.008	-	
Taning WORST	10	(#DD#_DQ[11])	Inout	Bank9 - DDRIO	SSTLIM	Current		OW	50	75444.60	+0.00	3.008		
Trend a	100 No. 1					Suggested		Off	150	30511.84	-55.58	3.008		
	and an other states of the sta	and the second second		Contraction in the	a start and	Initial		OFF	50	75444.60		3.008	100	
total from the second se	2 0	FDOR_DQ[12]	Inout	Bank0 - DDRSD	SSTLIN	Current		Off	50	75444.09	+0.00	3.008		
Fotal Power.						Suggested		017	150	30511.84	-55.58	3.008	100 C - 1	
initial: 1759889.39vW	*											-		
diak 1759899.39vw areat: 1759899.39vw rving: 0.00%	Set Schwitt Tropper) (Se	et 00T Starts: Set 00	Timpertience Ace	ly Suggestion	intore Initial Value						Her.	Select:	Al Nore	

Figure 86 · IO Advisor – Adjust ODT and Schmitt Trigger

Note: ODT is not allowed for 2.5V or higher single-ended signals. It is allowed for differential signals.

Search and Regular Expressions

To search for a specific Port, enter the Port Name in the Port Name Search field and click Search. Regular expressions are accepted for the search. All Port Names matching the regular expression are displayed. The regular expression "RESET", for example, results in the input/inout ports with the port name beginning with "RESET" appearing in the display.

NAdvisor							
File Edit View Help							
EXAMAND EXAMAND For Safe Verse Help Image Safe Safe Safe Safe Safe Safe Safe Saf							
IDAdvisor Introduction + IO Attributes	Adjust ODT and Schmitt Trigger						Series (Intel
Output Load Output Drive & Siew ODT & Schmitt Trigger	Status • Port • Direction •	Bank • 10 Standard	• State •	Schmitt ODf Static	OOT -	Feaser Peaser (sW0 Change(%)	Delay Slack (m) (m)
Summary	I NT,RET,N Deput	Barad - DDRDD U/CM0528	Current Supported	0#		34213 -160 34213 -160	2,041
Coperating Winds: Prese: A1794 Operating Conditions: Temp: Winds? Prese: Proficia, Total Prese: Total Prese: Total Prese: Service: A179485-376/W Service: A179485-376/W	Antore MCART, Julio	vision (Josep) als Sugarstein) (Anstein John Mar					jes (d. Sau Susani da susali
Ready						PanikTún Derk	745130 Phg-365705 Speed -1

Figure 87 · Search Field and Regular Expressions



Status Column

The icon in the Status Column displays the status of the input/inout ports.

lcon	Status and Explanation
√	OK - The IO attributes match the suggestion in the Adjust ODT and Schmitt Trigger Table.
8	Error – The Timing constraints for this IO are not met in the Adjust ODT and Schmitt Trigger Table.
0	Information – you can improve the power and/or timing of the IO by applying the suggestion in the Adjust ODT and Schmitt Trigger Table.

Column Display and Sorting

To hide or unhide a column, click on the drop-down menu of a column header and select Hide Column or Unhide All Columns.

To sort the contents of a column, select the column header, and from the right-click menu, select Sort /A to Z/Z to A/Sort Min to Max/Sort Max to Min as appropriate.

Set Schmitt Trigger

For IO Standards that support the Schmitt Trigger, you can turn the Schmitt Trigger On or Off. Select the IO and click **Set Schmitt Trigger** to toggle on or off. Your setting is displayed in the Schmitt Trigger column for the IO.

Set ODT Static

For IO standards that support ODT static settings, you can turn the ODT Static On or Off according to your board layout or design needs:

- On The Termination resistor for impedance matching is located inside the chip.
- Off The Terminator resistor for impedance matching is located on the printed circuit board.

To turn the ODT Static on or off, click to select the input/inout port and from the pull-down menu, toggle on or off. You can also turn ODT Static on or off by clicking **Set ODT Static** and toggling on or off.

Set ODT Impedance (Ohm)

For each input/inout in your design, valid ODT Impedance values (in Ohms) are displayed for you to choose from. Click to select the input/inout port and select one of the valid ODT impedance values from the pull-down list in the ODT Impedance column. You can also click **Set ODT Impedance** to choose one of the valid ODT impedance values. The Power and Delay values may vary when you change the ODT Impedance (Ohm).

Note: When ODT_static is set to OFF, changing the ODT_Impedance value has no effect on the Power and Delay values. The Power and Delay values change with ODT_Impedance value changes only when ODT_static is set to ON.

Apply Suggestion

To apply the suggested value to a single input/inout port, select the port and click **Apply Suggestion**. To apply the suggested values to mulitple ports, select the multiple ports (Control-click) and click **Apply Suggestion**.



Restore Initial Value

To restore an input/inout port's attribute values to the initial values, select the port and click **Restore Initial Value**. The current value changes to the same value as the initial value.

Summary of Changes

This screen provides a summary of the timing and power changes you have made in the IO Advisor.

Advisor	Summary of the Changes							
Introduction IO Attributes	Name	Outdrive Slew	Output Load Schmitt Troop	ODT Incedance	007 State	IO Delay	ID Stark	10 Power
Output Load Output Drive & Slew OOT & Schmitt Trope Summary	 Sowmary Preve Cangon Initial: 326056128 vW Covers: 307565394 vW Change: 35644537 vW 5.53% Timing Changes Initial number of 20 vwH Register State: 0 Covers: Unsuber of 20 vwH Register State: 0 							
	Current World Slack: # 10 Attribute Changes (per 10) # FOOR ADOR(0)							
	billial Current # FDDR.ADD40.4		5 p# 10 p#			3.000 mi 3.125 mi (+3.80%)	N/A N/A	1347.055 vW 1347.055 vW (0-00%)
	Initial Current		5 p# 10 p#			3.005 m 3.122 m (+3.90%)	Na Na	1347.055 vW 1347.055 vW (0.00%)
	Svital Current				Off On	2.910 ml 2.950 ml (-0.02%)	NA NA	136367 217 vW 136367 217 vW (6.80%)
	PODR_DOD_INVECTORIEN Initial Current PODR_DODB				Off On	1.739 m 1.740 m (+0.02%)	NA NA	74154.351 v/W 74154.351 v/W (0.00%)
	Initial Current			50 phm 150 phm	Off On	3.005 ms (+0.01%)	NA NA	75202.306 v/W 33262.710 v/W (-55.77%)
nating Hode:	PODM_DOS11 Initial Country			50 ohm 150 ohm		3-000 ms	NA.	75202.304 wW 31042.710 wW L55.77%2
ACTIVE	* FDOR, DQ32] Initial			50 ohm		3.008 m	NA	75202.306 ulw
NA BOAST	# put_bone bottal	sow		75 ofte		3.000 mi (-0.00%)	NA.	94235.994 saw (-27.00%) 841.217 saw
ET TYPECAL	Current PUBL/RESET_N	MECIUM				3.222 mi 1-1.2.29%	NA	461.872 vW (+0.13%)
IPower: at 1780308.12vm	Initial Current		Off On			2.876 mi 2.875 mi (-0.03%)	NA NA	342.134 u/W 342.255 u/W (+6.84%)

Figure 88 · IO Advisor – Summary

You can save the summary by clicking **Save Summary**, selecting the save format (text or CSV), and clicking **OK**.

To commit IO Attribute changes you have made to the database (the *io_pdc file), choose **Save** from the File Menu (**File > Save**). Click **OK** in the dialog that appears.

Note: After saving the changes into the pdc file and database, the summary refreshes automatically and shows the latest data as per the latest database.

Simultaneous Switching Noise

Introduction

Simultaneous Switching Noise (SSN) is the Libero SoC voltage noise analysis tool. It provides a detailed analysis of the noise margin on each I/O pin in the design based on the pin information as well as all the other active pins placed in the same I/O bank of the design. The tool computes the noise margin based on I/O Standards, Drive Strength, and placement of the pin. The SSN Analyzer helps you achieve the desired voltage noise margin, resulting in improved signal integrity.

Right-click SSN Analyzer in the Design Flow window and select Open Interactively to open the SSN Analyzer.

Supported Families

The SSN Analyzer supports the SmartFusion2, IGLOO2, and RTG4 families.



Supported Die/Package

Family	Die	Package
IGLOO2	M2GL150	FC1152
	M2GL090	FG676
	M2GL060	FG676
	M2GL050	FG896
	M2GL025	FG484/VFG400
	M2GL010	FG484
SmartFusion2	M2S150	FC1152
	M2S090	FG676
	M2S060	FG676
	M2S050	FG896
	M2S025	FG484
	M2S010	FG484
RTG4	RT4G150	CG1657

Dies and packages for which characterization data is unavailable are not supported.

Supported I/O Standard

The SSN Analyzer supports the following I/O Standards:

- LVCMOS 3.3V
- LVCMOS 2.5V
- LVCMOS 1.8V
- LVCMOS 1.5V
- LVCMOS 1.2V
- LVTTL

Supported I/O Types

Only single-end I/Os are supported. Differential I/Os are not supported.

SSN Analyzer

Three tabs are available in the SSN Analyzer:

- Noise Report
- Excluded IOs
- Summary



Noise Report

The Noise Report tab displays by default when the SSN Analyzer opens, and lists all of the design's Output and Inout ports. Input I/Os are not supported. The displayed columns are:

- Bank Name/Pin Number Shows the Bank Number and the Package Pin Number of the Port
- **Port Name** Shows the Port Name
- Instance Name Shows the Instance Name of the Port
- I/O Standard Shows the I/O Standards supported by SSN Analyzer. Supported standards are: LVCMOS 3.3V, LVCMOS 2.5V, LVCMOS 1.8V, LVCMOS 1.5V and LVCMOS 1.2V and LVTTL.
- Drive Strength (mA) Drive Strength selections are available from 2 to 12.
- Static When this checkbox is checked, the I/O is considered neither as an Aggressor nor as a Victim. It is excluded from SSN Analysis.
- Don't Care When this checkbox is checked, the I/O is excluded from consideration as a Victim for Noise Margin computation. However, it is considered as an Aggressor for Noise Margin computation of other I/Os.

Note: Static and Don't Care are mutually exclusive.

- Noise Margin (%) This is the Noise Margin number computed by the SSN Analyzer. A negative number (shown in red) indicates that it is outside the guideline of SSN analysis.
- Within Guideline– Either Yes (Positive Noise Margin) or No (Negative Noise Margin). The Yes (within guideline) or No (outside guideline) guideline is different for different I/O standards:
 - LVTTL/LVCMOS (3.3V) A Yes (within guideline) is defined as follows:
 - A ground bounce voltage less than or equal to 1.25V and a pulse width of less than or equal to 1 ns
 - A VDD dip voltage greater than or equal to VIH_{min} and a pulse width of less than or equal to 1 ns
 - All other LVCMOS Standards (2.5V, 1.8V, 1.5V, 1.2V) A Yes (within guideline) is defined as follows:
 - A ground bounce voltage less than or equal to VIL_{max} for ground bounce and a pulse width of less than or equal to 1 ns
 - A VDD dip voltage greater than or equal to VIH_{min} and a pulse width of less than or equal to 1 ns
 - Noise margin violating the criteria for "Yes" is considered to fall outside the specified guidelines, and is reported as a "No"



File Edit View Help									
2 9 6									
Noise Report Excluded IOs	Summary								
ort Name :				Search				Pulse Width : Ins	
Bank Name/ Pin Number	Port Name	Instance Name	IO Standard	Drive Strength (mA)	Static	Don't Care	Noise Margin (%)	Within Guideline	
4 Bank0 (1.5v)									
A16	WT	wr_obuf/U0/U IOPAD	LVCMOS15	4	V	100	99.01	Yes	
A15	datao[28]	datao obuf[28]/U0/U IOPAD	LVCMOS15	4	10	[7]	99.01	Yes	
4 Bank1 (3.3v)									
J28	datao[29]	datao obuf[291/U0/U IOPAD	LVTTL	4	8	100	98.38	Yes	
J29	datao[25]	datao obuf[25]/U0/U IOPAD	LVCMOS33	4	1	1	98.38	Yes	
4 Bank2 (2.5v)						1500			
M30	datao[4]	datao_obuf[4]/U0/U_IOPAD	LVCMOS25	12	1		-11.66	No	
N26	address1[7]	address1 obuf[7]/U0/U IOP	LVCMOS25	16	10	177	-69.11	No	
M28	address1[4]	address1_obuf[4]/U0/U_IOP	LVCMOS25	16		1	-50.88	No	
K30	address1[3]	address1 obuf[3]/U0/U IOP	LVCMOS25	16		100	-11.66	No	
N27	address1[2]	address1_obuf[2]/U0/U_IOP	LVCMOS25	16	13	1977	-25.04	No	
M27	address1[25]	address1 obuf[25]/U0/U IO	LVCMOS25	16	23	100	-74.95	No	
L28	address1[24]	address1_obuf[24]/U0/U_IO	LVCMOS25	16	13	171	-74.21	No	
P23	address1[23]	address1 obuf[23]/U0/U IO	LVCMOS25	16	12	P*1	-72.10	No	
M26	address1[22]	address1 obuf[22]/U0/U IO	LVCMOS25	16	6	100	-32.03	No	
N25	address1[21]	address1 obuf[21]/U0/U IO	LVCMOS25	16	1	177	-68.80	No	
K28	address1[20]	address1 obuf[20]/U0/U IO	LVCMOS25	16	10	10	-73.62	No	
N24	address1[1]	address1 obuf[1]/U0/U IOP	LVCMOS25	16	E	m	-49.89	No	
P24	address1[19]	address1 obuf[19]/U0/U IO	LVCMOS25	16	8	1	-59.92	No	
L29	address1[15]	address1 obuf[15]/U0/U IO	LVCMOS25	16	8	F1	-76.35	No	
J27	address1[14]	address1 obuf[14]/U0/U_IO	LVCMOS25	16	8		-62.78	No	
L30	address1[13]	address1 obuf[13]/U0/U IO	LVCMOS25	16	10	177	-75.03	No	
P30	address1[12]	address1_obuf[12]/U0/U_IO	LVCMOS25	16	10	(PP)	100.00	Yes	
4 Bank3 (2.5v)									
AB29	mio	mio_obuf/U0/U_IOPAD	LVCMOS25	6	13	100	70.52	Yes	
W29	datao[20]	datao obuf[20]/U0/U IOPAD	LVCMOS25	12	173	177	74.07	Yes	
U25	datao[15]	datao_obuf[15]/U0/U_IOPAD	LVCMOS25	12	13	173	68.75	Yes	
V27	[hfloeteb	datao ohufi141/10/11 IOPAD	IVCMOS25	12	25	1973	75.20	Ver	
								Run Analysis	Save Repo
leady							Fam:SmartFusion2	ie:M2S050T Pkg:896 FBGA	Sceed: -

Figure 89 · SSN Analyzer – Noise Report Tab

Right-click Menu Items

The following menu items are available when you right-click an I/O. You can select multiple I/Os and then rightclick to apply the menu items to all selected I/Os. Available menu items are:

- Configure I/O in I/O Editor Allows you to reconfigure I/Os, such as changing the I/O Standard or the Pin Assignment or both to improve the noise margin.
 Note: This menu item is only active when the I/O Editor is open.
- Show in Chip Planner Allows you to cross-probe the selected I/Os in Chip Planner. Note: This menu item is only active when the Chip Planner is open.
- Mark Selected Static Marks the selected I/Os as static (excluded from Noise Analysis).
- Unmark Selected Static Unmarks the selected I/Os as static (included for Noise Analysis).
- Mark Selected Don't Care Marks the selected I/O as Don't Care (Not to be considered as Victim).
- Unmark Selected Don't Care Unmarks the selected I/0s as Don't Care (to be considered as Victim).
- Copy Selection Copies the selected I/Os to the Clipboard for pasting into other applications.
- Print Selection Copies the selected I/Os and sends to the printer.
- Sort by Package Die Pad Number Sorts the Pin Number by the order of the I/O Pad number. Use this option to find a pin and its neighboring pins. All used pins are arranged in order of proximity (geographical proximity).

Search and Filter

Filtering is available for Port Names. For example, if you enter the search pattern "DATA*" in the Port Name field and click **Search**, the list is populated with all I/O names beginning with DATA. Names not beginning with DATA are excluded from the list. Filtering allows you to focus on I/Os you are interested in for SSN Analysis.

Pulse Width

The Pulse Width is the settling time of the signal bounce. It is a threshold value which the signal bounce must exceed before the signal bounce is recognized for SSN calculation. Select 1ns or 0ns. Selecting 0ns means that any signal bounce with a pulse width above 0ns is recognized for SSN calculation. A selection of 1ns means only signal bounces with a pulse width at or above 1ns are recognized for SSN calculation.

Changing the Pulse Width selection discards all the changes made for the current Pulse Width selection and triggers a re-analysis based on the new Pulse Width.



Run Analysis

This button is not active when SSN first opens. It is activated only when you have made changes in the Noise Report. These changes may include one or more of the following:

- Checking/unchecking the Don't' Care checkbox for one or more I/Os.
- Checking/unchecking the Static checkbox for one or more I/Os.

When you have made your changes, click Run Analysis and SSN will recompute the Noise Margin number.

Save Report

Click Save Report to save the Noise Report in one of three formats:

- Text Text file with *.txt file extension
- CSV Spreadsheet file with *.csv file extension
- XML XML file with *.xml file extension

Excluded I/Os

This tab displays all I/Os excluded from Noise Analysis. Excluded I/Os include:

- I/Os on unsupported I/O standards
- I/Os marked as Static in the Noise Analysis tab
- JTAG I/Os for which Noise Analysis is irrelevant

se Report Excluded IOs	Summary				
ank Name/Pin Number	Port Name	Instance Name	IO Standard	Comment	
Bank8 (2.5v)					
Bank7 (2.5v)					
Bank6 (1.2v)					
Bank5 (1.8v)					
AK19	ast2	ast2_obuf/U0/U_IOPAD	LPDDRI	IO Standard is not supported	
AE27	ast1	ast1_obuf/U0/U_IOPAD	LPDDRI	IO Standard is not supported	
AE18	datao[30]	datao_obuf[30]/U0/U_IOPAD	SSTL18I	IO Standard is not supported	
Bank3 (2.5v)					
Bank2 (2.5v)					
Bank1 (3.3v)					
Bank0 (1.5v)					
D15	datao[10]	datao_obuf[10]/U0/U_IOPAD	HSTLI	IO Standard is not supported	
D14	datao[11]	datao_obuf[11]/U0/U_IOPAD	HSTLI	IO Standard is not supported	

Figure 90 · SSN Analyzer – Excluded I/Os Tab

The Noise Report includes these columns:

- Bank Name/Pin Number
- Port Name
- Instance Name
- I/O Standard
- Comment Specifies the reason for exclusion, e.g., unsupported I/O Standards or Marked as Static I/Os

You can right-click an I/O previously marked as static in the Excluded I/Os list and select Unmarked Selected Static to include it in Noise Report Analysis.



Summary

The Summary tab displays a summary of the SSN Analyzer. Click **Save Summary** to save the summary in Text, CSV, or XML format.

🦉 SSNAnalyze	r	
File Edit V	iew. Help	
2 🖻 🖨		
Noise Report	Excluded IOs Summary	
SSN Analyzer	/ Summary:	
Vendor: Program: Date : Version: Family : Die : Package : Speed : Pulse Width	Microsemi Corporation Microsemi Libero Software, Release v11.9 Copyright (c) 1989-2017 Tue Apr 11 11:15:31 2017 1.0 SmartFusion2 M2SO50T 896 FBGA -1 : 1ns	
SSN Analyzer	r Status : There are some banks that are having DRC violations	
Bank2 pin pla	is : acement from "M30" to "K30" has exeeded vdd bounce limit of drive strength: "12" and IO Standard "LVCMOS25".	
		Save Summary
	Fam:SmartFusion2 Die:M2S050T	Pkg:896 FBGA Speed: -1

Figure 91 · SSN Analyzer - Summary

User Action When SSN Noise Analyzer Reports Failure

When the SSN Noise Analyzer reports poor Noise Margin or Failure, take the following steps to improve the noise margin:

- 1. Change the I/O Standard to one that has a lower noise impact for the failing I/O Bank.
- 2. Select the lower Drive-Strength to reduce the noise. Open the I/O Advisor to see the power/timing impact of the specific I/O cell.
- 3. After making these changes, rerun the SSN Analyzer to see if the noise margin of the I/O Cell improves. In this scenario, Place and Route information remains intact.
- 4. If the improvement is not significant, open the Pin Attributes Editor and change the placement of the pin within the I/O bank to a location farther away from the noisy pins.
- 5. Spread the failing pins across multiple I/O banks. This will reduce the number of aggressive outputs on the power system of the I/O bank.
- 6. Rerun Place and Route and rerun SSN Analyzer to check the Noise Report.







See Also

Simultaneous Switching Noise and Signal Integrity Application Notes



Configure Hardware

Programming Connectivity and Interface

In the Libero SoC Design Flow window, expand **Configure Hardware** and double-click **Programming Connectivity and Interface** to open the Programming Connectivity and Interface window. The Programming Connectivity and Interface window displays the physical chain from TDI to TDO or SPI Slave configuration.

The Programming Connectivity and Interface view enables the following actions for non-target devices

- Select Programming Interface Select JTAG or SPI Slave mode. SPI Slave mode is supported by FlashPro5 for SmartFusion2 and IGLOO2 devices, and by FlashPro6 for SmartFusion2, IGLOO2 devices. SPI Slave mode is not supported for RTG4 devices. JTAG is the default interface.
- Construct Chain Automatically Automatically construct the physical chain
- Add Microsemi Device Add a Microsemi device to the chain
- Add Non-Microsemi Device Add a non-Microsemi device to the chain
- Add Microsemi Devices From Files Add a Microsemi device from a programming file
- Delete Selected Devices Delete selected devices in the grid
- Scan and Check Chain Scan the physical chain connected to the programmer and check if it matches the chain constructed in the grid
- Zoom In Zoom into the grid
- Zoom Out Zoom out of the grid

Hover Information

The device tooltip displays the following device information if you hover your pointer over a device in the grid:

- **Name** User-specified device name. If you have two or more identical devices in your chain you can use this field to give them unique names.
- Device Device name.
- File Path to programming file.
- **Programming action** When a programming file is loaded, the user can select a programming action for any device which is not the Libero design device.
- IR Device instruction length.
- **TCK** Maximum clock frequency in Hz to program a specific device; Libero uses this information to ensure that the programmer operates at a frequency lower than the slowest device in the chain.

Device Chain Details

The device within the chain has the following details:

- Libero design device Has a red circle within Microsemi logo. Libero design device cannot be disabled.
- Left/right arrow Move device to left or right according to the physical chain.
- Enable Device Select to enable the device for programming; enabled devices are green, disabled devices are gray.
- Name Displays your specified device name.
- File Path to programming file.



Right-Click Options



Figure 93 · Right-click Properties

- Set as Libero Design Device The user needs to set Libero design device when there are multiple identical Libero design devices in the chain.
- **Configure Device** Ability to reconfigure the device (for a Libero SoC target device the dialog appears but only the device name is editable).
- Enable Device for Programming Select to enable the device for programming; enabled devices are green, disabled devices are gray.
- Load Programming File Load programming file for selected device. (Not supported for Libero SoC target design device.)
- Set Serial Data Opens the Serial Settings dialog box; enables you to set your serialization data.
- Select and Configure Action/Procedures (for devices other than the Libero SoC target design device):
 - Select an action to program The selected action will be programmed in the Libero environment and saved to an exported FlashPro Express job.
 - Configure actions and procedures:
 - o Actions List of programming actions for your device.
 - o **Procedures** Advanced option; enables you to customize the list of recommended and optional procedures for an action.

To configure actions for Libero target devices, use the Configure Actions and Procedures tool.

• Move Device Left/Right - Move device in the chain to left or right.

See Also

set programming interface Configure Actions and Procedures

Select and Configure Actions and Procedures

In the Programming and connectivity Interface, right-click a non-target device and choose **Select and Configure Actions/Procedures**. The Configure Actions and Procedures dialog box opens, allowing you to configure actions and procedures for devices other than the Libero SoC target design device and select an action to program in the Libero environment.



Configure Actions and Procedures	×
Device: M2S005 Select an action to program PROGRAM Configure actions and procedures	
DEVICE_INFO ENC_DATA_AUTHENTICATION ERASE PROGRAM READ_IDCODE VERIFY VERIFY_DIGEST	Image: Set_PROGRAM_ACTIONTYPE Image: Werkify_idcode Image: PROC_ENABLE Image: Do_PREPARE_BITSTREAM Image: Do_PROGRAM Image: Do_Verkify Image: Do_Exit
Help	OK Cancel

Figure 94 · Select and Configure Actions and Procedures

- Select an action to program The selected action will be programmed in the Libero environment.
- Configure actions and procedures:
 - o Actions List of programming actions for your device.
 - Procedures Advanced option; enables you to customize the list of recommended and optional procedures for an action.

Note: You cannot select an action or configure actions in the chain view for the target device. To configure actions for Libero target devices, use the <u>Configure Actions and Procedures</u> tool.

Programmer Settings

In the Libero SoC Design Flow window, expand **Configure Hardware**, double-click **Configure Programmer**, or right-click **Configure Programmer** and choose **Programmer Settings** to view the Programmer Settings dialog.

For the JTAG interface, you can set specific voltage and force TCK frequency values for your programmer in this dialog. For the SPI Slave interface, you can set specific voltage and force SCK frequency values for your programmer in this dialog.

Note: SPI Slave mode is supported by FlashPro5 for SmartFusion2 and IGLOO2 devices, and by FlashPro6 for SmartFusion2, IGLOO2 devices. SPI Slave mode is not supported for RTG4 devices.



FlashPro6 FlashPro5 FlashPro4	FlashPro3 FlashPro Lite Flas		
📐 📝 Set Vpump			
JTAG interface	SPI Slave interface		
TCK Mode: Free Running Clock	SCK Mode: Free Running Clock		
Force TCK Frequency	Force SCK Frequency		
	Set Default		

Figure 95 · Programmer Settings (FlashPro6 shown)

The Programmer Settings dialog includes setting options for FlashPro6/5/4/3/3X.

Limitation of the TCK frequency for the selected programmer:

- FlashPro6: 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11, 12, 13, 14, 15, 16, 17, 18, 19, 20 MHz
- FlashPro5: 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 10, 15, 30 MHz
- FlashPro4: 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6 MHz
- FlashPro3/3X: 1, 2, 3, 4, 6 MHz

TCK frequency limits by target device:

Refer to target device data sheet

During execution, the frequency set by the FREQUENCY statement in the PDB/STAPL file overrides the TCK frequency setting selected by you in the Programmer Settings dialog box unless you also select the Force TCK Frequency checkbox.

Limitation of the SCK frequency for the selected programmer: 1.00, 2.00, 2.50, 3.33, 4.00, 5.00, 6.67, 8.00, 10.00, 13.33, 20.00 MHz

FlashPro5/4/3/3X Programmer Settings

For FlashPro5/4/3/3X, you can choose the Set Vpump setting or the Force TCK Frequency. If you choose the Force TCK Frequency, select the appropriate MHz frequency. For FlashPro4/3X settings, you can switch the TCK mode between Free running clock and Discrete clocking. Discrete clocking should be used when there is a JTAG non-compliant device in a chain with Microsemi devices. After you have made your selections(s), click **OK**.

Default Settings

The Vpump option is checked to instruct the FlashPro5/4/3/3X programmer(s) to supply Vpump to the device.

NOTE: VPUMP voltage will not be checked for the SmartFusion2/IGLOO2 and newer families of devices. VPUMP does not need to be connected to the programmer for these devices.

- The Force TCK Frequency option is unchecked to instruct the FlashPro5/4/3/3X to use the TCK frequency specified by the Frequency statement in the PDB/STAPL file(s).
- FlashPro5/4/3/3X default TCK mode setting is Free running clock.



TCK Setting (ForceTCK Frequency)

If **Force TCK Frequency** is checked (in the **Programmer Setting**), the selected TCK value is set for the programmer and the Frequency statement in the PDB/STAPL file is ignored.

Default TCK frequency

When the IPD/STAPL file or Chain does not exist, the default TCK frequency is set to 4MHz. When more than one Microsemi flash device is targeted in the chain, the FlashPro Express software passes through all of the files and searches for the "freq" keyword and the "MAX_FREQ" **Note** field. The FlashPro Express software uses the lesser value of all the TCK frequency settings and the "MAX_FREQ" **Note** field values.

Select Programmer

In the Libero SoC Design Flow window, expand **Configure Hardware** and double-click **Select Programmer** to open the Select Programmer dialog. You can also right-click **Select Programmer** to open it. The dialog displays the name, type, and port of your programmer if it is connected.

A drop-down list shows all connected programmers, allowing you to select the programmer you want. If no programmers are connected, you can connect a programmer without closing the dialog and then click **Refresh/Rescan Programmers**. The connected programmer will appear in the drop-down list.

ogrammer	
89313	 •
Type: FlashPro4	
Port: usb89313 (USB 2.0)	

Figure 96 · Select Programmer Dialog

See Also

Programmer Settings

Tcl command select_programmer



Program Design

Generate FPGA Array Data

The Generate FPGA Array Data tool generates database files used in downstream tools:

• *.map and *.dca files used for Programming

Double-click **Generate FPGA Array Data** or right-click **Generate FPGA Array Data** in the Design Flow window and click **Run** to generate FPGA Array Data. Before running this tool, the design should have completed the Place and Route step. If not, Libero SoC runs implicitly the upstream tools (Synthesis, Compile Netlist, and Place and Route) before it generates the FPGA Array Data.



Figure 97 · Generate FPGA Array Data

Update uPROM Memory Content - RTG4 Only

Use the Update uPROM Memory Content tool if you have reserved space in the uPROM Configurator and, after Place and Route, you want to make changes to the uPROM clients. After you have updated the uPROM Memory Content, there is no need to rerun Place and Route.

To update the uPROM Memory Content from the Design Flow Window:

1. Right-click Update uPROM Memory Content in the Design Flow window and choose Configure Options.



Design Flow					8
Top Module	root): top		-	0	ø
Active Synthe	sis Implementation: synthesis				
Tool					-
V	Synthesize				
	Verify Post-Synthesized Design				
	• Generate Simulation File				
	Simulate				
V	Place and Route				
1	Verify Post Layout Implementation	n			
V	- • Generate Back Annotated Files				
	Simulate				
	🗠 💩 Verify Timing				
	🕰 Open SmartTime				
	🖳 🚺 Verify Power				
	IO Analyzer				
	💭 💭 SSN Analyzer				
<u> </u>	Program and Debug Design				
	Generate FPGA Array Data				
	Update uPROM Memory Content				
	Configure Hardware				
	Programming Connectivity and	Interface			
	- 🔊 Configure Programmer				
	Select Programmer				
	Configure I/O States During JTA	G Programmin	g		
	- 🗟 Configure Programming Options				
[Program Design				
	Generate Bitstream				
	Run PROGRAM Action				
	Figure 98 · Update uPROM Me	mory Content			

2. When the uPROM Update Tool appears, right-click the Memory Client you want to update and choose Edit.



		User di	ents in uPROM	
Usage statistics	Client Name	Start Address	36-bit words	
Available memory(36-bit words): 10400 Used memory(36-bit words): 700	1 my_client1	0x0	200	
Free memory(36-bit words): 9700	2 my_client2	Eder	500	
		Derete		
	-			

Figure 99 · uPROM Update Tool

Edit Data Storage Client	? X
Client name: my_client1	
Content from file:	
Format: Microsemi Binary 💌	
Ontent filled with 0s	
Start address: 0x 0	
Number of 36-bit words: 200 Decimal	
Use content for simulation	
Нер	Cancel

Figure 100 · Edit Data Storage Client Dialog Box

You can make the following changes to the uPROM client:

- Rename a Client
- Change the memory content, memory size and start address of the client
- Reverse your decision on whether or not to use Content for Simulation



Note: You cannot use the Update uPROM tool to add or delete a client. To add or delete a client, you must use the uPROM Configurator to reconfigure your Clients and regenerate your uPROM component and your design.

Update eNVM Memory Content (SmartFusion2 and IGLOO2)

Right-click **Update eNVM Memory Content** and choose **Configure Options** or double-click **Update eNVM Memory Content** to open the dialog box and modify your eNVM client configurations.

				eNV	M Update Tool				
					User clients i	n eNVM			
		Client Type	Client Name	DepthxWidth	Start Address(Hex)	Page Start	Page End	Initialization Order	Lock Start Address
	1	Data Storage	mem	256 x 8	0	0	1	N/A	
Add to System	2	G Serialization	ser_client	1 page	800	16	16	N/A	N/A
		(111				

Figure 101 · eVNM Update Dialog Box

The eNVM Update dialog box enables you to update your eNVM content without having to rerun Compile and Place and Route. It is useful if you have reserved space in the eNVM configurator within the MSS for firmware development, for example. Use the eNVM Update dialog box when you have completed your firmware development and wish to incorporate your updated firmware image file into the project.

Note: To disable a client for programming, you must modify the client and select "No Content (Client is a placeholder and will not be programmed)". The content from the memory file, serialization data file, or auto-incremented serialization content will be preserved if you later decide to enable this client for programming. Clients disabled for programming will not be included in the generated bitstream and will not be programmed.

Note: To delete, create, or rename a eNVM client, you must return to the MSS/System Builder eNVM Configurator. See <u>MSS Configuration - eNVM (User Guide)</u>

Modify Data Storage Client

Double-click the Storage Client to open the Modify Data Storage Client dialog box.

Note: You cannot add, delete or rename a data storage client at this point using the Modify Data Storage Client dialog box. To make such changes, return to the MSS or System BUilder eNVM configuration step.



Client name: my_data	
Content:	
Memory file:	
Format: Intel-Hex -	
Use absolute addressing	
Ontent filled with 0s	
No Content (Client is a placeholder and will	not be programmed)
Start address: 0x 0	
Size of word: 8 Bits	
Number of Words: 512	(Decimal)
🖾 Use as ROM 🚯	
Use Content for Simulation	
Help	Ok Cancel

Figure 102 · Modify Data Storage Client Dialog Box

You have three options to specify the eNVM content:

- Import a Memory File
- Fill eNVM content with Zero's
- Assign No Content (eNVM as a Placeholder). The client will not be included in the programming bitstream and will not be programmed

If you have completed Place and Route and you import a memory file for the eNVM content, you do not have to rerun Compile or Place and Route. You can program or export your programming file directly. Programming will generate a new programming file that includes your updated eNVM content.

You can also specify the start address where the data for that client starts, the word size and the number of words to reserve for the data storage client.

Modify Serialization Client

Double-click the Serialization Client to open the Modify Serialization Client dialog box.

Note: You cannot add, delete or rename a Serialization Client in the Modify Serialization Client dialog box. Go to the eNVM configurator inside the MSS/HPMS Configurator or the System Builder Memory page (eNVM tab) to make these changes.



Modify Serialization Clier	nt				? 🗙
Client name: my_serial eNVM					
Content:					
Content from file:					
Format:	Hexadecimal *				
Content auto increm	ented:				
Start Value:	0 × 0	Step Value	: 0x 20	Maximum Value:	0x 20
No content (Client is	s a placeholder and	d will not be pr	ogrammed)		
Start address:	200	٢	(Hexadecimal)		
Number of pages:	16		(128 bytes per page)		
Maximum devices to progra	m: 20		(Decimal)		
Use as ROM					
Help				Ok	Cancel

Figure 103 · Modify Serialization Client Dialog Box

You have three options to specify the eNVM content:

- Import a Memory File
- Fill eNVM content with Zero's
- Assign No Content (eNVM as a Placeholder). The client will not be included in the programming bitstream and will not be programmed

If you have completed Place and Route and you import a memory file for the eNVM content, you do not have to rerun Compile or Place and Route. You can program or export your programming file directly. Programming will generate a new programming file that includes your updated eNVM content.

You can also specify the start address where the data for the Serialization Client starts, the number of pages and the maximum number of devices you want to program serialization data into.

Setting a maximum number of devices to program for Serialization clients will generate a programming bitstream file that has serialization content for the number of devices specified. The maximum number of devices to program must match for all serialization clients. If the user would like to program a subset of the devices during production programming, this can be done within the FlashPro Express tool, which allows you to select a range of indices desired for programming for that serialization programming job session. Refer to the FlashPro Express User Guide for more information.

Configure Actions and Procedures

The Configure Actions and Procedures tool allows you to configure any action with optional or recommended procedures for a Libero target device. The information is saved and is used by the Run Action tool.

Notes:

- Available actions and their procedures depend on current bitstream components selected in the Generate Bitstream and Configure Options tools.
- Changing procedures for the action selected to run invalidates the Run Action tool state. Changing any other action does not affect the Run Action tool state.





To run this tool, from the Libero Design Flow window, expand Program Design and double-click **Configure Actions and Procedures**.



The Configure Actions and Procedures dialog box opens. See the following example figure.

Configure Actions and Procedures	? ×
Available actions and procedures depend on the selected Mandatory procedures are always included. You can include optional procedures(marked in blue) and Actions	bitstream components in the Generate Bitstream tool. exclude recommended procedures(marked in green). Procedures
DEVICE_INFO ENC_DATA_AUTHENTICATION ERASE PROGRAM READ_IDCODE VERIFY VERIFY_DIGEST	 ✓ INIT_VARIABLES_FOR_ACTION ✓ VERIFY_IDCODE ✓ PROC_ENABLE ✓ DO_ENABLE_FABRIC ✓ DO_ENABLE_SECURITY ✓ DO_ENABLE_USER_PUBLIC_KEY ✓ DO_VERIFY_DIGEST ✓ DO_EXIT
Help	Restore Default Procedures for the Action OK Cancel

Figure 104 · Configure Actions and Procedures Dialog Box Example



Note: The actions and procedures shown will vary depending on the device family you are using and the bitstream components selected in the Generate Bitstream and Configure Options tools.

The following table lists programming file actions and supported procedures.

- Mandatory procedures are grayed out and not selectable, and must be performed.
- Recommended procedures are shown in green, and can be included or excluded by the user.
- Optional procedures are shown in blue, and can be included or excluded by the user.

Table 3 · Programming File Actions and Supported Procedures

Action	Procedures
DEVICE_INFO	SET_DEVICE_INFO_ACTIONTYPE VERIFY_IDCODE DO_READ_CERTIFICATE DO_DEVICE_INFO DO_EXIT
ENC_DATA_AUTHENTICATION	SET_AUTHENTICATION_ACTIONTYPE VERIFY_IDCODE DO_AUTHENTICATION DO_EXIT
ERASE	SET_ERASE_ACTIONTYPE VERIFY_IDCODE DO_READ_CERTIFICATE PROC_ENABLE DO_SETUP_ENVM DO_PREPARE_BITSTREAM DO ERASE DO_POST_SETUP_ENVM DO_EXIT
PROGRAM	SET_PROGRAM_ACTIONTYPE VERIFY_IDCODE DO_READ_CERTIFICATE PROC_ENABLE DO_SETUP_ENVM DO_PREPARE_BITSTREAM DO_ERASE_SECURED DO_PROGRAM DO_VERIFY (optional) DO_POST_SETUP_ENVM DO_EXIT
READ_IDCODE	VERIFY_IDCODE DO_READ_CERTIFICATE PRINT_IDCODE DO_EXIT
VERIFY	SET_VERIFY_ACTIONTYPE VERIFY_IDCODE DO_READ_CERTIFICATE PROC_ENABLE DO_SETUP_ENVM DO_PREPARE_BITSTREAM DO_VERIFY



Action	Procedures
	DO_POST_SETUP_ENVM DO_EXIT
VERIFY_DIGEST	VERIFY_IDCODE DO_READ_CERTIFICATE PROC_ENABLE DO_VERIFY_DIGEST DO_EXIT

The table below lists programming file actions and descriptions.

Table 4	· Pro	arammino	File	Actions
	110	granning	1 110	/ 10110113

Action	Description
PROGRAM	Programs all selected family features: FPGA Array, targeted eNVM clients, and security settings.
ERASE	Erases the selected family features: FPGA Array and Security settings.
VERIFY_DIGEST	Calculates the digests for the components (Custom Security, Fabric, or eNVM) included in the bitstream and compares them against the programmed values.
VERIFY	Verifies all selected family features: FPGA Array, targeted eNVM clients, and security settings.
ENC_DATA_AUTHENTICA	Encrypted bitstream authentication data.
READ_IDCODE	Reads the device ID code from the device.
DEVICE_INFO	Displays the IDCODE, the design name, the checksum, and device security settings and programming environment information programmed into the device.

Options Available in Programming Actions

The table below shows the options available for specific programming actions.

Table 5 · Programming File Actions - Options

Action	Option and Description
PROGRAM	DO_VERIFY - Enables or disables programming verification

To configure actions for other JTAG devices use the Programming Connectivity and Interface tool.

Configure I/O States During JTAG Programming

In the Libero SoC Design Flow window expand Edit Design Hardware Configuration and double-click Configure I/O States During JTAG Programming to specify the I/O states prior to programming. This feature is only available once Layout is completed.



The default state for all I/Os is Tri-state.

To specify I/O states during programming:

- 1. Sort the pins as desired by clicking any of the column headers to sort the entries by that header. Select the I/Os you wish to modify (as shown in the figure below).
- Set the I/O Output state. You can set Basic I/O settings if you want to use the default I/O settings for your pins, or use Custom I/O settings to customize the settings for each pin. See the <u>Specifying I/O States During</u> <u>Programming - I/O States and BSR Details help topic</u> for more information on setting your I/O state and the corresponding pin values. Basic I/O state settings are:
 - 1 I/O is set to drive out logic High
 - 0 I/O is set to drive out logic Low
 - Last Known State: I/O is set to the last value that was driven out prior to entering the programming mode, and then held at that value during programming
 - Z Tri-State: I/O is tristated with weak pull up (10k ohm)

Specify I/O States During Programming - JTAG Mode Only ×				
<u>L</u> o	ad from file	e		Show BSR Details
	Port Name	Macro Cell	Pin Number	I/O State (Output Only)
1	UNUSED	UNUSED	31	Z
2	UNUSED	UNUSED	30	Z
	Help			<u>O</u> K <u>C</u> ancel

Figure 105 · I/O States During Programming Window

3. Click OK to save your settings.

Note: I/O States During programming will be used during programming or when exporting the bitstream.

Configure Programming Options (SmartFusion2 and IGLOO2)

From the Design Flow window, double-click **Configure Programming options** or right-click and choose **Configure Options**.



Design Flow			ć
Top Module(root): top	•	0	Ş
Active Synthesis Implementation: synthesis			
Tool			1
V Synthesize			_
Verify Post-Synthesized Design			
Generate Simulation File			
🖳 🚟 Simulate			
V Place and Route			
Verify Post Layout Implementation			
Generate Back Annotated Files			
📲 Simulate			
🔍 Verify Timing			
🖉 Open SmartTime			
🖳 🔯 Verify Power			
🖻 🕨 IO Analyzer			
🗮 SSN Analyzer			
Program and Debug Design			
• Generate FPGA Array Data			
Update uPROM Memory Content			
Configure Hardware			
Programming Connectivity and Interface			
- 🖓 Configure Programmer			
Select Programmer			
Configure I/O States During JTAG Programmi	ng		
🚽 🔜 Configure Programming Options			
Program Design			
Generate Bitstream			
Run PROGRAM Action			

Figure 106 · Configure Programming Bitstream Settings - Configure Options

The Configure Programming Options dialog box appears. This is where you configure programming options.



Configure Programming Options	X
Design name: mux2	
Design version (number between 0 and 65535):	
Silicon signature (max length is 8 HEX chars): 0x	
Programming recovery settings:	
Enable Auto Update	
Enable Programming Recovery	
SPI dock frequency: MHz	
SPI data transfer mode	
SPS: SPO: SPH: V	
Нер	Cancel

Figure 107 · Configure Programming Options Dialog Box

Options

Design Version - Enter a number between 0 and 65535 for the design version. This is the Design Version used for Auto Update Programming or for Backlevel protection.

Silicon signature (Hex) - Enter up to eight hexadecimal characters

Programming recovery settings:

The Programming Recovery settings enable you to set your Auto Update and Programming Recovery options for programming.

Auto Update takes place during power-up and compares your Update SPI image Design Version against the Design Version programmed in the device. It performs Auto Update programming on your SPI update Image if:

- The device has been programmed AND
- The Update SPI image Design Version is greater than the Design Version on the device

Auto Recovery enables the device to automatically reprogram itself if there is a power failure during programming.

Enable Auto Update - Click the checkbox to auto update the SPI update image at power up. Auto-update occurs only when the SPI update image Design Version is greater than the Design Version already on the device. When enabling Auto Update, Programming Recovery must also be enabled and this checkbox will be disabled.

Enable Programming Recovery - Click the checkbox to enable programming recovery in the event of a power failure during programming.

SPI clock frequency - Sets your SPI clock frequency. SPI is a full duplex, four-wire synchronous transfer protocol that supports programmable clock polarity (SPO) and clock phase (SPH). The state of SPO and SPH control bits decides the data transfer modes. See the <u>SmartFusion2 Microcontroller Subsystem User's Guide</u> or the <u>IGLOO2 High Performance Memory Subsystem User's Guide</u> for more information.

Select one of the following for the SPI Clock Frequency Values (MHz):

- 1.00
- 2.08
- 3.13
- 4.16



- 5.00
- 6.25
- 8.30
- 12.50

SPI data transfer mode - Sets your SPI data transfer mode for SPO and SPH. The SPO control bit determines the polarity of the clock and SPS defines the slave select behavior. SPS is hardcoded to b'1 and cannot be changed. The SPH control bit determines the clock edge that captures the data. See the <u>SmartFusion2</u> <u>Microcontroller Subsystem User's Guide</u> or the <u>IGLOO2 High Performance Memory Subsystem User's Guide</u> for more information.

Notes:

Programming Recovery cannot be updated with _UEK1 or _UEK2 programming files. Only the master programming file can be used.

SPI file programming for Auto Programming, Auto Update (IAP), Programming Recovery, and IAP/ISP Services currently can only program security once with the master file. Update files cannot update the security settings. In addition, Programming Recovery, Silicon Signature, Firewall, and Tamper Macro can only be programmed with the master file and cannot be updated.

Configure Programming Options (RTG4 Only)

From the Design Flow window, double-click **Configure Programming options** or right-click and choose **Configure Options**.



Design Flow			ć
Top Module(root): top	-	0	Ş
Active Synthesis Implementation: synthesis			
Tool			-
V Synthesize			
Verify Post-Synthesized Design			
• 🗋 Generate Simulation File			
🚆 Simulate			
V Place and Route			
Verify Post Layout Implementation			
Generate Back Annotated Files			
Simulate			
🖳 💁 Verify Timing			
🖳 🖏 Open SmartTime			
🖳 🔯 Verify Power			
🖻 🕨 IO Analyzer			
🖤 💓 SSN Analyzer			
Program and Debug Design			
• Generate FPGA Array Data			
Update uPROM Memory Content			
Configure Hardware			
Programming Connectivity and Interface			
- 👰 Configure Programmer			
- B Select Programmer			
🔚 Configure I/O States During JTAG Programmir	1g		
🔤 🔜 Configure Programming Options			
Program Design			
Generate Bitstream			
Run PROGRAM Action			

Figure 108 · Configure Programming Bitstream Settings - Configure Options

The Configure Programming Options dialog box appears. This is where you configure programming options.



Configure Programming Options	—
Design name: sd1	
Design version (number between 0 and 65535):	1
Silicon signature (max length is 8 HEX chars): 0x	abc
Programming Bitstream Settings	
One-time program	rammable (OTP)
 Enable System Controller Suspend mode Disable JTAG interface Disable SPI interface Disable Fabric Erase/Write/Verify Disable Probe Read/Write Disable Digest Check 	
Selected settings: - Enable Probe Read/Write. - Enable Digest Check.	
	Reset to default
Help	OK Cancel

Figure 109 · Programming Bitstream Settings Dialog Box (with Custom selected)


Configure Programming Options	×
Design name: ssd1	
Design version (number between 0 and 65535):	1
Silicon signature (max length is 8 HEX chars): 0x	abc
Programming Bitstream Settings	
Custom One-time prog	rammable (OTP)
Enable System Controller Suspend mode	
Disable JTAG interface	
Disable SPI interface	
Disable Fabric Erase/Write/Verify	
Disable Probe Read/Write	
Disable Digest Check	
Selected settings:	
You selected to make the device one-time After programming the device you will No or program the device. You will be able t actions VERIFY and VERIFY_DIGEST as w SmartDebug to debug with probes and re	e programmable. OT be able to erase o run programming vell as use ead the digest of
	Reset to default
Help	OK Cancel

Figure 110 · Programming Bitstream Settings Dialog Box (with One-time programmable (OTP) selected)

Options

Design Version - Enter a number between 0 and 65535 for the design version. **Silicon signature** (Hex) - Enter up to eight hexadecimal characters

Bitstream Settings

Custom

One-time programmable (OTP) - Select this option to make the device one-time programmable. After programming the device, you will not be able to erase or reprogram the device. You will be able to run



programming actions VERIFY and VERIFY_DIGEST, as well as use SmartDebug to debug with probes and read the digest of the Fabric.

Note: Refer to Table 4 in the RTG4 FPGA Datasheet for the maximum number of Verify Cycles per Program/Erase cycle after making the device one-time programmable.

Enable System Controller Suspend Mode – Check this box to enable System Controller Suspend Mode when TRSTB is low during device power up. You can exit System Controller Suspend Mode by driving TRSTB high during device power up. By default, this selection is not checked.

Note: By default, when this options is selected, the JTAG interface will be disabled to ensure proper hardening during System Controller Suspend Mode.

Disable JTAG Interface – Check this box to disable the JTAG interface when TRSTB is low during device power up. You can enable the JTAG interface by driving TRSTB high during device power up. By default, this selection is not checked.

Disable SPI Interface – This box is grayed out; the SPI interface is not supported for RGT4.

Note: If JTAG interface is disabled, the following settings will all be disabled for selection.

Disable Fabric Erase/Write/Verify - Check this box to disable Fabric Erase/Write/Verify when TRSTB is low during device power up. You can enable Fabric Erase/Write/Verify by driving TRSTB high during device power up. By default, this selection is not checked.

Disable Probe Read/Write – Check this box to disable Probe Read/Write when TRSTB is low during device power up. You can enable Probe Read/Write by driving TRSTB high during device power up. By default, this selection is not checked.

Note: For this option to be available, you must reserve pins for Probe in the project settings of the Libero project(Project > Project Settings > Device Settings).

Disable Digest Check – Check this box to disable all Fabric reads, such as verify digest, read digest, or reading design or programming information in DEVICE_INFO when TRSTB is low during device power up. You can enable Digest Check by driving TRSTB high during device power up.

Reset to default - Click to reset the Settings to the default values.

Selected device options: This section provides a summary of the settings configured and informs the user about the expected behavior of the device with these options.

Configure Security

Configure Security Policy Manager

In the Design Flow window, double-click **Configure Security** to open the Security Policy Manager dialog box and customize the security settings in your design.

Use this dialog box to set your User Keys, Security Policies, and Microsemi factory test mode access level.

Note: Microsemi enabled default bitstream encryption key modes are disabled after user security is programmed.



ntv key mode		Security policies	
itstream encryption with default kev		Security policies	
			i = us
nable custom security options		Debug Policy	i = usi
		Key Mode Policy	
keys and Security policies protection		Microsemi factory test mode access level	
Vrite-protect using FlashLock/UPK1		C Allow factory test mode access	
ermanently write-protect		Protect factory test mode access using FlashLock/UPK1	
		C Permanently protect factory test mode access	
r Key Set 1			
shLock/UPK1 (64 HEX chars):	🖌 0x		Êo
K1 (User Encryption Key 1) (64 HEX chars): 🤞	0x		
User Key Set 2			
K2 (User Pass Key 2) (64 HEX chars):	0x		- Ba
K2 () lear Engruption Key 2) (64 HEY chare);	0x		
(2 (dder Eind ypdorritely 2) (officer and a).	5A]		
User PUF Encryption Key			
K3 (User Encryption Key 3) (64 HEX chars):	0x		or the
ed Security options:			
	Figure 111 · Secu	urity Policy Manager Dialog Box	OK
urity Policy Manager	Figure 111 · Secu	urity Policy Manager Dialog Box	OK
urity Policy Manager ecurity key mode	Figure 111 · Secu	urity Policy Manager Dialog Box	OK
urity Policy Manager ecurity key mode ^ Bitstream encryption with default key	Figure 111 · Secu	urity Policy Manager Dialog Box	СК
urity Policy Manager ecurity key mode	Figure 111 · Secu	Urity Policy Manager Dialog Box	OK
urity Policy Manager ecurity key mode © Bitstream encryption with default key C Enable custom security options	Figure 111 · Secu	Urity Policy Manager Dialog Box	OK
urity Policy Manager exurity key mode © Bitstream encryption with default key © Enable custom security options ser keys and Security policies protection	Figure 111 · Secu	Urity Policy Manager Dialog Box	OK CK
urity Policy Manager exurity key mode © Bitstream encryption with default key © Enable custom security options leter keys and Security policies protection Unite-protect using FlashLock/UFK1	Figure 111 · Secu	Urity Policy Manager Dialog Box	OK CK
urity Policy Manager ecurity key mode Bitstream encryption with default key Enable custom security options ser keys and Security policies protection Write-protect using FlashLock/UPK1 Permanently write-protect	Figure 111 · Secu	Urity Policy Manager Dialog Box Security polices Update Polcy Debug Polcy Key Mode Polcy Mcrosem factory test mode access level C Alow factory test mode access Protect factory test mode access using FlashLodyUPK1 C Protect factory test mode access	OK
urity Policy Manager ecurty key mode Bitstream encryption with default key Enable custom security options ser keys and Security policies protection Write protect using FlashLock/UPK1 Permanently write-protect	Figure 111 · Secu	Urity Policy Manager Dialog Box Security polices Update Polcy Debug Polcy Key Mode Polcy Key Mode Polcy C Allow factory test mode access level C Allow factory test mode access C Protect factory test mode access C Permanently protect factory test mode access	OK Lise
urity Policy Manager ecurity key mode © Bitstream encryption with default key © Enable custom security options ser keys and Security policies protection © Write-protect using FlashLock/UFK1 © Permanently write-protect User Key Set 1	Figure 111 · Secu	Unity Policy Manager Dialog Box Security polices Update Policy Debug Policy Microsenti factory test mode access level Allow factory test mode access Protect factory test mode access Permanently protect factory test mode access	Г Use
writy Policy Manager ecurity key mode Bitstream encryption with default key Enable custom security options ser keys and Security policies protection Write-protect using FlashLock/UPK1 Permanently write-protect User Key Set 1 HashLock/UPK1 (64 HEX chars):	Figure 111 · Secu	Statute Policy Manager Dialog Box	OK
writy Policy Manager ecurity key mode Bitstream encryption with default key Enable custom security options ser keys and Security policies protection Write-protect using FlashLock/UPK1 Permanently write-protect User Key Set 1 FlashLock/UPK1 (C4 HEX chare): UEK1 (User Encryption Key 1) (C4 HEX chare):	Figure 111 · Secu 0x EEB130DC4670773CA0B2D08A6D 0x 000D27A6F726DB5027069BBEEL0	Unity Policy Manager Dialog Box Security polices Update Polcy Debug Polcy Key Mode Polcy Key Mode Polcy Key Mode Polcy C Alow factory test mode access level Protect factory test mode access using PlashLock/UPK1 Premanently protect factory test mode access	OK
urity Policy Manager ecurity key mode Bitstream encryption with default key Enable custom security options ser keys and Security policies protection Write-protect using FlashLock/UPK1 Permanently write-protect User Key Set 1 FlashLock/UPK1 (G4 HEX chars): UEK1 (User Encryption Key 1) (G4 HEX chars): Viser Key Set 2	Figure 111 · Secu 0x EEB130DC4670773CA0B2D08A6D 0x 000D27A6F7E0D5F027009BEEL0	Unity Policy Manager Dialog Box Security polices Update Poley Debug Poley Debug Poley Key Mode Poley Key Mode Poley C Alow factory test mode access level Protect factory test mode access using PlashLock/UPK1 Permanently potect factory test mode access	OK
urity Policy Manager ecurty key mode Bitstream encryption with default key Enable custom security options ser keys and Security policies protection Write-protect using FlashLock/UPK1 Permanently write-protect User Key Set 1 FlashLock/UPK1 (64 HEX chars): UEK1 (User Encryption Key 1) (64 HEX chars): VUSer Key Set 2 USer Key Set 2 USer Key Set 2 USer Key Set 2 (64 HEX chars):	Figure 111 · Secu 0x EEB130DC4670773CA0B2D08A6D 0x 0000D27A6F726D5F027069BEEL0 0x 2AD4C52005BF96900BF09BC9BF09BC9F59	Unity Policy Manager Dialog Box Security polices Update Poley Debug Poley Debug Poley Key Mode Poley Key Mode Poley C Alow factory test mode access level Protect factory test mode access Polytic factory test	СК Г Use Г Use С С С С С С С С С С
urity Policy Manager exurity key mode To Itstream encryption with default key Enable custom security options ser keys and Security policies protection Write-protect using FlashLock/UPK1 Thermanently write-protect User Key Set 1 FlashLock/UPK1 (64 HEX chars): UEK1 (User Encryption Key 1) (64 HEX chars): UUEK1 (User Pass Key 2) (64 HEX chars): UEK2 (User Pass Key 2) (64 HEX chars): UEK2 (User Encryption Key 1) (64 HEX chars): UEK2 (User Encryption Key 2) (64 HEX chars): UEK2 (User Key 2	Figure 111 · Secu 0x EEB130DC4670773CA0B2D08AcD 0x 000027A6F78806BF027093BE410 0x 000027A6F78806BF027093BE410 0x 5A0A65F691F3F30CA23E72E1AC	Unity Policy Manager Dialog Box Security polices Update Policy Debug Policy Mcrosenf factory test mode access level Alow factory test mode access using FlashLock/UPK1 Protect factory test mode access DIPDEB2AAD5081FC01CA84D424396A20DA6DA83 D285LIP79C2985DCA85IAC597D385287BB T3667156694D4C6857930B83A51D771D41B86AAF T2556C596C698340D2CFDBD877B737441A686CB	OK CK
urity Policy Manager exurity Policy Manager exurity key mode To Bistream encryption with default key Enable custom security options ser keys and Security policies protection Write-protect using FlashLock/UPK1 Permanently write-protect User Key Set 1 FlashLock/UPK1 (64 HEX chars): User Key Set 2 URK1 (User Encryption Key 1) (64 HEX chars): USer Xey Set 2 URK2 (User Pass Key 2) (64 HEX chars): USER 2 (User Encryption Key 2) (64 HEX chars): USER 2 (User Encryption Key 2) (64 HEX chars):	Figure 111 · Secu 0x EEB130DC4670773CA0B2D08AED 0x 000027AEF7E0D5F027089BE610 0x 2AD4C52005BF96900BFC9BC9F5 0x 9A0A05F691F3F30CA23E72E1AC	Urity Policy Manager Dialog Box Security polices Update Polcy Debug Polcy Key Mode Polcy Microsem factory test mode access level Alow factory test mode access Protect factory test mode access Protect factory test mode access Protect factory test mode access STPEFEBEAAD50E1FC91CA84D424396A20DA6DA83 DIFDEBEAAD50E1FC91CA84D424396A20DA6DA83 DIFDEBEAAF DIFDEBEAAD50E1FC91CA84D424396A20D46DA83 DIFDEBEAAF DIFDEBEAAD50E1FC91CA84D424396A20D46DA83 DIFDEBEAAF DIFDEBEAAF DIFDEBEAAD50E1FC91CA84D424396A20D46DA83 DIFDEBEAAF DIFDEBEAAF DIFDEBEAAD50E1FC91CA84D444444 DIFDEBEAAF DIFDEBEAAF DIFDEBEAAF DIFDEBEAAF DIFDEBEAAF	
urity Policy Manager exurtly key mode Bitstream encryption with default key Enable custom security options ser keys and Security policies protection Write-protect using FlashLodyUFK1 Permanently write-protect User Key Set 1 FlashLodyUFK1 (64 HEX chars): UEK1 (User Encryption Key 1) (64 HEX chars): UEK2 (User Pass Key 2) (64 HEX chars): UEK2 (User Encryption Key 2) (64 HEX chars): UEK2 (User Encryption Key 2) (64 HEX chars): USer PUF Encryption Key 2)	Figure 111 · Secu 0x EEB130DC4670773CA082D08A6D 0x 000D27A6F7E9D5F027009BEC10 0x 000D27A6F7E9D5F027009BEC10 0x 2AD4C52005BF36500BFC5BC9F5 0x SABAB5F651F3F30CA23E72E1AC 0x EBD20361E3E5CF2200642FBF502	Unity Policy Manager Dialog Box Security poles Update Poley Debug Poley Mcrosem factory test mode access level Alow factory test mode access level Alow factory test mode access level Alow factory test mode access using FlashLodyUPK1 Protect factory test mode access Protect factory test mode acce	
urity Policy Manager ecurty key mode curty key mode Bitstream encryption with default key Enable custom security options er keys and Security opticles protection Write-protect using FlashLock/UFK1 Permanently write-protect User Key Set 1 FlashLock/UFK1 (64 HEX chars): UEK2 (User Encryption Key 1) (64 HEX chars): UEK2 (User Pass Key 2) (64 HEX chars): UEK2 (User Pass Key 2) (64 HEX chars): UEK2 (User Encryption Key 2) (64 HEX chars):	Figure 111 · Secu 0x EEB130DC4670773CA0B2D08AcD 0x 000027A6F7EBD6F027085BE610 0x 9A04052006BF59500BF59B05F5 0x 9A04052006BF59500BF59B05F5 0x 9A04052006BF59500BF59B05F5 0x 6A04052006BF59500BF59B05F5 0x 6A04052006BF59500BF59B05F5 0x 6A04052006BF59500BF59B05F5	Update Policy Security policies Update Policy Debug Policy Key Mode Policy Key Mode Policy Key Mode Policy Key Mode Policy Protect factory test mode access level Allow factory test mode access level Protect factory test mode access using FlashLock/UPK1 Permanently protect factory test mode access PITPEE2AAD60E1FC91CA84D424396A20DA6DA83 PITPEE2AAD60E1FC91CA84D48 PITPEE2AAD60E1FC91C484D48 PITPEE2AAD60E1FC91C484D48 PITPEE2AAD60E1FC91C484D48 PITPEE2AAD60E1FC91C484D48 PITPEE2AAD60E1FC91C484D48 PITPEE2AAD60E1FC91C484D48 PITPEE2AAD60E1FC91C484D68 PITPEE2AAF7	
urity Policy Manager ecurity Policy Manager ecurity key mode The Bitsheam encryption with default key Enable custom security options Write-protect using FlashLock/UFK1 Permanently write-protect User Key Set 1 FlashLock/UFK1 (64 HEX chars): UEK2 (User Encryption Key 1) (64 HEX chars): UK22 (User Encryption Key 2) (64 HEX chars): UK22 (User Encryption Key 2) (64 HEX chars): UK22 (User Encryption Key 2) (64 HEX chars): UK23 (User Encryption Key 2) (64 HEX chars): UK23 (User Encryption Key 2) (64 HEX chars): EK23 (User Encryption Key 2) (64 HEX chars): EK33 (User Encryption Key 3) (64 HEX chars): EK33 (User Encryption Key 3) (64 HEX chars): EK33 (User Encryption Key 3) (64 HEX chars): EK445 Security options: Ekses and Security Policies protection	Figure 1111 · Secu 0x EEB130DC4670773CA082D08AcD 0x 000027A6F7E8D6F027089BE610 0x 000027A6F7E8D6F027089BE610 0x 9A8A85F691F3F30CA23872E1AC 0x 6BA28361E3850F2200542FBF902	Update Policy Security policies Update Policy Debug Policy Key Mode Policy Key Mode Policy Key Mode Policy Key Mode Policy Protect factory test mode access level Protect factory test mode access using FlashLock/UPK1 Permanently protect factory test mode access PTPGE2BEAAD60E1FC91CA84D424396A20DA6DA83 PDF7E6F15664D4C0A57930BB3A51D771D41BB6AAF PTPGE2BEAD60E15A0E2756078F0E299966A51FF PHONE Pho	
urity Policy Manager ecurity key mode curity key mode Bitstream encryption with default key Enable custom security options Bitstream encryption with default key Enable custom security options Bitstream encryption Key 1000 Bitstream Encryption Key	Figure 1111 · Secu 0x EEB130DC4670773CA0B2D08AcD 0x 000027A6F7E8D5F027089BE610 0x 000027A6F7E8D5F027089BE610 0x 9A8A85F651F3F30CA23872E1Ac 0x 9A8A85F651F3F30CA23872E1Ac 0x 6BA8385F651F3F30CA23872E1Ac 0x 6BA8385F651F3F30CA23872E1Ac 0x 6BA8385F651F3F30CA23872E1Ac 0x 6BA8385F651F3F30CA23872E1Ac 0x 6BA8385F651F3F30CA23872E1Ac 0x 6BA8385F651F3F30CA23872E1Ac	Urity Policy Manager Dialog Box Security poldes Update Polcy Debug Polcy Key Mode Polcy Key Mode Polcy Key Mode Polcy Key Mode Polcy Protect factory test mode access level Alow factory test mode access level Protect factory test mode access using FlashLock/UPK1 Permanenty protect factory test mode access PTPDEB2AAD60E1FC91CA04D424396A20DA6DA83 PTPDEB2AAD60E1FC91CA04D48 PTPDEB2AAD60E1FC91CA04D48 PTPDEB2AAD60E1FC91CA04D48 PTPDEB2AD60E1FC91CA04D48 PTPDEB2AAD60E1FC91CA04D48 PTPDEB2AAD60E1FC91CA04D48 PTPDEB2AAD60E1FC91CA04D48 PTPDEB2AAD60E1FC91CA04D48 PTPDEB2AAD60E1FC91CA04D48 PTPDEB2AAD60E1FC91CA04D48 PTPDEB2AD60E1FC91CA04D48 PTPDEB2AD60E1FC91CA04D48 PTPDEFEAAF6 PTPDEFEAAF60 PTPDEFEAAF68 PTPDEFEAF68 PTPDEFEAAF68 PTPDEFEAF68 PTPDEFEAF68 PTPDEFEAF68 PTPDEFEAF68 P	
urity Policy Manager exurity key mode Bitstream encryption with default key Enable custom security options ser keys and Security policies protection Write-protect using FlashLock/UFK1 Permanently write-protect User Key Set 1 FlashLock/UFK1 (64 HEX chars): UEK1 (User Encryption Key 1) (64 HEX chars): UK2 (User Encryption Key 1) (64 HEX chars): UK2 (User Encryption Key 2) (64 HEX chars): UK2 (User Encryption Key 3) (64 HEX chars): Extend Security Policies protection Protect UK1, UK2, DFR and Security Policies protec	Figure 1111 · Secu 0x EEB130DC4670773CA082D08ACD 0x 000027A67788D5F027089BE610 0x 000027A67788D5F027089BE610 0x 2AD4C52005BF56900BFC9BC9F5 0x 9A8A85F691F3F30CA28F22E1AC 0x 6BA23361E385CF220542FBF902 0x 6BA23361E385CF220542FBF902 0x 6BA23361E385CF220542FBF902 0x 6BA23361E385CF220542FBF902	event SRAM PUF System Service requests from affecting UEX3	
urity Policy Manager exurity key mode Bitstream encryption with default key Enable custom security options ser keys and Security policies protection Write-protect using FlashLock/UFK1 Permanently write-protect User Key Set 1 FlashLock/UFK1 (64 HEX chars): UEK1 (User Encryption Key 1) (64 HEX chars): UK2 (User Encryption Key 1) (64 HEX chars): UK2 (User Encryption Key 2) (64 HEX chars): UK2 (User Encryption Key 2) (64 HEX chars): UK2 (User Encryption Key 2) (64 HEX chars): Exted Security Policies protection Protect UK1, UK2, DPK and Security Policies protection Protect UK1, PK1, PK1, PK1, PK1, PK1, PK1, PK1, P	Figure 1111 · Secu 0x EEB130DC4670773CA082D08ACD 0x 000027A6F788D5F027089BE610 0x 000027A6F788D5F027089BE610 0x 2AD4C52005BF56900BFC9BC9F5 0x 9A8A85F691F3F30CA28F22E1AC 0x 6BA23361E385CF220542FBF902 0x 6BA23361E385CF220542FBF902 0x 6BA23361E385CF220542FBF902 0x 6BA23361E385CF220542FBF902 0x FBAHLock/UPK1. Histream using FlashLock/UPK1. Mathematic and provider. de access using FlashLock/UPK1. Mathematic and provider.	event SRAM PUF System Service requests from affecting UEX3	

Figure 112 · Security Policy Manager Dialog Box (for devices supporting UEK3)

Security Key Mode

• **Bitstream encryption with default key** - Encrypt bitstream files with Microsemi default key (pre-placed key in silicon). When this option is selected, user keys, security and Microsemi factory test mode access level configurations are disabled.



• Enable custom security options - Enables you to set User Keys, Security Policies and Microsemi factory test mode access level (see below for a description).

User keys and Security policies protection

• Write-protect using FlashLock/UPK1 - Protect UEK1 (User Encryption Key 1), UEK2 (User Encryption Key 2), DPK (Debug Pass Key) and Security Policies using FlashLock/ UPK1. Protect modification to UEK3 via bitstream using FlashLock/UPK1. Note that even after programming Security settings, SRAM-PUF System services can still modify UEK3.

Note: UEK2 (User Encryption Key2) is protected by UPK2 (User Pass Key 2).

Note: UEK3 is only available for M2S060, M2GL060, M2S090, M2GL090, M2S150 and M2GL150 devices. See the <u>SmartFusion2 SoC FPGA and IGLOO2 FPGA Security Best Practices User Guide</u> for more details.

 Permanently write-protect - Permanently protect UEK1 (User Encryption Key 1), UPK2 (User Pass Key 2), UEK2 (User Encryption Key 2), DPK (Debug Pass Key), Security Policies, and Microsemi factory test mode access level. Permanently protect modification to UEK3 via bitstream. Note that even after programming Security settings, SRAM-PUF System services can still modify UEK3 This setting, once programmed will not be modified in the device. Microsemi enabled default bitstream encryption key modes are permanently disabled as well.

Note: When this option is selected, you cannot specify the FlashLock/UPK 1 and UPK2 (User Pass Key 2) value, since the value cannot be used to unlock the corresponding protected features.

Note: UEK3 is only available for M2S060, M2GL060, M2S090, M2GL090, M2S150 and M2GL150 devices. See the <u>SmartFusion2 SoC FPGA and IGLOO2 FPGA Security Best Practices User Guide</u> for more details.

Microsemi Factory Test Mode Access Level

Allow factory test mode access - Allows access to Microsemi factory test mode.

- Protect factory test mode access using FlashLock/UPK1 Protects access to Microsemi factory test mode using Flashlock/ UPK1.
- Permanently protect factory test mode access Permanently locks access to Microsemi factory test mode.

Note: When this option is selected, User Key Set 2 is permanently write-protected. Once programmed, User Key Set 2 cannot be changed in the device. You can specify UEK2 (User Encryption Key 2). However, you cannot specify UPK2 (User Pass Key 2), since the value cannot be used to unlock User Key Set 2.

Security Policies

• **Update Policy** - Sets your Fabric, eNVM and Back Level protections. It also allows you to disable access to certain programming interfaces. See the <u>Update Policy topic</u> for more information.

Note: If Update Policy is enabled and Fabric update is protected by UPK1:

Fabric update is disabled for Auto Programming, IAP/ISP services, Programming Recovery and Auto update. FlashLock/UPK1 unlocking is only available for JTAG and SPI slave programming. See the following example.



Update Policy	×
Lise Elashi ock/LIPK1 to unlock Erase Mirite Nerify operations	-
eNVM undate protection:	
Updates allowed using UEK1 or UEK2 or UEK3: FlashLock/UPK1 is not required for updates	•
Back Level protection	_
Design version (number between 0 and 65535):	
Back Level version (number between 0 and 65535):	
Back Level Bypass	
Disable access to the following programming interfaces:	
✓ Auto Programming	
✓ IAP/ISP Services	
JTAG (use FlashLock/UPK1 to unlock)	
SPI Slave (use FlashLock/UPK1 to unlock)	
Disable programming update of Fabric (use FlashLock/UPK1 to unlock Erase/Write/Verify). Allow programming update of eNVM using encryption keys; FlashLock/UPK1 is not required. Disable access to the following programming interfaces: - Auto Programming - IAP/ISP Services	
Fabric update is disabled for Auto Programming, IAP/ISP Services, Programming Recovery and Auto Update. FlashLock/UPK1 unlocking is only available for JTAG and SPI Slave programming.	
Help OK Ca	ancel

Figure 113 · Update Policy Dialog Box denoting Fabric update protection by Flashlock/UPK1



ecurity key mode		Security policies		
Bitstream encryption with default key		Update Policy	Use Use	
• Enable custom security options		Debug Policy	Use	
		Key Mode Policy	Use	
Iser keys and Security policies protection		Microsemi factory test mode access level		
Write-protect using FlashLock/UPK1		Allow factory test mode access		
C Permanently write-protect		C Protect factory test mode access using FlashLock/UPK1 C Permanently protect factory test mode access		
-User Key Set 1				
FlashLock/UPK1 (64 HEX chars):	0x 3FD86186F1F40	DE6A8182ADE30BC006FADD00AC9185FCA68D5D6CF2071FA2E7CD		
UEK1 (User Encryption Key 1) (64 HEX chars):	0x C09FF0DE276DE	BD7D2D4EE418EB4CC6B870E6BFEA74682ADED08115DE33A31F14		
User Key Set 2				
UPK2 (User Pass Key 2) (64 HEX chars):	0x		- Bo	
UEK2 (User Encryption Key 2) (64 HEX chars):	0x			
User PUF Encryption Key				
UEK3 (User Encryption Key 3) (64 HEX chars):	0x		<u> </u>	
odate Policy			<u> </u>	
Disable programming update of Fab Allow programming update of eNVM Disable access to the following prog - Auto Programmin - IAP/ISP Services	pric (use FlashLock/UPK1 to 1 using encryption keys; Fla: gramming interfaces: 19	unlock Erase/Write/Venfry). shLodk/UPK1 is not required.	1	
Fabric update is disabled for Auto P	Programming, IAP/ISP Servic vailable for JTAG and SPI Sla	ces, Programming Recovery and Auto Update. ave programming.		
FlashLock/UPK1 unlocking is only av				

Figure 114 · Security Policy Manager with Update Policy description for Fabric Update Protection by Flashlock/UPK1

- **Debug Policy** Enables and sets your Debug Pass Key and debug options. See the <u>Debug Policy topic</u> for more information.
- Key Mode Policy Configures the key mode to enable or disable. See the Key Mode Policy topic for more information.

Configuring User Keys

- User Key Set 1 is required. User Key Set 1 includes FlashLock/UPK1 (User Pass Key 1) and UEK1 (User Encryption Key 1).
- User Key Set 2 is optional. User Key Set 2 includes UPK2 (User Pass Key 2) and UEK2 (User Encryption Key 2). Note that User Pass Key 2 (UPK2) protects only User Encryption Key 2 (UEK2).
- User PUF Encryption Key is optional. User PUF Encryption Key includes UEK3 (User Encryption Key 3).

Note: UEK3 is only available for M2S060, M2GL060, M2S090, M2GL090, M2S150 and M2GL150 devices. See the <u>SmartFusion2 SoC FPGA and IGLOO2 FPGA Security Best Practices User Guide</u> for more details.

Update Policy

This dialog box enables you to specify components that can be updated in the field, and their field-update protection parameters.

Choose your protection options from the drop-down menus; click the appropriate checkbox to set your programming protection preferences.

Fabric update protection

• Use FlashLock/UPK1 to unlock Erase/Write/Verify operations- Select this option to require UPK1 to erase, write, or verify the Fabric.



Note: Fabric update is disabled for Auto Programming, IAP/ISP services, Programming Recovery and Auto update. FlashLock/UPK1 unlocking is only available for JTAG and SPI slave.

• Updates allowed using UEK1 or UEK2 or UEK3; FlashLock/UPK1 is not required for updates -Encrypted update is allowed with either UEK1 or UEK2 (if enabled).

Note: UEK3 is only available for M2S060, M2GL060, M2S090, M2GL090, M2S150 and M2GL150 devices. See the <u>SmartFusion2 SoC FPGA and IGLOO2 FPGA Security Best Practices User Guide</u> for more details.

eNVM update protection

• Use FlashLock/UPK1 to unlock Write/Verify/Read operations- Select this option to require UPK1 to write, verify or read to the eNVM.

Note: eNVM update is disabled for Auto Programming, IAP/ISP Services, Programming Recovery and Auto Update. FlashLock/UPK1 unlocking is only available for JTAG and SPI Slave programming.

• Updates allowed using UEK1 or UEK2 or UEK3; Flashlock/UPK1 is not required for updates -Encrypted update is allowed with either UEK1 or UEK2 (if enabled) or UEK3 (if enabled).

Note: UEK3 is only available for M2S060, M2GL060, M2S090, M2GL090, M2S150 and M2GL150 devices.

Back Level protection - When enabled, a design being loaded must be of a version higher than the Back Level version value in the programmed device.

- Back Level Protection- Limits the design versions that the device can update. Only programming bitstreams with Designer Version greater than the Back Level version are allowed for programming.
- **Design version** Displays the current Design version (set in the <u>Configure Programming Options</u>). Back level uses the Design version value to determine which bitstreams are allowed for programming.
- Back Level Bypass If selected, design is programmed irrespective of Back Level version.

Note: Back Level Bypass should be set if you allow programming recover with recovery image lower than the Back Level version selected. Alternatively, you should update the design version of the recovery image so that it is always greater than the Back Level version. (Refer to the <u>Configure Programming Recovery section</u> for details.)

Disable access to the following programming interfaces:

These settings protect the following programming interfaces:

- Auto Programming
- IAP/ISP services
- JTAG (use FlashLock to/UPK1 to unlock)
- SPI Slave (use FlashLock/UPK1 to unlock)

For more technical information on the Protect Programming Interface with Pass Key option see the <u>SmartFusion2</u> <u>Programming User's Guide</u>.

Note that when the Permanently write-protect option is selected for User keys and Security policies protection in SPM, the dialog box informs you of features that are no longer reprogrammable. In this case, if Use FlashLock/UPK1 to unlock option is selected for Fabric/eNVM update protection then Fabric/eNVM will be One Time Programmable.



	Use FlashLock/UPK1 to unlock Erase/Write/Verify operations
eN\	/M update protection: 🔥
	Use FlashLock/UPK1 to unlock Write/Verify/Read operations
	Back Level protection
8	Design version (number between 0 and 65535):
	Back Level version (number between 0 and 65535):
	Back Level Bypass
Disi	able access to the following programming interfaces:
0	Auto Programming
Ð	✓ IAP/ISP Services
	JTAG (use FlashLock/UPK1 to unlock)
	SPI Slave (use FlashLock/UPK1 to unlock)
Dis Dis	able programming update of the following features: - Fabric (use FlashLock/UPK1 to unlock Erase/Write/Verify) - eNVM (use FlashLock/UPK1 to unlock Write/Verify/Read) able access to the following programming interfaces: - Auto Programming - IAP/ISP Services
Fal Au	oric update is disabled for Auto Programming, IAP/ISP Services, Programming Recovery and to Update. FlashLock/UPK1 unlocking is only available for JTAG and SPI Slave programming.

Figure 115 · Update Policy Dialog Box

Debug Security Policy

Debug access to the embedded systems can be controlled via the customer Debug Policy.

Protect Embedded Debug with DPK (Debug Pass Key)

Restrict UJTAG access - Restricts access to UJTAG; DPK is required for access.

Restrict Cortex M3 debug (SmartFusion2 Only) - Restricts Cortex M3 debug/SoftConsole use; DPK is required for debug.

SmartDebug access control

Access control available during debug mode.

Full Access (No restrictions to SmartDebug architecture; DPK is not required)- Enables full debug access to eNVM, uSRAM, LSRAM, eSRAM0/1, DDRAM and Fabric probing.

No debug (Restrict read/write access to SmartDebug architecture; DPK is required for read/write access) -Blocks all debug access to eNVM, uSRAM, LSRAM, eSRAM0/1, DDRAM and Fabric probing.

DPK (Debug Pass Key) (length is 64 HEX characters)

Specify a Debug Pass Key to unlock features protected by DPK.

Restrict external Fabric/eNVM design digest check request via JTAG and SPI. Use FlashLock/UPK1 to allow digest check. - Protects design digest check request with FlashLock/UPK1.



Disable debug access through JTAG (1149.1). Use FlashLock/UPK1 to allow access. - Disables JTAG (1149.1) test instructions. The following JTAG test instructions will be disabled: HIGHZ, EXTEST, INTEST, CLAMP, SAMPLE, and PRELOAD. I/Os will be tri-stated when in JTAG programming mode and BSR control during programming is disabled. BYPASS, IDCODE, and USERCODE instructions will remain functional.

Debug Security Policy		
Protect Embedded Debug with DPK (Debug Pass Key)		
Disable UJTAG access		
Disable Cortex M3/SoftConsole debug		
SmartDebug access control:		
Full access (no restrictions to SmartDebug architecture; DPK is not required)		
DPK (Debug Pass Key) (64 HEX chars)		
0x [6
Restrict external Fabric/eNVM design digest check request via JTAG and SPI. Use FlashLock/UPK1 to allow the diges	it check.	
Disable debug access through JTAG (1149, 1). Use FlashLock/UPK1 to allow access.		
Help	ОК	Cancel

Figure 116 · Debug Security Policy Dialog Box

Key Mode Policy

Protect user encryption key modes with FlashLock/UPK1. If a key mode is disabled, then FlashLock/UPK1 is required to program with that key mode.

The following key modes can be disabled:

- UEK1 (User Encryption Key 1)
- UEK2 (User Encryption Key 2)
- UEK3 (User Encryption Key 3)

Note: UEK3 is only available for M2S060, M2GL060, M2S090, M2GL090, M2S150 and M2GL150 devices. See the <u>SmartFusion2 SoC FPGA and IGLOO2 FPGA Security Best Practices User Guide</u> for more details.

If all key modes are disabled then device update is impossible. A warning message is displayed in this case. **Note:** If a key mode is disabled, the corresponding bitstream file will be disabled.



Programming Key Mode Policy
Disable Key Mode:
UEK1 (User Encryption Key 1)
UEK2 (User Encryption Key 2)
Help OK Cancel
Figure 117 · Programming Key Mode Policy Dialog Box
Programming Key Mode Policy
Disable Key Mode:
UEK1 (User Encryption Key 1)
UEK2 (User Encryption Key 2)
UEK3 (User Encryption Key 3)

Figure 118 · Programming Key Mode Policy Dialog Box (for devices supporting UEK3)

Security Features Frequently Asked Questions

The following Frequently Asked Questions address the most common queries related to managing and programming SmartFusion2 and IGLOO2 Security Features.

I have configured the "Configure Security Policy Manager" on page 145 and enabled security in my design but I do not want to program my design with the Security Policy Manager features enabled. What do I do? Go to Configure Bitstream and uncheck Security.

What is programmed when I click Program Device?

All features configured in your design and enabled in the <u>Configure Bitstream</u> tool. Any features you have configured (such as eNVM or Security) are enabled for programming by default.

When I click Program Device is the programming file encrypted?

All programming files are encrypted. To generate programming files encrypted with UEK1 or UEK2 you must generate them from <u>Export Bitstream</u> for field updates.

Note: Once security is programmed, you must erase the security before attempting to reprogram the security.

How do I generate encrypted programming files with User Encryption Key 1/2/3?



- Configure the "Configure Security Policy Manager" on page 145 and specify User Key Set 1, User Key Set 2, and User PUF Encryption Key. Ensure the Security programming feature is enabled in <u>Configure</u>
 <u>Bitstream</u>; it is enabled by default once you configure the Security Policy Manager.
- <u>Export Bitstream</u> from Handoff Design for Production <filename>_uek1.(stp/svf/spi/dat),
 <filename>_uek2.(stp/svf/spi/dat), and <filename>_uek3.(stp/svf/spi/dat) files are encrypted with UEK1,
 UEK2, and UEK3, respectively. See Security Programming File Descriptions below for more information on programming files.

Note: UEK3 is only available for M2S060S, M2GL060S, M2S090S, M2GL090S, M2S150S, and M2GL150S devices. See the <u>SmartFusion2 SoC FPGA and IGLOO2 FPGA Security Best Practices User Guide</u> for more details.

What are Security Programming Files?

See the <u>Security Programming Files topic</u> for more information.

Security Programming Files

Export Bitstream (expand Handoff Design for Production in the Design Flow window) creates the following files:

<filename>_master.(stp/svf/spi/dat) - Created when Enable custom security options is specified in the "Configure Security Policy Manager" on page 145. This is the master programming file; it includes all programming features enabled, User Key Set 1, User Key Set 2 (optionally if specified), and your security policy settings.

<filename>_security_only_master.(stp /svf/spi/dat) – Created when Enable custom security options is specified in the "Configure Security Policy Manager" on page 145. Master security programming file; includes User Key Set 1, User Key Set 2 (optionally if specified), and your security policy settings.

<filename>_uek1.(stp/svf/spi/dat) – Programming file encrypted with User Encryption Key 1 used for field updates; includes all your features for programming except security.

<filename>_uek2.(stp/svf/spi/dat) – Programming file encrypted with User Encryption Key 2 used for field updates; includes all your features for programming except security.

<filename>_uek3.(stp/svf/spi/dat) – Programming file encrypted with User Encryption Key 3 used for field updates; includes all your features for programming except security.

Note: UEK3 is only available for M2S060S, M2GL060S, M2S090S, M2GL090S, M2S150S, and M2GL150S devices. See the <u>SmartFusion2 SoC FPGA and IGLOO2 FPGA Security Best Practices User Guide</u> for more details.

Configure Bitstream

Right-click **Generate Bitstream** in the Design Flow window and choose **Configure Options** to open the Configure Bitstream dialog box.

The Configure Bitstream dialog box enables you to select which components you wish to program. Only features that have been added to your design are available for programming. For example, you cannot select eNVM for programming if you do not have eNVM in your design.



×
OK Cancel

Figure 119 · Configure Bitstream Dialog Box - SmartFusion2 and IGLOO2

Selected components - Updates the components you select, regardless of whether or not they have changed since your last programming.

Note: The Custom security and eNVM components are not available for RTG4 devices.

Generate Bitstream

Generates the bitstream for use with the <u>Run PROGRAM Action</u> tool.

The tool incorporates the Fabric design, eNVM configuration (if configured) and custom security settings (if configured) to generate the bitstream file. You need to <u>configure the bitstream</u> before you generate the bitstream. Otherwise, default settings with all available features included will be used. Right-click **Generate Bitstream** and choose **Configure Options** to open the Configure Bitstream dialog box to select which components you wish to program. Only features that have been added to your design are available for programming. For example, you cannot select eNVM for programming if you do not have an eNVM in your design.

Modifications to the Fabric design, eNVM configuration, or security settings will invalidate this tool and require regeneration of the bitstream file.

The Fabric programming data will only be regenerated if you make changes to the Fabric design, such as in the Create Design, Create Constraints and Implement Design sections of the Design Flow window.

When the process is complete a green check appears next to the operation in the Design Flow window (as shown in the figure below) and information messages appear in the Log window.



🖻 🕨 Program and Debug Design
Generate FPGA Array Data
Update uPROM Memory Content
Configure Hardware
Programming Connectivity and Interface
- 🔊 Select Programmer
- 🗟 Configure Programming Options
🖻 🕨 Program Design
🚽 🐻 Generate Bitstream
Run PROGRAM Action
🖻 🕨 Debug Design
Identify Debug Design
🖾 🇐 SmartDebug Design
Einer 400 Organita Ditata ang (Organitata)
Figure 120 Generate Bitstream (Complete)



Configure Bitstream Dialog Box

Run Programming Device Actions - SmartFusion2, IGLOO2, RTG4

If you have a device programmer connected, you can double-click **Run PROGRAM Action** to execute your programming in batch mode with default settings.

If your programmer is not connected, or if your default settings are invalid, the Reports view lists the error(s).

To select a programming action to run:

1. Right-click Run PROGRAM Action and choose Select Action. The Select Action dialog box opens.



VERIFY_DIGEST			
rocedures:			
✓ INIT_VARIABLE	S_FOR_ACTIC	N	
PROC_ENABLE			
DO_ENABLE_FA	BRIC		
DO_ENABLE_SI			
DO_ENABLE_U	SER_PUBLIC_I	KEY	
DO_VERIFY_DIC	SEST		
Available action	s and procedur	res depend on th	e selected
bitstream compo	nents in the G	enerate Bitstrea	m tool.
device doubled	lick the Config	ure Actions and	Procedures too

Figure 121 · Select Action Dialog Box

2. Select a programming action from the drop-down list and click **OK**.

To configure programming actions, use the Configure Actions and Procedures tool.

Note: For RTG4, if you have selected the One-time programmable (OTP) option in Configure Programming Options and the PROGRAM action is selected, you will see the following message:

🔳 Wa	irning
A	You selected to make the device one-time programmable. After programming the device you will NOT be able to erase or program the device. You will be able to run programming actions VERIFY and VERIFY_DIGEST as well as use SmartDebug to debug with probes and read the digest of the Fabric. Refer to RTG4 FPGA Datasheet Table 4 for maximum number of Verify Cycles per Program/Erase cycle after making the device one-time programmable. You may change the one-time programmable setting in the Configure Programming Options tool. Do you want to continue with running programming?

Click Yes to continue or No to cancel.

See Also

Configure Actions and Procedures

Programming File Actions

Libero SoC enables you to program security settings, FPGA Array, and eNVM features.

You can program these features separately using different programming files or you can combine them into one programming file.

In the Design Flow window, expand **Program Design**, click **Run PROGRAM Action**, and right-click **Select Action**.

The Select Action dialog box opens. See the following example figure.



VERIFY_DIGEST			-
INIT_VARIABLE	S_FOR_ACTIO	ON	
VERIFY_IDCOD	E		
DO_ENABLE_FA	BRIC		
DO_ENABLE_SI	CURITY		
DO_ENABLE_U	SER_PUBLIC_I	KEY	
DO_EXIT			
A sub-black stress			the entropy of
bitstream compo	nents in the G	enerate Bitstre	am tool.
 To configure act device, doubled 	ions and proce lick the Config	edures for the l	libero design d Procedures too

Figure 122 · Select Action Dialog Box

For details about configuring actions and procedures, see Configure Actions and Procedures.

Exit Codes (SmartFusion2 and IGLOO2)

Error Code	Exit Code	Exit Message	Possible Cause	Possible Solution
	0	Passed (no error)	-	-
0x8002	5	Failure to configure device programming at 1.2/1.0 VCC voltage	Unstable voltage level Signal integrity issues on JTAG pins	Monitor related power supplies that cause the issue during programming; check for transients outside of Microsemi specifications. See your device datasheet for more information on transient specifications. Monitor JTAG supply pins during programming; measure JTAG signals for noise or reflection.
0x8032	5	Device is busy	Unstable VDDIx voltage level	Monitor related power supplies that cause the issue during programming; check for transients outside of Microsemi specifications. See your device datasheet for more information on transient specifications.
0x8003	5	Failed to enter programming mode	Unstable voltage level	Monitor related power supplies that cause the issue during programming;



Error Code	Exit Code	Exit Message	Possible Cause	Possible Solution
			Signal integrity issues on JTAG pins	check for transients outside of Microsemi specifications. See your device datasheet for more information on transient specifications
				Monitor JTAG supply pins during programming; measure JTAG signals for noise or reflection. Tie DEVRST_N to HIGH prior to programming the device.
0x8004	6	Failed to verify IDCODE	Incorrect programming file Incorrect device in chain Signal integrity issues on JTAG pins	Choose the correct programming file and select the correct device in the chain. Measure JTAG pins and noise for reflection. If TRST is left floating then add pull-up to pin. Reduce the length of Ground connection.
0x8005 0x8006 8x804A	10	Failed to program eNVM	Unstable voltage level. Signal integrity issues on JTAG pins.	Monitor related power supplies that cause the issue during programming; check for transients outside of Microsemi specifications. See your device datasheet for more information on transient specifications. Monitor JTAG supply pins during programming; measure JTAG signals for noise or reflection.
0x8027 0x8028	10	Authentication Error Bitstream and device mismatch	Libero device selection does not match the target device.	Generate a programming file with the correct device selection for the target device.
0x8007 0x804C	11	Failed to verify FPGA Array Failed to verify Fabric Configuration Failed to verify Security	Device is programmed with a different design or the component is blank. Unstable voltage level. Signal integrity issues on JTAG pins.	Verify the device is programmed with the correct data/design. Monitor related power supplies that cause the issue during programming; check for transients outside of Microsemi specifications. See your device datasheet for more information on transient specifications. Monitor JTAG supply pins during programming; measure JTAG signals for noise or reflection.
0x8008 0x8009 0x8049	11	Failed to verify eNVM	Device is programmed with a different design. Unstable voltage level.	Verify the device is programmed with the correct data/design. Monitor related power supplies that



Error Code	Exit Code	Exit Message	Possible Cause	Possible Solution
			Signal integrity issues on JTAG pins.	cause the issue during programming; check for transients outside of Microsemi specifications. See your device datasheet for more information on transient specifications.
				Monitor JTAG supply pins during programming; measure JTAG signals for noise or reflection.
0x8013	-18	Digest request from SPI/JTAG is protected by User Pass Key 1	Digest request from SPI/JTAG is protected by user pass key 1. Lock bit has been configured in the Debug Policy within SPM (Security Policy Manager)	Provide a programming file with a pass key that matches pass key programmed into the device.
0x8014	-19	Failed to verify digest	>Unstable voltage level Signal integrity issues on JTAG pins	Monitor related power supplies that cause the issue during programming; check for transients outside of Microsemi specifications. See your device datasheet for more information on transient specifications.
				Monitor JTAG supply pins during programming; measure JTAG signals for noise or reflection.
0x8015	-20	FPGA Fabric digest verification: FAIL	Programming bitstream components do not match components programmed	Use the same programming file that was used to program the device.
			FPGA Fabric is either erased or the data has been corrupted or tampered with	
0x8016	-20	eNVM_0 digest verification: FAIL	Programming bitstream components do not match components programmed	Use the same programming file that was used to program the device.
			eNVM_0 data has been corrupted or tampered with	
0x8017	-20	eNVM_1 digest verification: FAIL	Programming bitstream components do not match components programmed	Use the same programming file that was used to program the device.
			eNVM_1 data has been corrupted or tampered with	
0x8018	-20	User security policies segment digest verification: FAIL	Programming bitstream components do not match components programmed	Use the same programming file that was used to program the device.
			User security policy segment	



Error Code	Exit Code	Exit Message	Possible Cause	Possible Solution
			data has been corrupted or tampered with	
0x8019	-20	User key set 1 segment digest verification: FAIL	Programming bitstream components do not match components programmed	Use the same programming file that was used to program the device.
			User key set 1 segment data has been corrupted or tampered with	
0x801A	-20	User key set 2 segment digest verification: FAIL	Programming bitstream components do not match components programmed	Use the same programming file that was used to program the device.
			User key set 2 segment data has been corrupted or tampered with	
0x801B	-20	Factory row and factory key segment digest verification: FAIL	Programming bitstream components do not match components programmed	Use the same programming file that was used to program the device.
			Factory row and factory key segment data has been corrupted or tampered with	
0x801C	-20	Fabric configuration segment digest verification: FAIL	Programming bitstream components do not match components programmed.	Use the same programming file that was used to program the device.
			Fabric configuration segment data has been corrupted or tampered with	
0x801D 0x801E 0x804B	-21	Device security prevented operation	The device is protected with user pass key 1 and the bitstream file does not contain user pass key 1.	Run DEVICE_INFO to view security features that are protected.
			User pass key 1 in the bitstream file does not match the device.	Provide a bitstream file with a user pass key 1 that matches the user pass key 1 programmed into the device.
0x801F 0x8020	-22	Authentication Error	eNVM has been locked by a master in your design	Release the lock on the eNVM after your master has completed its access
0x8040		Bitstream or data is corrupted or noisy	Running VERIFY action on a blank device.	operations. Write 0x00 to "REQACCESS" register in eNVM Control Registers (address 0x600801FC) to release the access.
			Bitstream file has been corrupted	Program the device prior to running VERIFY action
			Bitstream was incorrectly generated	Regenerate bitstream file.



Error Code	Exit Code	Exit Message	Possible Cause	Possible Solution
0x8021 0x8022	-23	Authentication Error	File contains an encrypted key that does not match the device	Provide a programming file with an encryption key that matches that on the device.
			Attempting to erase a device with no security using master security file	Run DEVICE_INFO action to verify that the device has no security. If the device does not have secuirty, you cannot erase it.
			File contains user encryption key, but device has not been programmed with the user encryption key	First program security with master programming file, then program with user encryption 1/2 field update programming files.
			Device has user encryption key 1/2 enforced and you are attempting to reprogram security settings	You must first ERASE security with the master security file, then you can reprogram new security settings.
0x8041	-23	Authentication Error Invalid/Corrupted encryption key	File contains an encrypted key that does not match the device	Provide a programming file with an encryption key that matches that on the device.
			File contains user encryption key, but device has not been programmed with the user encryption key	Run DEVICE_INFO action to verify that the device has no security. If the device does not have secuirty, you cannot erase it.
			Attempting to erase a device with no security using master security file	First program security with master programming file, then program with user encryption 1/2 field update programming files.
			Device has user encryption key 1/2 enforced and you are attempting to reprogram security settings	You must first ERASE security with the master security file, then you can reprogram new security settings.
0x8023 0x8024 0x8042	-24	Authentication Error Back level not satisfied	Design version is not higher than the back-level programmed device	Generate a programming file with a design version higher than the back level version.
0x8001	-24	Failure to read DSN	Device is in System Controller Suspend Mode	TRSTB should be driven High or disable "System Controller Suspend Mode".
			Check board connections	
0x8025 0x8026 0x8043	-25	Authentication Error DSN binding mismatch	DSN specified in programming file does not match the device being programmed	Use the correct programming file with a DSN that matches the DSN of the target device being programmed.
0x8044	-26	Authentication Error Insufficient device capabilities	Device does not support the capabilities specified in programming file	Generate a programming file with the correct capabilities for the target device.



Error Code	Exit Code	Exit Message	Possible Cause	Possible Solution
0x8027 0x8028	-26	Authentication Error Bitstream and device mismatch	Libero device selection does not match the target device	Generate a programming file with the correct device selection for the target device.
0x8029 0x802A 0x8045	-27	Authentication Error	Incorrect programming file Incorrect device in chain Signal integrity issues on JTAG pins	Choose the correct programming file and select the correct device in chain. Measure JTAG pins and noise or reflection. If TRST is left floating, then add pull-up to pin. Reduce the length of ground connection.
0x802B 0x802C	-28	Authentication Error Programming file is out of date, please regenerate	Programming file version is out of date	Generate programming file with latest version of Libero SoC.
0x8046	-28	>Authentication Error Unsupported bitstream protocol version	Old programming file	Generate programming file with latest version of Libero SoC.
0x802F	-30	JTAG interface is protected by UPK1	Invalid or no UPK1 is provided	User needs to provide correct UPK1 to unlock device.
0x8030 0x8031 0x8048	-31	Authentication Error Invalid or inaccessible Device Certificate	M2S090 Rev. A or M2S150 Rev. A: Either certificate is corrupted or the user hasn't provided the application code in the eNVM or provided invalid application code FAB_RESET_N is tied to ground	User can program a valid application code. This can be done with SoftConsole. FAB_RESET_N should be tied to HIGH.
0x8032 0x8033 0x8034 0x8035 0x8036 0x8037 0x8038 0x8039	-32	Instruction timed out	Unstable voltage level Signal integrity issues on JTAG pins	Monitor related power supplies that cause the issue during programming; check for transients outside of Microsemi specifications. See your device datasheet for more information on transient specifications. Monitor JTAG supply pins during programming; measure JTAG signals for noise or reflection.
0x8010	-35	Failed to unlock User Pass Key 1	Pass key in file does not match device.	Provide a programming file with a pass key that matches pass key programmed into the device.



Error Code	Exit Code	Exit Message	Possible Cause	Possible Solution
			Plaintext pass key match is disabled. This occurs if HSM was used to program the device.	Match pass key using HSM.
0x8011	-35	Failed to unlock User Pass Key 2	Pass key in file does not match device. Plaintext pass key match is disabled. This occurs if HSM was used to program the device.	Provide a programming file with a pass key that matches pass key programmed into the device. Match pass key using HSM.
0x8012	-35	Failed to unlock debug pass key	Pass key in file does not match device. Plaintext pass key match is disabled. This occurs if HSM was used to program the device.	Provide a programming file with a pass key that matches pass key programmed into the device. Match pass key using HSM.
0x804D	-36	<hsm error<br="" related="">message based on scenario></hsm>	HSM communication error. HSM call returns error.	Check if HSM the communication path to HSM is up. Make sure project is loaded properly and that HSM tickets have not been cleaned.
0x804E	-37	Device already has Security programmed. Please erase the device using master file before reprogramming Security Settings.	HSM flow does not support reprogramming device directly if Security has already been programmed.	Erase security and try programming the device.

Exit Codes (RTG4)

Error Code	Exit Message	Possible Cause	Possible Solution
	Passed (no error)	-	-
0x8001	Failure to read DSN	Device is in System Controller Suspend Mode Check board connections	TRSTB should be driven High on device power up. Disable System Controller Suspend Mode in "Programming Bitstream Settings' tool within Libero and reprogram the device.
0x8002	Device is busy	Unstable VDDIx voltage level	Monitor related power supplies that cause the issue during programming; check for transients outside of Microsemi



Error Code	Exit Message	Possible Cause	Possible Solution
			specifications. See your device datasheet for more information on transient specifications.
0x8003	Failed to enter programming mode	Unstable voltage level Signal integrity issues on JTAG pins DEVRST_N is tied to LOW	Monitor related power supplies that cause the issue during programming; check for transients outside of Microsemi specifications. See your device datasheet for more information on transient specifications. Monitor JTAG supply pins during programming; measure JTAG signals for noise or reflection. Tie DEVRST_N to HIGH prior to programming the device
0x8004	Failed to verify IDCODE	Incorrect programming file Incorrect device in chain Signal integrity issues on JTAG pins	Choose the correct programming file and select the correct device in the chain. Measure JTAG pins and noise for reflection. If TRST is left floating then add pull-up to pin. Reduce the length of Ground connection.
0x8005	Failed to verify IDCODE RT4G150_ES STAPL file is not compatible with RT4G150 production devices. You must use a STAPL file for RT4G150 device.	Programming file is for RT4G150_ES and device is RT4G150 Incorrect programming file Incorrect device in chain Signal integrity issues on JTAG pins	Generate a programming file for RT4G150 device Choose the correct programming file and select the correct device in the chain. Measure JTAG pins and noise for reflection. If TRST is left floating then add pull-up to pin. Reduce the length of Ground connection.
0x8006	Failed to verify IDCODE RT4G150 STAPL file is not compatible with RT4G150_ES devices. You must use a STAPL file for RT4G150_ES device.	Programming file is for RT4G150 and device is RT4G150_ES Incorrect programming file Incorrect device in chain Signal integrity issues on JTAG pins	Generate a programming file for RT4G150_ES device Choose the correct programming file and select the correct device in the chain. Measure JTAG pins and noise for reflection. If TRST is left floating then add pull-up to pin. Reduce the length of Ground connection.



Error Code	Exit Message	Possible Cause	Possible Solution
0x8007	Failed to verify FPGA Array	Device is programmed with a different design or the component is blank. Unstable voltage level. Signal integrity issues on JTAG pins.	Verify the device is programmed with the correct data/design. Monitor related power supplies that cause the issue during programming; check for transients outside of Microsemi specifications. See your device datasheet for more information on transient specifications. Monitor JTAG supply pins during programming; measure JTAG signals for noise or reflection.
0x8008	Device is blank	Attempting to verify digest of a blank device	Program the device prior to running action "VERIFY_DIGEST"
0x8009	FPGA array digest check is disabled	Digest check has been disabled by "Programming Bitstream Settings" tool within Libero	Drive TRSTB high during device power up. Enable digest check in "Programming Bitstream Settings" tool within Libero and reprogram the device.
0x800A	Failed to verify digest: Instruction timed out	Unstable voltage level Signal integrity issues on JTAG pins	Try running VERIFY_DIGEST action again. Monitor related power supplies that cause the issue during programming; check for transients outside of Microsemi specifications. See your device datasheet for more information on transient specifications. Monitor JTAG supply pins during programming; measure JTAG signals for noise or reflection.
0x800B	FPGA Fabric digest verification: FAIL	Programming bitstream components do not match components programmed FPGA Fabric is either erased or the data has been corrupted or tampered with	Use the same programming file that was used to program the device.
0x800C	Factory row segment digest verification: FAIL	Programming bitstream components do not match components programmed Factory row segment data has been corrupted or tampered with	Use the same programming file that was used to program the device.
0x800D	Bitstream Error. Bitstream or	Bitstream file has been corrupted	Regenerate bitstream file



Error Code	Exit Message	Possible Cause	Possible Solution
	data is corrupted or noisy.	Bitstream was incorrectly generated Unstable voltage level Signal integrity issues on JTAG pins	Monitor related power supplies that cause the issue during programming; check for transients outside of Microsemi specifications. See your device datasheet for more information on transient specifications. Monitor JTAG supply pins during programming; measure JTAG signals for noise or reflection.
0x800E	Failed to query programming bitstream settings: Instruction timed out	Unstable voltage level Signal integrity issues on JTAG pins	Try running DEVICE_INFO action again. Monitor related power supplies that cause the issue during programming; check for transients outside of Microsemi specifications. See your device datasheet for more information on transient specifications. Monitor JTAG supply pins during programming; measure JTAG signals for noise or reflection.
0x800F	Bitstream Error. Incorrect DEVICEID	Incorrect programming file Incorrect device in chain Signal integrity issues on JTAG pins	Choose the correct programming file and select the correct device in the chain. Measure JTAG pins and noise for reflection. If TRST is left floating then add pull-up to pin. Reduce the length of Ground connection.
0x8010	Operation has been disabled by programming bitstream settings	Operation has been disabled by "Programming Bitstream Settings" tool within Libero User disabled Fabric Erase/Write/Verify and attempted to Erase/Program/Verify the device	Drive TRSTB high during device power up Enable the disabled operation in the "Programming Bitstream Settings" tool with Libero and reprogram the device
0x8011	Failed to check bitstream: Instruction timed out	Unstable voltage level Signal integrity issues on JTAG pins	Monitor related power supplies that cause the issue during programming; check for transients outside of Microsemi specifications. See your device datasheet for more information on transient specifications. Monitor JTAG supply pins during programming; measure JTAG signals for noise or reflection.



Error Code	Exit Message	Possible Cause	Possible Solution
0x8012, 0x8013	Failed to erase device: Instruction timed out	Unstable voltage level Signal integrity issues on JTAG pins	Monitor related power supplies that cause the issue during programming; check for transients outside of Microsemi specifications. See your device datasheet for more information on transient specifications. Monitor JTAG supply pins during programming; measure JTAG signals for noise or reflection.
0x8014	Failed to program device: Instruction timed out	Unstable voltage level Signal integrity issues on JTAG pins	Monitor related power supplies that cause the issue during programming; check for transients outside of Microsemi specifications. See your device datasheet for more information on transient specifications. Monitor JTAG supply pins during programming; measure JTAG signals for noise or reflection.
0x8015	Error, device is not ready.	DEVRST_N may have been driven LOW during programming	Need to ensure that DEVRST_N is driven HIGH during programming. The reliability of the device in space cannot be guaranteed if this has occurred. It is the user's responsibility to ensure that DEVRST_N is driven HIGH during programming.



Debug Design

Generate SmartDebug FPGA Array Data

The Generate SmartDebug FPGA Array Data tool generates database files used in downstream tools:

• *.db used for debugging FPGA Fabric in SmartDebug

Double-click **Generate SmartDebug FPGA Array Data** or right-click **Generate SmartDebug FPGA Array Data** in the Design Flow window and click **Run** to generate SmartDebug FPGA Array Data. Before running this tool, the design should have completed the Place and Route step. If not, Libero SoC runs implicitly the upstream tools (Synthesis, Compile Netlist, and Place and Route) before it generates the FPGA SmartDebug Array Data.



Figure 123 · Generate SmartDebug FPGA Array Data

SmartDebug

Design debug is a critical phase of FPGA design flow. Microsemi's SmartDebug tool complements design simulation by allowing verification and troubleshooting at the hardware level. SmartDebug can provide access to Microsemi FPGA device's built-in probe logic, which enables designers to check the state of inputs and outputs in real-time without re-layout of the design.

SmartDebug can be run in two modes:

- Integrated mode from the Libero Design Flow
- Standalone mode

Integrated Mode

When run in integrated mode from Libero, SmartDebug can access all design and programming hardware information. No extra setup step is required. In addition, the Probe Insertion feature is available in Debug FPGA Array.

To open SmartDebug in the Libero Design Flow window, expand **Debug Design** and double-click **SmartDebug Design**.



Standalone Mode

SmartDebug can be installed separately in the setup containing FlashPro Express and Job Manager. This provides a lean installation that includes all the programming and debug tools to be installed in a lab environment for debug. In this mode, SmartDebug is launched outside of the Libero Design Flow. Prior to launch of SmartDebug standalone mode, you must to go through SmartDebug project creation and import a Design Debug Data Container (DDC) file, exported from Libero, to access all debug features in the supported devices.

Note: In standalone mode, the Probe Insertion feature is not available in FPGA Array Debug, as it requires incremental routing to connect the user net to the specified I/O.

See Also

SmartDebug User Guide

Identify Debug Design

Libero SoC integrates the Identify RTL debugger tool. It enables you to probe and debug your FPGA design directly in the source RTL. Use Identify software when the design behavior after programming is not in accordance with the simulation results.

To open the Identify RTL debugger, in the Design Flow window under Debug Design double-click **Instrument Design**.

Identify features:

- Instrument and debug your FPGA directly from RTL source code.
- Internal design visibility at full speed.
- Incremental iteration Design changes are made to the device from the Identify environment using incremental compile. You iterate in a fraction of the time it takes route the entire device.
- Debug and display results You gather only the data you need using unique and complex triggering mechanisms.

You must have both the Identify RTL Debugger and the Identify Instrumentor to run the debugging flow outlined below.

To use the Identify Instrumentor and Debugger:

- 1. Create your source file (as usual) and run pre-synthesis simulation.
- 2. (Optional) Run through an entire flow (Synthesis Compile Place and Route Generate a Programming File) without starting Identify.
- 3. Right-click Synthesize and choose Open Interactively in Libero SoC to launch Synplify.
- 4. In Synplify, click Options > Configure Identify Launch to setup Identify.
- 5. In Synplify, create an Identify implementation; to do so, click **Project > New Identify Implementation**.
- In the Implementations Options dialog, make sure the Implementation Results > Results Directory points to a location under <libero project>\synthesis\, otherwise Libero SoC is unable to detect your resulting EDN Netlist file.
- 7. From the Instumentor UI specify the sample clock, the breakpoints, and other signals to probe. Synplify creates a new synthesis implementation. Synthesize the design.
- 8. In Libero SoC, run Synthesis, Place and Route and Generate a Programming File. **Note:** Libero SoC works from the edif netlist of the current active implementation, which is the implementation you created in Synplify for Identify debug.
- 9. Double-click Identify Debug Design in the Design Flow window to launch the Identify Debugger.

The Identify RTL Debugger, Synplify, and FlashPro must be synchronized in order to work properly. See the <u>Release Notes</u> for more information on which versions of the tools work together.



Handoff Design for Production

Export Bitstream

Export Bitstream enables you to export PPD, STAPL, DAT, and SPI programming files.

To export a bitstream file for SmartFusion2 and IGLOO2:

- 1. Under Handoff Design for Production, double-click **Export Bitstream**. The Export Bitstream dialog box opens. The dialog box options depend on your Custom Security settings:
 - Bitstream Encryption with the Default Key in the Security Policy Manager
 - Enable Custom Security Options in the Security Policy Manager
- Choose your options, such as DAT file if you wish to include support for Embedded ISP, SPI file if you need support for Auto programming, Auto Update, and IAP services, PPD or STAPL or SVF if you need support for ISP.
- 3. You can choose whether you want to export the ASCII HEX file for debugging if DAT bitstream file format is selected.
- 4. Select whether you want to export files for Microsemi In House Programming (IHP).
- 5. Set your **eNVM Serialization options**, if any. eNVM Serialization must be enabled via the eNVM Configurator in your MSS.
- 6. Select to inlcude the bitstream components and Include Pass Keys in Plaintext.
- 7. Enter your Bitstream file name and location to export the selected bitstream files.
- 8. You can export the SPI directory for programming recovery if needed.
- 9. Click **OK** to export the selected bitstream files.

To export a bitstream file for RTG4, see the following topic:

Export Bitstream - RTG4

See Also

Digest File

Export Bitstream tool when the device is configured with Bitstream Encryption with Default Key in the Security Policy Manager

See the Export Bitstream topic for more information about exporting your bitstream.



Decign version set				
resign version set	with the Configure Progra	mming Options tool: 0		
Back Level version	set with the Configure Se	curity tool: 0		
Security options se Encrypt bitstre	t with the Configure Secu am with default key. No U	ity tool: ser keys and Security Polic	cies are enabled.	
litstream file(s)				
Name: shift32		Location:	Downloads\training\testg4\designer\shift32\export]
Fuiction films				
This folder is a	-			
This folder is em	pty.			
-ormats:				
PPD	Support for ISP (JTAG a	nd SPI Slave)		
I DAT	Support for Embedded I	SP (JTAG and SPI Slave)	Export separate ASCII HEX file for debugging	
T STAPL	Support for ISP			
Chain STAPL	Support for ISP, Single	Microsemi device in a JTAG	5 chain	
E cot	Support for Auto Progra	mming, Auto Update (IAP)), Programming Recovery and IAP/ISP Services	
J SPI				
SVE	Support for ISP	imit SVF file cize		
SVF	Support for ISP	imit SVF file size		
SVF	Support for ISP	imit SVF file size	res 🛈 No	
SVF SVF Export file	Support for ISP for Microsemi In House P	imit SVF file size rogramming (IHP): רא	res 🕫 No	
SP1 SVF Export file File types:	Support for ISP [imit SVF file size rogramming (IHP):	res 🕫 No	
SVF Export file File types: File to pro	Support for ISP	imit SVF file size rogramming (IHP): C Y Fabric eNVM	res 🕫 No	
SVF Export file types: File to pro	Support for ISP	imit SVF file size rogramming (IHP): C Y Fabric eNVM V	Yes 🖟 No	
SVF Export file File types: File to pro F	Support for ISP	Imit SVF file size rogramming (IHP): C Y Fabric eNVM F F	Yes (No	
SVF Export file File to pro Export SPI Dire	Support for ISP	Imit SVF file size rogramming (IHP): C Y Fabric eNVM F F Specify SPI Direct	Yes 🗭 No ctory	

Figure 124 · Export Bitstream with Default Key Dialog Box

Design Settings:

• Displays the Design version set with the Configure Programming Options tool and Back Level version set with the Configure Security tool. They are read-only options and cannot be modified.

Note: Info and warning messages appear based on the value set for Back Level version.

• Security options set with the Configure Security tool- Provides a brief description of current security options.

Bitstream file(s):

- Name Sets the name of your bitstream file. The default name is the design name.
- Location Location to save the exported file.
- Existing files Lists bitstream files previously created.
- Formats Select the Bitstream File format you want to export:
 - PPD
 - DAT
 - STAPL
 - Chain STAPL (Enabled only when there are two or more devices in the chain)
 - SPI
 - Export separate ASCII HEX file for debugging Exports DAT file in HEX format. This option is active only when DAT file format is selected.



Export files for Microsemi In House Programming (IHP) – Exports DAT and STP file formats if 'Yes' is selected.

PPD and DAT file formats are the default file formats. STAPL and DAT are the required file formats for In House Programming

- File types: Lists all the bitstream files to be exported
 - File to program at trusted facility Click to include Fabric and/or eNVM into the bitstream files to be programmed at a trusted facility.

Note: Only features that have been added to your design are available for programming. For example, you cannot select eNVM for programming if you do not have eNVM in your design.

• **Export SPI Directory for programming recovery** – Allows you to export SPI directory containing Golden and Update SPI image addresses and design versions, used in Auto-update and Programming Recovery flow. Check this option and click **Specify SPI Directory** to set the required information (see figure below).

SPI Directory			? 💌
Golden SPI Image Design version (DEC): 8	Load from file	Address (HEX):0x 678	
Update SPI Image Design version (DEC): 11	Load from file	Address (HEX):0x ABC	
Help			OK Cancel

Figure 125 · SPI Directory Dialog Box

Export Bitstream tool when the device is configured with Custom Security option in the Security Policy Manager - SmartFusion2 and IGLOO2

See the Export Bitstream topic for information on exporting your bitstream.



Design settings Design version set with the Configure Programming Back Level version set with the Configure Security is Security options set with the Configure Security is Protect UEK1, UEK2, DPK and Security Polices: Disable factory enables Distable factory enables Bitstream file(6) Name: shift32 Existing files: This folder is empty. IF DAT Support for ISP (JTAG and SPI) IF DAT Support for ISP, Single Micros SPI Support for ISP, Single Micros IF Support for ISP Limit SI IF Export files for Microsemi In House Programming Export files for Microsemi In House Programming IF Lippes: Cus Master file File encrypted with UEK1	ming Options tool: rrity tool: iy tool: icles using FlashLock/U Local d SPI Slave) P (JTAG and SPI Sla icrosemi device in a ming, Auto Update nit SVF file size gramming (JHP):	0 0 k(JPK1. tion: tion: JTAG ch (IAP), P	iownloads	\training \testg4\designer \shift32\ separate ASCII HEX file for debug
Design version set with the Configure Programming Back Level version set with the Configure Security to Security options set with the Configure Security to Protect UB(1, UE(2, DPK and Security Policies Disable factory enabled default bitstream encr Protect Microsem factory test mode access us Bitstream file(s) Name: shift32 Existing files: This folder is empty. Formats: Formats: Formats: Formats: Formats: Formats:	ming Options tool: rity tool: iy tool: icies using FlashLocd encryption key mod using FlashLocd/U Local d SPI Slave) P (JTAG and SPI Sla (TAG and S	0 0 k/UPK1. hes. PPK1. tion:	Export ain rogrammir	\training\testg4\designer\shift32\ separate ASCII HEX file for debug
Back Level version set with the Configure Security is Security options set with the Configure Security is Protect UEK1, UEK2, DPK and Security Policies: Disable factory enabled default bitstream ency Protect Microsemi factory test mode access us Bitstream file(s) Name: shift32 Existing files: This folder is empty. Formats: PDD Support for ISP (JTAG and SPI PD Support for ISP (JTAG and SPI PD Support for ISP (JTAG and SPI PD Support for ISP (JTAG and SPI Chain STAPL Support for ISP, Single Micros SPI Support for ISP Limit SP Support files to prevent and the programming SPI Support for ISP Limit SP Support SP Support for ISP Limit SP Support	Intry tool: iy tool: ides using FlashLod encryption key mod is using FlashLock/U Local d SPI Slave) P (JTAG and SPI Sla krosemi device in a ming, Auto Update nit SVF file size gramming (JHP):	0 k/UPK1. tion:	Export alin	\training \testg 4\designer \shift32\ separate ASCII HEX file for debug
Security options set with the Configure Security options set with the Configure Security Policies. Disable factory enabled default bitstream encry Protect Microsemi factory test mode access us Bitstream file(s) Name: shift32 Existing files: This folder is empty. Formats: F PPD Support for ISP (JTAG and SPI C DAT Support for ISP (JTAG and SPI C DAT Support for ISP (JTAG and SPI C DAT Support for ISP, Single Micros SPI Support for ISP, Single Micros SPI Support for ISP Limit SV SVF Support for ISP Limit SV SVF Support for ISP Limit SV Master file File encrypted with UEK1	y tool: icies using FlashLock icies using FlashLock/U Local d SPI Slave) P (TAG and SPI Sla icrosemi device in a ming, Auto Update nit SVF file size] gramming (IHP):	k/UPK1. JPK1. Ition: β ave) Γ a JTAG ch (IAP), P	Export nain	\training\testg4\designer\shift32\ separate ASCII HEX file for debug
Security options set with the Configure Security to Protect UEK1, UEK2, DPK and Security Policies Disable fractory enabled default bitstream encr Protect Microsemi factory test mode access us Bitstream file(s) Name: shift32 Existing files: This folder is empty. Formats: Image: Image: PPD Support for ISP (JTAG and SPI) Image: Image: Strapport for ISP (JTAG and SPI) Image: Image: <td>d SPI Slave) G SPI Slave) F (JTAG and SPI Slave) Crossemi device in a ming, Auto Update mit SVF file size] gramming (JHP):</td> <td>k/UPK1. les. IPK1. tion: ave) TAG dr (TAP), P</td> <td>Export sain</td> <td>\training \testg4\designer \shift32\ separate ASCII HEX file for debug</td>	d SPI Slave) G SPI Slave) F (JTAG and SPI Slave) Crossemi device in a ming, Auto Update mit SVF file size] gramming (JHP):	k/UPK1. les. IPK1. tion: ave) TAG dr (TAP), P	Export sain	\training \testg4\designer \shift32\ separate ASCII HEX file for debug
Protect UE(1, UE(2, DPK and Security Policies) Disable factory enabled default bitstream ency Protect Microsemi factory test mode access us Bitstream file(s) Name: shift32 Existing files: This folder is empty. Formats: ✓ PPD Support for ISP (JTAG and SPI ✓ DAT Support for ISP (JTAG and SPI ✓ DAT Support for ISP (Single Micros ✓ SVF Support for ISP Limit SV ✓ SVF Support for ISP Limit SV ✓ SVF Support for ISP Limit SV ✓ Export files for Microsemi In House Program File types: ✓ Laster file File encrypted with UEK1	icles using FlashLod envybion key is using FlashLock/U Loca d SPI Slave) P (JTAG and SPI Sla erosemi device in a ming, Auto Update nit SVF file size) gramming (JHP):	k/UPK1. les. IPK1. tion: ave) TAG dr (IAP), P	Export nogrammir	\training\testg4\designer\shift32\ separate ASCII HEX file for debug
Image: Second	d SPI Slave) P (JTAG and SPI Sla kroseni device in a ming, Auto Update nit SVF file size] gramming (JHP):	ave) (IAP), P	Export nain	\training \testg 4\designer \shift32\ separate ASCII HEX file for debug
Sitstream file(s) Name: shift32 Existing files:	d SPI Slave) > (JTAG and SPI Sla krosemi device in a ming, Auto Update nit SVF file size] gramming (JHP):	ave) Г a JTAG dt : (IAP), P	Export ain	\training\testg4\designer\shift32\ separate ASCII HEX file for debug
Name: shift32 Existing files: This folder is empty. Formats: PDD Support for ISP (JTAG and SPI PDAT Support for ISP (JTAG and SPI DAT Support for ISP (JTAG and SPI Chain STAPL Support for ISP, Single Micros SPI Support for Auto Programming SVF Support for ISP Limit ST SVF Support SVF SUPPORT FOR SVF SUPPO	d SPI Slave) P (JTAG and SPI Sla krosemi device in a ming, Auto Update nit SVF file size gramming (JHP):	ave) TAG dr (IAP), P	Export ain	\training\testg4\designer\shift32\ separate ASCII HEX file for debug
Existing files: This folder is empty. Formats: PDD Support for ISP (JTAG and SPI DAT Support for Embedded ISP (JT Grain STAPL Support for ISP, Single Micros SPI Support for ISP, Single Micros SPI Support for ISP Limit SV SVF SUPPORT SVF	d SPI Slave) P (JTAG and SPI Sla icrosemi device in a ming, Auto Update nit SVF file size] gramming (JHP):	ave) Г i JTAG di i (IAP), P	Export	separate ASCII HEX file for debug
Exeting files: This folder is empty. Formats: PPD Support for ISP (JTAG and SPI DAT Support for ISP, Single Micros STAPL Support for ISP, Single Micros SPI Support for Auto Programming SVF Support for ISP Limit SV Export files for Microsemi In House Program File types: Master file File encrypted with UEK1	d SPI Slave) P (JTAG and SPI Sla ming, Auto Update nit SVF file size[gramming (JHP):	ave) Г л лад d- (IAP), P	Export and a	separate ASCII HEX file for debug
This folder is empty. Formats: PPD Support for ISP (JTAG and SPI DAT Support for Embedded ISP (JT STAPL Support for ISP Support for SP, Single Micros SPI Support for Auto Programming SVF Support for ISP Limit SV Export files for Microsemi In House Program He types: Master file File encrypted with UEK1	d SPI Slave) P (JTAG and SPI Sla krosemi device in a ming, Auto Update nit SVF file size] gramming (JHP):	ave) Г э ЛГАG d [.] (IAP), Р	Export Nain rogrammir	separate ASCII HEX file for debug
Formats:	d SPI Slave) P (JTAG and SPI Sla krosemi device in a ming, Auto Update nit SVF file size gramming (IHP):	ave) 「 」JTAG d [.] (IAP), P	Export	separate ASCII HEX file for debug
Formats:	d SPI Slave) P (JTAG and SPI Sla Icrosemi device in a ming, Auto Update nit SVF file size] gramming (IHP):	ave) 「 JTAG d [.] (IAP), P	Export	separate ASCII HEX file for debug
Formats: PPD Support for ISP (JTAG and SP) DAT Support for Embedded ISP (JT STAPL Support for ISP Chain STAPL Support for ISP, Single Micros SPI Support for Auto Programming SVF Support for ISP Limit S Export files for Microsemi In House Program Tile types: Master file File encrypted with UEK1	d SPI Slave) P (JTAG and SPI Sla icrosemi device in a ming, Auto Update nit SVF file size gramming (IHP):	ave) 「 」JTAG d= (IAP),P	Export	separate ASCII HEX file for debug
Formats:	d SPI Slave) P (JTAG and SPI Sla Icrosemi device in a ming, Auto Update nit SVF file size Igramming (IHP):	ave) JTAG d (IAP), P	Export	separate ASCII HEX file for debug
PPD Support for ISP (JTAG and SP) DAT Support for Embedded ISP (JT STAPL Support for ISP Grain STAPL Support for ISP, Single Micros SPI Support for Auto Programming SVF Support for ISP Limit SV Export files for Microsemi In House Program lile types: Cus Master file File encrypted with UEK1	d SPI Slave) P (JTAG and SPI Sla Icrosemi device in a Iming, Auto Update Init SVF file size Igramming (IHP):	ave) TAG d (IAP), P	Export	separate ASCII HEX file for debug
DAT Support for Embedded ISP (JT STAPL Support for ISP Ghain STAPL Support for ISP, Single Micros SPI Support for Auto Programming SVF Support for ISP Limit SV Export files for Microsemi In House Program lile types: Cus Master file File encrypted with UEK1	P (JTAG and SPI Sla Icrosemi device in a Iming, Auto Update nit SVF file size Igramming (IHP):	ave) Г a JTAG ch (IAP), P	Export	separate ASCII HEX file for debug
STAPL Support for ISP Chain STAPL Support for ISP, Single Micros SPI Support for Auto Programming SVF Support for ISP Limit SV SVF Export files for Microsemi In House Program He types: Cus Master file File encrypted with UEK1	icrosemi device in a iming, Auto Update nit SVF file size igramming (IHP):	JTAG d	aain rogrammir	ng Recovery and IAP/ISP Services
Chain STAPL Support for ISP, Single Micros SPI Support for Auto Programming SVF Support for ISP Limit S1 Export files for Microsemi In House Program life types: Cus Master file File encrypted with UEK1	icrosemi device in a ming, Auto Update nit SVF file size gramming (IHP):	JTAG d (IAP), P	nain rogrammir	ng Recovery and IAP/ISP Services
SPI Support for Auto Programming SVF Support for ISP Limit S Export files for Microsemi In House Program let types: Master file File encrypted with UEK1	ming, Auto Update nit SVF file size gramming (IHP):	(IAP), P	rogrammir	ng Recovery and IAP/ISP Services
SVF Support for ISP Limit S Export files for Microsemi In House Program File types: Cus Master file File encrypted with UEK1	nit SVF file size			
Svir Support for Ise	gramming (IHP):			
Export files for Microsemi In House Program File types: Cus Master file File encrypted with UEK1	gramming (IHP):			
File types: Master file File encrypted with UEK1		(Yes	No	
Master file File encrypted with UEK1				
Master file File encrypted with UEK1		1	1	Include Disintent Dass Keys
Master file File encrypted with UEK1	Custom Security	Fabric	eNVM	(N/A for *.spi files)
File encrypted with UEK1	N.	1	Г	
File encrypted with UEK1		17	-	F
		N.		10
File encrypted with UEK2		~	Г	E
			· .	
Export SPI Directory for programming recovery	very Specify SPI	I Director	·y	

Figure 126 · Export Bitstream Dialog Box with Enable Custom Security Options in the Security Policy Manager

Design Settings:

• Displays the Design version set with the Configure Programming Options tool and Back Level version set with the Configure Security tool. They are read-only options and cannot be modified.

Note: Info and warning messages appear based on the value set for Back Level version.

• Security options set with the Configure Security tool- Provides a brief description of current security settings.

Bitstream file(s):

- Name Sets the name of your bitstream file. The default name is the design name.
- Location Location to save the exported file.
- Existing files Lists bitstream files previously created.
- Formats Select the Bitstream File format you want to export:
 - PPD
 - DAT
 - STAPL
 - Chain STAPL (Enabled only when there are two or more devices in the chain)
 - SPI
 - Export separate ASCII HEX file for debugging Exports DAT file in HEX format for debugging. This
 option is active only when DAT file format is selected.
 - Export files for Microsemi In House Programming (IHP) Exports DAT and STP file formats if 'Yes' is selected.

PPD and DAT file formats are the default file formats. STAPL and DAT are the required file formats for In House Programming

• File types:



Note: Refer to Include Plaintext Pass Keys to check the availability of Export Pass keys for Plaintext option for the following Bitstream files.

Lists all the bitstream files to be exported

• **Master file** – Click to include Fabric and /or eNVM and/or Include Plaintext Pass Keys into the bitstream files to be programmed at a trusted environment.

Notes

- 1. Custom Security is always programmed in the Master file.
 - File encrypted with UEK1 to program at untrusted facility or for Broadcast field update - Click to include Fabric and /or eNVM and/or Include Plaintext Pass Keys into the bitstream files to be programmed. If the selected features are not protected by UPK1, the bitstream can be programmed at an untrusted location, since it is encrypted with UEK1 that is preprogrammed into the device.
 - File encrypted with UEK2 to program at untrusted facility or for Broadcast field update - Click to include Fabric and /or eNVM and/or Include Plaintext Pass Keys into the bitstream files to be programmed. If the selected features are not protected by UPK1, the bitstream can be programmed at an untrusted location, since it is encrypted with UEK2 that is preprogrammed into the device.
 - File encrypted with UEK3 to program at untrusted facility or for Broadcast field update - Click to include Fabric and /or eNVM and/or Include Plaintext Pass Keys into the bitstream files to be programmed. If the selected features are not protected by UPK1, the bitstream can be programmed at an untrusted location, since it is encrypted with UEK3 that is preprogrammed into the device.

Note: If eNVM/Fabric is One Time Programmable, it is precluded from bitstream encrypted with UEK1/2/3.

Note:UEK3 is only available for M2S060S, M2GL060S, M2S090S, M2GL090S, M2S150S, and M2GL150S devices. See the <u>SmartFusion2 SoC FPGA and IGLOO2 FPGA Security Best Practices User Guide</u> for more details.

Note: If a component (for example, eNVM) is not present in the design, it will be disabled in the bitstream component selection.

Export SPI Directory for programming recovery – Allows you to export the SPI directory containing Golden and Update SPI image addresses and design versions, used in Auto-update and Programming Recovery flow. Check this option and click **Specify SPI Directory** to set the required information (see figure below).

SPI Directory			? 💌
🔽 Golden SPI Image			
Design version (DEC): 8	Load from file	Address (HEX):0x 678	
☑ Update SPI Image			
Design version (DEC): 11	Load from file	Address (HEX):0x ABC	
Help			OK Cancel

Figure 127 · SPI Directory Dialog Box

Security Programming Files

Export Bitstream (expand Handoff Design for Production in the Design Flow window) creates the following files:



<filename>_master.(stp/svf/spi/dat) - Created when Enable custom security options is specified in the "Configure Security Policy Manager" on page 145. This is the master programming file; it includes all programming features enabled, User Key Set 1, User Key Set 2 (optionally if specified), and your security policy settings.

<filename>_security_only_master.(stp /svf/spi/dat) – Created when Enable custom security options is specified in the "Configure Security Policy Manager" on page 145. Master security programming file; includes User Key Set 1, User Key Set 2 (optionally if specified), and your security policy settings.

<filename>_uek1.(stp/svf/spi/dat) – Programming file encrypted with User Encryption Key 1 used for field updates; includes all your features for programming except security.

<filename>_uek2.(stp/svf/spi/dat) – Programming file encrypted with User Encryption Key 2 used for field updates; includes all your features for programming except security.

<filename>_uek3.(stp/svf/spi/dat) – Programming file encrypted with User Encryption Key 3 used for field
updates; includes all your features for programming except security.

Note: UEK3 is only available for M2S060S, M2GL060S, M2S090S, M2GL090S, M2S150S, and M2GL150S devices. See the <u>SmartFusion2 SoC FPGA and IGLOO2 FPGA Security Best Practices User Guide</u> for more details.

Export Bitstream - RTG4

Design Settings:

• Displays the Design version set with the Configure Programming Options tool. It is read-only option and cannot be modified.

Bitstream file(s):

- Name Sets the name of your bitstream file. The default name is the design name.
- Location Location to save the exported file.
- Existing files Lists bitstream files previously created.
- Formats Select the Bitstream File format you want to export:
 - PPD
 - DAT
 - STAPL
 - Chain STAPL (Enabled only when there are two or more devices in the chain)
 - Export separate ASCII HEX file for debugging Exports DAT file in HEX format. This option is active only when DAT file format is selected.
 - Export files for Microsemi In House Programming (IHP) Exports DAT and STP file formats if 'Yes' is selected.

PPD and DAT file formats are the default file formats. STAPL and DAT are the required file formats for In House Programming

Note: Security Programming is not supported for RTG4.



Design settings	ith the Configure Programming Options tool: 0	
Bitstream file(s) Name: TOP Existing files:	Location: X:\delete\rtg41\designer\TOP\export	
This folder is em	ity.	
Formats:	Current for 100 (TTAC)	
	Support for Embedded ISP (ITAG) Fxport separate ASCII HEX file for debugging	
	Support for ISP	
Chain STAPL	Support for ISP, Single Microsemi device in a JTAG chain	
SVF	Support for ISP Limit SVF file size	
Export files	for Microsemi In House Programming (IHP): C Yes 📀 No	

Figure 128 · Export Bitstream Dialog Box

Note: If you have selected the One-time programmable (OTP) option in Configure Programming Options, you will see the following dialog box:

One-time Programmable Device	×
 You selected to make the device one-time programming the device you will NOT be able program the device. You will be able to run programming actions VI VERIFY_DIGEST as well as use SmartDebug to oprobes and read the digest of the Fabric. Refer to RTG4 FPGA Datasheet Table 4 for maxin Verify Cycles per Program/Erase cycle after make one-time programmable. You may change the one-time programmable so Configure Programming Options tool. 	etting in the

Click \boldsymbol{Yes} to continue or \boldsymbol{No} to cancel.



Export FlashPro Express Job - SmartFusion2, IGLOO2, RTG4

To program the design using standalone FlashPro Express tool on Linux or Windows, the user must export a FlashPro Express Job. The job file will include chain configuration, Programmer Settings, Programming Mode (JTAG/SPI-Slave) and programming files loaded from Programming Connectivity and Interface.

Note: SPI Slave mode is supported by FlashPro5 for SmartFusion2 and IGLOO2 devices, and by FlashPro6 for SmartFusion2, IGLOO2 devices. SPI Slave mode is not supported for RTG4 devices. JTAG is the default interface.

For SmartFusion2 and IGLOO2, Security Programming is supported. Use the Security Policy Manager to configure Security before you export the programming job. The Export FlashPro Express Job dialog box for SmartFusion2 and IGLOO2 displays the Security Options you have configured in the Security Policy Manager.

Note: Security Programming is not supported for RTG4.

For RTG4, Security Programming is not supported. No security programming options are available in the Export FlashPro Express Job dialog box.

The Export FlashPro Express Job dialog box options vary depending on the device you are using and the Security Key Mode you select.

gramming options set with the Configure Programming Options tool: Degree version - 0 = mack-teel version - 0 curity options set with the Configure Security tool: Totalise all accurs of with the Configure Security tool: Totalise all accurs of the Configure Security tool: Totalise all accurs of the Configure Security for the Configure Security and read the content of struct. Proceeding teel and work of the Configure Security and read digest requests through TAG/SPE Silves are enabled: Repeated extrume Fabric digest calculations can impact the relativity. Www DataStreet for additional information. drifts for Express Job file met: [st]	xport Flag	shPro Express Job	ing in a given and a given and a given					-
<pre>sparming options set with the Configure Programming Options tool: Design version - 0 Back Level version - 0 xinty options set with the Configure Security toel: Smartbeak and Endox Version to the strengt of the one programming of debugging session. Smartbeak and Endox debuggers debuggers and by the Accessible. Anyone can debugging session. Smartbeak and Endox degets calculations can impact its reliability. Were Databateah for additional information. The programming option of the one programming of the bugging session. Smartbeak and Endox degets calculations can impact its reliability. Were Databateah for additional information. The programming option of the one programming of the reliability. Were Databateah for additional information. The programming option of the one programming of the reliability. Were Databateah for additional information. The programming option of the one programming of the reliability. Were Databateah for additional information. The programming option of the one programming of the reliability. The programming of the reliability of the programming interface:</pre>	esian sett	tings						
grammar produces set with the Configure Security testion: Design version: 0 Back Level version -0 carity goals as a with the Configure Security testion: Smartbeak and Known known with settings during one companying or debugging session. Smartbeak and Known known with settings during one companying or debugging session. Smartbeak and Known known known with settings during one companying or debugging session. Smartbeak and Known known known with settings during one companying or debugging session. Smartbeak and Known known known known with settings during one companying or debugging session. Smartbeak and Known known known with setting during one companying or debugging session. Smartbeak and Known know	rogrammi	ing options sot with the Configure D	rogramming Options tool					
<pre>chapter is uncleared with the Configure Security setting: Definition with the Configure Security setting: Definition of a solured. In thema of the setting data may be accessable. Anyone can debug or access active probes, access Live Probes, and read the content of stWA. Pactory testing that is used to a solured. Thema is the setting of the accessable. Anyone can debug or access active probes, access Live Probes, and read the content of stWA. Pactory testing that is used to a solured. The wild alow Morease to perform fail and the Anyons: The access testing Paint (algorith design verify and read deget requests through) TRA(SFI Silve are enabled. Reserved verify and deget requests through) TRA(SFI Silve are enabled. Reserved verify and read deget requests through) TRA(SFI Silve are enabled. Reserved verify and deget verify and read deget requests through) TRA(SFI Silve are enabled. Reserved verify and deget verify and read deget requests through) TRA(SFI Silve are enabled. Reserved verify and deget verify and read deget requests through) TRA(SFI Silve are enabled. Reserved verify and deget verify and read deget requests through) TRA(SFI Silve are enabled. Reserved verify and deget verify and the access active probes, access Live Probe, and read the content of stWA. Reserved verify and deget verify and the access active probes, access the probes, access active probes, acc</pre>	Design	version = 0 Back Level version = 0	nogramming options tool.					
carty goods set with the Configure Security Delting. Use I facture of the integration of the integration of the content of a with the configure is set integration of the content of a with the configure is set integration of the content of a with the configure is set integration of the content of a with the configure is set integration of the content of a with the content	besign							
The sector of	ecurity op	ptions set with the Configure Securi	ty tool:					
and Tubbug access control is enabled. Internal data may be accessible. Anyone can debug or access active probes, access Live Probe, and read the content of sNMM. Encented traditional information. access Live Probe, and read the content of sNMM. Here access Live Probe, access Live Probe, and read the content of sNMM. Encented traditions can impact its relability. View Datasheet for additional information. action of the second data for additions can impact its relability. View Datasheet for additional information. action of the second data for additions can impact its relability. View Datasheet for additional information. action of the second data for additions can impact its relability. View Datasheet for additional information. action of the second data for additions can impact its relability. View Datasheet for additional information. action of the second data for additions can impact its relability. View Datasheet for additional information. action of the second data for addition of the second data information. action of the second data for addition of the second data information. action of the second data for addition of the second data information. action of the second data for addition of the second data information. action of the second data for addition of the second data information. action of the second data for addition of the second data for additing the second data for addition of the second data for addition o	Use Fla	ashLock/UPK1 to temporarily enable	settings during one prog	ramming or debu	gging session.			
Textmal Fabric/StVM design verify and read dgest requests through TAGS/ST Save are enabled. Repeated extmal Fabric dgest calculations can impact its reliability. Yew Datasheet for additional information. address 20 b fle	Sr	martDebug access control is enabled actory test mode is allowed. This wil	d. Internal data may be a I allow Microsemi to perfo	ccessible. Anyon	e can debug or access active probe sis.	s, access Live Probe, and	read the content of sNVM.	
shiPro Express Job file me: gd1 Location: [esigns/man_test_actions_g5/designer/sd1/export g5_target_g4_gbob g5_target_g4_defaultijob g5_target_g4_defaultijob g5_target_g4_defaultijob g7 Long g4_defaultijob g7 Long g4_defaul	A EX	xternal Fabric/sNVM design verify an epeated external Fabric digest calcu	nd read digest requests t lations can impact its reli	hrough JTAG/SPI ability. View Data	Slave are enabled. sheet for additional information.			
me: d1 uccation: lesigns/main_test_actions_g5/designer/sd1/export g5_target_g6_j0b g5_target_g6_default_j0b g5_target_g6_default_j0b g7_barget_g6_default_j0b g7_barget_g6_de	ashPro Ex	xpress Job file						
Ising files: g5_target_g4_job	ame:	sd1	Location:	lesigns\main_t	est_actions_g5\designer\sd1\expor	t		
g5_target_g4_job g5_target_g4_job g5_target_g4_default.job g5 g5 <td< td=""><td>cisting file</td><td>es:</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td></td<>	cisting file	es:						
g5_target_g4_job g5_target_g4_default_job g7_target_g4_default_job g7 g7_target_g4_default_job g7 <td< td=""><td>a5 ta</td><td>arget.job</td><td></td><td>•</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td></td<>	a5 ta	arget.job		•				
g5_target_g4_defaultjob cd1.ioh ✓ Design SPI_Flash ssign bitstream file format: PPD (*,ppd) ▼	g5_t/	arget_g4.job						
cdl.inb configure	g5_ta	arget_g4_default.job		-1				
ogram (JTAG programming interface): ▼ Design SPI Flash sign bitstream file format: PPD (*,ppd) ▼ sign bitstream file type: Custom Security Fabric/sNVM Include Plaintext Pass Keys Master file Custom Security Fabric/sNVM Include Plaintext Pass Keys Master file Custom Security Fabric/sNVM Include Plaintext Pass Keys Master file encrypted with UEK1 Γ Γ Γ File encrypted with UEK2 Γ Γ Γ sign actions and procedures: Configure Available actions and procedures depend on the selected bitstream components	sd1.i	ioh						
Design SPI Flash ssign bitstream file format: PPD (*,ppd) PPD (*,ppd) O ssign bitstream file format: PPD (*,ppd) O ssign bitstream file type: Output Custom Security Fabric/sNVM Include Plaintext Pass Keys O File encrypted with UEK1 O File encrypted with UEK2 O	rogram (J	JTAG programming interface):						
SPI Flash sign bitstream file format: PPD (*.ppd) • • • • sign bitstream file type: • Master file • • • • • • • • • File encrypted with UEK1 • • • • • • • • File encrypted with UEK2 • • • • • • • sign actions and procedures: Configure • Available actions and procedures depend on the selected bitstream components		sign						
SPI Flash sign bitstream file format: PPD (*,ppd) sign bitstream file type: Custom Security Fabric/SNVM Include Plaintext Pass Keys Master file Master file File encrypted with UEK1 File encrypted with UEK2 File encrypted with UEK2 Available actions and procedures: Available actions and procedures depend on the selected bitstream components	,	-argin						
esign bitstream file format: PPD (*,ppd)	SP:	PI Flash						
sign bitstream file format: PPD (*.ppd)								
sign bitstream file type: Custom Security Fabric/sNVM Include Plaintext Pass Keys Haster file Image: Custom Security Fabric/sNVM File encrypted with UEK1 Image: Custom Security File encrypted with UEK2 Image: Custom Security File encrypted with UEK2 Image: Custom Security Image: Sign actions and procedures: Configure Available actions and procedures depend on the selected bitstream components	esign bits	stream file format: PPD (*.ppd)	_ 0					
Custom Security Fabric/sNVM Include Plaintext Pass Keys Master file Image: Custom Security Image: Custom Security File encrypted with UEK1 Image: Custom Security Image: Custom Security File encrypted with UEK1 Image: Custom Security Image: Custom Security Image: Sign actions and procedures: Configure Image: Custom Security Available actions and procedures depend on the selected bitstream components Image: Custom Security	esign bits	stream file type:						
Image: Configure with UEK1 Image: Configure with UEK2 Image: Configure with UEK2 Image: Sign actions and procedures: Configure with UEK2 Image: Configure with UEK2 Image: Sign actions and procedures: Configure with UEK2 Image: Configure with UEK2 Available actions and procedures depend on the selected bitstream components Image: Configure with UEK2 Image: Configure with UEK2			Custom Security	Fabric/sNVM	Include Plaintext Pass Keys			
Image: File encrypted with UEX1 Image: File encrypted with UEX2 Image: File encrypted with UEX2 Image: sign actions and procedures: Configure Image: File encrypted with UEX2 Available actions and procedures depend on the selected bitstream components Available actions and procedures depend on the selected bitstream components	۰	Master file	V.	~				
File encrypted with UEK2 Г Г esign actions and procedures: Configure Image: Configure	0	File encrypted with UEK1		П	Г			
esign actions and procedures: Configure	0	File encrypted with UEK2		Г	Г			
Available actions and procedures depend on the selected bitstream components	esian acti	ions and procedures: Configure	1.					
	coignaca	configurent	Available actions	and procedures	depend on the selected bitstrea	m components		
			Available delloris	and procedure.	depend on the selected bisited	reomponenta		
telo								
Halp OK Cap		1						
or car	Help						OK Ca	incel

Figure 129 · Export FlashPro Express Job Dialog Box with Bitstream encryption with default key **Design Settings:**

• Displays the Design version set with the Configure Programming Options tool and Back Level version set with the Configure Security tool. They are read-only options and cannot be modified.

Note: Info and warning messages appear based on the value set for Back Level version.

• Security options set with the Configure Security tool (Modify via Security Policy Manager)- Provides a brief description of current security settings.



FlashPro Express Job file:

- Name Sets the name of your bitstream file. The default name is the design name.
- Location Location of the file to be exported.
- Existing files Lists any existing programming job files at the selected location.
- Design bitstream file format- Lists all the available bitstream files, one of which will be included in the
 programming job for the current target device. The format of the Bitstream file can be selected from the
 Format drop down menu. PPD is the default bitstream file format.
- Design bitstream file type
 - File to Program at trusted facility(only available when the design is configured with Bitstream Encryption with Default Key in the Security Policy Manager- Click to enable programming for Fabric/sNVM bitstream components at a trusted facility.
 - Master file to program at trusted facility(available when the design is configured with Custom Security options in the Security Policy Manager) Click to include:
 - Fabric and /or eNVM.
 - Include Plaintext Pass Keys into the bitstream files to be programmed at a trusted facility.

Note:

- · Custom Security is always programmed in the Master file.
- File encrypted with UEK1 to program at untrusted facility or for Broadcast field update Click to include:
 - Fabric and /or eNVM.
 - Include Plaintext Pass Keys into the bitstream files to be programmed.
- File encrypted with UEK2 to program at untrusted facility or for Broadcast field update -Click to include:
 - Include Plaintext Pass Keys into the bitstream files to be programmed.
 - Fabric and /or eNVM.

Note: Refer to Export Pass Keys for Plaintext to check the availability of Export Pass keys for Plaintext option for the following Bitstream files.

- File encrypted with UEK3 to program at untrusted facility or for Broadcast field update -Click to include:
 - Fabric and/or eNVM.
 - Include Plaintext Pass Keys into the bitstream files to be programmed.

Note: If eNVM/Fabric is One Time Programmable, it is precluded from a bitstream encrypted with UEK1/2/3.

Note:UEK3 is only available for M2S060, M2GL060, M2S090, M2GL090, M2S150 and M2GL150 devices. See the <u>SmartFusion2 SoC FPGA and IGLOO2 FPGA Security Best Practices User Guide</u> for more details.


×

RTG4

Export	FlashPro	Express.	Job

esian settinas —							
esign settings	t with the Configure Progra	amming Option	is tool: 0				
caigh veraion ac			3 0001. 0				
ack Level versio	n set with the Configure Se	curity tool:	U				
ecurity options s	et with the Configure Secu	rity tool:					
Encrypt bitstr	ream with default key. No U	Jser keys and	Security Polic	cies are enabled.			
ashPro Express	Job file						
TAG device chair	n, devices bitstream files an	nd configured a	actions, prog	grammer settings will be include	d in the program	ming job.	
ame: testcas	e		Location:	bciory_rtg4_v1\testcase\des	signer\testcase\e	export	i mili
	-			,			
kisting files:							
testcase.jo	b						
sa ma	St. 6						
esign bitstream	file format: PPD (*.ppd)	• ()					
esign bitstream	file format: PPD (*.ppd)	• 0					
esign bitstream esign bitstream	file format: PPD (*.ppd) file type:	• •	no l				
esign bitstream	file format: PPD (*.ppd) file type:	Fabric eN	IVM				
esign bitstream esign bitstream File to pr	file format: PPD (*.ppd) file type: ogram at trusted facility	Fabric eN	IVM				
esign bitstream esign bitstream File to pr	file format: PPD (*.ppd) file type: ogram at trusted facility	▼ 1 Fabric eN	IVM				
esign bitstream esign bitstream File to pr	file format: PPD (*.ppd) file type: ogram at trusted facility	Fabric eN	IVM				
esign bitstream	file format: PPD (*.ppd) file type: 'ogram at trusted facility d procedures:Configure	Fabric eN	IVM				
esign bitstream esign bitstream File to pr esign actions an	file format: PPD (*.ppd) file type: 'ogram at trusted facility d procedures: <u>Configure</u>	Fabric eN	IVM				
esign bitstream esign bitstream File to pr esign actions an	file format: PPD (*,ppd) file type: rogram at trusted facility d procedures: <u>Configure</u>	Fabric eN	IVM 				
esign bitstream esign bitstream File to pr esign actions an	file format: PPD (*.ppd) file type: rogram at trusted facility d procedures: <u>Configure</u>	Fabric eN	<u>IVM</u>				
esign bitstream esign bitstream File to pr esign actions an	file format: PPD (*.ppd) file type: ogram at trusted facility d procedures: <u>Configure</u>	Fabric eN	IVM -				
esign bitstream esign bitstream File to pr esign actions an	file format: PPD (*.ppd) file type: 'ogram at trusted facility d procedures: <u>Configure</u>	Fabric eN	IVM 				
esign bitstream esign bitstream File to pr esign actions an	file format: PPD (*.ppd) file type: 'ogram at trusted facility d procedures: <u>Configure</u>	Fabric eN	IVM 				

Figure 130 · Export FlashPro Express Job Dialog Box- RTG4

Design Settings:

• Displays the Design version set with the Configure Programming Options tool. It is read-only options and cannot be modified.

FlashPro Express Job file:

- Name Sets the name of your bitstream file. The default name is the design name.
- Location Location of the file to be exported.
- Existing files Lists any existing programming job files at the selected location.
- **Design Bitstream File Format** Lists all the available bitstream files, one of which will be included in the programming job for the current target device. The format of the Bitstream file can be selected from the **Format** drop down menu. PPD is the default bitstream file format.

Note: If you have selected the One-time programmable (OTP) option in Configure Programming Options, you will see the following dialog box:





Click Yes to continue or No to cancel.

Prepare Design for Production Programming in FlashPro Express

After you have exported a programming job you can handoff this programming job to the FlashPro Express tool for production programming. To do so:

In FlashPro Express, from the **File** menu choose **Create Job Project From a Programming Job**. You will be prompted to specify the Programming Job location that you just exported from Libero and the location of where to store the Job Project. The Job Project name automatically uses the programming job name and cannot be changed. Click **OK** and a new Job Project will be created and opened for production programming.

See Also

Configure Actions and Procedures

Export Job Manager Data - SmartFusion2, IGLOO2

Job Manager is Microsemi's HSM-based security software for job management.

As a part of the SPPS flow, the Export Job Manager Data dialog box allows a design engineer (user) to export Libero design data to Job Manager. Exported data is used by an operation engineer (OE) using Job Manager to prepare the manufacturing process for HSM or non-HSM flow.

Job Manager Data export is only provided for SmartFusion2, IGLOO2 devices.



	Export Job Manager Data ×
Programm	ing data file
Name:	secand
Location:	9_newcons/spps/designer/secand/export
Existing p	programming data files:
Include bi	tstream components ustom security I Fabric I eNVM
Help	<u>S</u> <u>C</u> ancel <u>↓</u> <u>O</u> K

Figure 131 · Export Job Manager Data Dialog Box

Programming data file - export Job Data Container (JDC) file.

Name - All names use a prefix as shown in your software.

Location - Location of the file to be exported.

Existing programming job files - Lists any existing programming job files already in your project. **Include bitstream components** - Lists the components of the design that can be saved to the file.

Export Pin Report

In the Design Flow window, expand **Handoff Design for Production**. Right-click **Export Pin Report** to export a pin report.

The Export Pin Reports dialog box opens. Click **Browse** to navigate to a disk location where you want the pin report to be saved to.

Check the checkbox to make your selections:

- Pin Report sorted by Port Name
- Pin Report sorted by Package Pin Name
- I/O Bank Report
- I/O Register Combining Report

The pin report lists the pins in your device sorted according to your preference: sort by Port Name or Sorted by Package Pin Name. The pin report generates two files:

- <design>_pinrpt_name.rpt Pin report sorted by name.
- <design>_pinrpt_number.rpt Pin report sorted by pin number.

You must select at least one report.



Export Pin Report generates a Bank Report by default; the filename is <design>-bankrpt.rpt. Export Pin Report also generates an I/O Register Combining Report listing the I/Os which have been combined into a Register for betting timing performance.

Export Pin R	eports ? X
Location:	D:\2Work\dsfsda\designer\count16 Browse
Pin Report S	orted by Port Name
Pin Report S	orted by Package Pin Name
📝 I/O Bank Re	port
V I/O Register	Combining Report
Help	OK Cancel

Figure 132 · Export Pin Report Dialog Box

Export BSDL File

Double-click Export BSDL File (in the Libero SoC Design Flow window, **Handoff Design for Production > Export BSDL File**) to generate the BSDL File report to your <u>Design Report</u>.

The BSDL file provides a standard file format for electronics testing using JTAG. It describes the boundary scan device package, pin description and boundary scan cell of the input and output pins. BSDL models are available as downloads for many Microsemi SoC devices.

See the Microsemi website for more information on BSDL Models.

Export IBIS Model

Double-click Export IBIS Model (in the Libero SoC Design Flow window, **Handoff Design for Production > Export IBIS Model**) to generate the IBIS Model report.

The IBIS model report provides an industry-standard file format for recording parameters like driver output impedance, rise/fall time, and input loading, which may then be used by software applications such as Signal Integrity tools or IBIS simulators.

The exported IBIS file has the file extension *.ibs (named <root>.ibs) and is displayed in the Files tab.

For SmartFusion2, IGOO2 and RTG4 devices, the IBIS report *.ibs file exported from Libero SoC supports the Model Selector keyword as specified in the <u>IBIS 5.0 Specifications</u>.

In the [Pin] section of the IBIS *.ibs file, listed under the model_name are the Model Selector tag. The IBIS *.ibs file has a [Model Selector] section that describes the model selector and its list of models. The Model Selector tag in the [Pin] section establishes the relationship between the pin and the [Model Selector].



[Pin]	signal_name	aodel_name	R_pin	L_pin	C_pin
AE33 E31 A2	PAD_0<27> PAD_I<105> PAD_0<33>	LVCMOS15_Bank15Group1_msiod LVCMOS25_Bank1Group1_ddrio LVCMOS25_Bank2Group1_ddrio	0.75142 0.609967 0.786904	5.68346e-009 5.61206e-009 7.52853e-009	2.14353e-01 2.47835e-01 2.87418e-01
[Model LVCMOS1 LVCMOS1 LVCMOS1	Selector] 5_6nA_MSIOD 5_2nA_MSIOD 5_4nA_MSIOD	LVCHOS15_Bank15Group1_msiod LVCHOS15 6mA MSIOD LVCHOS15 2mA MSIOD LVCHOS15 4mA MSIOD	\	Model Selector fo	or Pin AE33
Model LVCMOS2 LVCMOS2 LVCMOS2 LVCMOS2 LVCMOS2 LVCMOS2 LVCMOS2	Selector] 5_2nA_MEDFAST_DDRIO 5_2nA_SLOW_DDRIO 5_2nA_FAST_DDRIO 5_4nA_MEDFAST_DDRIO 5_4nA_MEDFAST_DDRIO 5_4nA_MED_DDRIO 5_4nA_FAST_DDRIO	LVCMOS25_Bank1Group1_ddr D LVCMOS25 2mA MEDFAST DDR LVCMOS25 2mA SLOW DDRIO LVCMOS25 2mA MED DDRIO LVCMOS25 2mA MED DDRIO LVCMOS25 4mA MEDFAST DDR LVCMOS25 4mA MED DDRIO LVCMOS25 4mA FAST DDRIO		Model Selector f	or Pin E31
Model LVCMOS2 LVCMOS2 LVCMOS2 LVCMOS2 LVCMOS2 LVCMOS2 LVCMOS2 LVCMOS2	Selector] 5_4mA_SLOW_DDRIO 5_4mA_MED_DDRIO 5_4mA_MEDFAST_DDRIO 5_4mA_FAST_DDRIO 5_2mA_SLOW_DDRIO 5_2mA_MED_DDRIO 5_2mA_MEDFAST_DDRIO 5_2mA_FAST_DDRIO	LVCMOS25_Bank2Group1_ddr LVCMOS25_4nA SLOW DDRIO LVCMOS25 4nA MED DDRIO D LVCMOS25 4nA MEDFAST DDR LVCMOS25 4nA FAST DDRIO LVCMOS25 2nA SLOW DDRIO LVCMOS25 2nA MED DDRIO D LVCMOS25 2nA MED FAST DDR LVCMOS25 2nA FAST DDRIO		 Model Selector 	for Pin A2

Figure 133 · Model Selector *.ibs File

The advantage of Model Selector feature is that you can load the *.ibs file from Libero SoC into Signal Integrity applications or IBIS simulators and switch the I/O to different models for individual I/Os on-the-fly in the tools. There is no need to go back to the Libero SoC I/O Attribute Editor to change the I/O settings and run Compile to switch to different I/O settings.

See the Microsemi Website for more information on IBIS Models.

Export uPROM Report - RTG4

In the Design Flow window:

- 1. Expand Handoff Design for Production.
- 2. Right-click **Export uPROM Report** to export a uPROM Report. The **Export uPROM Report Under File** dialog box opens.
- 3. Navigate to a disk location where you want to save the uPROM Report.

Enter the following command to invoke tool in batch mode:

export_uPROM_Report_RTG4 -export_dir {E:\ram_uic_test_capture\designer\sd}

The Export uPROM Report generates an XML/TEXT version of the report. The filename is uPROM_Configuration_Report.xml/ uPROM_Configuration_Report.txt.

This report includes the configuration file path, clients details, and uPROM usage statistics.



Handoff Design for Firmware Development

Software IDE Integration

Libero SoC simplifies the task of transitioning between designing your FPGA to developing your embedded firmware.

Libero SoC manages the firmware for your FPGA hardware design, including:

- Firmware hardware abstraction layers required for your processor
- Firmware drivers for the processor peripherals that you use in your FPGA design.
- · Sample application projects are available for drivers that illustrate the proper usage of the APIs

You can see which firmware drivers Libero SoC has found to be compatible with your design by opening the <u>Firmware View</u>. From this view, you can change the configuration of your firmware, change to a different version, read driver documentation, and generate any sample projects for each driver.

Libero SoC manages the integration of your firmware with your preferred Software Development Environment, including SoftConsole, Keil, and IAR Embedded Workbench. The projects and workspaces for your selected development environment are automatically generated with the proper settings and flags so that you can immediately begin writing your application.

See Also

Exporting Firmware and the Software IDE Workspace Running Libero SoC from your Software Tool Chain View/Configure Firmware Cores

View/Configure Firmware Cores

Use this dialog to select and configure firmware cores (drivers) for your Software IDE project. The Design Firmware tab lists the compatible firmware for the hardware that you have instantiated in your design. In the Design Flow tab, expand **Create Design** and double-click **View/Configure Firmware Cores** to view the DESIGN FIRMWARE tab.

The Firmware table lists the compatible firmware and drivers based on the hardware peripherals that you have used in your design. Each row represents a firmware core that is compatible with a hardware peripheral in your design. The columns in the Firmware table are:

- Generate Allows you to choose whether you want the files for this firmware core to be generated on disk
 and added to your Software IDE project. Click the checkbox to generate firmware for each peripheral in your
 design.
- **Instance Name** This is the name of the firmware instance. This may be helpful in distinguishing firmware cores when you have multiple firmware cores with the same Vendor:Library:Name:Version (VLNV) in your design.
- **Core Type** Firmware Core Type is the Name from the VLNV id of the core. This generally corresponds to the name of the hardware peripheral with which the firmware core is compatible.
- Version Firmware Core Version; you can upgrade or choose a different version via a dropdown menu in this column.
- Compatible Hardware Instance The hardware instance in your design that is compatible with this firmware core.

Downloading Firmware

Libero attempts to find compatible firmware located in the IP Vault located on your disk, as well as firmware in the IP Repository via the Internet.



If compatible firmware is found in the IP repository but not on your disk, the row will be italicized, indicating that it needs to be downloaded. To download all firmware cores necessary for your project peripherals, click the **Download All Firmware** icon in the vertical toolbar.

Configuring Firmware

Firmware cores that have configurable options will have a wrench icon in the row. Click the wrench icon to configure the firmware core.

It is important that you check the configuration of your firmware cores if they have configurable options. They may have options that target your software IDE (Keil, IAR or Softconsole), or your processor, that are vital configuration options to getting your system to work properly.

Generating Firmware

Click the Generate icon to export the firmware drivers and software IDE project for your project. The firmware drivers are generated into <project>\firmware and the software workspace is exported to <project>\<toolchain>. <toolchain> could be SoftConsole, IAR or Keil, depending on your software IDE.

The firmware drivers are also copied into the <toolchain> folder.

Changing Firmware Core Versions

You can manually change to the latest version by selecting the drop down in the Version column.

There will often be multiple versions of a firmware cores available for a particular peripheral. The MSS Configurator selects the latest compatible version for a new design.

However, once the firmware has been added to your design, Libero will not automatically change to the latest version if one becomes available.

Note: If a core version is shown in italics it is available in the Web Repository but not in your Vault; you must download the firmware core version to use it in your design.

Generating Sample Projects

Firmware cores are packaged with sample projects that demonstrate their usage. They are packaged for specific tool chains, such as Keil, IAR and SoftConsole

To generate a sample project, right-click the firmware core and choose **Generate Sample Project**, then select your IDE tool chain (such as Keil), and choose from the list of available samples.

You will be prompted to select the destination folder for the sample project.

Once this project is generated you can use it as a starting point in your Software IDE tool or use the example project as a reference on how to use the firmware driver.

Fabric Peripherals

Libero SoC also attempts to find compatible firmware for soft (fabric) peripherals that you have added in your toplevel SmartDesign if that top-level is Set as Root.

To set your top-level design as a root, right-click your top-level design in the Design Hierarchy and choose **Set as Root**. The root component appears in bold.

The figure below shows CoreGPIO, CorePWM and CoreUARTapb soft cores that have been added into your toplevel SmartDesign.



Project	File	Edit Viev	v Design	Tools SmartDesign Help				
			20	🎯 🖸 🚺				
6	SD	smartfusior	n_project (SD smartfusion_project_M	ISS 🗵 🤷 DESIGN_FIRMW	ARE 🔀 💧		
		Generate		Instance Name	Core Type	Version	Compatible Hardware Instance	
e	1	•	1	CoreGPIO_Driver_0	CoreGPIO_Driver	3.0.101 👻	smartfusion_project:CoreGPIO_0	-
	2	•	2	CorePWM_Driver_0	CorePWM_Driver	2.1.107 👻	smartfusion_project:corepwm_0	
	3	•	2	CoreUARTapb_Driver_0	CoreUARTapb_Driver 3.0.10		smartfusion_project:CoreUARTapb_0	
	4	•	Ø 🗒	HAL_0	HAL 2.1.102 -		smartfusion_project_MSS	
	5	•	1	MSS_ACE_Driver_0	MSS_ACE_Driver 2.2.101		smartfusion_project_MSS:MSS_ACE_0	
	6	•	Ø,	MSS_Ethernet_MAC_Driver_0	MSS_Ethernet_MAC_Driver	2.0.103	smartfusion_project_MSS:MS5_MAC_0	
	7	V	1	MSS_GPIO_Driver_0	MSS_GPIO_Driver	2.0.105 👻	smartfusion_project_MSS:MS5_GPIO_0	
	8			MSS_IAP_Driver_0	MSS_IAP_Driver	2.2.101 👻	smartfusion_project_MSS	
	9	V	Ø,	MSS_MAC_Driver_0	MSS_MAC_Driver	1.0.1	smartfusion_project_MSS:MSS_MAC_0	-
			_				n	

Figure 134 · Firmware Cores Tab (DESIGN_FIRMWARE)

See Also

Exporting Firmware and the Software IDE Workspace Running Libero SoC from your Software Tool Chain Software IDE Integration

Export Firmware – SmartFusion2

When your design has been completed, you can export the design firmware configuration using the Export Firmware tool. The firmware configuration contains:

- Register configuration files for MSS, FDDR, and SERDES blocks instantiated in your design. This
 information must be compiled with your application along with the SmartFusion2 CMSIS firmware core to
 have proper Peripheral Initialization when the Cortex-M3 boots.
- Firmware drivers compatible with the hard and soft peripherals instantiated in your design.

To export your design firmware configuration, double-click **Export Firmware** in the Libero SoC Design Flow window under Handoff Design for Firmware Development. The Export Firmware dialog box opens.

Export Firm	ware		8 23
ocation:	C:\temp\test_0712		Browse
Software IDE:	SoftConsole4.0 🔻		
Export hard	ware configuration and firmware driver	s	
Create soft	ware project including hardware config	uration and firmware drivers	
Help		OK	Cancel
neib			Cancer

Figure 135 · Export Firmware Dialog Box

Location: Provide the location where you want the firmware configuration files to be exported. When you export the firmware, Libero SoC creates a Firmware folder to store all the drivers and register configuration files.

Software IDE: <selected Software Tool Chain>

Libero SoC creates the firmware project for the IDE tool of your choice and creates the SoftConsole/IAR/Keil (per your choice) folder to store the projects.



Export hardware configuration and firmware drivers: This option is checked by default. Beginning in Libero SoC v11.7, the Export hardware configuration option exports register configuration files for MSS, FDDR and SERDES blocks instantiated in your design. CMSIS and other firmware drivers must be generated using the standalone Firmware Catalog executable. These options are available to support SoftConsole 4.0 flow.

Create software project including hardware configuration and firmware drivers

To enable you to manage your firmware project separately from Libero's automatically generated firmware data, the created software workspace contains two software projects:

hardware_platform - This project contains all the firmware and hardware abstraction layers that correspond to your hardware design. This project is configured as a library and is referenced by your application project. The content of this folder is overwritten every time you export your firmware project.

application - This project produces a program and results in the binary file. It links with the hardware_platform project. This folder does not get overwritten when you re-export your firmware. This is where you can write your own main.c and other application code, as well as add other user drivers and files. You can reference header (*.h) files of any hardware peripherals in the hardware_platform project – include paths are automatically set up for you.

To build your workspace, make sure you have both the hardware_platform and _application projects set to the same compile target (Release or Debug) and build both projects.

To open your exported firmware projects you must invoke your third-party development tool (SoftConsole, Keil or IAR) outside Libero SoC and point it to the exported firmware workspace.

Note: You must re-export firmware if you make any changes to your design

TCL Command

```
export_firmware \
-export_dir {D:\Designs\software_drivers} \
-create_project 1 \
-software ide {Keil}
```

Version Supported

Libero SoC v11.7 and later supports the following versions of third-party development tools:

- SoftConsole v4.0
- SoftConsole v3.4
- IAR EWARM
- Keil



Export SmartDebug Data (Libero SoC)

Export SmartDebug Data allows the export of SmartDebug Data from Libero to be handed off to the Standalone SmartDebug environment.

In the Libero SoC Design Flow window, expand **Handoff Design for Debugging**, right-click **Export SmartDebug Data** and click **Export** to open the Export SmartDebug Data dialog box. Specify the design debug data file (*.ddc)) to be exported. This file is also used as one of the ways to create a Standalone SmartDebug project. See the following figure for an example.

Export :	SmartDebug Data		
Design de	bug data file		
Name:	testcase		
Location:	e design/2 pciory rtg4 y1\testcase\designer\testcase\export		
Existing d	esian debua data files:		
tes	tcase.ddc	_	
	ssion components		
	EDCA Arrey Date Date		
	-PGA Array Probe Points		
	FPGA Array Memory Blocks		
	Security Display DPK or UPK1 in SmartDebug		
<u> </u>	JTAG Chain		
	Programmer Settings		
	Device I/O States During Programming		
	e bitstream file to program at trusted facility		
Formati			
i ormat.			
Bits	ream components: IM Fabric I ENVM		
Help		ОК	Cancel

Figure 136 · Export SmartDebug Data Dialog Box

Note: SmartDebug data can be exported without connecting the hardware.



Design debug data file (*.ddc)

Name

The name of the design.

Location

The location of the exported debug file. By default, the *.ddc file is exported to the <project_location>/designer/<design>/export folder and has the *.ddc file extension.

Existing Design Debug Data Files

The existing *.ddc file, if any, in the export folder.

SmartDebug data can be exported after you run Generate FPGA Array Data for the design in the Libero Design Flow. You can also directly export SmartDebug data after running Synthesize on the design. Other tools, such as Place and Route, Generate FPGA Array Data, and so forth) are implicitly run before the Export SmartDebug Data dialog box is displayed.

Include design components

A DDC file can contain the following components:

- **FPGA Array Probe Points** When checked, Libero SoC exports Live and Active probes information (<design>_probe.db file) into the *.ddb container file.
- **FPGA Array Memory Blocks** When checked, Libero SoC exports information about FPGA memories (<design>_sii_block.db) into the *.ddb container file:
 - o names and addresses of the memory blocks instantiated by the design
 - o data formats selected by the user in the design
- **sNVM** When checked, Libero SoC exports sNVM components.
- Security This contains the security locks, keys, and security policy information needed for debug. This may be default or custom security (<design>.spm file). It is hidden if security is not supported for the device; for example, RTG4 devices.
 - **Display DPK or UPK1 in SmartDebug** This option is enabled only when custom security is provided, and is unchecked by default.
- JTAG Chain (device chain information configured using Programming Connectivity and Interface in Libero)

 When checked, Libero SoC exports chain data including devices, their programming files if loaded, device properties, and so on (<design>.pro file). If JTAG chain is uchecked, the default JTAG chain with Libero design device only is added to the *.ddc file.
- **Programmer Settings** (<design>.pro file) If Programmer Settings is unchecked, the default programmer settings are added to the *.ddc file.
- Device I/O States During Programming (<design>.ios file) This setting is used by some SmartDebug features, for example, for programming eNVM. It is NOT used during device programming in SmartDebug; programming files used to program devices already have I/O states data.

In addition, you can include bitstream file information, which can be used for programming the device in Standalone SmartDebug.

Include Bitstream file to program at trusted facility

- Bitstream components: Fabric (SmartFusion2, IGLOO2, and RTG4 devices)
- Bitstream components: eNVM (SmartFusion2 and IGLOO2 devices only)

The default location of the DDC file is: <Libero_Project_directory>/designer/<design_name>/export.

The DDC file can be exported to any user-specified location if the location has read and write permission.

Note: If you have selected the One-time programmable (OTP) option in Configure Programming Options, you will see the following dialog:



One	-time Programmable Device
	You selected to make the device one-time programmable. After programming the device you will NOT be able to erase or program the device. You will be able to run programming actions VERIFY and VERIFY_DIGEST as well as use SmartDebug to debug with probes and read the digest of the Fabric. Refer to RTG4 FPGA Datasheet Table 4 for maximum number of Verify Cycles per Program/Erase cycle after making the device one-time programmable. You may change the one-time programmable setting in the Configure Programming Options tool. Do you want to continue with export SmartDebug data?
	Yes <u>N</u> o

Click Yes to continue or No to cancel.



References

Catalog

In the Libero SoC, from the View menu choose Windows > Catalog.

The Catalog displays a list of available cores, busses and macros (see image below).

Catalog			₽×
	Q -	Simulation Mode	() -
Name		Version	
> Arithmetic			
Basic Blocks			
Bus Interfaces			
Clock & Managemen	nt		
DSP			
Fusion Peripherals			
⊳ I/O			
Memory & Controll	ers		
Peripherals			
Power Management	t		
Processors			
Tamper			

No core selected

Figure 137 · Libero SoC Catalog

From the Catalog, you can create a component from the list of available cores, add a processor or peripheral, <u>add</u> <u>a bus interface to your SmartDesign component</u>, instantiate simulation cores or add a macro (Arithmetic, Basic Block, etc.) to your SmartDesign component.

Double-click a core to configure it and add it to your design. Configured cores are added to your list of Components/Modules in the Design Explorer.

Click the Simulation Mode checkbox to instantiate simulation cores in your <u>SmartDesign Testbench</u>. Simulation cores are basic cores that are useful for stimulus, such as driving clocks, resets, and pulses.

Viewing Cores in the Catalog

The font indicates the status of the core:

- Plain text In vault and available for use
- Asterisk after name (*) Newer version of the core (VLN) available for download
- Italics Core is available for download but not in your vault
- Strikethrough core is not valid for this version of Libero SoC

The colored icons indicate the license status. Blank means that the core is not license protected in any way. Colored icons mean that the core is license protected, with the following meanings:

Green Key - Fully licensed; supports the entire design flow.

Yellow Key - Has a limited or evaluation license only. Precompiled simulation libraries are provided, enabling the core to be instantiated and simulated within Libero SoC. Using the Evaluation version of the core it is possible to create and simulate the complete design in which the core is being included. The



design is not synthesizable (RTL code is not provided). No license feature in the license.dat file is needed to run the core in evaluation mode.You can purchase a license to generate an obfuscated or RTL netlist.

Yellow Key with Red Circle - License is protected; you are not licensed to use this core.

Right-click any item in the Catalog and choose Show Details for a short summary of the core specifications. Choose Open Documentation for more information on the Core. Right-click and choose Configure Core to open the core generator.

Click the Name column heading to sort the cores alphabetically.

You can filter the cores according to the data in the Name and Description fields. Type the data into the filter field to view the cores that match the filter. You may find it helpful to set the Display setting in the <u>Catalog Options</u> to **List cores alphabetically** when using the filters to search for cores. By default the filter contains a beginning and ending '*', so if you type 'controller' you get all cores with controller in the core name (case insensitive search) or in the core description. For example, to list all the Accumulator cores, in the filter field type:

accu

Catalog Options

Click the Options button (or the drop-down arrow next to it) to import a core, reload the Catalog, or modify the Catalog Options.

You may want to import a core from a file when:

- · You do not have access to the internet and cannot download the core, or
- A core is not complete and has not been posted to the web (you have an evaluation core)

Manually Downloading MegaVaults and Individual CPZ files

When Libero is used in an environment without automatic access to Microsemi's online IP repositories via the Internet; see this article explaining how to download MegaVaults and individual CPZ files.

Catalog Options Dialog Box

The Catalog Options dialog box (as shown below) enables you to customize your <u>Catalog</u>. You can add a repository, set the location of your vault, and change the View Settings for the Catalog. To display this dialog box, click the Catalog Options button .

🔄 Options		? ×
 Vault/Repositories Settings Repositories Vault location View Settings Display Filters 	www.actel-ip.com/repositories/SgCore www.actel-ip.com/repositories/DirectCore	Add Remove
		Defaults
Help	ОК	Cancel

Figure 138 · Catalog Display Options Dialog Box

Vault/Repositories Settings

Repositories

A repository is a location on the web that contains cores that can be included in your design.

The Catalog Options dialog box enables you to specify which repositories you want to display in your Vault. The Vault displays a list of cores from all your repositories, and the <u>Catalog</u> displays all the cores in your Vault.

The default repository cannot be permanently deleted; it is restored each time you open the Manage Repositories dialog box.



Any cores stored in the repository are listed by name in your Vault and Catalog; repository cores displayed in your Catalog can be filtered like any other core.

Type in the address and click the **Add** button to add new repositories. Click the **Remove** button to remove a repository (and its contents) from your Vault and Catalog. Removing a repository from the list removes the repository contents from your Vault.

Vault location

Use this option to choose a new vault location on your local network. Enter the full domain pathname in the Select new vault location field. Use the format:

\\server\share

and the cores in your Vault will be listed in the Catalog.

Set ENV variable to set vault location - In addition to setting the vault location using the Catalog dialog box, you can set the vault location using the environment variable MSCC_IDE_VAULT_LOCATION. Setting the vault through the environment variable takes precedence over all other options to set vault location.

To set the vault location on Linux, type the following command:

setenv MSCC_IDE_VAULT_LOCATION /home/temp_dir

To set the vault location on Windows:

Add a new environment variable MSCC_IDE_VAULT_LOCATION in System Properties and specify your vault location.

Read only vault

In read only Mega Vault mode, you cannot download, add, or remove cores. However, you can configure and generate cores by creating a temporary extract location to extract the core. This temporary extract location can be set by setting the environment variable MSCC_IDE_VAULT_EXTRACT_LOCATION. By setting this environment variable, your configured cores are retained across sessions.

To set the extract location on Linux, type the following command:

setenv MSCC_IDE_VAULT_EXTRACT_LOCATION /home/vault_extract

To set the extract vault location on Windows:

Add a new environment variable MSCC_IDE_VAULT_EXTRACT_LOCATION in System Properties and specify your extract location.

If you do not specify the extract location, a temporary location will be created by Libero and it will be accessed only while the current session is active. If the session is no longer active, the temporary extract location will be cleaned up by Libero. If you specify the extract location, it will be available for any instance of libero on that machine, and it is your responsibility to clean up the extract location.

View Settings

Display

Group cores by function - Displays a list of cores, sorted by function. Click any function to expand the list and view specific cores.

List cores alphabetically - Displays an expanded list of all cores, sorted alphabetically. Double click a core to configure it. This view is often the best option if you are using the filters to customize your display.

Show core version - Shows/hides the core version.

Filters

Filter field - Type text in the Filter Field to display only cores that match the text in your filter. For example, to view cores that include 'sub' in the name, set the Filter Field to **Name** and type **sub**.



Display only latest version of a core - Shows/hides older versions of cores; this feature is useful if you are designing with an older family and wish to use an older core.

Show all local and remote cores - Displays all cores in your Catalog.

Show local cores only - Displays only the cores in your local vault in your Catalog; omits any remote cores.

Show remote cores that are not in my vault - Displays remote cores that have not been added to your vault in your Catalog.

Changing Output Port Capacitance

Output propagation delay is affected by both the capacitive loading on the board and the I/O standard. The I/O Attribute Editor in ChipPlanner provides a mechanism for setting the expected capacitance to improve the propagation delay model. SmartTime automatically uses the modified delay model for delay calculations.

To change the output port capacitance and view the effect of this change in SmartTime Timing Analyzer, refer to the following example. The figure below shows the delay from DFN1 to output port Q. It shows a delay of 6.603 ns based on the default loading of 5 pF.



Figure 139 · Maximum Delay Analysis View

If your board has output capacitance of 15 pf on Q, you must perform the following steps to update the timing number:

1. Open the I/O Attribute Editor and change the output load to 15 pf.

File E	Editor - X:/10_docs_review dit View Logic Too	v/12.0_Release/94609 Is Help	/ccc2 (toj	p)											-		×
	12 / 0	Hierarchical NLV	Flat NLV	* *	Ø	뭑	ø	6 0 6									
Main Obj	ect Browser	đ×	Port	View [active]	8	Pin	View	& Packag	e Vier	w 🗗 Floorpla	nner V	iew <i>8</i>	•	Propertie	s		ð ×
	Ports	7671	1	Port Name	1	Slew	•	Pre-Emphasis	•	Output Drive (mA)		Output Load (pF)	•	Port	Name:	Q	
> 8	I/O Ports		2	DQ		 SLOV	V.			4		15		Type	10: ::	Q_obut I/O, Single	e-ended
														Pin: 1/0 5 1/0 6	itandard: Sank:	B29 LVCMOS2 Bank1 - Di VDDI: 2.5	5 DRIO W

Figure 140 · I/O Attribute Editor View

- 2. Select File > Save.
- 3. Select File > Close.
- 4. Open the SmartTime Timing Analyzer.

You can see that the Clock to Output delay changed to 5.952 ns.



Configure Bitstream

Right-click **Generate Bitstream** in the Design Flow window and choose **Configure Options** to open the Configure Bitstream dialog box.

The Configure Bitstream dialog box enables you to select which components you wish to program. Only features that have been added to your design are available for programming. For example, you cannot select eNVM for programming if you do not have eNVM in your design.

Configure Bitstream	×
Program	
O Updated components only	
Selected components	
Custom security	
Fabric	
eNVM	
Help	OK Cancel

Figure 141 · Configure Bitstream Dialog Box - SmartFusion2 and IGLOO2

Selected components - Updates the components you select, regardless of whether or not they have changed since your last programming.

Note: The Custom security and eNVM components are not available for RTG4 devices.

Importing Source Files – Copying Files Locally

Designer in Libero SoC cannot import files from outside your project without copying them to your local project folder. You may import source files from other locations, but they are always copied to your local folder. Designer in Libero SoC always audits the local file after you import; it does not audit the original file.

When the Project Manager asks you if you want to copy files "locally", it means 'copy the files to your local project folder'. If you do not wish to copy the files to your local project folder, you cannot import them. Your local project folder contains <u>files</u> related to your Libero SoC project.

Files copied to your local folders are copied directly into their relevant directory: netlists are copied to the *synthesis* folder; source files are copied to *hdl* folder and constraint files to *constraint* folder, etc. The files are also added to the Libero SoC project; they appear in the Files tab.

Create Clock Constraint Dialog Box

Use this dialog box to enter a clock constraint setting.

It displays a typical clock waveform with its associated clock information. You can enter or modify this information, and save the final settings as long as the constraint information is consistent and defines the clock waveform completely. The tool displays errors and warnings if information is missing or incorrect.

To open the Create Clock Constraint dialog box (shown below) from the SmartTime Constraints Editor, choose **Constraints > Clock**.

Create Clock Constraint		2
Clock Name : clk1	Clock Source : et_ports { PLL_R	EF_CLK }]
Period : 40	ns — Hor Frequen	cy: 25 Mhz
4 ns 60.0000 % Add this dock to existing one with same source Comment :		
Help		OK Cancel

Figure 142 · Create Clock Constraint Dialog Box

Clock Source

Enables you to choose a pin from your design to use as the clock source.

The drop-down list is populated with all explicit clocks. You can also select the Browse button to access all potential clocks. The **Browse** button displays the <u>Select Source Pins for Clock Constraint Dialog Box</u>.

Clock Name

Specifies the name of the clock constraint. This field is required for virtual clocks when no clock source is provided.

Period

When you edit the period, the tool automatically updates the frequency value. The period must be a positive real number. Accuracy is up to 3 decimal places.

Frequency

When you edit the frequency, the tool automatically updates the period value. The frequency must be a positive real number. Accuracy is up to 3 decimal places.

Starting Clock Edge Selector

Click the Up or Down arrow to use the rising or falling edge as the starting edge for the created clock.

Offset

Indicates the shift (in nanoseconds) of the first clock edge with respect to instant zero common to all clocks in the design.



The offset value must be a positive real number. Accuracy is up to 2 decimal places. Default value is 0.

Duty Cycle

This number specifies the percentage of the overall period that the clock pulse is high.

The duty cycle must be a positive real number. Accuracy is up to 4 decimal places. Default value is 50%.

Add this clock to existing one with same source

Check this box if you want to add a new clock constraint on the same source without overwriting the existing clock constraint. The new clock constraint name must be different than the existing name. Otherwise, the new constraint will overwrite the existing one even if you check this box.

Comment

Enables you to save a single line of text that describes the clock constraints purpose.

See Also

Specifying Clock Constraints

Create Generated Clock Constraint Dialog Box

Use this dialog box to specify generated clock constraint settings.

It displays a relationship between the clock source and its reference clock. You can enter or modify this information, and save the final settings as long as the constraint information is consistent. The tool displays errors and warnings if the information is missing or incorrect.

To open the Create Generated Clock Constraint dialog box (shown below) from the SmartTime Constraints Editor, choose **Constraints > Generated Clock**.



Create Generated Clock Constraint	?	×
Reference Pin:		
Generated Clock Name :		
• The generated frequency is such that :		
f(dock) = f(reference) *		
C The generated clock edges are based on the reference edges : Edges (example : 1 3 5)		
The edges are shifted by the following delays : Edge Shift (example: 0.0 0.5 1.0)		
The generated waveform is the same as T the reference waveform.		
An External feedback is used to generate the clock. PLL Output: PLA Output: Phase shift : 0.00 degree		
PLL Feedback:		
Add this dock to existing one with same source Master Clock:		
Comment :		
Help OK	Ca	ncel

Figure 143 · Create Generated Clock Constraint

Clock Pin

Enables you to choose a pin from your design to use as a generated clock source.

The drop-down list is populated with all unconstrained explicit clocks. You can also select the Browse button to access all potential clocks and pins from the clock network. The Browse button displays the <u>Select Generated</u> <u>Clock Source</u> dialog box.

Reference Pin

Enables you to choose a pin from your design to use as a generated reference pin. You can select the Browse button to access all the available reference pins. The Browse button displays the <u>Select Generated Clock</u> <u>Reference</u> dialog box.

Generated Clock Name

Specifies the name of the Generated clock constraint. This field is required for virtual clocks when no clock source is provided.



Generated Frequency

Specify the values to calculate the generated frequency: a multiplication factor and/or division factor (must be positive integers) is applied to the reference clock to compute the generated clock.

Generated Clock Edges

Frequency of the generated clock can also be specified by selecting the Generated Clock Edges option. Specify the integer values that represent the edges from the source clock that form the edges of the generated clock. Three values must be specified to generate the clock. If you specify less than three, a tool tip indicates an error. The following example shows how to specify the clock edges.



²⁻bit ripple counter

If LSB is the generated clock from CLK clock source, the edge values must be [1 3 5]. If MSB is the generated clock from CLK clock source, the edge values must be [1 5 9].

Edge Shift

Specify a list of three floating point numbers that represents the amount of shift, in library time units, that the specified edges are to undergo to yield the final generated clock waveform. These floating point values can be positive or negative. Positive value indicates a shift later in time, while negative indicates a shift earlier in time. For example: An edge shift of {1 1 1} on the LSB generated clock, would shift each derived edge by 1 time unit. To create a 200MHz clock from a 100MHz clock, use edge { 1 2 3} and edge shift {0 -2.5 -5.0}

Generated Waveform

Specify whether the generated waveform is the same or inverted with respect to the reference waveform. Click **OK**.

Phase

This field is primarily used to report the information captured from the CCC configuration process, and when constraint is auto-generated. Meaningful phase values are: 0, 45, 90, 135, 180, 225, 270, and 315. This field is used to report the information captured from the CCC configuration process, and when the constraint is auto-generated.

PLL Output

This field refers to the CCC GL0/1/2/3 output that is fed back to the PLL (in the CCC). This field is primarily used to report the information captured from the CCC configuration process, and when constraint is auto-generated.



PLL Feedback

This field refers to the manner in which the GL/0/1/2/3 output signal of the CCC is connected to the PLL's FBCLK input. This field is primarily used to report the information captured from the CCC configuration process, and when constraint is auto-generated.

Add Clock to Existing Clock

Specifies that the generated clock constraint is a new clock constraint in addition to the existing one at the same source. The name of the clock constraint should be different from the existing clock constraint. When this option is selected, master clock must be specified.

Master Clock

Specifies the master clock used for the generated clock when multiple clocks fan into the master pin. It can be selected from the drop-down menu. This option is used in conjunction with the add option of the generated clock.

Comment

Enter a single line of text that describes the generated clock constraints purpose.

See Also

create generated clock (SDC) Specifying Generated Clock Constraints Select Generated Clock Source

Design Hierarchy in the Design Explorer

The Design Hierarchy tab displays a hierarchical representation of the design based on the source files in the project. It also displays elaborated hierarchy constructed by propagating correct values for parameters and generics. The software continuously analyzes the source files and updates the content. The Design Hierarchy tab (see figure below) displays the structure of the modules and components as they relate to each other along with parameter/generic names and its values on the tool tip for which the module is instantiated. It also displays architecture name for a given entity and Configuration for VHDL modules.



Module(root): PF_A	AR0330_CAM_TOP
uild Hierarchy	Show: Components 💌 🛨 🖃 📍
work	
E SO PF_AR	0330_CAM_TOP
AP	B_WRAPPER (abp_wrapper.v) [work]
🖻 💁 🗛	0330_MIPI_IF
🔝	bus_cdc_synchornizer_hdl (bus_cdc_synchornizer_hdl.v) [work]
🖻 - <mark>SD</mark>	cam_ar0331_mipi
	IOD_MIPI_RX (PF_IOD_GENERIC_RX_v1.4.105)
	ar0331_mipi_PF_CCC_0_PF_CCC (cam_ar0331_mipi_PF
	debounce_rst (debounce_rst.v) [work]
	mipicsi2rxdecoderPF (mipicsi2rxdecoderPF.v) [work]
	embsync_detect (embsync_detect.v) [work]
	Er (cactito (cactito.v) [work]
	mini csi2 rydecoder (mini csi2 rydecoder v) [work]
	hypersize in the second s
	E elab0:cdcfifo (cdcfifo v) [work]
	elab1:cdcfiforam (cdcfiforam.v) [work]
	E 🗎 cdc fifo logic (cdc fifo logic.v) [work]
	bus_cdc_synchronizer (bus_cdc_synchronizer.v) [
	ram2port_cam (ram2Port_cam.v) [work]
🔝	camdata_ddr_write (camdata_ddr_write.v) [work]
Ē- 🗎	camdata_pack (camdata_pack.v) [work]
<u> </u>	elab0:fifocdc (fifocdc.v) [work]
	📄 📄 elab0:fifocdcram (fifocdcram.v) [work]
E 🗒 CO	REAXI4INTERCONNECT (CoreAxi4Interconnect.v) [work]
	caxi4interconnect_ResetSycnc (ResetSycnc.v) [work]
	elab0:caxi4interconnect_Axi4CrossBar (Axi4CrossBar.v) [work]
	Caxidinterconnect_AddressController (AddressController.V) [w
	avidinterconnect Dependence Checker (Dependence
	avidinterconnect MasterAddressDecoder (Master
	E caxi4interconnect TransactionController (Transaction
	caxi4interconnect BitScan0 (BitScan0.v) [work]
	caxi4interconnect RoundRobinArb (RoundRobinArb.v) [w
	caxi4interconnect TargetMuxController (TargetMuxContr
<u>.</u>	axi4interconnect_DERR_Slave (DERR_Slave.v) [work]
	caxi4interconnect_revision (Revision.v) [work]
	caxi4interconnect_RDataController (RDataController.v) [work]
	🖻 🐘 caxi4interconnect_ReadDataController (ReadDataControll

Figure 144 · Design Hierarchy

A module can have multiple elaborations depending on the different parameters/generics used in the instantiation of the module and all of these elaborated modules will be shown in the Design Hierarchy. The parameterized instantiated module will be shown as



elab<num>:<modulename>

Modules are instantiated with their actual names in the SmartDesign. If a module with elaborated name in the Design Hierarchy has to be instantiated in the SmartDesign, an instance of the original module is created in the SmartDesign. The following figure shows the design hierarchy with elaborated modules.

top_module (top_module.v) [work]	
 counter_shifter (counter_shifter.v) [work] 	
async_load (async_load.v) [work]	
counter_down (counter_down.v) [work]	
📄 counter_up (counter_up.v) [work]	
shift_leftt (shift_left.v) [work]	
shift_rightt (shift_right.v) [work]	
 elab0:counter_shifter (counter_shifter.v) [we 	ork
async_load (async_load.v) [work]	
counter_down (counter_down.v) [work]	
counter up (counter up.v) [work]	
shift leftt (shift left.v) [work]	
shift rightt (shift right.v) [work]	
elab1:counter shifter (counter shifter.v) [wo	orl
async load (async load v) [work]	
counter down (counter down v) [work]	
Counter up (counter up v) [work]	
shift leftt (shift lefty) [work]	
shift_rightt (shift_right v) [work]	
elab2:counter shifter (counter shifter v) [work]	orl
sevens load (asympt load v) [work]	511
async_load (async_load.v) [work]	
Counter_down (counter_down.v) [work]	
Counter_up (counter_up.v) [work]	
snin_ient (snin_ient.v) [work]	
sniπ_rignπ (sniπ_rignt.v) [work]	
 elab3:counter_shifter (counter_shifter.v) [wo 	ort
async_load (async_load.v) [work]	
counter_down (counter_down.v) [work]	
counter_up (counter_up.v) [work]	
shift_leftt (shift_left.v) [work]	
🗎 shift_rightt (shift_right.v) [work]	
	 counter_down (counter_down.v) [work] counter_up (counter_up.v) [work] shift_leftt (shift_left.v) [work] elab0:counter_shifter (counter_shifter.v) [work] counter_down (counter_down.v) [work] counter_up (counter_up.v) [work] shift_leftt (shift_left.v) [work] shift_leftt (shift_left.v) [work] elab1:counter_shifter (counter_shifter.v) [work] elab1:counter_shifter (counter_shifter.v) [work] counter_up (counter_down.v) [work] counter_down (counter_down.v) [work] counter_down (counter_down.v) [work] counter_up (counter_up.v) [work] counter_up (counter_up.v) [work] shift_leftt (shift_left.v) [work] shift_leftt (shift_right.v) [work] shift_leftt (shift_right.v) [work] shift_leftt (shift_right.v) [work] counter_down (counter_down.v) [work] shift_leftt (shift_right.v) [work] shift_leftt (shift_left.v) [work] shift_leftt (shift_left.v) [work] shift_leftt (shift_left.v) [work] shift_leftt (shift_right.v) [work] shift_leftt (shift_left.v) [work] shift_leftt (shift_right.v) [work] shift_leftt (shift_right.v) [work] shift_leftt (shift_right.v) [work] shift_leftt (shift_left.v) [work] shift_leftt (shift_right.v) [work] shift_leftt (shift_right.v) [work] shift_leftt (shift_right.v) [work] shift_leftt (shift_left.v) [work] shift_leftt (shift_right.v) [work]

Figure 145 · Design Hierarchy with Elaborated modules (Verilog)



😑 🎬 work
😑 🗎 top_module(diff) (top_module.vhd) [work]
🕀 🗎 counter_shifter(structural) (counter_shifter.vhd) [work]
📄 🔝 counter_down(behavioral) (counter_down.vhd) [work]
🚽 🔜 counter_up(behavioral) (counter_up.vhd) [work]
🚽 🗎 elab0:async_load(behavioral) (async_load.vhd) [work]
🚽 🐘 shift_leftt(behavioral) (shift_left.vhd) [work]
🔄 🛄 shift_rightt(behavioral) (shift_right.vhd) [work]
😑 🗎 elab0:counter_shifter(structural) (counter_shifter.vhd) [work]
🚽 🔚 async_load(behavioral) (async_load.vhd) [work]
👘 🔜 💼 counter_down(behavioral) (counter_down.vhd) [work]
📄 🔚 elab0:counter_up(behavioral) (counter_up.vhd) [work]
🔄 🔄 📩 shift_rightt(behavioral) (shift_right.vhd) [work]
😑 🗎 elab1:counter_shifter(structural) (counter_shifter.vhd) [work]
async_load(behavioral) (async_load.vhd) [work]
📄 📄 counter_up(behavioral) (counter_up.vhd) [work]
🔚 🔄 📄 elab0:counter_down(behavioral) (counter_down.vhd) [work]
무 🔝 _elab2:counter_shifter(structural) (counter_shifter.vhd) [work]
는 📄 async_load(behavioral) (async_load.vhd) [work]
counter_up(behavioral) (counter_up.vhd) [work]
elab0:shift_leftt(behavioral) (shift_left.vhd) [work]
shift_rightt(behavioral) (shift_right.vhd) [work]
🖃 🗐 elab3:counter_shifter(structural) (counter_shifter.vhd) [work]
async_load(behavioral) (async_load.vhd) [work]
counter_down(behavioral) (counter_down.vhd) [work]
counter_up(behavioral) (counter_up.vhd) [work]
lie labU:shift_rightt(behavioral) (shift_right.vhd) [work]
the User HDL Source Files

Figure 146 · Design Hierarchy with Elaborated modules (VHDL)

Modules which are not part of the elaboration will be shown in the complete hierarchy but they remain grayed out. When you create a core from a module, all the elaborated modules of that module will be shown as HDL+ core modules. You can get the parameter value of an elaborated module by selecting **Show Module parameters** on the right click menu of the elaborated module.

Note: A tool tip on each module shows all the parameters with their values for the instantiated module.

Note: Synthesis output will be the same for different elaborations of the same module i.e. **elab0:module1** and **elab1:module1** will have the same synthesis output. When one of the elaborated module is set as root, all the elaborations will be highlighted in the Design Hierarchy as shown in the below figure.





Figure 147 · Design Hierarchy when one of the elaborated module is set as root

You can change the display mode of the Design Hierarchy by selecting **Components** or **Modules** from the **Show** drop-down list. The components view displays the entire design hierarchy; the modules view displays only schematic and HDL modules.

You can build the Design Hierarchy and Simulation Hierarchy by clicking the Build Hierarchy button.

Build Hierarchy

A yellow icon **build relative** indicates that the Design Hierarchy is out of date (invalidated). Any change to the design sources/stimuli invalidates the Design Hierarchy/Stimulus Hierarchy. Click the **Build Hierarchy** button to rebuild the Design Hierarchy.

The file name (the file that defines the block) appears next to the block name in parentheses.

To view the location of a component, right-click and choose **Properties**. The Properties dialog box displays the path name, created date, and last modified date.

All integrated source editors are linked with the SoC software. If a source is modified and the modification changes the hierarchy of the design, the Build Hierarchy automatically updates to reflect the change.

If you want to update the Design Hierarchy, from the View menu, choose Refresh Design Hierarchy.



To open a component:

Double-click a component in the Design Hierarchy to open it. Depending on the block type and design state, several possible options are available from the right-click menu. You can instantiate a component from the Design Hierarchy to the SmartDesign Canvas. See the <u>SmartDesign User Guide</u> for more information.

Icons in the Hierarchy indicate the type of component and the state, as shown in the table below.

Table 6 ·	Design	Hierarchy	Icons
-----------	--------	-----------	-------

lcon	Description
SD	SmartDesign component
<mark>;</mark> \$0	SmartDesign component with HDL netlist not generated
IP	IP core was instantiated into SmartDesign but the HDL netlist has not been generated
1	Core
	Error during core validation
<u>/}</u>	Updated core available for download
B u	HDL netlist
8	Shows ungenerated components
?	Shows unknown modules
Ð	Expands all the files and folders in the Design Hierarchy
	Collapses all the files and folders in the Design Hierarchy
	Finds the files in the Design Hierarchy

Digest File

Users can verify which bitstream file was programmed onto their devices by running the VERIFY or VERIFY_DIGEST actions on each device that was programmed. This is a costly and time-consuming process. To speed up the verification process, digests are printed during bitstream generation and bitstream programming. These digests can be compared to verify that all of the devices were programmed with the correct bitstream file.

The bitstream file is divided into three major component sections: FPGA fabric, eNVM, and Security. A valid bitstream will contain a combination of any of the three primary bitstream components.

Use Case

When a customer creates a design in Libero and then exports the STAPL file (for FlashPro) or programming job (for FlashPro Express), the digest of each of the primary components is printed in the Libero log window and saved in a digest file under the export folder. The digest file is a text file containing the bitstream component name with its corresponding digest. The name of the digest file will match the name of the STAPL/programming job exported, and will be appended with a ".digest" extension.



The customer then sends the STAPL/programming job to a production programming house. Now, when the devices are programmed, the digest of each of the primary components is printed in the log window. The production programming house saves the log files and sends the devices along with log files back to the customer. The customer can then verify that the correct design was programmed on the device by matching the digests in the log file with that in the *.digest file under the Libero export folder.

Example Using STAPL File

If a STAPL file is exported, the digests will be printed in the log window, as shown in the example below. *Libero log:*

```
Opened 'D:/flashpro files/m2s005 digest1/designer/a1 MSS/a1 MSS fp/a1 MSS.pro'
The 'open project' command succeeded.
PDB file
'D:\flashpro files\m2s005 digest1\designer\a1 MSS\4a8552f8-57ee-4baa-97ee-
2baa57ee2baa.pdb' has
been loaded successfully.
DESIGN : a1 MSS; CHECKSUM : DE15; PDB VERSION : 1.9
The 'load programming data' command succeeded.
Sucessfully exported STAPL file:
'D:\flashpro_files\m2s005_digest1\designer\a1_MSS\export\a1_MSS.stp'; file programs
Fabric
and eNVM.
Fabric component digest:
276fbefb0a18cc0de1d45efc84589745ee02fc2adbcc1259fbeb674094754014
eNVM component digest:
6b2c2353e25c5982643c32640ac16c581874c8950300135622c126ee22d8b1de
Finished: Thu Jan 22 12:37:32 2015 (Elapsed time 00:00:06)
The 'export_single_stapl' command succeeded.
The 'set programming file' command succeeded.
Project saved.
The 'save_project' command succeeded.
Project closed.
```

The export folder will contain the exported STAPL file along with digest file. In this example, there will be two files, "a1_MSS_stp" and "a1_MSS_stp.digest". The content of the a1_MSS_stp.digest file is shown below:

Fabric component digest: 276fbefb0a18cc0de1d45efc84589745ee02fc2adbcc1259fbeb674094754014 eNVM component digest: 6b2c2353e25c5982643c32640ac16c581874c8950300135622c126ee22d8b1de

When the device is programmed in the production programming house by loading the STAPL file in FlashPro, the log will be as follows:

```
programmer '73207' : Scan Chain...
Warning: programmer '73207' : Vpump has been selected on programmer AND an externally
provided Vpump has also been detected. Using externally provided Vpump voltage source.
programmer '73207' : Check Chain...
programmer '73207' : Scan and Check Chain PASSED.
programmer '73207' : device 'M2S/M2GL005(S)' : Executing action PROGRAM
programmer '73207' : device 'M2S/M2GL005(S)' : Family: SmartFusion2
programmer '73207' : device 'M2S/M2GL005(S)' : Product: M2S005
programmer '73207' : device 'M2S/M2GL005(S)' : EXPORT ISC_ENABLE_RESULT[32] = 007c6b44
programmer '73207' : device 'M2S/M2GL005(S)' : EXPORT CRCERR: [1] = 0
programmer '73207' : device 'M2S/M2GL005(S)' : EXPORT EDCERR: [1] = 0
programmer '73207' : device 'M2S/M2GL005(S)' : TEMPGRADE: ROOM
programmer '73207' : device 'M2S/M2GL005(S)' : EXPORT VPPRANGE: [3] = 2
programmer '73207' : device 'M2S/M2GL005(S)' : VPPRANGE: HIGH
```



```
programmer '73207' : device 'M2S/M2GL005(S)' : EXPORT TEMP: [8] = 6b
programmer '73207' : device 'M2S/M2GL005(S)' : EXPORT VPP: [8] = 7c
programmer '73207' : device 'M2S/M2GL005(S)' : Programming FPGA Array and eNVM...
programmer '73207' : device 'M2S/M2GL005(S)' : EXPORT Fabric component digest [256] =
276fbefb0a18cc0de1d45efc84589745ee02fc2adbcc1259fbeb674094754014
programmer '73207' : device 'M2S/M2GL005(S)' : EXPORT eNVM component digest [256] =
  2c2353e25c5982643c32640ac16c581874c8950300135622c126ee22d8b1de
programmer '73207' : device 'M2S/M2GL005(S)' :
_____
programmer '73207' : device 'M2S/M2GL005(S)' : EXPORT DSN[128] =
c6e99c2d1a992f13cf8231c4be847acb
programmer '73207' : device 'M2S/M2GL005(S)' :
programmer '73207' : device 'M2S/M2GL005(S)' : Finished: Thu Jan 22 17:57:37 2015
(Elapsed time 00:00:19)
programmer '73207' : device 'M2S/M2GL005(S)' : Executing action PROGRAM PASSED.
programmer '73207' : Chain programming PASSED.
Chain Programming Finished: Thu Jan 22 17:57:37 2015 (Elapsed time 00:00:19)
0 - 0 - 0 - 0 - 0 - 0
```

The log file is saved and sent back to the customer, who can verify that the device was programmed with the correct design by comparing the digests in the log file to the contents of the a1_MSS_stp.digest file.

Example Using Programming Job

If a programming job is exported, the digests will be printed in the log window, as shown in the example below. *Libero log:*

```
Software Version: 11.5.1.5
    Opened 'D:/flashpro files/m2s005 digest1/designer/al MSS/al MSS fp/al MSS.pro'
    The 'open project' command succeeded.
    PDB file
    'D:\flashpro files\m2s005 digest1\designer\a1 MSS\83ce6816-1e56-496b-9e56-
    d96b1e56d96b.pdb' has
    been loaded successfully.
    DESIGN : a1 MSS; CHECKSUM : DE15; PDB VERSION : 1.9
    The 'load programming data' command succeeded.
    Sucessfully exported STAPL file:
    'D:\flashpro files\m2s005 digest1\designer\a1 MSS\export\a1 MSS M2S005.stp'; file
    programs
    Fabric and eNVM.
    Fabric component digest:
    276fbefb0a18cc0de1d45efc84589745ee02fc2adbcc1259fbeb674094754014
    eNVM component digest:
    6b2c2353e25c5982643c32640ac16c581874c8950300135622c126ee22d8b1de
    Finished: Wed Jan 28 16:48:56 2015 (Elapsed time 00:00:06)
    The 'export single stapl' command succeeded.
    The 'set programming file' command succeeded.
    Project saved.
    The 'save project' command succeeded.
    Project closed.
The export folder will contain the exported programming job along with digest file. In this example, there will be
```

two files, "a1_MSS.job" and "a1_MSS_job.digest". The content of the a1_MSS_job.digest file is shown below: Fabric component digest: 276fbefb0a18cc0de1d45efc84589745ee02fc2adbcc1259fbeb674094754014 eNVM component digest: 6b2c2353e25c5982643c32640ac16c581874c8950300135622c126ee22d8b1de



When the device is programmed in the production programming house by loading the programming job in FlashPro Express, the log will be as follows:

```
programmer '73207' : Scan Chain...
Warning: programmer '73207' : Vpump has been selected on programmer AND an externally
provided Vpump has also been detected. Using externally provided Vpump voltage source.
programmer '73207' : Check Chain...
programmer '73207' : Scan and Check Chain PASSED.
programmer '73207' : device 'M2S/M2GL005(S)' : Executing action PROGRAM
programmer '73207' : device 'M2S/M2GL005(S)' : Family: SmartFusion2
programmer '73207' : device 'M2S/M2GL005(S)' : Product: M2S005
programmer '73207' : device 'M2S/M2GL005(S)' : EXPORT ISC ENABLE RESULT[32] = 007c6b44
programmer '73207' : device 'M2S/M2GL005(S)' : EXPORT CRCERR: [1] = 0
programmer '73207' : device 'M2S/M2GL005(S)' : EXPORT EDCERR: [1] = 0
programmer '73207' : device 'M2S/M2GL005(S)' : TEMPGRADE: ROOM
programmer '73207' : device 'M2S/M2GL005(S)' : EXPORT VPPRANGE: [3] = 2
programmer '73207' : device 'M2S/M2GL005(S)' : VPPRANGE: HIGH
programmer '73207' : device 'M2S/M2GL005(S)' : EXPORT TEMP: [8] = 6b
programmer '73207' : device 'M2S/M2GL005(S)' : EXPORT VPP: [8] = 7c
programmer '73207' : device 'M2S/M2GL005(S)' : Programming FPGA Array and eNVM...
programmer '73207' : device 'M2S/M2GL005(S)' : EXPORT Fabric component digest [256] =
276fbefb0a18cc0de1d45efc84589745ee02fc2adbcc1259fbeb674094754014
programmer '73207' : device 'M2S/M2GL005(S)' : EXPORT eNVM component digest [256] =
6b2c2353e25c5982643c32640ac16c581874c8950300135622c126ee22d8b1de
programmer '73207' : device 'M2S/M2GL005(S)' :
_____
programmer '73207' : device 'M2S/M2GL005(S)' : EXPORT DSN[128] =
c6e99c2d1a992f13cf8231c4be847acb
programmer '73207' : device 'M2S/M2GL005(S)' :
 programmer '73207' : device 'M2S/M2GL005(S)' : Finished: Thu Jan 22 17:57:37 2015
(Elapsed time 00:00:19)
programmer '73207' : device 'M2S/M2GL005(S)' : Executing action PROGRAM PASSED.
programmer '73207' : Chain programming PASSED.
Chain Programming Finished: Thu Jan 22 17:57:37 2015 (Elapsed time 00:00:19)
0 - 0 - 0 - 0 - 0 - 0
```

The log file is saved and sent back to the customer, who can verify that the device was programmed with the correct design by comparing the digests in the log file above to the contents of the a1_MSS_job.digest file.

See Also

Export Bitstream - SmartFusion2, IGLOO2, and RTG4 Only

Editable Constraints Grid

The Constraints Editor enables you to add, edit and delete.



ConstraintsEditor - [Constraint]	s Edito	or]								-	
File Constraints Tools Ed	nt H	elp	de des d								
🔟 🛃 🎦 🕺 ñn 🆗 🕬	¥⊠	~	25 M)	🔊 🔊 हिंग् 📶	1						
onstraints Editor											
Constraints	^					Pariod	Frequency	Dubrovcle	First	Offcet	
Requirements			Syntax	Clock Name	Clock Source	(ns)	(MHz)	(%)	Edge	(ns)	Waveforn
Clock		1	Click within	this row to add a c	opstraint			10000			
Generated Clock		1	CICK WITH	Turis row to add a d	onsulainu						
Input Delay											
Output Delay											
External Check											
Clock To Out											
Exceptions											
Max Delay											
Min Delay											
Multicycle											
False Path											
Advanced											
Disable Timing											
Clock Source Late											
Clock Uncertainity	V		<								

Figure 148 · Constraints Editor

To add a new constraint:

- 1. Select a constraint type from the constraint browser.
- 2. Enter the constraint values in the first row and click the green check mark to apply your changes. To cancel the changes press the red cancel mark.
- 3. The new constraint is added to the Constraint List. The green syntax flag indicates that the constraint was successfully checked.

To edit a constraint:

- 1. Select a constraint type from the constraint browser.
- Select the constraint, edit the values and click the green check mark to apply your changes. To cancel the changes press the red cancel mark. The green syntax flag indicates that the constraint was successfully checked.

To delete a constraint:

- 1. Select a constraint type from the constraint browser.
- 2. Right-click the constraint you want to delete and choose Delete Constraint.

extended_run_lib

Note: This is not a Tcl command; it is a shell script that can be run from the command line.

The extended_run_lib Tcl script enables you to run the multiple pass layout in batch mode from a command line.

```
$ACTEL_SW_DIR/bin/libero script:$ACTEL_SW_DIR/scripts/extended_run_lib.tcl
logfile:extended_run.log "script_args:-root path/designer/module_name [-n numPasses] [-
starting_seed_index_numIndex] [-compare_criteria_value] [-c clockName] [-analysis_value] [-
slack_criteria_value] [-stop_on_success] [-timing_driven|-standard] [-power_driven_value]
[-placer_high_effort_value]"
```

Note:

• There is no option to save the design files from all the passes. Only the (Timing or Power) result reports from all the passes are saved.

Arguments

-root path/designer/module_name

The path to the root module located under the designer directory of the Libero project.

[-n numPasses]



Sets the number of passes to run. The default number of passes is 5.

[-starting_seed_index numIndex]

Indicates the specific index into the array of random seeds which is to be the starting point for the passes. Value may range from 1 to 100. If not specified, the default behavior is to continue from the last seed index that was used.

[-compare criteria value]

Sets the criteria for comparing results between passes. The default value is set to frequency when the –c option is given or timing constraints are absent. Otherwise, the default value is set to violations.

Value	Description
frequency	Use clock frequency as criteria for comparing the results between passes. This option can be used in conjunction with the -c option (described below).
violations	Use timing violations as criteria for comparing the results between passes. This option can be used in conjunction with the -analysis, -slack_criteria and - stop_on_success options (described below).
power	Use total power as criteria for comparing the results between passes, where lowest total power is the goal.

[-c clockName]

Applies only when the clock frequency comparison criteria is used. Specifies the particular clock that is to be examined. If no clock is specified, then the slowest clock frequency in the design in a given pass is used. The clock name should match with one of the Clock Domains in the Summary section of the Timing report.

[-analysis value]

Applies only when the timing violations comparison criteria is used. Specifies the type of timing violations (the slack) to examine. The following table shows the acceptable values for this argument:

Value	Description
max	Examines timing violations (slack) obtained from maximum delay analysis. This is the default.
min	Examines timing violations (slack) obtained from minimum delay analysis.

[-slack_criteria value]

Applies only when the timing violations comparison criteria is used. Specifies how to evaluate the timing violations (slack). The type of timing violations (slack) is determined by the -analysis option. The following table shows the acceptable values for this argument:

Value	Description
worst	Sets the timing violations criteria to Worst slack. For each pass obtains the most amount of negative slack (or least amount of positive slack if all constraints are met) from the timing violations report. The largest value out of all passes will determine the best pass. This is the default.



Value	Description
tns	Sets the timing violations criteria to Total Negative Slack (tns). For each pass it obtains the sum of negative slack values from the first 100 paths from the timing violations report. The largest value out of all passes determines the best pass. If no negative slacks exist for a pass, then the worst slack is used to evaluate that pass.

[-stop_on_success]

Applies only when the timing violations comparison criteria is used. The type of timing violations (slack) is determined by the -analysis option. Stops running the remaining passes if all timing constraints have been met (when there are no negative slacks reported in the timing violations report).

[-timing_driven|-standard]

Sets layout mode to timing driven or standard (non-timing driven). The default is -timing_driven or the mode used in the previous layout command.

[-power_driven value]

Enables or disables power-driven layout. The default is off or the mode used in the previous layout command. The following table shows the acceptable values for this argument:

Value	Description
off	Does not run power-driven layout.
on	Enables power-driven layout.

[-placer_high_effort value]

Sets placer effort level. The default is off or the mode used in the previous layout command. The following table shows the acceptable values for this argument:

Value	Description
off	Runs layout in regular effort.
on	Activates high effort layout mode.

Return

A non-zero value will be returned on error.

Supported Families

SmartFusion2, IGLOO2, RTG4

Exceptions

None

See Also

Place and Route - SmartFusion2, IGLOO2, RTG4 Multiple Pass Layout - SmartFusion2, IGLOO2, RTG4



Files Tab and File Types

The Files tab displays all the files associated with your project, listed in the directories in which they appear.

Right-clicking a file in the Files tab provides a menu of available options specific to the file type. You can delete files from the project and the disk by selecting **Delete** from the right-click menu.

You can instantiate a component by dragging the component to a SmartDesign Canvas or by selecting **Instantiate in SmartDesign** from the right-click menu.

You can configure a component by double-clicking the component or by selecting **Open Component** from the right-click menu.

File Types

When you create a new project in the Libero SoC it automatically creates new directories and project files. Your project directory contains all of your 'local' project files. If you <u>import</u> files from outside your current project, the files must be <u>copied into your local project folder</u>. (The Project Manager enables you to manage your files as you import them.)

Depending on your project preferences and the version of Libero SoC you installed, the software creates directories for your project.

The top level directory (<project_name>) contains your PRJ file; only one PRJ file is enabled for each Libero SoC project.

component directory - Stores your SmartDesign components (SDB and CXF files) for your Libero SoC project. **constraint** directory - All your constraint files (SDC, PDC)

designer directory - *_ba.sdf, *_ba.v(hd), STP, PRB (for Silicon Explorer), TCL (used to run designer), designer.log (logfile)

hdl directory - all hdl sources. *.vhd if VHDL, *.v and *.h if Verilog, *.sv if SystemVerilog

simulation directory - meminit.dat, modelsim.ini files

smartgen directory - GEN files and LOG files from generated cores

stimulus directory - BTIM and VHD stimulus files

synthesis directory - *.edn, *_syn.prj (Synplify log file), *.srr (Synplify logfile), *.tcl (used to run synthesis) and many other files generated by the tools (not managed by Libero SoC)

tooldata directory - includes the log file for your project with device details.

Importing Files

Anything that describes your design, or is needed to program the device, is a project source. These may include schematics, HDL files, simulation files, testbenches, etc. Import these source files.

To import a file:

- 1. From the **File** menu, choose **Import Files**.
- 2. In Files of type, choose the file type.
- 3. In **Look in**, navigate to the drive/folder where the file is located.
- 4. Select the file to import and click **Open**.

Note: You cannot import a Verilog File into a VHDL project and vice versa.

File Types for Import

File Type	File Extension
Behavioral and Structural VHDL; VHDL Package	*.vhd, *.vhdl
Design Block Core	*.gen
Verilog Include	*.h



File Type	File Extension
Behavioral and Structural Verilog	*.V, *.SV
Netlist Verilog	*.vm
Stimulus	*.vhd, * .vhdl, *.v, *.sv
EDIF Netlist	*.edn
Memory file	*.mem
Components (Designer Blocks, Synplify DSP)	*.cxf

Layout Error Message: layoutg4DesignHard

This design is very difficult to place, and high-effort techniques were required to make it fit. This may lead to increased layout runtime and diminished timing performance.

This message typically appears in designs with high utilization -- a very full design, or a design with region constraints which are, themselves, very full. It can also occur in designs with moderate utilization but with numerous, long carry chains.

No immediate action is required on the user's part. However, if this notice is observed during Layout, the resultant performance of the design and the runtime of the Layout tools may not be optimal, and there is a strong possibility that reducing the size of the design, or relaxing region and floorplanning constraints, will help to improve timing closure and runtime.

Layout Error Message: layoutg4NoValidPlacement

This is a generic error produced by the placer when it is unable to place a design. The most common cause for this failure is that the placer was unable to find a solution which could fit the design into the chip, either because the design is close to maximum utilization, or logic cannot be fit into user-defined region constraints.

If Libero is unable to find a legal placement, a list of unplaced cells will be provided in the log. The cells in this list may not be the cause of the placement problem; it is quite possible that some other constrained block of logic which was placed first and now prohibits further placement. However, starting with the unplaced cell list is the easiest and most likely course:

• The simplest potential solution is to remove all placement constraints of the unplaced cells, and re-run Place & Route.

However, the cells in this list may not be the cause of the placement problem; it is quite possible that some other constrained block of logic which was placed first and now prohibits further placement. If removing the placement constraints on the unplaced cells does not succeed:

- Remove all region constraints and re-run Place & Route. Some designers make it a practice to put all their region constraints in a single, separate PDC file; in which case they need only disable that file.
 - If this Place & Route re-run still fails, there may be wider issues with the design's size and complexity that cannot be addressed by changes to P&R options.
 - If the unconstrained Place & Route re-run succeeds, then the user should add back constraints a few regions at a time in order of "simplicity". Usually, big regions with lots of free space are "simpler" for the placer, whereas tall/narrow regions with high utilization are "harder". Re-run Place & Route with each constraint restoration and repeat the process until the failing region(s) is identified.

Depending on requirements, the failing region may be handled by removing or changing it's constraints, or revising its design to use less resources.



The user may also re-run the Placer in <u>high-effort mode</u>. Applying high-effort mode to a design which is very full can incur additional runtime and may produce a placement solution which may not meet tight timing constraints, owing to the fact that the placer will aggressively attempt to fit the design. In practice, customers are encouraged to apply the previous suggestions first; and utilize high-effort mode only when other approaches have been exhausted.

list_clock_groups

This Tcl command lists all existing clock groups in the design.

list_clock_groups

Arguments

None

Supported Families

SmartFusion2 IGLOO2 RTG4

Example

list_clock_groups

See Also

set_clock_groups remove_clock_groups

Project Manager – Catalog — Cores

This Catalog in Project Manager enables you to download cores from a web repository into a Vault.

A Vault is a local directory (either local to your machine or on the local network) that contains cores downloaded from one or more repositories. A repository is a location on the web that contains cores that can be included in your design.

The Catalog displays all the cores in your Vault.


		8,
	🔍 🔻 🗌 Simulation Mode	0 -
ame	/ Version	
Arithmetic		
Bus Interfaces		
Clock & Management		
DSP		
l I/O		
Macro Library		
Memory & Controllers		
CoreAHBLSRAM	2.2.104	
- CoreAPBLSKAM	3.0.101	
CoreEDAC	2.10.104	
CoreFIFO	2.7.105	
See CoreMemCtrl	2.1.115	
🖙 CoreQDR	3.3.125	
CoreSDR_AHB	4.3.100	
🖙 CoreSDR_AXI	2.0.116	
DDR Memory Controller	1.1.301	
DDR Memory Controller	1.1.301	
- Dual-Port Large SRAM	1.0.101	
micro SKAM	1.0.101	
I Besisheed	1.0.101	
Peripherals		
C/Tampar		
Solutions_EIL_USP_IP		
Solutions-MotorControl		
Solutions-Video		
Solutions-WiredComms		
Tamper		

Figure 149 · Project Manager - Catalog

Use the Filter to find any string that exists either in the core name or the Core Description. By default the filter contains a beginning and ending '*', so if you type 'controller' you get all cores with controller in the core name (case insensitive search) or in the core description.

The colored icons indicate the license status. Blank means that the core is not license protected in any way. Colored icons means that the core is license protected, with the following meanings:

- Green Key Fully licensed; supports the entire design flow.
- Yellow Key Has a limited or evaluation license only. Precompiled simulation libraries are provided, enabling the core to be instantiated and simulated within the Microsemi Libero SoC Using the Evaluation version of the core it is possible to create and simulate the complete design in which the core is being included. The design is not synthesizable (RTL code is not provided). No license feature in the license.dat file is needed to run the core in evaluation mode. You can purchase a license to generate an obfuscated or RTL netlist.
- Yellow Key with Red Circle License is protected; you are not licensed to use this core.

Stop Downloads - Interrupts the download for any cores being added to your Vault.

Project Settings Dialog Box

The Project Settings dialog box enables you to modify your Device, HDL, and Design Flow settings and your Simulation Options. In Libero SoC, from the Project menu, click **Project Settings**.

The following figure shows an example of the Project Settings dialog box.



Family: SmartFusio	m2 🔶	Die:	All	Package:	All	\$		
Speed: All	•	Core voltage:	All	Range:	All	•		
		J						
					Reset	filters		
Search part:								
Part Number 🗸	4LUT	DFF	User I/Os	uSRAM 1K	LSRAM 18K	Math (18x18)	PLLs and CCCs	Chip Globa
M2S005-1EG484	6060	6060	209	11	10	11	2	8
M2S005-1FG484I	6060	6060	209	11	10	11	2	8
M2S005-1T0144	6060	6060	84	11	10	11	2	8
M2S005-1T0144I	6060	6060	84	11	10	11	2	8
M2S005-1VF256	6060	6060	161	11	10	11	2	8
M2S005-1VF256I	6060	6060	161	11	10	11	2	8
M2S005-1VF400	6060	6060	171	11	10	11	2	8
M2S005-1VF4001	6060	6060	171	11	10	11	2	8
M2S005-FG484	6060	6060	209	11	10	11	2	8
M2S005-FG484I	6060	6060	209	11	10	11	2	8
M2S005S-1FG484	6060	6060	209	11	10	11	2	8
M2S005S-1FG484I	6060	6060	209	11	10	11	2	8
M2S005S-1FG484T2	6060	6060	209	11	10	11	2	8
M2S005S-1TQ144	6060	6060	84	11	10	11	2	8
M2S005S-1TQ144I	6060	6060	84	11	10	11	2	8
M2S005S-1TQ144T2	6060	6060	84	11	10	11	2	8
M2S005S-1VF256	6060	6060	161	11	10	11	2	8
M2S005S-1VF256I	6060	6060	161	11	10	11	2	8
M2S005S-1VF256T2	6060	6060	161	11	10	11	2	8
M2S005S-1VF400	6060	6060	171	11	10	11	2	8
M2S005S-1VF400I	6060	6060	171	11	10	11	2	8
M2S005S-1VF40012	6060	6060	171	11	10	11	2	8
M250055-FG484	6060	6060	209	11	10	11	2	8
M250055-FG4841	6060	6060	209	11	10	11	2	8
M250055-10144	6060	6060	84	11	10	11	2	0
M250055-101441	6060	6060	161	11	10	11	2	0
M250055-VE256	6060	6060	161	11	10	11	2	0
M250055-VF2501	6060	6060	171	11	10	11	2	8
M2500553/F400	6060	6060	171	11	10	11	2	8
M2S005-T0144	6060	6060	84	11	10	11	2	8
M2S005-T0144	6060	6060	84	11	10	11	2	8
M25005-101441	6060	6060	161	11	10	11	2	8 -
M25005-VF256	0000	0000	101	11	10	11	2	U T

Figure 150 · Project Settings Dialog Box

Device Selection

Sets the device Family, Die, and Package for your project. See the <u>New Project Creation Wizard - Device</u> <u>Selection</u> page for a detailed description of the options.

Device Settings

Default I/O Technology - Sets all your I/Os to a default value. You can change the values for individual I/Os in the I/O Attributes Editor.

Enable Single Event Transient mitigation (RTG4 only) - Controls the mitigation of Single Event Transient (SET) in the FPGA fabric. When this box is checked, SET filters are turned on globally (including URAM, LSRAM, MACC, I/O FF, Regular FF, DDR_IN, DDR_OUT) to help mitigate radiation-induced transients. By default, this box is unchecked.

PLL Supply Voltage (V) (SmartFusion2, IGLOO2 only) - Sets the voltage for the power supply that you plan to connect to all the PLLs in your design, such as MDDR, FDDR, SERDES, and FCCC. Select either 2.5V or 3.3V.

Note: This voltage setting must match the PLL analog supply voltage on the board to ensure that the PLL works properly.

VDD Supply Ramp Time (SmartFusion2 and IGLOO2 only) - The power-on reset circuitry in the SmartFusion2 and IGLOO2 devices requires the VDD and VPP power supplies to ramp monotonically from 0 V to the minimum recommended operating voltage within a predefined time. Select one of four values for the predefined time: 50 us, 1 ms, 10 ms, and 100 ms.

System controller suspended mode - When enabled (usually for safety-critical applications), the System Controller is held in a reset state after the completion of device initialization. This state protects the device from unintended device programming or zeroization of the device due to SEUs (Single Event Upsets). In this mode, the System Controller cannot provide any system services such as Flash*Freeze service, cryptographic services or programming services.

Design Flow

See the Project Settings: Design flow topic for more information.



Analysis Operating Conditions (For SmartFusion2, IGLOO2, RTG4)

Sets the Operating Temperature Range, the Core Voltage Range, and Default I/O Voltage Range from the picklist's provided. Typical values are COM/IND/MIL; but others are sometimes defined.

Once the "Range" value is set, the Minimum/Typical/Maximum values for the selected range are displayed.

Radiation (krad) - For RTG4 only, enter the radiation value (in krads) for your device. Valid range is from 0 to 300.

These settings are propagated to Verify Timing, Verify Power, and Backannotated Netlist for you to perform Timing/Power Analysis.

Simulation Options and Simulation Libraries

Sets your simulation options. See the Project Settings: Simulation Options topic for more information.

Project Settings: Design flow

To access the Design flow page, from the Project menu choose Project Settings and click the Design flow tab.

Project settings			
Device selection Device settings Design flow Analysis operating conditions Simulation options Do file Waveforms More commands	HDL source files language options Libero SoC supports mixed HDL language For Vierlog files you can enable the Syste For VirDL files, you may choose between	e designs; you can import Verligg and VHOL in the same project. em Verligg syntax option if your Verligg files contain System Verligg constructs. VHOL-2008 and VHOL-93.	Save Discard
Timescale	C System Verilog	Verilog 2001	
IGLOO2	_ VHDL		
		C VHDL-93	
	HDL generated files language options		
	HDL files generated by Libero SoC such as configured	d cores, SmartDesign components and post-layout gate level netlists use the preferred language option.	
	- Plack flow		
	Enable block creation		
	Root top		
	Enable synthesis		
	Enable FPGA Hardware Breakpoint Auto Instantia	ation	
	Synthesis gate level netlist format		
	Verilog netlist C EDIF netlist		
	Design methodology		
	Use standalone initialization for MDDR/FDDR/SERI	DES peripherals	
	✓ Instantiate SystemBuilder/MSS component in a Sn	martDesign on creation	
	Design Separation		
	Enable Design Separation Methodology		
	Reports		
	Maximum number of high fanout nets to be displayed	1: 10	
	Abort flow if errors are found in Physical Design C	Constraints (PDC)	
	Abort flow if errors are found in Timing Constraint	ts (SDC)	
Help			Close

Figure 151 · Project Settings Dialog Box - Design Flow Tab

HDL source files language options

Libero SoC supports mixed-HDL language designs. You can import Verilog and VHDL in the same project. Sets your HDL to VHDL or Verilog. For VHDL, you can choose VHDL-2008 or VHDL-93. For Verilog, you can choose System Verilog (if your Verilog files contain System Verilog constructs) or Verilog 2001.

Note: Libero SoC supports the following Verilog and VHDL IEEE standards for Modelsim and SynplifyPro:

- Verilog 2005 (IEEE Standard 1364-2005)
- Verilog 2001 (IEEE Standard 1364-2001)
- Verilog 1995 (IEEE Standard 1364-1995)
- SystemVerilog 2012 (IEEE Standard 1800-2012)
- VHDL-2008 (IEEE Standard 1076-2008)



• VHDL-93 (IEEE Standard 1076-1993)

HDL generated files language options

HDL files generated by Libero SoC can be set to use VHDL or Verilog. If there are no other considerations, it is generally recommended to use the same HDL language as you are using for HDL source files, as this may reduce the cost of simulation licenses.

Block flow

Enable block creation - Enables you to create and publish design blocks (*.cxz files) in Libero SoC. Design blocks are low-level components that may have completed the place-and-route step and met the timing and power requirements. These low-level design blocks can then be imported into a Libero SoC project and re-used as components in a higher level design. See <u>Designing with Designer Block Components</u> in Online Help for more information.

Root <module_name>

Enable synthesis - Option to enable or disable synthesis for your root file; useful if you wish to skip synthesis on your root file by default.

Enable FPGA Hardware Breakpoint Auto Instantiation - The FHB (FPGA Hardware Breakpoint) Auto Instantiation feature automatically instantiates an FHB instance per clock domain that is using gated clocks (GL0/GL1/GL2/GL3) from an FCCC instance. The FHB instances gate the clock domain they are instantiated on. These instances can be used to force halt the design or halt the design through a live probe signal. Once a selected clock domain or all clock domains are halted, you can play or step on the clock domains, either selectively or all at once. FPGA Hardware Breakpoint controls in the Smart Debug UI provide control of the debugging cycle.

Note: This option is enabled when you select Verilog netlist.

Synthesis gate level netlist format

Sets your gate level netlist format to Verilog or EDIF. For Secure IP design flow, you must set the format to Verilog. See the <u>Microsemi website</u> for more information about the Secure IP flow.

Design methodology (Available only in SmartFusion2 and IGLOO2)

Use standalone initialization for MDDR/FDDR/SERDES peripherals – Enables you to create your own peripheral initialization logic in SmartDesign for each of your design peripherals (MDDR/FDDR/SERDES). When checked, System Builder does not build the peripherals initialization logic for you. Standalone initialization is useful if you want to make the initialization logic of each peripheral separate from and independent of each other.

For more information, refer to the <u>SmartFusion2 Standalone Peripheral Initialization User Guide</u> or the <u>IGLOO2</u> <u>Standalone Peripheral Initialization User Guide</u>.

Instantiate SystemBuilder/MSS component in a SmartDesign on creation - Un-check this box if you are using this project to create System Builder or MSS components and do not plan on using them in a SmartDesign based design. This is especially useful for design flows where the System Builder or MSS component is stitched in a design using HDL.

Design Separation(Available only in SmartFusion2 and IGLOO2)

Enable Design Separation Methodology - Enables you to create independent critical subsystems required to implement security and safety critical applications on a single FPGA. When checked, the design is divided into sub-systems published in terms of Block Elements.



Reports

Maximum number of high fanout nets to be displayed - Enter the number of high fanout nets to be displayed. The default value is 10. This means the top 10 nets with the highest fanout will appear in the <root>_compile_netlist_resource.xml> Report.

Abort Flow Conditions

Abort Flow if Errors are found in Physical Design Constraints (PDC) – Check this checkbox to abort Place and Route if the I/O or Floorplanning PDC constraint file contains errors.

Abort Flow if Errors are found in Timing Constraints (SDC) – Check this checkbox to abort Place and Route if the Timing Constraint SDC file contains errors.

Project Settings: Simulation - Options and Libraries

Using this dialog box, you can set change how Libero SoC handles Do files in simulation, import your own Do files, set simulation run time, and change the DUT name used in your simulation. You can also change your library mapping.

To access this dialog box, from the **Project** menu choose **Project Settings** and click to expand **Simulation options** or **Simulation libraries**.

For **Simulation options** click the option you wish to edit: **DO file**, **Waveforms**, **Vsim commands**, **Timescale**. For **Simulation libraries** click on the library you wish to change the path for.

De la settanti	Use automatic DO file		Save
Design flow	Simulation runtime:	100hs	Restore Default
Analysis operating conditions Simulation options	Testbench module name:	testbench	
DO file	Top level instance name:	<top>_0</top>	
Vsim commands	Generate VCD file		
Timescale mulation libraries	VCD file name:	power.vcd	
SmartFusion2	User defined DO file:		
	DO command parameters:		

Figure 152 · Project Settings: DO File

DO file

- Use automatic DO file Select if you want the Project Manager to automatically create a DO file that will enable you to simulate your design.
- **Simulation Run Time** Specify how long the simulation should run. If the value is 0, or if the field is empty, there will not be a run command included in the run.do file.
- **Testbench module name** Specify the name of your testbench entity name. Default is "testbench," the value used by WaveFormer Pro.
- **Top Level instance name** Default is <top_0>, the value used by WaveFormer Pro. The Project Manager replaces <top> with the actual top level macro when you run simulation (presynth/postsynth/postlayout).
- Generate VCD file Click the checkbox to generate a VCD file.
- VCD file name Specifies the name of your generated VCD file. The default is power.vcd; click power.vcd and type to change the name.
- User defined DO file Enter the DO file name or click the browse button to navigate to it.



• **DO command parameters -** Text in this field is added to the DO command.

Waveforms

- Include DO file Including a DO file enables you to customize the set of signal waveforms that will be displayed in ModelSim.
- Display waveforms for You can display signal waveforms for either the top-level testbench or for the design under test. If you select top-level testbench then Project Manager outputs the line 'add wave /testbench/*' in the DO file run.do. If you select DUT then Project Manager outputs the line 'add wave /testbench/DUT/*' in the run.do file.
- Log all signals in the design Saves and logs all signals during simulation.

Vsim Commands

- Post-layout simulation only:
 - o **SDF timing delays -** Select Minimum (Min), Typical (Typ), or Maximum (Max) timing delays in the back-annotated SDF file.
 - Disable Pulse Filtering during SDF-based Simulations When the check box is enabled the +pulse_int_e/1 +pulse_int_r/1 +transport_int_delays switch is included with the vsim command for post-layout simulations; the checkbox is disabled by default.
- **Resolution** The default is family specific (review the dialog box for your default setting), but you can customize it to fit your needs. Some custom simulation resolutions may not work with your simulation library. Consult your simulation help for more information on how to work with your simulation library and detect infinite zero-delay loops caused by high resolution values.

Family	Default Resolution
SmartFusion2	1 fs
IGLOO2	1 ps
RTG4	1 ps

- Additional options Text entered in this field is added to the vsim command.
 - SRAM ECC Simulation (RTG4) -

Two options can be added to specify the simulated error and correction probabilities of all ECC SRAMs in the design.

- -gERROR PROBABILITY=<value>, where 0 <= value <= 1
- -gCORRECTION_PROBABILITY=<value>, where 0 <= value <= 1
- During Simulation, the SB_CORRECT and DB_DETECT flags on each SRAM block will be raised based on generated random numbers being below the specified <value>s.

Timescale

- **TimeUnit** Enter a value and select s, ms, us, ns, ps, or fs from the pull-down list, which is the time base for each unit. The default setting is ns.
- Precision Enter a value and select s, ms, us, ns, ps, or fs from the pull-down list. The default setting is ps.

Simulation Libraries

- **Restore Defaults** Sets the library path to default from your Libero SoC installation.
- **Library path** Enables you to change the mapping for your simulation library (both Verilog and VHDL). Type the pathname or click the Browse button to navigate to your library directory.

remove_clock_groups

This Tcl command removes a clock group by name or by ID.



remove_clock_groups [-id id# | -name groupname] \
[-physically_exclusive | -logically_exclusive | -asynchronous]

Note: The exclusive flag is not needed when removing a clock group by ID.

Arguments

-id *id#*

Specifies the clock group by the ID.

-name groupname

Specifies the clock group by name (to be always followed by the exclusive flag).

[-physically_exclusive | -logically_exclusive | - asynchronous]

Supported Families

SmartFusion2 IGLOO2 RTG4

Example

Removal by group name

remove_clock_groups -name mygroup3 -physically_exclusive

Removal by goup ID

remove_clock_groups -id 12

See Also

set clock groups list clock groups

Running Libero SoC from your Software Tool Chain

When launched from your software toolchain, Libero SoC becomes solely an MSS configurator. This can be useful if you are responsible for the embedded code development for the SmartFusion device and are more comfortable in your existing software tool chain.

Any FPGA fabric development needs to be done using the regular Libero® SoC tool flow. Using the Libero SoC in the software toolchain mode only enables you to configure the SmartFusion Microcontroller Subsystem (MSS) and not the FPGA fabric.

The MSS Configurator can be integrated in any software development IDE that supports external tools. Configure your IDE to start the Libero SoC executable and use the parameters below to customize your interface. For SoftConsole, Keil and IAR the parameters are:

```
"PROJECT_LOCATION:<path>" //Project directory location, and the location of your
generated MSS files.
"DESIGN_NAME:<name>" //Name of your design.
"STARTED_BY:<tool>" //Identifies which tool invoked the MSS Configurator; can be
SoftConsole, Keil, or IAR EWARM
```

See Also

Exporting Firmware and the Software IDE Workspace Software IDE Integration View/Configure Firmware Cores



Search in Libero SoC

Search options vary depending on your search type.

To find a file:

- 1. Use CTRL + F to open the Search window.
- 2. Enter the name or part of name of the object you wish to find in the Find field. '*' indicates a wildcard, and [**] indicates a range, such as if you search for a1, a2, ... a5 with the string a[1-5].
- 3. Set the Options for your search (see below for list); options vary depending on your search type.
- Click Find All (or Next if searching Text). Searching an open text file, Log window or Reports highlights search results in the file itself. All other results appear in the Search Results window (as shown in the figure below).

Match case: Select to search for case-sensitive occurrences of a word or phrase. This limits the search so it only locates text that matches the upper- and lowercase characters you enter.

Match whole word: Select to match the whole word only.

Search R	esults		8 ×
1 1 3 4 1 1	1 test_mss_MSS_0:MSS_RESET test_mss:MSS_RESET_N MSS_RESET_N	2 N Pin Pin Net	

Figure 153 · Search Results

Current Open SmartDesign

Searches your open SmartDesign, returns results in the Search window.

Type: Choose Instance, Net or Pin to narrow your search.

Query: Query options vary according to Type.

Туре	Query Option	Function	
Instance	Get Pins	Search restricted to all pins	
	Get Nets	Search restricted to all nets	
	Get Unconnected Pins	Search restricted to all unconnected pins	
Net	Get Instances	Searches all instances	
	Get Pins	Search restricted to all pins	
Pin	Get Connected Pins	Search restricted to all connected pins	
	Get Associated Net	Search restricted to associated nets	
	Get All Unconnected Pins	Search restricted to all unconnected pins	



Current Open Text Editor

Searches the open text file. If you have more than one text file open you must place the cursor in it and click CTRL + F to search it.

Find All: Highlights all finds in the text file.

Next: Proceed to next instance of found text.

Previous: Proceed to previous instance of found text.

Replace with: Replaces the text you searched with the contents of the field.

Replace: Replaces a single instance.

Replace All: Replaces all instances of the found text with the contents of the field.

Design Hierarchy

Searches your Design Hierarchy; results appear in the Search window. **Find All**: Displays all finds in the Search window.

Stimulus Hierarchy

Searches your Stimulus Hierarchy; results appear in the Search window. **Find All**: Displays all finds in the Search window.

Log Window

Searches your Log window; results are highlighted in the Log window - they do not appear in the Search Results window.

Find All: Highlights all finds in the Log window.

Next: Proceed to next instance of found text.

Previous: Proceed to previous instance of found text.

Reports

Searches your Reports; returns results in the Reports window.

Find All: Highlights all finds in the Reports window.

Next: Proceed to next instance of found text.

Previous: Proceed to previous instance of found text.

Files

Searches your local project file names for the text in the Search field; returns results in the Search window. **Find All**: Lists all search results in the Search window.

Files on disk

Searches the files' content in the specified directory and subdirectories for the text in the Search field; returns results in the Search window.

Find All: Lists all finds in the Search window.

File type: Select a file type to limit your search to specific file extensions, or choose *.* to search all file types.

Select Generated Clock Reference Dialog Box

Use this dialog box to find and choose the generated clock reference pin from the list of available pins. To open the Select Generated Clock Reference dialog box (shown below) from the SmartTime Constraints Editor, open the <u>Create Generated Clock Constraint Dialog Box</u> dialog box and click the **Browse** button for the **Clock Reference**.



Select Generated Clock Reference			8 23
Select a type and pattern to start a search Filter available pins :	1		
Pin Type :	Pattern :		
Input Ports	*		Filter
CLK0_PAD D			
Help		ОК	Cancel

Figure 154 · Select Generated Clock Reference Dialog Box

Filter Available Pins

Pin type – Displays the Available Pin types. The Pin Type options for Generated Clock Reference are:

- Input Ports
- All Pins

Pattern – The default pattern is *, which is a wild-card match for all. You can specify any string value.

Select Filter to filter the available pins based on the specified Pin Type and Pattern.

The list box displays the list of available pins based on the filter. Select the pins from the list and click **OK** to select the Generated Clock Reference Pin.

See Also

Specifying generated clock constraints

Select Generated Clock Source Dialog Box

Use this dialog box to find and choose the generated clock source from the list of available pins.

To open the Select Generated Clock Source dialog box (shown below) from the , open the <u>Create Generated</u> <u>Clock Constraint</u> dialog box and click the **Browse** button for the **Clock Pin**.



Filter available pins :	search	
Pin Type :	Pattern :	
All Register Output Pins	▼ * Fi	lter
CoreAXI4Interconnect_0/MstCo	onvertor_loop[0].mstrconv/rgsl/genblk1.awrs/currState[0]/C	2 ^
CoreAXI4Interconnect_0/MstCo	onvertor_loop[0].mstrconv/rgsl/genblk1.awrs/currState[1]/C	2
CoreAXI4Interconnect_0/MstCo	onvertor_loop[0].mstrconv/rgsl/genblk1.awrs/holdDat[18]/C	2
CoreAXI4Interconnect_0/MstCo	onvertor_loop[0].mstrconv/rgsl/genblk1.awrs/holdDat[19]/C	2
CoreAXI4Interconnect_0/MstCo	onvertor_loop[0].mstrconv/rgsl/genblk1.awrs/holdDat[20]/C	2
CoreAXI4Interconnect_0/MstCo	onvertor_loop[0].mstrconv/rgsl/genblk1.awrs/holdDat[21]/C	2
CoreAXI4Interconnect_0/MstCo	onvertor_loop[0].mstrconv/rgsl/genblk1.awrs/holdDat[23]/C	2
CoreAXI4Interconnect_0/MstCo	onvertor_loop[0].mstrconv/rgsl/genblk1.awrs/holdDat[24]/C	2
CoreAXI4Interconnect_0/MstCo	onvertor_loop[0].mstrconv/rgsl/genblk1.awrs/holdDat[25]/C	2
CoreAXI4Interconnect_0/MstCo	onvertor_loop[0].mstrconv/rgsl/genblk1.awrs/holdDat[26]/C	2
CoreAXI4Interconnect_0/MstCo	onvertor_loop[0].mstrconv/rgsl/genblk1.awrs/holdDat[27]/C	2
CoreAXI4Interconnect_0/MstCo	onvertor_loop[0].mstrconv/rgsl/genblk1.awrs/holdDat[28]/C	2
CoreAXI4Interconnect_0/MstCo	onvertor_loop[0].mstrconv/rgsl/genblk1.awrs/holdDat[29]/C	2
CoreAXI4Interconnect_0/MstCo	onvertor_loop[0].mstrconv/rgsl/genblk1.awrs/holdDat[30]/C	2
CoreAXI4Interconnect_0/MstCo	onvertor_loop[0].mstrconv/rgsl/genblk1.awrs/holdDat[31]/C	2
CoreAXI4Interconnect_0/MstCo	onvertor_loop[0].mstrconv/rgsl/genblk1.awrs/holdDat[32]/C	2
CoreAXI4Interconnect_0/MstCo	onvertor_loop[0].mstrconv/rgsl/genblk1.awrs/holdDat[33]/C	2
CoreAXI4Interconnect_0/MstCo	onvertor_loop[0].mstrconv/rqsl/genblk1.awrs/holdDat[34]/C	2 ~

Figure 155 · Select Generated Clock Source Dialog Box

Filter Available Pins

Pin type – Displays the Available Pin types. The Pin Type options for Generated Clock Source are:

- Output Ports
- All Register Output Pins
- All Pins
- All Nets
- Input Ports

Pattern – The default pattern is *, which is a wild-card match for all. You can specify any string value.

Select Filter to filter the available pins based on the specified Pin Type and Pattern.

The list box displays the list of available pins based on the filter. Select the pins from the list and click **OK** to select the Generated Clock Source Pin.

Select Source or Destination Pins for Constraint Dialog Box

This dialog box opens when you select the browse button for Source/From, Intermediate/Through and Destination/To pins for Timing Exception Constraints: False Path Constraints, Multicycle Path Constraints, and Maximum/Minimum Delay Constraints.

To open the Select Source or Destination Pins for Constraint dialog box from the Constraints Editor, choose **Constraint > Timing Exception Constraint Name**. Click the browse button to select the source. The following figure shows an example dialog box for **Select Source Pins for Multicycle Constraint**.



ter avaliable pills ;			
ype :	Pattern :		
Clock Pins	*		Search
vailable Pins:			
CLK0_PAD			
FCCC_C0_0/FCCC_C0_0/CC	CC_INST/GL0	Remove	Remove All
FCCC_C0_0/FCCC_C0_0/CC Add ssigned Pins:	C_INST/GL0 Add All	Remove	Remove All
FCCC_C0_0/FCCC_C0_0/CC Add ssigned Pins:	C_INST/GL0	Remove	Remove All
FCCC_C0_0/FCCC_C0_0/CC Add ssigned Pins:	CC_INST/GL0	Remove	Remove All
FCCC_C0_0/FCCC_C0_0/CC Add ssigned Pins:	CC_INST/GL0	Remove	Remove All
FCCC_C0_0/FCCC_C0_0/CC Add ssigned Pins:	C_INST/GL0	Remove	Remove All
FCCC_C0_0/FCCC_C0_0/CC Add ssigned Pins:	C_INST/GL0	Remove	Remove All

Figure 156 · Select Source Pins for Multicycle Constraint

Filter Available Pins

Type – Displays the Type of the Available Pins in the design. The pin Type options available for the Source are:

- Clock Pins
- Input Ports
- All Register Output Pins

Pattern - The default is *, which is a wild-card match for all. You can specify any string value.

Click **Search** to filter the available pins based on the specified pin Type and Pattern.

Available Pins

The list box displays the available pins. If you change the pattern value, the list box shows the available pins based on the filter.

Use Add, Add All to add the pins from the Available Pins list to Assigned Pins or **Remove**, **Remove All** to delete the pins from the Assigned Pins list.

Assigned Pins

Displays pins selected from the Available Pins list. Select Pins from this list and click **OK** to add the Source Pins for Multicycle constraint.

Select Source Pins for Clock Constraint Dialog Box

Use this dialog box to find and choose the clock source from the list of available pins.



To open the Select Source Pins for the Clock Constraint dialog box (shown below) from the SmartTime Constraints Editor, click the **Browse** button to the right of the Clock source field in the <u>Create Clock Constraint</u> dialog box.

^
^
^
~
e All

Figure 157 · Select Source Pins for Clock Constraint Dialog Box

Filter Available Pins

Type – Displays the Type of the Available Pins in the design. The Pin Type options available for the Source are:

- All Pins
- Input Ports
- All Nets

Pattern – The default is *, which is a wild-card match for all. You can specify any string value.

Click **Search** to filter the available pins based on the specified pin Type and Pattern.

Available Pins

The list box displays the available pins. If you change the pattern value, the list box shows the available pins based on the filter.

Use Add, Add All to add the pins from the Available Pins list to Assigned Pins or **Remove**, **Remove All** to delete the pins from the Assigned Pins list.

Assigned Pins

Displays pins selected from the Available Pins list. Select Pins from this list and click **OK** to add the Source Pins for Clock Constraint.

See Also

Specifying clock constraints



Set a Disable Timing Constraint

Use disable timing constraint to specify the timing arcs to be disabled for timing consideration.

Note: This constraint is for the Place and Route tool and the Verify Timing tool. It is ignored by the Synthesis tool. To specify a Disable Timing constraint, open the Set Constraint to Disable Timing Arcs dialog box in one of the following four ways:

- From the Constraints Browser, choose Advanced > Disable Timing.
- Double-click the Add Disable Timing Constraint icon
- Choose Disable Timing from the Constraints drop-down menu (Constraints > Disable Timing).
- Right-click any row in the Disable Timing Constraints Table and choose Add Constraint to Disable Timing.

The Set Constraint to Disable Timing Arcs dialog box appears.

Instance Name:			
Exclude all timing arcs in the ins	tance		
Specify timing arc to exclude:			
From Port	×		
	~	To Port:	-
		· · · ·	
	Cell		
Comment :			
11-b			Canaal

Figure 158 · Set constraint to disable timing arcs Dialog Box

Instance Name

Specifies the instance name for which the disable timing arc constraint will be created.

Click the browse button next to the Instance Name field to open the Select instance to constrain dialog box.



Select a type and pattern to sta	rt a search		
Filter available pins :			
Pin Type :	Pattern :		
All Instances	*		Filter
CoreAXI4Interconnect_0			^
CoreAXI4Interconnect_0/GN	D_Z		
CoreAXI4Interconnect_0/GN	D_Z/GND_Z		
CoreAXI4Interconnect_0/Ms	Convertor_loop[0].mstrcor	nv	
CoreAXI4Interconnect_0/Ms	Convertor_loop[0].mstrcor	nv/GND_Z	
CoreAXI4Interconnect_0/Ms	Convertor_loop[0].mstrcor	nv/GND_Z/GND_Z	
CoreAXI4Interconnect_0/Ms	Convertor_loop[0].mstrcor	nv/VCC_Z	
CoreAXI4Interconnect_0/Ms	Convertor_loop[0].mstrcor	nv/VCC_Z/VCC_Z	
CoreAXI4Interconnect_0/Ms	Convertor_loop[0].mstrcor	nv/rgsl	
CoreAXI4Interconnect_0/Ms	Convertor_loop[0].mstrcor	nv/rgsl/GND_Z	
CoreAXI4Interconnect_0/Ms	Convertor_loop[0].mstrcor	nv/rgsl/GND_Z/GND_Z	
CoreAXI4Interconnect_0/Ms	Convertor_loop[0].mstrcor	nv/rgsl/VCC_Z	
CoreAXI4Interconnect_0/Ms	Convertor_loop[0].mstrcor	nv/rgsl/VCC_Z/VCC_Z	
CoreAXI4Interconnect_0/Ms	Convertor_loop[0].mstrcor	nv/rgsl/genblk1.awrs	
CoreAXI4Interconnect_0/Ms	Convertor_loop[0].mstrcor	nv/rgsl/genblk1.awrs/GND	Z
CoreAXI4Interconnect_0/Ms	Convertor_loop[0].mstrcor	nv/rgsl/genblk1.awrs/GND	Z/GND_Z
CoreAXI4Interconnect_0/Ms	Convertor_loop[0].mstrcor	nv/rgsl/genblk1.awrs/VCC	Z
CoreAXI4Interconnect_0/Ms	Convertor_loop[0].mstrcor	nv/rgsl/genblk1.awrs/VCC	_Z/VCC_Z
(>

Figure 159 · Select instance to constrain Dialog Box

The Pin Type selection is limited to All Instances only.

Exclude All Timing Arcs in the Instance

This option enables you to exclude all timing arcs in the specified instance.

Specify Timing Arc to Exclude

This option enables you to specify the timing arc to exclude. In this case, you need to specify the from and to ports:

From Port

Specifies the starting point for the timing arc.

To Port

Specifies the ending point for the timing arc.

Comment

Enter a one-line comment for the constraint.

Set Clock Source Latency Dialog Box

Use this dialog box to define the delay between an external clock source and the definition pin of a clock within SmartTime.

To open the Set Clock Source Latency dialog box (shown below) from the Timing Analysis View, you must first <u>create a clock constraint</u>. From the **Constraints** menu, choose **Clock Source Latency**.





Figure 160 · Set Clock Source Latency Dialog Box

Clock Name or Source

Displays a list of clock ports or pins that do not already have a clock source latency specified. Select the clock name or source for which you are specifying the clock source latency.

Late Rise

Specifies the largest possible latency, in nanoseconds, of the rising clock edge at the clock port or pin selected, with respect to its source. Negative values are acceptable, but may lead to overly optimistic analysis.

Early Rise

Specifies the smallest possible latency, in nanoseconds, of the rising clock edge at the clock port or pin selected, with respect to its source. Negative values are acceptable, but may lead to overly optimistic analysis.

Late Fall

Specifies the largest possible latency, in nanoseconds, of the falling clock edge at the clock port or pin selected, with respect to its source. Negative values are acceptable, but may lead to overly optimistic analysis.



Early Fall

Specifies the smallest possible latency, in nanoseconds, of the falling clock edge at the clock port or pin selected, with respect to its source. Negative values are acceptable, but may lead to overly optimistic analysis.

Clock Edges

Select the latency for the rising and falling edges:

Falling same as rising: Specifies that Rising and Falling clock edges have the same latency. **Early same as late** : Specifies that the clock source latency should be considered as a single value, not a range from "early" to "late".

Comment

Enables you to save a single line of text that describes the clock source latency.

See Also

Specifying Clock Constraints

Set Constraint to Disable Timing Arcs Dialog Box

Use this dialog box to specify the timing arcs being disabled to fix the combinational loops in the design. To open the Set Constraint to Disable Timing Arcs dialog box (shown below) from the Timing Analysis View, from the **Constraints** menu, choose **Disable Timing**.

Set constraint to disable timing arcs	x
Instance Name:	
 Exclude all timing arcs in the instance 	
Specify timing arc to exclude:	
From Port To Port:	•
Comment:	
·	
Help OK Car	ncel

Figure 161 · Set Constraint to Disable Timing Arcs Dialog Box



Instance Name

Specifies the instance name for which the disable timing arc constraint will be created.

Exclude All Timing Arcs in the Instance

This option enables you to exclude all timing arcs in the specified instance.

Specify Timing Arc to Exclude

This option enables you to specify the timing arc to exclude. In this case, you need to specify the from and to ports:

From Port

Specifies the starting point for the timing arc.

To Port

Specifies the ending point for the timing arc.

Comment

Enables you to save a single line of text that describes the disable timing arc.

See Also

Specifying Disable Timing Constraint

Set False Path Constraint Dialog Box

Use this dialog box to define specific timing paths as being false.

This constraint removes timing requirements on these false paths so that they are not considered during the timing analysis. The path starting points are the input ports or register clock pins and path ending points are the register data pins or output ports. This constraint disables setup and hold checking for the specified paths.

Note: The false path information always takes precedence over multiple cycle path information and overrides maximum delay constraints.

To open the Set False Path Constraint dialog box (shown below) from the SmartTime Constraints Editor, choose **Constraints > Exceptions False Path > Add False Path Constraint**.



Set False Path Constraint	8 8	3
From :		
	~	
	l]
Through :		
	^	
]
<	~	
To :		
	^	
		-
		1
<	× ×	
Comment :	TT I	
Help	OK Cancel	1

Figure 162 · Set False Path Constraint Dialog Box

From

Specifies the starting points for false path. A valid timing starting point is a clock, a primary input, an inout port, or a clock pin of a sequential cell.

Through

Specifies a list of pins, ports, cells, or nets through which the disabled paths must pass.

То

Specifies the ending points for false path. A valid timing ending point is a clock, a primary output, an inout port, or a data pin of a sequential cell.

Comment

Enables you to provide comments for this constraint.



Set Maximum Delay Constraint Dialog Box

Use this dialog box to specify the required maximum delay for timing paths in the current design.

SmartTime automatically derives the individual maximum delay targets from clock waveforms and port input or output delays. So the maximum delay constraint is a timing exception. This constraint overrides the default single cycle timing relationship for one or more timing paths. This constraint also overrides a multiple cycle path constraint.

To open the Set Maximum Delay Constraint dialog box (shown below) from the Constraints Editor, click the **Constraints** menu and choose **Max Delay** (**Constraints > Max Delay**).

Set Maximum Delay Constraint		22
Maximum delay : 0.000 ns From :	^	
<	>	
Through :		
	^	
	~	
To:		
	^	
	~	
Comment ·	,	
Help	OK C	ancel
עסוו	UK Ca	ancer

Figure 163 · Set Maximum Delay Constraint Dialog Box

Maximum Delay

Specifies a floating point number in nanoseconds that represents the required maximum delay value for specified paths.

If the path starting point is on a sequential device, SmartTime includes clock skew in the computed delay.

If the path starting point has an input delay specified, SmartTime adds that delay value to the path delay.

If the path ending point is on a sequential device, SmartTime includes clock skew and library setup time in the computed delay.

If the ending point has an output delay specified, SmartTime adds that delay to the path delay.



From

Specifies the starting points for max delay constraint. A valid timing starting point is a clock, a primary input, an inout port, or a clock pin of a sequential cell.

Through

Specifies the through points for the multiple cycle constraint.

То

Specifies the ending points for maximum delay constraint. A valid timing ending point is a clock, a primary output, an inout port, or a data pin of a sequential cell.

Comment

Enables you to provide comments for this constraint.

See Also

Specifying a Maximum Delay Constraint

Set Minimum Delay Constraint Dialog Box

Use this dialog box to specify the required minimum delay for timing paths in the current design.

SmartTime automatically derives the individual minimum delay targets from clock waveforms and port input or output delays. So the minimum delay constraint is a timing exception. This constraint overrides the default single cycle timing relationship for one or more timing paths. This constraint also overrides a multiple cycle path constraint.

To open the Set Minimum Delay Constraint dialog box (shown below) from the Constraints Editor, click the **Constraints** menu and choose **Min Delay** (**Constraints > Min Delay**).



Set Minimum Delay Constraint	8 23
Minimum delay : 0.000 ns	
<	>
Through :	^
< To :	>
	^
	· · · · ·
<	>
Comment :	OK Caperl
пер	Cancel

Figure 164 · Set Minimum Delay Constraint Dialog Box

Minimum Delay

Specifies a floating point number in nanoseconds that represents the required minimum delay value for specified paths.

If the path starting point is on a sequential device, SmartTime includes clock skew in the computed delay.

If the path starting point has an input delay specified, SmartTime adds that delay value to the path delay. If the path ending point is on a sequential device, SmartTime includes clock skew and library setup time in the computed delay.

If the ending point has an output delay specified, SmartTime adds that delay to the path delay.

From

Specifies the starting points for minimum delay constraint. A valid timing starting point is a clock, a primary input, an input port, or a clock pin of a sequential cell.

Through

Specifies the through points for the multiple cycle constraint.



То

Specifies the ending points for minimum delay constraint. A valid timing ending point is a clock, a primary output, an input port, or a data pin of a sequential cell.

Comment

Enables you to provide comments for this constraint.

See Also

Specifying a Minimum Delay Constraint

Set Multicycle Constraint Dialog Box

Use this dialog box to specify the paths that take multiple clock cycles in the current design.

Setting the multiple-cycle paths constraint overrides the single-cycle timing relationships between sequential elements by specifying the number of cycles that the data path must have for setup or hold checks.

Note: When multiple timing constraints are set on the same timing path, the false path constraint has the highest priority and always takes precedence over multiple cycle path constraint. A specific maximum delay constraint overrides a general multicycle path constraint.

To open the Set Multicycle Constraint dialog box (shown below) from the Constraints Editor, choose **Constraints** > **Multicycle**.



Set Multicycle Constraint	8 2
Specify multiplier(s) for : Setup Check only Setup Path Multiplier :	Setup and Hold Checks
Pefault setup edge Hold edge	New setup edge
From :	
	^
<	× >
Through :	
<	
To :	~
<	× >
Comment :	
Help	OK Cancel

Figure 165 · Set Multicycle Constraint Dialog Box

Setup Path Multiplier

Specifies an integer value that represents a number of cycles the data path must have for a setup check. No hold check will be performed.

From

Specifies the starting points for the multiple cycle constraint. A valid timing starting point is a clock, a primary input, an inout port, or the clock pin of a sequential cell.

Through

Specifies the through points for the multiple cycle constraint.

To

Specifies the ending points for the multiple cycle constraint. A valid timing ending point is a clock, a primary output, an inout port, or a data pin of a sequential cell.



Comment

Enables you to provide comments for this constraint.

When you select the Setup and Hold Checks option, an additional field appears in this dialog box: **Hold Path Multiplier**.

Set Multicycle Constraint	8 3
Specify multiplier(s) for : O Setup Check only Setup Path Multiplier : 0	Setup and Hold Checks Hold Path Multiplier:
Default setup edge New hold edge	New setup edge Hold 0
From :	
	^
<	>
Through :	
<	>
To :	
	^
	~
Comment :	
Help	OK Cancel

Figure 166 · Set Multicycle Constraint Dialog Box with Setup and Hold Checks Selected

Hold Path Multiplier

Specifies an integer value that represents a number of cycles the data path must have for a hold check, starting from one cycle before the setup check edge.

See Also

Specifying a Multicycle Constraint

set_clock_groups

set_clock_groups is an SDC command which disables timing analysis between the specified clock groups. No paths are reported between the clock groups in both directions. Paths between clocks in the same group continue to be reported.



Note: If you use the same name and the same exclusive flag of a previously defined clock group to create a new clock group, the previous clock group is removed and a new one is created in its place.

Arguments

-name *name*

Name given to the clock group. Optional.

```
-physically exclusive
```

Specifies that the clock groups are physically exclusive with respect to each other. Examples are multiple clocks feeding a register clock pin. The exclusive flags are all mutually exclusive. Only one can be specified.

```
-logically exclusive
```

Specifies that the clocks groups are logically exclusive with respect to each other. Examples are clocks passing through a mux.

-asynchronous

Specifies that the clock groups are asynchronous with respect to each other, as there is no phase relationship between them. The exclusive flags are all mutually exclusive. Only one can be specified.

Note: The exclusive flags for the arguments above are all mutually exclusive. Only one can be specified.

```
-group clock_list
```

Specifies a list of clocks. There can any number of groups specified in the set_clock_groups command.

Examples

1) Here, there are two muxed clocks in a clock group.



SDC:

```
create_clock -name clk_1 -period 5 [ get_ports clk_1 ]
create_clock -name clk_2 -period 10 [ get_ports clk_2 ]
set_clock_groups -logically_exclusive -group clk_1 -group clk_2
```

2) Here, there are three synchronous clocks receiving data from an asynchronous clock.





SDC:

```
create_clock -name clk_in -period 10 [ get_ports clk_in ]
create_clock -name clk_50 -period 20 [ get_ports clk_50 ]
create_generated_clock -name ccc_100 -divide_by 2 \
-source [ get_pins ccc_100_0/ccc_100_0/pll_inst_0/REF_CLK_0 ] \
[ get_pins ccc_100_0/ccc_100_0/pll_inst_0/OUT0 ]
create_generated_clock -name clk_out -divide_by 1 \
-source [ get_pins { ccc_100_0/ccc_100_0/pll_inst_0/OUT0 } ] \
[ get_ports clk_out ]
set_clock_groups -asynchronous -group { clk_in ccc_100_clk_out } -group clk_50
```

See Also

list_clock_groups remove_clock_groups

set_clock_to_output

SDC command; defines the timing budget available inside the FPGA for an output relative to a clock.

set_clock_to_output delay_value -clock clock_ref [-max] [-min] output_list

Arguments

delay_value

Specifies the clock to output delay in nanoseconds. This time represents the amount of time available inside the FPGA between the active clock edge and the data change at the output port.

-clock clock_ref

Specifies the reference clock to which the specified clock to output is related. This is a mandatory argument.

```
-max
```

Specifies that *delay_value* refers to the maximum clock to output at the specified output. If you do not specify -max or -min options, the tool assumes maximum and minimum clock to output delays to be equal.

-min

Specifies that *delay_value* refers to the minimum clock to output at the specified output. If you do not specify -max or -min options, the tool assumes maximum and minimum clock to output delays to be equal.



output_list

Provides a list of output ports in the current design to which delay_value is assigned. If you need to specify more than one object, enclose the objects in braces ({}).

Supported Families

SmartFusion2 IGLOO2 RTG4

set_clock_uncertainty

Tcl command; specifies simple clock uncertainty for single clock and clock-to-clock uncertainty between two clocks (from and to).

```
set_clock_uncertainty [-setup] [-hold] uncertainty [object_list -from from_clock | -
rise_from_rise_from_clock | -fall_from_fall_from_clock -to to_clock | -rise_to_rise_to_clock |
-fall_to_fall_to_clock]
```

Arguments

uncertainty

Specifies the time in nanoseconds that represents the amount of variation between two clock edges.

object_list

Specifies a list of clocks, ports, or pins for simple uncertainty; the uncertainty is applied either to destination flops clocked by one of the clocks in the object list option, or destination flops whose clock pins are in the fanout of a port or a pin specified in the object_list option.

-from

Specifies that the clock-to-clock uncertainty applies to both rising and falling edges of the source clock list. Only one of the -from, -rise_from, or -fall_from arguments can be specified for the constraint to be valid.

-rise_from

Specifies that the clock-to-clock uncertainty applies only to rising edges of the source clock list. Only one of the -from, -rise from, or -fall from arguments can be specified for the constraint to be valid.

-fall from

Specifies that the clock-to-clock uncertainty applies only to falling edges of the source clock list. Only one of the -from, -rise from, or -fall from arguments can be specified for the constraint to be valid.

from_clock/rise_from_clock/fall_from_clock

Specifies the list of clock names as the uncertainty source.

-to

Specifies that the clock-to-clock uncertainty applies to both rising and falling edges of the destination clock list. Only one of the -to, -rise_to, or -fall_to arguments can be specified for the constraint to be valid.

-rise to

Specifies that the clock-to-clock uncertainty applies only to rising edges of the destination clock list. Only one of the -to, -rise_to, or -fall_to arguments can be specified for the constraint to be valid.

-fall_to



Specifies that the clock-to-clock uncertainty applies only to falling edges of the destination clock list. Only one of the -to, -rise to, or -fall to arguments can be specified for the constraint to be valid.

to clock/rise to clock/fall to clock

Specifies the list of clock names as the uncertainty destination.

-setup

Specifies that the uncertainty applies only to setup checks. If none or both -setup and -hold are present, the uncertainty applies to both setup and hold checks.

-hold

Specifies that the uncertainty applies only to hold checks. If none or both -setup and -hold are present, the uncertainty applies to both setup and hold checks.

Supported Families

SmartFusion2 IGLOO2 RTG4

Description

set_clock_uncertainty command sets the timing uncertainty of clock networks. It can be used to model clock jitter or add guard band in timing analysis. Either simple clock uncertainty or clock-to-clock uncertainty can be specified.

Simple clock uncertainty can be set on a clock or on any pin in the clock network. It will then apply to any path with the capturing register in the forward cone of the uncertainty. If multiple simple uncertainty applies to a register, the last one (in the propagation order from the clock source to the register) is used.

Clock-to-clock uncertainty applies to inter-clock paths. Both "from" clock and "to" clock must be specified. Clockto-clock uncertainty has higher priority than simple uncertainty. If both are set (a clock-to-clock uncertainty and a simple clock uncertainty on the "to" clock), the simple clock uncertainty will be ignored for inter-clock paths, only the clock-to-clock uncertainty will be used.

Examples

Simple Clock Uncertainty constraint examples:

```
set_clock_uncertainty 2 -setup [get_clocks clk]
set_clock_uncertainty 2 [get_clocks clk]
```

Clock to Clock Uncertainty constraint examples:

```
set_clock_uncertainty 10 -from Clk1 -to Clk2
set_clock_uncertainty 0 -from Clk1 -fall_to { Clk2 Clk3 } -setup
set_clock_uncertainty 4.3 -fall_from { Clk1 Clk2 } -rise_to *
set_clock_uncertainty 0.1 -rise_from [ get_clocks { Clk1 Clk2 } ] -fall_to { Clk3 Clk4 }
-setup
set clock uncertainty 5 -rise from Clk1 -to [ get clocks {*} ]
```

set external check

SDC command; defines the external setup and hold delays for an input relative to a clock.

set_external_check delay_value -clock clock_ref [-setup] [-hold] input_list

Arguments

delay_value

Specifies the external setup or external hold delay in nanoseconds. This time represents the amount of time available inside the FPGA for the specified input after a clock edge.



-clock clock_ref

Specifies the reference clock to which the specified external check is related. This is a mandatory argument.

-setup **Or** -hold

Specifies that delay_value refers to the setup/hold check at the specified input. This is a mandatory argument if -hold is not used. You must specify either -setup or -hold option.

input_list

Provides a list of input ports in the current design to which delay_value is assigned. If you need to specify more than one object, enclose the objects in braces ({}).

Supported Families

SmartFusion2, IGLOO2, RTG4

Description

The set_external_check command specifies the external setup and hold times on input ports relative to a clock edge. This usually represents a combinational path delay from the input port to the clock pin of a register internal to the current design. For in/out (bidirectional) ports, you can specify the path delays for both input and output modes. The tool uses external setup and external hold times for paths starting at primary inputs.

A clock is a singleton that represents the name of a defined clock constraint. This can be an object accessor that will refer to one clock. For example:

```
[get_clocks {system_clk}]
[get clocks {sys* clk}]
```

Examples

The following example sets an external setup check of 12 ns and an external hold check of 6 ns for port data_in relative to the rising edge of CLK1:

```
set_external_check 12 -clock [get_clocks CLK1] -setup [get_ports data_in]
set external check 6 -clock [get clocks CLK1] -hold [get ports data in]
```

See Also

SDC Syntax Conventions

set_min_delay

SDC command; specifies the minimum delay for the timing paths.

set min delay delay value [-from from list] [-to to list]

Arguments

delay_value

Specifies a floating point number in nanoseconds that represents the required minimum delay value for specified paths.

- If the path starting point is on a sequential device, the tool includes clock skew in the computed delay.
- If the path starting point has an input delay specified, the tool adds that delay value to the path delay.
- If the path ending point is on a sequential device, the tool includes clock skew and library setup time in the computed delay.
- If the ending point has an output delay specified, the tool adds that delay to the path delay.

-from from_list



Specifies a list of timing path starting points. A valid timing starting point is a clock, a primary input, an inout port, or a clock pin of a sequential cell.

-to to_list

Specifies a list of timing path ending points. A valid timing ending point is a clock, a primary output, an inout port, or a data pin of a sequential cell.

Supported Families

SmartFusion2, IGLOO2, RTG4

Description

This command specifies the required minimum delay for timing paths in the current design. The path length for any startpoint in from_list to any endpoint in to_list must be less than delay_value.

The tool automatically derives the individual minimum delay targets from clock waveforms and port input or output delays. For more information, refer to the <u>create clock</u>, <u>set input delay</u>, and <u>set output delay</u> commands.

The minimum delay constraint is a timing exception. This constraint overrides the default single cycle timing relationship for one or more timing paths. This constraint also overrides a multicycle path constraint.

Examples

The following example sets a minimum delay by constraining all paths from ff1a:CLK or ff1b:CLK to ff2e:D with a delay less than 5 ns:

set_min_delay 5 -from {ffla:CLK fflb:CLK} -to {ff2e:D}

The following example sets a minimum delay by constraining all paths to output ports whose names start by "out" with a delay less than 3.8 ns:

set_min_delay 3.8 -to [get_ports out*]

Microsemi Implementation Specifics

The -through option in the set_min_delay SDC command is not supported.

See Also

SDC Syntax Conventions

Organize Source Files Dialog Box – Synthesis

The Organize Source Files dialog box enables you to set the source file order in the Libero SoC.

Click the Use list of files organized by User radio button to Add/Remove source files for the selected tool.

To specify the file order:

- 1. In the Design Flow window under Implement Design, right-click **Synthesize** and choose **Organize Input Files > Organize Source Files**. The Organize Source Files dialog box appears.
- 2. Click the Use list of files organized by User radio button to Add/Remove source files for the selected tool.
- 3. Select a file and click the Add or Remove buttons as necessary. Use the Up and Down arrows to change the order of the Associated Source files.
- 4. Click OK.



	Organize Source files of alpha_proj2 for Synthe	size tool			? ×
Cli	Click to select a Source file in the project, and use the Add button to pass the file to the tool.				
Us	e the Remove button to remove Source files.				
Us	e the Up/Down arrow buttons to specify the order of t	the Source files when they're	e passed to the too	•	
Us	e list of files organized by				
	C Libero (default list)				
	• User				∱ ↓
	Source files in the project	Origin		Associated Source files	Origin
1	hdl_v10_1.v	User		1 custom_apb_peripheral.v	User
			add -		
			AUU -		
			- Remove		
			- Kelliove		
Ē	Help				OK Cancel
_	Top				

Figure 167 · Organize Source Files Dialog Box

Specify I/O States During Programming Dialog Box

The I/O States During Programming dialog box enables you to specify <u>custom settings</u> for I/Os in your programming file. This is useful if you want to set an I/O to drive out specific logic, or if you want to use a custom I/O state to manage settings for each Input, Output Enable, and Output associated with an I/O.

Load from file

Load from file enables you to load an I/O Settings (*.ios) file. You can use the IOS file to import saved custom settings for all your I/Os. The exported IOS file have the following format:

• Used I/Os have an entry in the IOS file with the following format:

```
set_prog_io_state -portName {<design_port_name>} -input <value> -outputEnable <value> -
output <value>
```

• Unused I/Os have an entry in the IOS file with the following format:

```
set_prog_io_state -pinNumber {<device_pinNumber>} -input <value> -outputEnable <value> -
output <value>
```

Where <value> is:

- 1 I/O is set to drive out logic High
- 0 I/O is set to drive out logic Low
- Last_Known_State: I/O is set to the last value that was driven out prior to entering the programming mode, and then held at that value during programming
- Z Tri-State: I/O is tristated

Save to file

Saves your I/O Settings File (*.ios) for future use. This is useful if you set custom states for your I/Os and want to use them again later in conjunction with a PDC file.

Port Name

Lists the names of all the ports in your design.

Macro Cell

Lists the I/O type, such as INBUF, OUTBUF, PLLs, etc.

Pin Number

The package pin associate with the I/O.





I/O State (Output Only)

Your custom I/O State set during programming. This heading changes to Boundary Scan Register if you select the BSR Details checkbox; see the <u>Specifying I/O States During Programming - I/O States and BSR Details</u> help topic for more information on the BSR Details option.

Port Name	Macro Cell	Pin Number	1/O State (Output Only)
IST	ADLIB:INBUF	T2	1
YPASS_IO	ADLIB:INBUF	K1	1
CLK	ADLIB:INBUF	B1	1
NOUT	ADLIB:INBUF	J16	1
ED	ADLIB:OUTBUF	M3	0
IONITOR[0]	ADLIB:OUTBUF	B5	0
IONITOR[1]	ADLIB:OUTBUF	C7	Z
IONITOR[2]	ADLIB:OUTBUF	D9	Z
IONITOR[3]	ADLIB:OUTBUF	D7	Z
IONITOR[4]	ADLIB:OUTBUF	A11	Z
)Ea	ADLIB:INBUF	E4	Z
ЭЕЬ	ADLIB:INBUF	F1	Z
)SC_EN	ADLIB:INBUF	К3	Z
AD[10]	ADLIB:BIBUF_LVCMOS33U	M8	Z
PAD[11]	ADLIB:BIBUF_LVCMOS33D	B7	Z
PAD[12]	ADLIB:BIBUF_LVCMOS33U	D11	Z
AD[13]	ADLIB:BIBUF_LVCMOS33D	C12	Z
AD[14]	ADLIB:BIBUF_LVCMOS33U	R6	Z

Figure 168 · I/O States During Programming Dialog Box

Specifying a False Path Constraint

You set options in the Set False Path Constraint dialog box to define specific timing paths as false.

To specify False Path constraints:

- 1. Add the constraint in the <u>Editable Constraints Grid</u> or open the <u>Set False Path Constraint</u> dialog box. You can do this by using one of the following methods:
 - From the **Constraints** drop-down menu, choose **False Path**.
 - Click the kicon.
 - From the Constraints Browser, choose False Path.
 - Right-click False Path in the Constraint Browser and choose Add False Path Constraint.

The Set False Path Constraint dialog box appears (as shown below).



Set False Path Constraint	8	×
From :		
	*	
	-	
Through :		
	^	
4		
To :		
	*	
4	*	
Comment :		
Help	OK Car	ncel

Figure 169 \cdot Set False Path Constraint Dialog Box

2. Specify the **From** pin(s). Click the **Browse** button next to **From** to open the Select Source Pins for False Path Constraint dialog box (as shown below).



All Register Clock Pins	•		Search
wailable Pins:			
DFN1_1/CLK FCCC_C0_0/FCCC_C0_0/CC FCCC_C0_0/FCCC_C0_0/CC	C_INST/CLK0 C_INST/CLK0_PAD		
FCCC_C0_0/FCCC_C0_0/CC FCCC_C0_0/FCCC_C0_0/CC FCCC_C0_0/FCCC_C0_0/CC	C_INST/CLK1 C_INST/CLK1_PAD C_INST/CLK2	Remove	Perrove All
FCCC_C0_0/FCCC_C0_0/CC FCCC_C0_0/FCCC_C0_0/CC FCCC_C0_0/FCCC_C0_0/CC Add Issigned Pins:	C_INST/CLK1_PAD C_INST/CLK1_PAD C_INST/CLK2 Add All	Remove	Remove All

Figure 170 · Select Source Pins for False Path Constraint Dialog Box

- 3. Use **Filter available pins** to narrow the pin list based on the selected **Type** and **Pattern**. Select the pin(s) from the **Available Pins** list. You can select multiple pins in this window.
- 4. Click Add or Add All to add the pins from the Available Pins list to the Assigned Pins list. Click Remove or Remove All to remove the pins from the Assigned Pins list.
- 5. Select the pins from the **Assigned Pins** list and click **OK**. The **Set False Path Constraint** dialog box displays the updated **From** pin(s) list.
- 6. Click the **Browse** button for **Through** and **To** and add the appropriate pin(s). The displayed list shows the pins reachable from the previously selected pin(s) list.
- 7. Enter comments in the Comment section.
- 8. Click OK.

The False Path constraints to the Constraints List in the Timing Constraints Editor.

Specifying a Maximum Delay Constraint

You set options in the <u>Set Maximum Delay Constraint</u> dialog box to relax or to tighten the original clock constraint requirement on specific paths.

To specify Max delay constraints:

- 1. Add the constraint in the <u>Editable Constraints Grid</u> or open the <u>Set Maximum Delay Constraint</u> dialog box using one of the following methods:
 - Click the 🔀 icon in the Constraints Editor.
 - From the Constraints Browser, choose **Max Delay**.
 - Choose Max Delay from the Constraints drop-down menu (Constraints > Max Delay).
 - From the Max Delay Constraints Table, right-click any row and choose Add Maximum Delay Constraint.

The Set Maximum Delay Constraint dialog box appears (as shown below).



Set Maximum Delay Constraint	8
Maximum delay : 0.000 ns	
rom :	
	1. <u>1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1</u>
	-
	F
rough :	
(•
	^ ^
<	E.
omment :	
Help	OK Cancel

Figure 171 · Set Maximum Delay Constraint Dialog Box

- 2. Specify the delay in the **Maximum delay** field.
- 3. Specify the **From** pin(s). Click the **Browse** button next to **From** to open the Select Source Pins for Max Delay Constraint dialog box (as shown below).


	Faucini,		
Input Ports	*		Search
and the man			
valiable Pins:			
<i>,</i>			
Add	Add All	Remove	Remove All
ssigned Pins:			
ssigned Pins:			
ssigned Pins: CLK0_PAD			

Figure 172 · Select Source Pins for Max Delay Constraint Dialog Box

- 4. Use **Filter available pins** to narrow the pin list based on the selected **Type** and **Pattern**. Select the pin(s) from the **Available Pins** list. You can select multiple pins in this window.
- 5. Click Add or Add All to add the pins from the Available Pins list to the Assigned Pins list. Click Remove or Remove All to remove the pins from the Assigned Pins list.
- 6. Select the pins from the **Assigned Pins** list and click **OK**. The **Set Maximum Delay Constraint** dialog box displays the updated **From** pin(s) list.
- 7. Click the **Browse** button for **Through** and **To** and add the appropriate pin(s). The displayed list shows the pins reachable from the previously selected pin(s) list.
- 8. Enter comments in the **Comment** section.
- 9. Click OK.

SmartTime adds the maximum delay constraints to the Constraints List in the SmartTime Constraints Editor.

See Also

Timing Exceptions Overview

Specifying a Minimum Delay Constraint

You set options in the <u>Set Minimum Delay Constraint</u> dialog box to relax or to tighten the original clock constraint requirement on specific paths.

To specify Min delay constraints:

- 1. Open the Set Minimum Delay Constraint dialog box using one of the following methods:
 - Click the kiew icon in the Constraints Editor.
 - From the Constraints Browser, choose Min Delay.
 - Choose Min Delay from the Constraints drop-down menu (Constraints > Min Delay).
 - Right click on any row in the Min Delay Constraints Table and select Add Minimum Delay Constraint.

The Set Minimum Delay Constraint dialog box appears (as shown below).



Set Minimum Delay Constraint	8 ×
Minimum delay : 0.000 ns	
rom :	
	*
	-
4	ь
hrough :	
	*
	-
<	•
):	
	A
4	*
iomment :	
Help	OK Cancel

Figure 173 · Set Minimum Delay Constraint Dialog Box

- 2. Specify the delay in the **Minimum delay** field.
- 3. Specify the **From** pin(s). Click the **Browse** button next to **From** to open the Select Source Pins for Min Delay Constraint dialog box (as shown below).



All Register Clock Pins	•		Search
Available Pins:			
DFN1_0/CLK DFN1_1/CLK FCCC_C0_0/FCCC_C0_0/CCC FCCC_C0_0/FCCC_C0_0/CCC FCCC_C0_0/FCCC_C0_0/CCC FCCC_C0_0/FCCC_C0_0/CCC FCCC_C0_0/FCCC_C0_0/CCC	_INST/CLK0 _INST/CLK0_PAD _INST/CLK1_PAD _INST/CLK2_PAD _INST/CLK3		^
Add	Add All	Remove	Remove All
Assigned Pins:			
FCCC C0 0/FCCC C0 0/CCC	_INST/CLK1 _INST/CLK2		

Figure 174 · Select Source Pins for Min Delay Constraint Dialog Box

- 4. Use **Filter available pins** to narrow the pins list based on the selected **Type** and **Pattern**. Select the pin(s) from the **Available Pins** list. You can select multiple pins in this window.
- 5. Click Add or Add All to add the pins from the Available Pins list to the Assigned Pins list. Click Remove or Remove All to remove the pins from the Assigned Pins list.
- 6. Select the pins from the **Assigned Pins** list and click **OK**. The **Set Minimum Delay Constraint** dialog box displays the updated **From** pin(s) list.
- 7. Click the **Browse** button for **Through** and **To** and add the appropriate pin(s). The displayed list shows the pins reachable from the previously selected pin(s) list.
- 8. Enter comments in the **Comment** section.
- 9. Click OK.

The minimum delay constraints are added to the Constraints List.

See Also

Timing Exceptions Overview

Specifying a Multicycle Constraint

You set options in the <u>Set Multicycle Constraint</u> dialog box to specify paths that take multiple clock cycles in the current design.

To specify multicycle constraints:

- 1. Add the constraint in the <u>Editable Constraints Grid</u> or open the <u>Set Multicycle Constraint</u> dialog box using one of the following methods:
 - From the Timing Constraints Editor, choose Constraint > MultiCycle.
 - Click the 🛄 icon.
 - From the Constraints Browser, choose Multicycle.



• Right-click the **Multicycle** option in the Constraint Browser and select **Add Multicycle Path Constraint**.



Set Multicycle Constraint		8 23
Specify multiplier(s) for :	O Setup and Hold Checks	
Hold edge	New setup edge	
From :		-
		<i>4</i> .
Through :		
		۹
<		
To :		-

<	,	15
Comment :		
Help	ОК	Cancel

Figure 175 · Set Multicycle Constraint Dialog Box

- 2. Specify the number of cycles in the Setup Path Multiplier.
- 3. Specify the **From** pin(s). Click the **Browse** button next to **From** to open the Select Source Pins for Multicycle Constraint dialog box (as shown below).



ype:	Pattern :		
Clock Pins	*		Search
vailable Pins:			
CLK0_PAD			
CCC CD D/ECCC CD D/CC			
FCCC_C0_0/FCCC_C0_0/CC	.C_INST/GL0		
FCCC_C0_0/FCCC_C0_0/CC	C_INST/GL0		
FCCC_C0_0/FCCC_C0_0/CC	.C_INSI/GLU		
FCCC_C0_0/FCCC_C0_0/CC	.c_INSI/GLU		
FCCC_C0_0/FCCC_C0_0/CC	Add All	Remove	Remove All
FCCC_C0_0/FCCC_C0_0/CC Add ssigned Pins:	Add All	Remove	Remove All
FCCC_C0_0/FCCC_C0_0/CC Add ssigned Pins:	Add All	Remove	Remove All
FCCC_C0_0/FCCC_C0_0/CC Add ssigned Pins:	Add All	Remove	Remove All
FCCC_C0_0/FCCC_C0_0/CC Add ssigned Pins:	Add All	Remove	Remove All
FCCC_C0_0/FCCC_C0_0/CC Add ssigned Pins:	Add All	Remove	Remove All

Select Source Pins for Multicycle Constraint Dialog Box

- 4. Use **Filter available pins** to narrow the pin list based on the selected **Type** and **Pattern**. Select the pin(s) from the **Available Pins** list. You can select multiple pins in this window.
- 5. Click Add or Add All to add the pins from the Available Pins list to the Assigned Pins list. Click Remove or Remove All to remove the pins from the Assigned Pins list.
- 6. Select the pins from the **Assigned Pins** list and click **OK**. The **Set Multicycle Constraint** dialog box displays the updated **From** pin(s) list.
- 7. Click the browse button for **Through** and **To** and add the appropriate pins. The displayed list shows the pins reachable from the previously selected pin(s) list
- 8. Enter comments in the Comment section.
- 9. Click OK. The Timing Constraints Editor adds the multicycle constraints to the Constraints List.

See Also

Set Multicycle Constraint Dialog Box

Specifying Disable Timing Constraint

Use disable timing constraint to specify the timing arcs being disabled.

To specify the disable timing constraint:

- 1. Add the constraint in the <u>Editable Constraints Grid</u> or open the <u>Set Constraint to Disable Timing Arcs Dialog</u> <u>Box</u> using one of the following methods:
 - From the Timing Constraints Editor, choose Constraints Menu > Disable Timing.
 - Click the 🔛 icon in the Constraints Editor.
 - In the Constraints Editor, right-click **Disable Timing** and choose **Add Disable Timing Constraints**.



- 2. Select an instance from your design.
- 3. Select whether you want to exclude all timing arcs in the instance or if you want to specify the timing arc to exclude. If you selected specify timing arc to exclude, select a from and to port for the timing arc.
- 4. Enter any comments to be attached to the constraint.
- 5. Click OK. The new constraint appears in the constraints list.
 - Note: Note: When you choose Save from the File menu, the newly created constraint is saved in the database.

See Also

Set Constraint to Disable Timing Arcs Dialog Box

Specifying Clock Constraints

Specifying clock constraints is the most effective way to constrain and verify the timing behavior of a sequential design. Use clock constraints to meet your performance goals.

To specify a clock constraint:

- 1. Add the constraint in the <u>editable constraints grid</u> or open the <u>Create Clock Constraint</u> dialog box using one of the following methods:
 - Click the icon in the Constraints Editor.
 - Right-click the Clock in the Constraint Browser and choose Add Clock Constraint.
 - Double-click Clock in the Constraint Browser.
 - Choose Clock from the Constraints drop-down menu (Constraints > Clock)

The Create Clock Constraint dialog box appears (as shown below).

Period :	ns	Hor Frequency:	Mhz
Offset : → Duty cyde : → 0.000 ns 50.0000 %			
Add this clock to existing one with same source			
Comment :			

Create Clock Constraint Dialog Box

 Select the pin to use as the clock source. You can click the Browse button to display the <u>Select Source Pins</u> for Clock Constraint Dialog Box (as shown below).

Note: Do not select a source pin when you specify a virtual clock. Virtual clocks can be used to define a clock outside the FPGA that is used to synchronize I/Os.

Use the Choose the Clock Source Pin dialog box to display a list of source pins from which you can choose. By default, it displays the explicit clock sources of the design. To choose other pins in the design as clock source pins, select **Filter available objects - Pin Type** as **Explicit clocks**, **Potential clocks**, **All Ports**, **All Pins**, **All Nets**, **Pins on clock network**, or **Nets in clock network**. To display a subset of the displayed clock source pins, you can create and apply a filter.



Multiple source pins can be specified for the same clock when a single clock is entering the FPGA using multiple inputs with different delays.

Click **OK** to save these dialog box settings.

- 3. Specify the Period in nanoseconds (ns) or Frequency in megahertz (MHz).
- 4. Modify the Clock Name. The name of the first clock source is provided as default.
- 5. Modify the Duty cycle, if needed.
- 6. Modify the **Offset** of the clock, if needed.
- 7. Modify the first edge direction of the clock, if needed.
- 8. Select the check box for Add this clock to an existing one with the same source, if needed.
- 9. Click **OK**. The new constraint appears in the Constraints List.

Note: When you choose File > Save, saves the newly created constraint in the database.

ints Editor													
Constraints Requirements		Syntax	Clock Name	Clock Source	Period (ns)	Frequency (MHz)	Dutycycle (%)	First Edge	Offset (ns)	Waveform	Add	File	Comments
Clock Clock	1	Click with	in this row to add a d	constraint									
Input Delay	2		CLK0_PAD	[get_ports { CLK0_J	3.000	333.333	50.000000	rising 👻	0.000	0.00 1.50		X:\10_docs_re	
Output Delay	-	· ·									_		
External Check													
Clock To Out													
Exceptions													
Max Delay													
Min Delay													
Multicycle													
M False Path													
Advanced													
Disable Timing													
Clock Source Latency													
Clock Uncertainity													

Figure 176 · Timing Constraint View

Specifying Generated Clock Constraints

Specifying a generated clock constraint enables you to define an internally generated clock for your design and verify its timing behavior. Use generated clock constraints and <u>clock constraints</u> to meet your performance goals.

To specify a generated clock constraint:

- 1. Open the Create Generated Clock Constraint dialog box using one of the following methods:
 - Click the icon.
 - Right-click the **Generated Clock** in the Constraint Browser and choose **Add Generated Clock**.
 - Double-click the Generated Clock Constraints grid. The Create Generated Clock Constraint dialog box appears (as shown below).



Create Generated Clock Constraint	? ×
Reference Pin: Clock Pin Clock Port	n:
Generated Clock Name :	
The generated frequency is such that :	
f(clock) = f(reference) * 1 / 1	Ī
$\ensuremath{\mathbb{C}}$ The generated dock edges are based on the reference edges :	Edges (example : 1 3 5)
The edges are shifted by the following delays :	Edge Shift (example: 0.0 0.5 1.0)
The generated waveform is the same as the reference waveform.	
An External feedback is used to generate the dock.	Phase shift is applied by PLL.
PLL Feedback:	Phase shift : 0.00 degree
Add this clock to existing one with same source Master Clock:	
Comment :	
Help	OK Cancel

Figure 177 · Create Generated Clock Constraint

2. Select a **Clock Pin** to use as the generated clock source. To display a list of available generated clock source pins, click the **Browse** button. The <u>Select Generated Clock Source</u> dialog box appears (as shown below).



Filter available pins :		
Pin Type :	Pattern :	
All Register Output Pins	*	Filter
CoreAXI4Interconnect 0/MstC	convertor_loop[0].mstrconv/rgsl/genblk1.awrs/currState[0],	/Q ^
CoreAXI4Interconnect 0/Mst0	onvertor loop[0].mstrconv/rgsl/genblk1.awrs/currState[1]	/Q
CoreAXI4Interconnect 0/MstC	onvertor loop[0].mstrconv/rgsl/genblk1.awrs/holdDat[18]	/Q
CoreAXI4Interconnect 0/Mst0	onvertor loop[0].mstrconv/rgsl/genblk1.awrs/holdDat[19]	/Q
CoreAXI4Interconnect 0/MstC	onvertor loop[0].mstrconv/rgsl/genblk1.awrs/holdDat[20]	/Q
CoreAXI4Interconnect 0/Mst0	onvertor_loop[0].mstrconv/rgsl/genblk1.awrs/holdDat[21]	/Q
CoreAXI4Interconnect 0/Mst0	onvertor loop[0].mstrconv/rgsl/genblk1.awrs/holdDat[23]	/Q
CoreAXI4Interconnect_0/MstC	onvertor_loop[0].mstrconv/rgsl/genblk1.awrs/holdDat[24]	/Q
CoreAXI4Interconnect_0/MstC	onvertor_loop[0].mstrconv/rgsl/genblk1.awrs/holdDat[25]	/Q
CoreAXI4Interconnect_0/MstC	onvertor_loop[0].mstrconv/rgsl/genblk1.awrs/holdDat[26]	/Q
CoreAXI4Interconnect_0/MstC	Convertor_loop[0].mstrconv/rgsl/genblk1.awrs/holdDat[27]	/Q
CoreAXI4Interconnect_0/MstC	Convertor_loop[0].mstrconv/rgsl/genblk1.awrs/holdDat[28]	/Q
CoreAXI4Interconnect_0/MstC	Convertor_loop[0].mstrconv/rgsl/genblk1.awrs/holdDat[29]	/Q
CoreAXI4Interconnect_0/MstC	Convertor_loop[0].mstrconv/rgsl/genblk1.awrs/holdDat[30]	/Q
CoreAXI4Interconnect_0/MstC	Convertor_loop[0].mstrconv/rgsl/genblk1.awrs/holdDat[31]	/Q
CoreAXI4Interconnect_0/MstC	Convertor_loop[0].mstrconv/rgsl/genblk1.awrs/holdDat[32]	/Q
CoreAXI4Interconnect_0/MstC	Convertor_loop[0].mstrconv/rgsl/genblk1.awrs/holdDat[33]	/Q
CoreAXI4Interconnect_0/MstC	Convertor_loop[0].mstrconv/rgsl/genblk1.awrs/holdDat[34]	/Q 🗸
The second s		

Figure 178 · Select Generated Clock Source Dialog Box

- 3. Specify a **Reference Pin**. To display a list of available clock reference pins, click the **Browse** button. The <u>Select Generated Clock Reference</u> dialog box appears.
- 4. Specify the Generated Clock Name(optional).
- 5. Specify the values to calculate the generated frequency: a multiplication factor and/or a division factor (both positive integers).
- 6. Specify the orientation of the generated clock edges based on the reference edges by entering values for the edges and the edge shifts. This is optional.
- 7. Specify the first edge of the generated waveform either same as or inverted with respect to the reference waveform.
- 8. Specify the PLL output and PLL feedback pins, if an External feedback is used to generate the clock.
- 9. Specify the Phase shift applied by the PLL in degrees.
- 10. Specify the Master Clock, if you want to add this to an existing one with the same source.
- 11. Click OK. The new constraint appears in the Constraints List.

Tip: From the File menu, choose Save to save the newly created constraint in the database.

Specifying I/O States During Programming - I/O States and BSR Details

The I/O States During Programming dialog box enables you to set custom I/O states prior to programming.



I/O State (Output Only)

Sets your I/O states during programming to one of the values shown in the list below.

- 1 I/Os are set to drive out logic High
- 0 I/Os are set to drive out logic Low
- Last Known State: I/Os are set to the last value that was driven out prior to entering the programming mode, and then held at that value during programming
- Z Tri-State: I/Os are tristated

When you set your I/O state, the Boundary Scan Register cells are set according to the table below. Use the Show BSR Details option to set custom states for each cell.

Output State	Settings							
	Input	Control (Output Enable)	Output					
Z (Tri-State)	1	0	0					
0 (Low)	1	1	0					
1 (High)	0	1	1					
Last_Known_State	Last_Known_State	Last_Known_State	Last_Known_State					

Table 7 ·	Default	I/O	Output	Settings
	Deladit	" U	Output	ocungo

Table Key:

- 1 High: I/Os are set to drive out logic High
- 0 Low: I/Os are set to drive out logic Low
- Last_Known_State I/Os are set to the last value that was driven out prior to entering the programming mode, and then held at that value during programming

Boundary Scan Registers - Enabled with Show BSR Details

Sets your I/O state to a specific output value during programming AND enables you to customize the values for the Boundary Scan Register (Input, Output Enable, and Output). You can change any Don't Care value in Boundary Scan Register States without changing the Output State of the pin (as shown in the table below).

For example, if you want to Tri-State a pin during programming, set Output Enable to 0; the Don't Care indicates that the other two values are immaterial.

If you want a pin to drive a logic High and have a logic 1 stored in the Input Boundary scan cell during programming, you may set all the values to 1.

Output State	Settings						
	Input	Output Enable	Output				
Z (Tri-State)	Don't Care	0	Don't Care				
0 (Low)	Don't Care	1	0				
1 (High)	Don't Care	1	1				
Last Known State	Last State	Last State	Last State				

Table 8 · BSR Details I/O Output Settings



Table Key:

- 1 High: I/Os are set to drive out logic High
- 0 Low: I/Os are set to drive out logic Low
- Don't Care Don't Care values have no impact on the other settings.
- Last_Known_State Sampled value: I/Os are set to the last value that was driven out prior to entering the programming mode, and then held at that value during programming

The figure below shows an example of Boundary Scan Register settings.

from file Save to file					
			Bound	dary Scan Re	gisters
Port Name	Macro Cell	Pin Number	Input	Output Enable	Output
BIST	ADLIB:INBUF	T2	0	1	1
BYPASS_IO	ADLIB:INBUF	K1	0	1	1
CLK	ADLIB:INBUF	B1	0	1	1
ENOUT	ADLIB:INBUF	J16	0	1	1
LED	ADLIB:OUTBUF	M3	1	1	0
MONITOR(0)	ADLIB:OUTBUF	B5	1	1	0
MONITOR(1)	ADLIB:OUTBUF	C7	1	0	0
MONITOR[2]	ADLIB:OUTBUF	D9	1	0	0
MONITOR(3)	ADLIB:OUTBUF	D7	1	0	0
MONITOR[4]	ADLIB:OUTBUF	A11	1	0	0
OEa	ADLIB:INBUF	E4	1	0	0
ОЕЬ	ADLIB:INBUF	F1	1	0	0
OSC_EN	ADLIB:INBUF	К3	1	0	0
PAD[10]	ADLIB:BIBUF_LVCMOS33U	M8	1	0	0
PAD[11]	ADLIB:BIBUF_LVCMOS33D	R7	1	0	0
PAD[12]	ADLIB:BIBUF_LVCMOS33U	D11	1	0	0
PAD[13]	ADLIB:BIBUF_LVCMOS33D	C12	1	0	0
PAD[14]	ADLIB:BIBUF_LVCMOS33U	R6	1	0	0
1				-	-

Figure 179 · Boundary Scan Registers

Stimulus Hierarchy

To view the Stimulus Hierarchy, from the View menu choose Windows > Stimulus Hierarchy.

The Stimulus Hierarchy tab displays a hierarchical representation of the stimulus and simulation files in the project. The software continuously analyzes and updates files and content. The tab (see figure below) displays the structure of the modules and component stimulus files as they relate to each other.



uild Hierarchy Show:	Components 💌	Show Root Testbenches
🖻 🎬 work		
🖻 🗎 testbnch (testb	nch.v) [work]	
🖻 📑 COREUART	_comp_COREUART_com	np_0_COREUART (CoreUART.v) [work]
🖻 🗎 testbench (test	pench.v) [work]	
🕀 📑 FIFO_CDC_I	FIFO_CDC_0_COREFIFO	(COREFIFO.v) [work]
clock_driver	r (clock_driver.v) [work]	
elab0:fifo_d	river (fifo_driver.v) [wor	k]
elab0:fifo_n	nonitor (fifo_monitor.v)	[work]
主 📑 elab0:g4_dp	_ext_mem (q4_dp_ext_n	nem.v) [work]
🕀 🔝 Test_PRBS (Test	PRBS.v) [work]	
MEM_WegR (M	EM_WeqR.v) [work]	
g4_dp_ext_men	n (g4_dp_ext_mem.v) [w	ork]
fifo_monitor (fi	fo_monitor.v) [work]	
fifo_driver (fifo_	driver.v) [work]	
🗄 🛗 corereset_pf_tb	(corereset_pf_tb.v) [wor	rk]
🕀 🎦 User HDL Stimulu	s Files	

Figure 180 · Stimulus Hierarchy Dialog Box

Expand the hierarchy to view stimulus and simulation files. Right-click an individual component and choose **Show Module** to view the module for only that component.

Select **Components**, instance or **Modules** from the **Show** drop-down list to change the display mode. The Components view displays the stimulus hierarchy; the modules view displays HDL modules and stimulus files.

The file name (the file that defines the module or component) appears in parentheses.

Click Show Root Testbenches to view only the root-level testbenches in your design.

Right-click and choose **Properties**; the Properties dialog box displays the pathname, created date, and last modified date.

All integrated source editors are linked with the SoC software; if you modify a stimulus file the Stimulus Hierarchy automatically updates to reflect the change.

To open a stimulus file:

Double-click a stimulus file to open it in the HDL text editor.

Right-click and choose **Delete from Project** to delete the file from the project. Right-click and choose **Delete from Disk and Project** to remove the file from your disk.

Icons in the Hierarchy indicate the type of component and the state, as shown in the table below.

lcon	Description
SD	SmartDesign component
<mark>;</mark> 50	SmartDesign component with HDL netlist not generated
SD	SmartDesign testbench
i SD 78	SmartDesign testbench with HDL netlist not generated
IP	IP core was instantiated into SmartDesign but the HDL netlist has not been generated



I	con	Description
		HDL netlist

Timing Exceptions Overview

Use timing exceptions to overwrite the default behavior of the design path. Timing exceptions include:

- Setting multicycle constraint to specify paths that (by design) will take more than one cycle.
- Setting a false path constraint to identify paths that must not be included in the timing analysis or the optimization flow.
- Setting a maximum/minimum delay constraint on specific paths to relax or to tighten the original clock constraint requirement.

Tool Profiles Dialog Box

The Tool Profiles dialog box enables you to add, edit, or delete your project tool profiles.

Each Libero SoC project can have a different profile, enabling you to integrate different tools with different projects.

The following table shows the supported tool versions in this release.

ΤοοΙ	Supported Version
Modelsim ME	10.5c
Modelsim ME Pro	10.5c
Synplify Pro ME	N-2017.09M SP1-1
Identify ME	N-2017.09M SP1

Table 10 · Table for supported tool versions

To set or change your tool profile:

- 1. From the **Project** menu, choose **Tool Profiles**. Select the type of tool you wish to add.
 - To add a tool: Select the tool type and click the Add button . Fill out the tool profile and click OK.
 - **To change a tool profile**: After selecting the tool, click the **Edit** button to select another tool, change the tool name, or change the tool location.
 - To remove a tool from the project: After selecting a tool, click the **Remove** button.
- 2. When you are done, click **OK**.



Synthesis	Synthe	sis prof	files	🔶 🥒 🛛
Simulation	Activ	re	Name	Path
Programming	۵	8	Symplify Pro ME	D: Wicrosemi Libero 11. 7\\\Symplify \\bin\symplify _pro.exe
Identify Debugger	0		synplify_batch	Y: \production\Synopsys\Synplify\pc\synplify_J201503MSP1-2\bin\
	0		synplifyPF	\\dm5\sqatest5\releases\test\Synopsys\Synplify_L2016
	0		G5_symplify	\\dm5\sqatest5\releases\test\Synopsys\Synplify\Synplify_L2014

Figure 181 · Libero SoC Tool Profiles Dialog Box

The tool profile with the padlock icon indicates that it is a pre-defined tool profile (the default tool that comes with the Libero SoC Installation.)

To export the tool profile and save it for future use, click the **Export Tool Profiles** dialog box and save the tool profile file as a tool profile *.ini file. The tool profile *.ini file can be imported into a Libero SoC project (**File > Import > Others**) and select Tool Profiles (*.ini) in the File Type pull-down list.

User Preferences Dialog Box – Design Flow Preferences

This dialog box allows you to set your personal preferences for how Libero SoC manages the design flow across the projects you create.

Software update Log window Startup Internet Access Text editor IP Cores Design Flow Proxy	Constraint flow Warn me when derived timing constraints generation override existing constraints (enhanced constraint flow) Design flow rule checks Warn me when Firmware application must be recompiled because of hardware configuration changes. Warn me when I/Os are not all assigned and locked before programming data generation. SmartDesign generation options Generate recursively Generate non-recursively
	Default

Figure 182 · Preferences Dialog Box – Design Flow Preferences

Constraint Flow

• Warn me when derived timing constraints generation override existing constraints.

Libero SoC can generate/derive timing constraints for known hardware blocks and IPs such as SERDES, CCC, MSS/HPMS. Check this box to have Libero SoC pop up a warning message when the



generated timing constraints for these blocks override the timing constraints you set for these blocks. This box is checked by default.

Design Flow Rule Checks

 Warn me when Firmware applications must be recompiled because of hardware configuration changes.

Check this box if you want Libero SoC to display a warning message. This box is checked by default.

• Warn me when I/Os are not all assigned and locked before programming data generation.

I/Os should always be assigned and locked before programming data generation. Check this box if you want Libero SoC to display a warning message. This box is checked by default.

SmartDesign Generation Options

• Generate recursively

In this mode, all subdesigns must be successfully generated before a parent can be generated. An attempt to generate a SmartDesign results in an automatic attempt to generate all subdesigns.

• Generate non-recursively

In this mode, the generation of only explicitly selected SmartDesigns is attempted. The generation of a design can be marked as successful even if a subdesign is ungenerated (either never attempted or unsuccessful).

Note: These preferences are stored on a per-user basis across multiple projects; they are not project-specific.

Synopsys Design Constraints (SDC)

Synopsys Design Constraints (SDC) is a Tcl-based format used by Synopsys tools to specify the design intent, including the timing and area constraints for a design. Microsemi tools use a subset of the SDC format to capture supported timing constraints. Any timing constraint that you can enter using Designer tools can also be specified in an SDC file.

Use the SDC-based flow to share timing constraint information between Microsemi tools and third-party EDA tools.

Command	Action
<u>create_clock</u>	Creates a clock and defines its characteristics
create_generated_clock	Creates an internally generated clock and defines its characteristics
remove_clock_uncertainty	Removes a clock-to-clock uncertainty from the current timing scenario.
set clock latency	Defines the delay between an external clock source and the definition pin of a clock within SmartTime
set_clock_uncertainty	Defines the timing uncertainty between two clock waveforms or maximum skew
<u>set_false_path</u>	Identifies paths that are to be considered false and excluded from the timing analysis
set input delay	Defines the arrival time of an input relative to a clock
<u>set_max_delay</u>	Specifies the maximum delay for the timing paths
<u>set_min_delay</u>	Specifies the minimum delay for the timing paths
set multicycle path	Defines a path that takes multiple clock cycles



Command	Action
<u>set_output_delay</u>	Defines the output delay of an output relative to a clock

See Also

SDC Syntax Conventions

Libero DesignFlow SDC Commands

SDC Syntax Conventions

The following table shows the typographical conventions that are used for the SDC command syntax.

Syntax Notation	Description
command -argument	Commands and arguments appear in Courier New typeface.
variable	Variables appear in blue, italic <i>Courier New</i> typeface. You must substitute an appropriate value for the variable.
[-argument value]	Optional arguments begin and end with a square bracket.

Note: SDC commands and arguments are case sensitive.

Example

The following example shows syntax for the create clock command and a sample command:

create clock -period *period value* [-waveform *edge list*] source

create clock -period 7 -waveform {2 4}{CLK1}

Wildcard Characters

You can use the following wildcard characters in names used in the SDC commands:

Wildcard	What it does
١	Interprets the next character literally
*	Matches any string

Note: The matching function requires that you add a backslash (\) before each slash in the pin names in case the slash does not denote the hierarchy in your design.

Special Characters ([], { }, and \)

Square brackets ([]) are part of the command syntax to access ports, pins and clocks. In cases where these netlist objects names themselves contain square brackets (for example, buses), you must either enclose the names with curly brackets ({}) or precede the open and closed square brackets ([]) characters with a backslash (\). If you do not do this, the tool displays an error message.

For example:

```
create_clock -period 3 clk\[0\]
set_max_delay 1.5 -from [get_pins ff1\[5\]:CLK] -to [get_clocks {clk[0]}]
```

Although not necessary, Microsemi recommends the use of curly brackets around the names, as shown in the following example:



set false path -from {data1} -to [get pins {reg1:D}]

In any case, the use of the curly bracket is mandatory when you have to provide more than one name. For example:

set false path -from {data3 data4} -to [get pins {reg2:D reg5:D}]

Entering Arguments on Separate Lines

If a command needs to be split on multiple lines, each line except the last must end with a backslash (\) character as shown in the following example:

```
set_multicycle_path 2 -from \
[get_pins {reg1*}] \
-to {reg2:D}
```

See Also

About SDC Files

create_clock

SDC command; creates a clock and defines its characteristics.

create clock -name clock name -add -period period value [-waveform edge list] source

Arguments

-name clock_name

Specifies the name of the clock constraint. This parameter is required for virtual clocks when no clock source is provided.

-add

Specifies that a new clock constraint is created at the same source as the existing clock without overriding the existing constraint. The name of the new clock constraint with the -add option must be different than the existing clock constraint. Otherwise, it will override the existing constraint, even with the -add option. The -name option must be specified with the -add option.

-period period_value

Specifies the clock period in nanoseconds. The value you specify is the minimum time over which the clock waveform repeats. The period_value must be greater than zero.

-waveform edge_list

Specifies the rise and fall times of the clock waveform in ns over a complete clock period. There must be exactly two transitions in the list, a rising transition followed by a falling transition. You can define a clock starting with a falling edge by providing an edge list where fall time is less than rise time. If you do not specify -waveform option, the tool creates a default waveform, with a rising edge at instant 0.0 ns and a falling edge at instant (period_value/2)ns.

source

Specifies the source of the clock constraint. The source can be ports or pins in the design. If you specify a clock constraint on a pin that already has a clock, the new clock replaces the existing one. Only one source is accepted. Wildcards are accepted as long as the resolution shows one port or pin.

Supported Families

SmartFusion2, IGLOO2, RTG4



Description

Creates a clock in the current design at the declared source and defines its period and waveform. The static timing analysis tool uses this information to propagate the waveform across the clock network to the clock pins of all sequential elements driven by this clock source.

The clock information is also used to compute the slacks in the specified clock domain that drive optimization tools such as place-and-route.

Exceptions

None

Examples

The following example creates two clocks, one on port CK1 with a period of 6, and the other on port CK2 with a period of 6, a rising edge at 0, and a falling edge at 3:

```
create_clock -name {my_user_clock} -period 6 CK1
create_clock -name {my_other_user_clock} -period 6 -waveform {0 3} {CK2}
```

The following example creates a clock on port CK3 with a period of 7, a rising edge at 2, and a falling edge at 4: create clock -period 7 -waveform {2 4} [get ports {CK3}]

The following example creates a new clock constraint clk2, in addition to clk1, on the same source port clk1 without overriding it.

create_clock -name clk1 -period 10 -waveform {0 5} [get_ports clk1]
create_clock -name clk2 -add -period 20 -waveform {0 10} [get_ports clk1]

The following example does not add a new clock constraint, even with the -add option, but overrides the existing clock constraint because of the same clock names. Note: To add a new clock constraint in addition to the existing clock constraint on the same source port, the clock names must be different.

```
create_clock -name clk1 -period 10 -waveform {0 5} [get_ports clk1]
create clock -name clk1 -add -period 50 -waveform {0 25} [get ports clk1]
```

Microsemi Implementation Specifics

- The -waveform in SDC accepts waveforms with multiple edges within a period. In Microsemi design
 implementation, only two waveforms are accepted.
- SDC accepts defining a clock on many sources using a single command. In Microsemi design implementation, only one source is accepted.
- The source argument in SDC create_clock command is optional. This is in conjunction with the -name argument in SDC to support the concept of virtual clocks. In Microsemi implementation, source is a mandatory argument as -name and virtual clocks concept is not supported.
- The -domain argument in the SDC create_clock command is not supported.

See Also

SDC Syntax Conventions

create_generated_clock

SDC command; creates an internally generated clock and defines its characteristics.

```
create_generated_clock -name clock_name [-add] [-master_clock clock_name] -source
reference_pin [-divide_by divide_factor] [-multiply_by multiply_factor] [-invert] source -
pll_output pll_feedback_clock -pll_feedback pll_feedback_input[-edges values] [-edge_shift
values]
```

Arguments

-name clock_name

Specifies the name of the clock constraint. This parameter is required for virtual clocks when no clock source is provided.



-add

Specifies that the generated clock constraint is a new clock constraint in addition to the existing one at the same source. The name of the clock constraint should be different from the existing clock constraint. With this option, -master_clock option and -name options must be specified.

-master_clock clock_name

Specifies the master clock used for the generated clock when multiple clocks fan into the master pin. This option must be used in conjuction with -add option of the generated clock.

Notes:

- 1. The master_clock option is used only with the -add option for the generated clocks.
- 2. If there are multiple master clocks fanning into the same reference pin, the first generated clock specified will always use the first master clock as its source clock.
- 3. The subsequent generated clocks specified with the -add option can choose any of the master clocks as their source clock (including the first master clock specified).

-source reference_pin

Specifies the reference pin in the design from which the clock waveform is to be derived.

-divide_by divide_factor

Specifies the frequency division factor. For instance if the *divide_factor* is equal to 2, the generated clock period is twice the reference clock period.

-multiply_by multiply_factor

Specifies the frequency multiplication factor. For instance if the *multiply_factor* is equal to 2, the generated clock period is half the reference clock period.

-invert

Specifies that the generated clock waveform is inverted with respect to the reference clock.

source

Specifies the source of the clock constraint on internal pins of the design. If you specify a clock constraint on a pin that already has a clock, the new clock replaces the existing clock. Only one source is accepted. Wildcards are accepted as long as the resolution shows one pin.

-pll_output pll_feedback_clock

Specifies the output pin of the PLL which is used as the external feedback clock. This pin must drive the feedback input pin of the PLL specified using the -pll_feedback option. The PLL will align the rising edge of the reference input clock to the feedback clock. This is a mandatory argument if the PLL is operating in external feedback mode.

-pll_feedback pll_feedback_input

Specifies the feedback input pin of the PLL. This pin must be driven by the output pin of the PLL specified using the -pll_output option. The PLL will align the rising edge of the reference input clock to the external feedback clock. This is a mandatory argument if the PLL is operating in external feedback mode.

-edges values

Specify the integer values that represent the edges from the source clock that form the edges of the generated clock. Three values must be specified to generate the clock. If you specify less than three, a tool tip indicates an error.

-edge_shift values



Specify a list of three floating point numbers that represents the amount of shift, in nanoseconds, that the specified edges are to undergo to yield the final generated clock waveform. These floating point values can be positive or negative. Positive value indicates a shift later in time, while negative indicates a shift earlier in time.

For example: An edge shift of {1 1 1} on the LSB generated clock, would shift each derived edge by 1 nanosecond.

To create a 200MHz clock from a 100MHz clock, use edge { 1 2 3} and edge shift {0 -2.5 -5.0}.

Supported Families

SmartFusion2, IGLOO2, RTG4

Description

Creates a generated clock in the current design at a declared source by defining its frequency with respect to the frequency at the reference pin. The static timing analysis tool uses this information to compute and propagate its waveform across the clock network to the clock pins of all sequential elements driven by this source.

The generated clock information is also used to compute the slacks in the specified clock domain that drive optimization tools such as place-and-route.

Examples

The following example creates a generated clock on pin U1/reg1:Q with a period twice as long as the period at the reference port CLK.

create_generated_clock -name {my_user_clock} -divide_by 2 -source [get_ports
{CLK}] U1/reg1:Q

The following example creates a generated clock at the primary output of myPLL with a period ³/₄ of the period at the reference pin clk.

create generated clock -divide by 3 -multiply by 4 -source clk [get pins {myPLL:CLK1}]

The following example creates a new generated clock gen2 in addition to gen1 derived from same master clock as the existing generated clock, and the new constraints is added to pin r1/CLK.

```
create_generated_clock -name gen1 -multiply_by 1 -source [get_ports clk1] [get_pins
r1/CLK]
create_generated_clock -name gen2 -add -master_clock clk1 -source [get_ports clk1] -
multiply by 2 [get pins r1/CLK]
```

The following example does not create a new generated clock constraint in addition to the existing clock, but will override even with the -add option enabled, because the same names are used.

```
create_generated_clock -name gen2 -source [get_ports clk1] -multiply_by 3 [get_pins
r1/CLK]
```

create_generated_clock -name gen2 -source [get_ports clk1] -multiply_by 4 -master_clock
clk1 -add [get_pins r1/CLK]

The following example creates a generated clock on pin U1/reg1:Q with a period twice as long as the period at the reference port CLK.

create_generated_clock -name {my_user_clock} -divide_by 2 -source [get_ports {CLK}] U1/reg1/Q

The following example creates a generated clock at the primary output of myPLL with a period ³/₄ of the period at the reference pin clk.

create_generated_clock -divide_by 3 -multiply_by 4 -source clk [get_pins {myPLL/CLK1}]

The following example creates a generated clock named system_clk on the GL2 output pin of FCCC_0 with a period equal to half the period of the source clock. The constraint also identifies GL2 output pin as the external feedback clock source and CLK2 as the feedback input pin for FCCC_0.

```
create_generated_clock -name { system_clk } \
-multiply_by 2 \
-source { FCCC 0/CCC INST/CLK3 PAD } \
```



-pll_output { FCCC_0/CCC_INST/GL2 } \
-pll_feedback { FCCC_0/CCC_INST/CLK2 } \
{ FCCC_0/CCC_INST/GL2 }

Microsemi Implementation Specifics

- SDC accepts either –multiply_by or –divide_by option. In Microsemi design implementation, both are
 accepted to accurately model the PLL behavior.
- SDC accepts defining a generated clock on many sources using a single command. In Microsemi design implementation, only one source is accepted.
- The -duty_cycle ,-edges and -edge_shift options in the SDC create_generated_clock command are not supported in Microsemi design implementation.

See Also

SDC Syntax Conventions

remove clock uncertainty

SDC command; Removes a clock-to-clock uncertainty from the current timing scenario.

```
remove_clock_uncertainty -from | -rise_from | -fall_from from_clock_list -to | -rise_to| -
fall_to to_clock_list -setup {value} -hold {value}
remove_clock_uncertainty -id constraint_ID
```

Arguments

-from

Specifies that the clock-to-clock uncertainty applies to both rising and falling edges of the source clock list. You can specify only one of the -from, -rise_from, or -fall_from arguments for the constraint to be valid.

-rise_from

Specifies that the clock-to-clock uncertainty applies only to rising edges of the source clock list. You can specify only one of the -from, -rise_from, or -fall_from arguments for the constraint to be valid.

-fall_from

Specifies that the clock-to-clock uncertainty applies only to falling edges of the source clock list. You can specify only one of the -from, -rise from, or -fall from arguments for the constraint to be valid.

from_clock_list

Specifies the list of clock names as the uncertainty source.

-to

Specifies that the clock-to-clock uncertainty applies to both rising and falling edges of the destination clock list. You can specify only one of the -to, -rise_to, or -fall_to arguments for the constraint to be valid.

-rise to

Specifies that the clock-to-clock uncertainty applies only to rising edges of the destination clock list. You can specify only one of the -to, -rise to, or -fall to arguments for the constraint to be valid.

-fall to

Specifies that the clock-to-clock uncertainty applies only to falling edges of the destination clock list. You can specify only one of the -to, -rise_to, or -fall_to arguments for the constraint to be valid.

```
to_clock_list
```



Specifies the list of clock names as the uncertainty destination.

-setup

Specifies that the uncertainty applies only to setup checks. If none or both -setup and -hold are present, the uncertainty applies to both setup and hold checks.

-hold

Specifies that the uncertainty applies only to hold checks. If none or both -setup and -hold are present, the uncertainty applies to both setup and hold checks.

-id constraint_ID

Specifies the ID of the clock constraint to remove from the current scenario. You must specify either the exact parameters to set the constraint or its constraint ID.

Supported Families

SmartFusion2, IGLOO2, RTG4

Description

Removes a clock-to-clock uncertainty from the specified clock in the current scenario. If the specified arguments do not match clocks with an uncertainty constraint in the current scenario, or if the specified ID does not refer to a clock-to-clock uncertainty constraint, this command fails.

Do not specify both the exact arguments and the ID.

Exceptions

None

Examples

```
remove_clock_uncertainty -from Clk1 -to Clk2
remove_clock_uncertainty -from Clk1 -fall_to { Clk2 Clk3 } -setup
remove_clock_uncertainty 4.3 -fall_from { Clk1 Clk2 } -rise_to *
remove_clock_uncertainty 0.1 -rise_from [ get_clocks { Clk1 Clk2 } ] -fall_to { Clk3
Clk4 } -setup
remove_clock_uncertainty 5 -rise_from Clk1 -to [ get_clocks {*} ]
remove_clock_uncertainty -id $clockId
```

See Also

SDC Syntax Conventions set_clock_uncertainty

set_clock_latency

SDC command; defines the delay between an external clock source and the definition pin of a clock within SmartTime.

set clock latency -source [-rise][-fall][-early][-late] delay clock

Arguments

-source

Specifies a clock source latency on a clock pin.

-rise

Specifies the edge for which this constraint will apply. If neither or both rise are passed, the same latency is applied to both edges.

-fall



Specifies the edge for which this constraint will apply. If neither or both rise are passed, the same latency is applied to both edges.

-invert

Specifies that the generated clock waveform is inverted with respect to the reference clock.

-late

Optional. Specifies that the latency is late bound on the latency. The appropriate bound is used to provide the most pessimistic timing scenario. However, if the value of "-late" is less than the value of "-early", optimistic timing takes place which could result in incorrect analysis. If neither or both "-early" and "-late" are provided, the same latency is used for both bounds, which results in the latency having no effect for single clock domain setup and hold checks.

-early

Optional. Specifies that the latency is early bound on the latency. The appropriate bound is used to provide the most pessimistic timing scenario. However, if the value of "-late" is less than the value of "-early", optimistic timing takes place which could result in incorrect analysis. If neither or both "-early" and "-late" are provided, the same latency is used for both bounds, which results in the latency having no effect for single clock domain setup and hold checks.

delay

Specifies the latency value for the constraint.

clock

Specifies the clock to which the constraint is applied. This clock must be constrained.

Supported Families

SmartFusion2, IGLOO2, RTG4

Description

Clock source latency defines the delay between an external clock source and the definition pin of a clock within SmartTime. It behaves much like an input delay constraint. You can specify both an "early" delay and a "late" delay for this latency, providing an uncertainty which SmartTime propagates through its calculations. Rising and falling edges of the same clock can have different latencies. If only one value is provided for the clock source latency, it is taken as the exact latency value, for both rising and falling edges.

Exceptions

None

Examples

The following example sets an early clock source latency of 0.4 on the rising edge of main_clock. It also sets a clock source latency of 1.2, for both the early and late values of the falling edge of main_clock. The late value for the clock source latency for the falling edge of main_clock remains undefined.

```
set_clock_latency -source -rise -early 0.4 { main_clock }
set clock latency -source -fall 1.2 { main clock }
```

Microsemi Implementation Specifics

SDC accepts a list of clocks to -set_clock_latency. In Microsemi design implementation, only one clock pin can have its source latency specified per command.

See Also

SDC Syntax Conventions



set_clock_to_output

SDC command; defines the timing budget available inside the FPGA for an output relative to a clock.

set clock to output delay value -clock clock ref [-max] [-min] output list

Arguments

delay_value

Specifies the clock to output delay in nanoseconds. This time represents the amount of time available inside the FPGA between the active clock edge and the data change at the output port.

-clock clock_ref

Specifies the reference clock to which the specified clock to output is related. This is a mandatory argument.

-max

Specifies that *delay_value* refers to the maximum clock to output at the specified output. If you do not specify -max or -min options, the tool assumes maximum and minimum clock to output delays to be equal.

-min

Specifies that *delay_value* refers to the minimum clock to output at the specified output. If you do not specify -max or -min options, the tool assumes maximum and minimum clock to output delays to be equal.

output_list

Provides a list of output ports in the current design to which delay_value is assigned. If you need to specify more than one object, enclose the objects in braces ({}).

Supported Families SmartFusion2

IGLOO2 RTG4

set_clock_uncertainty

SDC command; specifies simple clock uncertainty for single clock and clock-to-clock uncertainty between two clocks (from and to).

```
set_clock_uncertainty [-setup] [-hold] uncertainty [object_list -from from_clock | -
rise_from rise_from_clock | -fall_from_fall_from_clock -to to_clock | -rise_to rise_to_clock |
-fall to fall to clock]
```

Arguments

uncertainty

Specifies the time in nanoseconds that represents the amount of variation between two clock edges.

object list

Specifies a list of clocks, ports, or pins for simple uncertainty; the uncertainty is applied either to destination flops clocked by one of the clocks in the object list option , or destination flops whose clock pins are in the fanout of a port or a pin specified in the object_list option.

-from



Specifies that the clock-to-clock uncertainty applies to both rising and falling edges of the source clock list. Only one of the -from, -rise_from, or -fall_from arguments can be specified for the constraint to be valid.

-rise from

Specifies that the clock-to-clock uncertainty applies only to rising edges of the source clock list. Only one of the -from, -rise_from, or -fall_from arguments can be specified for the constraint to be valid.

-fall from

Specifies that the clock-to-clock uncertainty applies only to falling edges of the source clock list. Only one of the -from, -rise_from, or -fall_from arguments can be specified for the constraint to be valid.

from_clock/rise_from_clock/fall_from_clock

Specifies the list of clock names as the uncertainty source.

-to

Specifies that the clock-to-clock uncertainty applies to both rising and falling edges of the destination clock list. Only one of the -to, -rise_to, or -fall_to arguments can be specified for the constraint to be valid.

-rise_to

Specifies that the clock-to-clock uncertainty applies only to rising edges of the destination clock list. Only one of the -to, -rise to, or -fall to arguments can be specified for the constraint to be valid.

-fall to

Specifies that the clock-to-clock uncertainty applies only to falling edges of the destination clock list. Only one of the -to, -rise to, or -fall to arguments can be specified for the constraint to be valid.

to_clock/rise_to_clock/fall_to_clock

Specifies the list of clock names as the uncertainty destination.

-setup

Specifies that the uncertainty applies only to setup checks. If none or both -setup and -hold are present, the uncertainty applies to both setup and hold checks.

-hold

Specifies that the uncertainty applies only to hold checks. If none or both -setup and -hold are present, the uncertainty applies to both setup and hold checks.

Supported Families

SmartFusion2, IGLOO2, RTG4

Description

set_clock_uncertainty command sets the timing uncertainty of clock networks. It can be used to model clock jitter or add guard band in timing analysis. Either simple clock uncertainty or clock-to-clock uncertainty can be specified.

Simple clock uncertainty can be set on a clock or on any pin in the clock network. It will then apply to any path with the capturing register in the forward cone of the uncertainty. If multiple simple uncertainty applies to a register, the last one (in the propagation order from the clock source to the register) is used.

Clock-to-clock uncertainty applies to inter-clock paths. Both "from" clock and "to" clock must be specified. Clockto-clock uncertainty has higher priority than simple uncertainty. If both are set (a clock-to-clock uncertainty and a simple clock uncertainty on the "to" clock), the simple clock uncertainty will be ignored for inter-clock paths, only the clock-to-clock uncertainty will be used.



Exceptions

None

Examples

Simple Clock Uncertainty constraint examples:

```
set_clock_uncertainty 2 -setup [get_clocks clk]
set clock uncertainty 2 [get clocks clk]
```

Clock to Clock Uncertainty constraint examples:

```
set_clock_uncertainty 10 -from Clk1 -to Clk2
set_clock_uncertainty 0 -from Clk1 -fall_to { Clk2 Clk3 } -setup
set_clock_uncertainty 4.3 -fall_from { Clk1 Clk2 } -rise_to *
set_clock_uncertainty 0.1 -rise_from [ get_clocks { Clk1 Clk2 } ] -fall_to { Clk3 Clk4 }
-setup
set clock uncertainty 5 -rise from Clk1 -to [ get clocks {*} ]
```

Microsemi Implementation Specifics

• SDC accepts a list of clocks to -set_clock_uncertainty.

See Also

SDC Syntax Conventions remove clock uncertainty

set_disable_timing

SDC command; disables timing arcs within the specified cell and returns the ID of the created constraint if the command succeeded.

set_disable_timing [-from from_port] [-to to_port] cell_name

Arguments

-from from port

Specifies the starting port.

-to to_port

Specifies the ending port.

cell_name

Specifies the name of the cell in which timing arcs will be disabled.

Supported Families

SmartFusion2, IGLOO2, RTG4

Description

This command disables the timing arcs in the specified cell, and returns the ID of the created constraint if the command succeeded. The –from and –to arguments must either both be present or both omitted for the constraint to be valid.

Examples

The following example disables the arc between a2:A and a2:Y.

set_disable_timing -from port1 -to port2 cellname

This command ensures that the arc is disabled within a cell instead of between cells.

Microsemi Implementation Specifics

None



See Also

SDC Syntax Conventions

set_external_check

SDC command; defines the external setup and hold delays for an input relative to a clock.

set_external_check delay_value -clock clock_ref [-setup] [-hold] input_list

Arguments

delay_value

Specifies the external setup or external hold delay in nanoseconds. This time represents the amount of time available inside the FPGA for the specified input after a clock edge.

-clock clock_ref

Specifies the reference clock to which the specified external check is related. This is a mandatory argument.

-setup **Or** -hold

Specifies that delay_value refers to the setup/hold check at the specified input. This is a mandatory argument if -hold is not used. You must specify either -setup or -hold option.

input_list

Provides a list of input ports in the current design to which delay_value is assigned. If you need to specify more than one object, enclose the objects in braces ({}).

Supported Families

SmartFusion2, IGLOO2, RTG4

Description

The set_external_check command specifies the external setup and hold times on input ports relative to a clock edge. This usually represents a combinational path delay from the input port to the clock pin of a register internal to the current design. For in/out (bidirectional) ports, you can specify the path delays for both input and output modes. The tool uses external setup and external hold times for paths starting at primary inputs.

A clock is a singleton that represents the name of a defined clock constraint. This can be an object accessor that will refer to one clock. For example:

```
[get_clocks {system_clk}]
[get_clocks {sys*_clk}]
```

Examples

The following example sets an external setup check of 12 ns and an external hold check of 6 ns for port data_in relative to the rising edge of CLK1:

set_external_check 12 -clock [get_clocks CLK1] -setup [get_ports data_in]
set external check 6 -clock [get clocks CLK1] -hold [get ports data in]

See Also

SDC Syntax Conventions

set_false_path

SDC command; identifies paths that are considered false and excluded from the timing analysis.

set_false_path [-from from_list] [-through through_list] [-to to_list]



Arguments

-from from_list

Specifies a list of timing path starting points. A valid timing starting point is a clock, a primary input, an inout port, or a clock pin of a sequential cell.

-through through_list

Specifies a list of pins, ports, cells, or nets through which the disabled paths must pass.

-to to_list

Specifies a list of timing path ending points. A valid timing ending point is a clock, a primary output, an inout port, or a data pin of a sequential cell.

Supported Families

SmartFusion2, IGLOO2, RTG4

Description

The set_false_path command identifies specific timing paths as being false. The false timing paths are paths that do not propagate logic level changes. This constraint removes timing requirements on these false paths so that they are not considered during the timing analysis. The path starting points are the input ports or register clock pins, and the path ending points are the register data pins or output ports. This constraint disables setup and hold checking for the specified paths.

The false path information always takes precedence over multiple cycle path information and overrides maximum delay constraints. If more than one object is specified within one -through option, the path can pass through any objects.

Examples

The following example specifies all paths from clock pins of the registers in clock domain clk1 to data pins of a specific register in clock domain clk2 as false paths:

set false path -from [get clocks {clk1}] -to reg 2:D

The following example specifies all paths through the pin U0/U1:Y to be false: set false path -through U0/U1:Y

Microsemi Implementation Specifics

SDC accepts multiple -through options in a single constraint to specify paths that traverse multiple points in the design. In Microsemi design implementation, only one –through option is accepted.

See Also

SDC Syntax Conventions

set_input_delay

SDC command; defines the arrival time of an input relative to a clock.

```
set_input_delay delay_value -clock clock_ref [-max] [-min] [-clock_fall] [-rise] [-fall] [-
add delay] input list
```

Arguments

delay_value

Specifies the arrival time in nanoseconds that represents the amount of time for which the signal is available at the specified input after a clock edge.

-clock clock ref



Specifies the clock reference to which the specified input delay is related. This is a mandatory argument. If you do not specify -max or -min options, the tool assumes the maximum and minimum input delays to be equal.

-max

Specifies that delay_value refers to the longest path arriving at the specified input. If you do not specify - max or -min options, the tool assumes maximum and minimum input delays to be equal.

-min

Specifies that delay_value refers to the shortest path arriving at the specified input. If you do not specify - max or -min options, the tool assumes maximum and minimum input delays to be equal.

-clock_fall

Specifies that the delay is relative to the falling edge of the clock reference. The default is the rising edge.

-rise

Specifies that the delay is relative to a rising transition on the specified port(s). If -rise or -fall is not specified, then rising and falling delays are assumed to be equal.

-fall

Specifies that the delay is relative to a falling transition on the specified port(s). If -rise or -fall is not specified, then rising and falling delays are assumed to be equal.

```
-add_delay
```

Specifies that this input delay constraint should be added to an existing constraint on the same port(s). The -add_delay option is used to capture information on multiple paths with different clocks or clock edges leading to the same input port(s).

$input_list$

Provides a list of input ports in the current design to which delay_value is assigned. If you need to specify more than one object, enclose the objects in braces ({}).

Notes:

- The behavior of the -add_delay option is identical to that of PrimeTime(TM)
- If, using the -add_delay mechanism, multiple constraints are otherwise identical, except they specify different -max or -min values
 - the surviving -max constraint will be the maximum of the -max values
 - the surviving -min constraint will be the minimum of the -min values

Supported Families

SmartFusion2, IGLOO2, RTG4

Description

The set_input_delay command sets input path delays on input ports relative to a clock edge. This usually represents a combinational path delay from the clock pin of a register external to the current design. For in/out (bidirectional) ports, you can specify the path delays for both input and output modes. The tool adds input delay to path delay for paths starting at primary inputs.

A clock is a singleton that represents the name of a defined clock constraint. This can be:

- a single port name used as source for a clock constraint
- a single pin name used as source for a clock constraint; for instance reg1:CLK. This name can be hierarchical (for instance toplevel/block1/reg2:CLK)
- an object accessor that will refer to one clock: [get_clocks {clk}]



Examples

The following example sets an input delay of 1.2ns for port data1 relative to the rising edge of CLK1:

set_input_delay 1.2 -clock [get_clocks CLK1] [get_ports data1]

The following example sets a different maximum and minimum input delay for port IN1 relative to the falling edge of CLK2:

set_input_delay 1.0 -clock_fall -clock CLK2 -min {IN1}
set input delay 1.4 -clock fall -clock CLK2 -max {IN1}

The following example demonstrates an override condition of two constraints. The first constraint is overridden because the second constraint specifies a different clock for the same output:

set_input_delay 1.0 -clock CLK1 -max {IN1}
set input delay 1.4 -clock CLK2 -max {IN1}

The next example is almost the same as the previous one, however, in this case, the user has specified - add_delay, so both constraints will be honored:

```
set_input_delay 1.0 -clock CLK1 -max {IN1}
set_input_delay 1.4 -add_delay -clock CLK2 -max {IN1}
```

The following example is more complex:

- All constraints are for an input to port PAD1 relative to a rising edge clock CLK2. Each combination of {-rise, -fall} x {-max, -min} generates an independent constraint. But the max rise delay of 5 and the max rise delay of 7 interfere with each other.
- For a -max option, the maximum value overrides all lower values. Thus the first constraint will be overridden and the max rise delay of 7 will survive.

```
set_input_delay 5 -max -rise -add_delay [get_clocks CLK2] [get_ports PAD1]  # will be
overridden
set_input_delay 3 -min -fall -add_delay [get_clocks CLK2] [get_ports PAD1]
set_input_delay 3 -max -fall -add_delay [get_clocks CLK2] [get_ports PAD1]
set input delay 7 -max -rise -add delay [get clocks CLK2] [get ports PAD1]
```

Microsemi Implementation Specifics

In SDC, the -clock is an optional argument that allows you to set input delay for combinational designs. Microsemi's implementation currently requires this argument.

See Also

SDC Syntax Conventions

set load

SDC command; sets the load to a specified value on a specified port.

set_load capacitance port_list

Arguments

capacitance

Specifies the capacitance value that must be set on the specified ports.

port_list

Specifies a list of ports in the current design on which the capacitance is to be set.

Description

The load constraint enables the Designer software to account for external capacitance at a specified port. You cannot set load constraint on the nets. When you specify this constraint on the output ports, it impacts the delay calculation on the specified ports.



Examples

The following examples show how to set output capacitance on different output ports:

set_load 35 out_p
set_load 40 {01 02}
set_load 25 [get_ports out]

Supported Families

SmartFusion2, IGLOO2, RTG4

Microsemi Implementation Specifics

 In SDC, you can use the set_load command to specify capacitance value on nets. Microsemi Implementation only supports output ports.

See Also

SDC Syntax Conventions

set_max_delay (SDC)

SDC command; specifies the maximum delay for the timing paths.

set max delay delay value [-from from list] [-to to list]

Arguments

delay value

Specifies a floating point number in nanoseconds that represents the required maximum delay value for specified paths.

- If the path starting point is on a sequential device, the tool includes clock skew in the computed delay.
- If the path starting point has an input delay specified, the tool adds that delay value to the path delay.
- If the path ending point is on a sequential device, the tool includes clock skew and library setup time in the computed delay.
- If the ending point has an output delay specified, the tool adds that delay to the path delay.

-from from_list

Specifies a list of timing path starting points. A valid timing starting point is a clock, a primary input, an inout port, or a clock pin of a sequential cell.

-to to list

Specifies a list of timing path ending points. A valid timing ending point is a clock, a primary output, an inout port, or a data pin of a sequential cell.

Supported Families

SmartFusion2, IGLOO2, RTG4

Description

This command specifies the required maximum delay for timing paths in the current design. The path length for any startpoint in from_list to any endpoint in to_list must be less than delay_value.

The tool automatically derives the individual maximum delay targets from clock waveforms and port input or output delays. For more information, refer to the <u>create_clock</u>, <u>set_input_delay</u>, and <u>set_output_delay</u> commands.



The maximum delay constraint is a timing exception. This constraint overrides the default single cycle timing relationship for one or more timing paths. This constraint also overrides a multicycle path constraint.

Examples

The following example sets a maximum delay by constraining all paths from ff1a:CLK or ff1b:CLK to ff2e:D with a delay less than 5 ns:

set_max_delay 5 -from {ffla:CLK fflb:CLK} -to {ff2e:D}

The following example sets a maximum delay by constraining all paths to output ports whose names start by "out" with a delay less than 3.8 ns:

set_max_delay 3.8 -to [get_ports out*]

Microsemi Implementation Specifics

The -through option in the set_max_delay SDC command is not supported.

See Also

SDC Syntax Conventions

set_min_delay

SDC command; specifies the minimum delay for the timing paths.

set_min_delay delay_value [-from from_list] [-to to_list]

Arguments

delay_value

Specifies a floating point number in nanoseconds that represents the required minimum delay value for specified paths.

- If the path starting point is on a sequential device, the tool includes clock skew in the computed delay.
- If the path starting point has an input delay specified, the tool adds that delay value to the path delay.
- If the path ending point is on a sequential device, the tool includes clock skew and library setup time in the computed delay.
- If the ending point has an output delay specified, the tool adds that delay to the path delay.
- -from from_list

Specifies a list of timing path starting points. A valid timing starting point is a clock, a primary input, an inout port, or a clock pin of a sequential cell.

-to to_list

Specifies a list of timing path ending points. A valid timing ending point is a clock, a primary output, an inout port, or a data pin of a sequential cell.

Supported Families

SmartFusion2, IGLOO2, RTG4

Description

This command specifies the required minimum delay for timing paths in the current design. The path length for any startpoint in from_list to any endpoint in to_list must be less than delay_value.

The tool automatically derives the individual minimum delay targets from clock waveforms and port input or output delays. For more information, refer to the <u>create_clock</u>, <u>set_input_delay</u>, and <u>set_output_delay</u> commands.



The minimum delay constraint is a timing exception. This constraint overrides the default single cycle timing relationship for one or more timing paths. This constraint also overrides a multicycle path constraint.

Examples

The following example sets a minimum delay by constraining all paths from ff1a:CLK or ff1b:CLK to ff2e:D with a delay less than 5 ns:

set min delay 5 -from {ffla:CLK fflb:CLK} -to {ff2e:D}

The following example sets a minimum delay by constraining all paths to output ports whose names start by "out" with a delay less than 3.8 ns:

set_min_delay 3.8 -to [get_ports out*]

Microsemi Implementation Specifics

The -through option in the set_min_delay SDC command is not supported.

See Also

SDC Syntax Conventions

set_multicycle_path

SDC command; defines a path that takes multiple clock cycles.

```
set_multicycle_path ncycles [-setup] [-hold] [setup_only] [-from from_list] [-through
through_list] [-to to_list]
```

Arguments

ncycles

Specifies an integer value that represents a number of cycles the data path must have for setup or hold check. The value is relative to the starting point or ending point clock, before data is required at the ending point.

-setup

Optional. Applies the cycle value for the setup check only. This option does not affect the hold check. The default hold check will be applied unless you have specified another set_multicycle_path command for the hold value.

-hold

Optional. Applies the cycle value for the hold check only. This option does not affect the setup check.

Note: If you do not specify "-setup" or "-hold", the cycle value is applied to the setup check and the default hold check is performed (*ncycles* -1).

```
-setup_only
```

Optional. Specifies that the path multiplier is applied to setup paths only. The default value for hold check (which is 0) is applied.

-from from_list

Specifies a list of timing path starting points. A valid timing starting point is a clock, a primary input, an inout port, or a clock pin of a sequential cell.

-through through_list

Specifies a list of pins or ports through which the multiple cycle paths must pass.

```
-to to_list
```



Specifies a list of timing path ending points. A valid timing ending point is a clock, a primary output, an inout port, or a data pin of a sequential cell.

Supported Families

SmartFusion2, IGLOO2, RTG4

Description

Setting multiple cycle paths constraint overrides the single cycle timing relationships between sequential elements by specifying the number of cycles that the data path must have for setup or hold checks. If you change the multiplier, it affects both the setup and hold checks.

False path information always takes precedence over multiple cycle path information. A specific maximum delay constraint overrides a general multiple cycle path constraint.

If you specify more than one object within one -through option, the path passes through any of the objects.

Examples

The following example sets all paths between reg1 and reg2 to 3 cycles for setup check. Hold check is measured at the previous edge of the clock at reg2.

set multicycle path 3 -from [get pins {reg1}] -to [get pins {reg2}]

The following example specifies that four cycles are needed for setup check on all paths starting at the registers in the clock domain ck1. Hold check is further specified with two cycles instead of the three cycles that would have been applied otherwise.

```
set_multicycle_path 4 -setup -from [get_clocks {ck1}]
set multicycle path 2 -hold -from [get clocks {ck1}]
```

The following example specifies that four cycles are needed for setup only check on all paths starting at the registers in the clock domain REF_CLK_0.

set multicycle path -setup only 4 -from [get clocks { REF CLK 0 }]

Microsemi Implementation Specifics

 SDC allows multiple priority management on the multiple cycle path constraint depending on the scope of the object accessors. In Microsemi design implementation, such priority management is not supported. All multiple cycle path constraints are handled with the same priority.

See Also

SDC Syntax Conventions

set_output_delay

SDC command; defines the output delay of an output relative to a clock.

```
set_output_delay delay_value -clock clock_ref [-max] [-min] [-clock_fall] [-rise] [-fall] [-
add_delay] output_list
```

Arguments

delay_value

Specifies the amount of time before a clock edge for which the signal is required. This represents a combinational path delay to a register outside the current design plus the library setup time (for maximum output delay) or hold time (for minimum output delay).

-clock clock ref



Specifies the clock reference to which the specified output delay is related. This is a mandatory argument. If you do not specify -max or -min options, the tool assumes the maximum and minimum input delays to be equal.

-max

Specifies that delay_value refers to the longest path from the specified output. If you do not specify -max or -min options, the tool assumes the maximum and minimum output delays to be equal.

-min

Specifies that delay_value refers to the shortest path from the specified output. If you do not specify -max or -min options, the tool assumes the maximum and minimum output delays to be equal.

-clock_fall

Specifies that the delay is relative to the falling edge of the clock reference. The default is the rising edge.

-rise

Specifies that the delay is relative to a rising transition on the specified port(s). If -rise or -fall is not specified, then rising and falling delays are assumed to be equal.

-fall

Specifies that the delay is relative to a falling transition on the specified port(s). If -rise or -fall is not specified, then rising and falling delays are assumed to be equal.

```
-add delay
```

Specifies that this output delay constraint should be added to an existing constraint on the same port(s). The -add_delay option is used to capture information on multiple paths with different clocks or clock edges leading from the same output port(s).

$output_list$

Provides a list of output ports in the current design to which delay_value is assigned. If you need to specify more than one object, enclose the objects in braces ({}).

Notes:

- The behavior of the -add_delay option is identical to that of PrimeTime(TM)
- If, using the -add_delay mechanism, multiple constraints are otherwise identical, except they specify different -max or -min values
 - the surviving -max constraint will be the maximum of the -max values
 - the surviving -min constraint will be the minimum of the -min values

Supported Families

SmartFusion2, IGLOO2, RTG4

Description

The set_output_delay command sets output path delays on output ports relative to a clock edge. Output ports have no output delay unless you specify it. For in/out (bidirectional) ports, you can specify the path delays for both input and output modes. The tool adds output delay to path delay for paths ending at primary outputs.

Examples

The following example sets an output delay of 1.2ns for port OUT1 relative to the rising edge of CLK1:

set output delay 1.2 -clock [get clocks CLK1] [get ports OUT1]

The following example sets a different maximum and minimum output delay for port OUT1 relative to the falling edge of CLK2:

set_output_delay 1.0 -clock_fall -clock CLK2 -min {OUT1}



set output delay 1.4 -clock fall -clock CLK2 -max {OUT1}

The following example demonstrates an override condition of two constraints. The first constraint is overridden because the second constraint specifies a different clock for the same output:

```
set_output_delay 1.0 {OUT1} -clock CLK1 -max
set output delay 1.4 {OUT1} -clock CLK2 -max
```

The next example is almost the same as the previous one, however, in this case, the user has specified - add_delay, so both constraints will be honored:

set_output_delay 1.0 {OUT1} -clock CLK1 -max

set output delay 1.4 {OUT1} -add delay -clock CLK2 -max

The following example is more complex:

- All constraints are for an output to port PAD1 relative to a rising edge clock CLK2. Each combination of {rise, -fall} x {-max, -min} generates an independent constraint. But the max rise delay of 5 and the max rise
 delay of 7 interfere with each other.
- For a -max option, the maximum value overrides all lower values. Thus the first constraint will be overridden and the max rise delay of 7 will survive.

```
set_output_delay 5 [get_clocks CLK2] [get_ports PAD1] -max -rise -add_delay  # will be
overridden
set_output_delay 3 [get_clocks CLK2] [get_ports PAD1] -min -fall -add_delay
set_output_delay 3 [get_clocks CLK2] [get_ports PAD1] -max -fall -add_delay
set output delay 7 [get clocks CLK2] [get ports PAD1] -max -rise -add delay
```

Microsemi Implementation Specifics

 In SDC, the -clock is an optional argument that allows you to set the output delay for combinational designs. Microsemi Implementation currently requires this option.

See Also

SDC Syntax Conventions

Design Object Access Commands

Design object access commands are SDC commands. Most SDC constraint commands require one of these commands as command arguments.

Microsemi software supports the following SDC access commands:

Design Object	Access Command
Cell	<u>get cells</u>
Clock	get clocks
Net	<u>get_nets</u>
Port	<u>get ports</u>
Pin	<u>get pins</u>
Input ports	all_inputs
Output ports	all outputs
Registers	all registers


See Also

About SDC Files

all_inputs

Design object access command; returns all the input or inout ports of the design.

all_inputs

Arguments

• None

Supported Families

SmartFusion2, IGLOO2, RTG4

Exceptions

• None

Example

set_max_delay -from [all_inputs] -to [get_clocks ck1]

Microsemi Implementation Specifics

• None

See Also

SDC Syntax Conventions

all_outputs

Design object access command; returns all the output or inout ports of the design.

all_outputs

Arguments

None

Supported Families

SmartFusion2, IGLOO2, RTG4

Exceptions

• None

Example

set_max_delay -from [all_inputs] -to [all_outputs]



Microsemi Implementation Specifics

None

See Also

SDC Syntax Conventions

all_registers

Design object access command; returns either a collection of register cells or register pins, whichever you specify.

```
all_registers [-clock clock_name] [-cells] [-data_pins ]
  [-clock_pins] [-async_pins] [-output_pins]
```

Arguments

```
-clock clock_name
```

Creates a collection of register cells or register pins in the specified clock domain.

-cells

Creates a collection of register cells. This is the default. This option cannot be used in combination with any other option.

-data_pins

Creates a collection of register data pins.

-clock_pins

Creates a collection of register clock pins.

-async_pins

Creates a collection of register asynchronous pins.

-output_pins

Creates a collection of register output pins.

Supported Families

SmartFusion2, IGLOO2, RTG4

Description

This command creates either a collection of register cells (default) or register pins, whichever is specified. If you do not specify an option, this command creates a collection of register cells.

Exceptions

None

Examples

```
set_max_delay 2 -from [all_registers] -to [get_ports {out}]
set_max_delay 3 -to [all_registers -async_pins]
set_false_path -from [all_registers -clock clk150]
set_multicycle_path -to [all_registers -clock c* -data_pins
-clock_pins]
```



Microsemi Implementation Specifics

None

See Also

SDC Syntax Conventions

get_cells

Design object access command; returns the cells (instances) specified by the pattern argument.

get_cells pattern

Arguments

pattern

Specifies the pattern to match the instances to return. For example, "get_cells U18*" returns all instances starting with the characters "U18", where "*" is a wildcard that represents any character string.

Supported Families

SmartFusion2, IGLOO2, RTG4

Description

This command returns a collection of instances matching the pattern you specify. You can only use this command as part of a –from, -to, or –through argument for the following constraint exceptions: set_max delay, set_multicycle_path, and set_false_path design constraints.

Exceptions

None

Examples

```
set_max_delay 2 -from [get_cells {reg*}] -to [get_ports {out}]
set false path -through [get cells {Rblock/muxA}]
```

Microsemi Implementation Specifics

None

See Also

SDC Syntax Conventions

get_clocks

Design object access command; returns the specified clock.

get_clocks pattern

Arguments

pattern



Specifies the pattern to match to the SmartTime on which a clock constraint has been set.

Supported Families

SmartFusion2, IGLOO2, RTG4

Description

- If this command is used as a –from argument in maximum delay (set_max_path_delay), false path (set_false_path), and multicycle constraints (set_multicycle_path), the clock pins of all the registers related to this clock are used as path start points.
- If this command is used as a -to argument in maximum delay (set_max_path_delay), false path (set false path), and multicycle constraints (set multicycle path), the synchronous pins of all the registers related to this clock are used as path endpoints.

Exceptions

• None

Example

set_max_delay -from [get_ports datal] -to \
[get clocks ck1]

Microsemi Implementation Specifics

None

See Also

SDC Syntax Conventions

get_pins

Design object access command; returns the specified pins.

get pins pattern

Arguments

pattern

Specifies the pattern to match the pins.

Supported Families

SmartFusion2, IGLOO2, RTG4

Exceptions

None



Example

create_clock -period 10 [get_pins clock_gen/reg2:Q]

Microsemi Implementation Specifics

None

See Also

SDC Syntax Conventions

get_nets

Design object access command; returns the named nets specified by the pattern argument.

get_nets pattern

Arguments

pattern

Specifies the pattern to match the names of the nets to return. For example, "get_nets N_255*" returns all nets starting with the characters "N_255", where "*" is a wildcard that represents any character string.

Supported Families

SmartFusion2, IGLOO2, RTG4

Description

This command returns a collection of nets matching the pattern you specify. You can only use this command as source objects in create clock (<u>create_clock</u>) or create generated clock (<u>create_generated_clock</u>) constraints and as -through arguments in set false path (<u>set_false_path</u>), set minimum delay (set_min_delay), set maximum delay (<u>set_max_delay</u>), and set multicycle path (<u>set_multicycle_path</u>) constraints.

Exceptions

None

Examples

set_max_delay 2 -from [get_ports RDATA1] -through [get_nets {net_chkp1 net_chkqi}]
set_false_path -through [get_nets {Tblk/rm/n*}]
create_clcok -name mainCLK -per 2.5 [get_nets {cknet}]

Microsemi Implementation Specifics

None

See Also

SDC Syntax Conventions



get_ports

Design object access command; returns the specified ports.

get ports *pattern*

Argument

pattern

Specifies the pattern to match the ports. This is equivalent to the macros in()[<pattern>] when used as – from argument and out()[<pattern>] when used as –to argument or ports()[<pattern>] when used as a – through argument.

Supported Families

SmartFusion2, IGLOO2, RTG4

Exceptions

None

Example

create_clock -period 10[get_ports CK1]

Microsemi Implementation Specifics

None

See Also

SDC Syntax Conventions